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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

TO: ALL STOCKHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that there will be an annual meeting of the stockholders of PACIFIC ONLINE
SYSTEMS CORPORATION on June 22, 2020 (Monday), at 9:00 a.m. The meeting will be conducted
virtually and can be accessed at the Ilink provided in the Company’s website at
https://www.loto.com.ph/investor-relations/ Annual-or-Special-Stockholders-Meeting / Virtual-ASM

Items in the agenda of the meeting are as follows:
AGENDA

1. Callto Order

2. Proof of Notice of Meeting

3. Certification of Quorum

4. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
5. Approval of 2019 Operations and Results

6. Ratification of All Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers

7. Election of Directors

8. Appointment of External Auditors

9. Other Matters

10. Adjournment

The close of business on April 30, 2020 has been fixed as the record date for the determination of the
stockholders entitled to notice of and vote at said meeting and any adjournment thereof.

Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic resulting in the imposition by the government of regulations limiting
mobility and mass gatherings, the Company will not be conducting a physical annual stockholders’
meeting. In lieu thereof, the annual stockholders’ meeting will be held virtually through an online webinar
platform for stockholders to attend by remote communication. They can join by registering online at
www.evoting.pacificonline.com.ph on or before 5:00 p.m. on June 11, 2020. The identities of those
registering to participate online will be going through a process of verification, after which an email from
the Company will be sent to them giving instructions as to how they will be able to watch the livestream
of the annual stockholders’ meeting

The stockholders are likewise encouraged to participate in the meeting by either of the following:

0] by submitting duly accomplished proxies to the Office of the Corporate Secretary at 2704
East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Ortigas Center, Pasig City or via electronic
copy by emailing corporatesecretary@pacificonline.com.ph on or before 5:00 p.m. on June
11, 2020.

For corporate stockholders, the proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary’s
Certification on the appointment of the corporation’s authorized signatory.

(ii) by registering your votes on the matters to be taken up during the meeting through the e-
voting platform set up for the purpose which can be accessed at
www.evoting.pacificonline.com.ph. The e-voting portal will be open until 10:00 in the morning
of June 22, 2020.

Validation of proxies is set on June 15, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. The votes already cast using the e-voting
platform by that time will also be verified on said date.

City of Pasig, Metro Manila, May 12, 2020.

A. BAYANI K. TAN
Cofporate Secretary



RATIONALE FOR AGENDA ITEMS

Agenda Item No. 4. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of
Stockholders held on May 30, 2019

Copies of the Minutes of the May 30, 2019 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting is currently
posted on the Corporation's website (please see link here:
https://www.loto.com.ph/sites/default/files/POSC%20ASM%202019%20MINUTES.
pdf) and can be viewed at any time. Stockholders will be asked to approve the
Minutes of the 2019 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Agenda Item No. 5. Approval of 2019 Operations and Results

A report on the highlights of the financial performance of the Corporation for the year
ended December 31, 2019 will be presented to the Stockholders. A summary of the
Corporation’s performance for the year is also provided in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis of Operating Performance and Financial Condition” section
on page 27 hereof.

The Corporation’s Audited Financial Statements, for which the external auditors have
issued an unqualified opinion, have likewise been reviewed by the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors. A summary of the 2019 AFS shall also be presented to
the Stockholders. The 2019 Annual Report may be accessed at
https://www.loto.com.ph/sites/default/files/Annual%20Report-2019.pdf.

Agenda Item No. 6. Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and
Management from the date of the Ilast Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting to the date of this meeting

All actions, proceedings and contracts entered into, as well as resolutions made and
adopted by the Board of Directors and of Management from the date of the
Stockholders Meeting held on May 30, 2019 to the date of this meeting shall be
presented for confirmation, approval, and ratification. The items covered with respect
to the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and Officers for the past year
up to the date of the meeting are those items entered into in the ordinary course of
business.

Agenda Item No. 7. Election of Directors for 2020 to 2021

The current members of the Board of Directors, as reviewed, qualified and
recommended by the Corporate Governance Committee, have been nominated for
re-election. Their proven expertise and qualifications, based on current regulatory
standards and the Corporation’s own criteria, will help sustain the Company’s solid
performance that will result to its stockholders’ benefit. The profiles of the Directors
are available in the Company website as well as in this Information Statement. If
elected, they shall serve as Directors for a period of one (1) year from June 22, 2020
or until their successors shall have been duly elected and qualified.

Agenda Item No. 8. Appointment of External Auditors

The Audit Committee has pre-screened and recommended, and the Board has
endorsed for consideration of the stockholders, the re-appointment of R.G. Manabat
& Co. as the Corporation's External Auditor for 2020-2021. R.G. Manabat & Co. is
one of the most reputable auditing firms in the country and is duly accredited by the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The Stockholders will also be requested to
delegate to the Board the authority to approve the appropriate audit fee for 2020.

Stockholders are given the opportunity to raise questions regarding the operations
and report of the Corporation as well as other concerns, by emailing
corporatesecretary@pacificonline.com.ph (Subject: Questions for ASM 2020) on or
before 9:00 am on June 22, 2020. Questions will be responded to during the question
and answer portion of the annual stockholders’ meeting before the end of the
proceedings. Due to the limited time, however, not all questions may be responded
to during the livestream of the annual stockholders’ meeting. Questions not
addressed at the meeting proper, including those that may be received after the
livestream, will be responded to via email by the corporate officers concerned.




PROXY FORM

The undersigned stockholder of Pacific Online Systems Corporation (the “Company”) hereby
appoints the Chairman of the meeting, as attorney and proxy, with power of substitution, to
represent and vote all shares registered in his/her/its name as proxy of the undersigned
stockholder, at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company on June 22, 2020 and at any
of the adjournments thereof for the purpose of acting on the following matters:

1. Election of Directors.

__1.1. Vote for all nominees listed below:
1.1.1. Willy N. Ocier

1.1.2.Ma. Virginia V. Abo-Hamda

1.1.3. Tarcisio M. Medalla

1.1.4.Henry N. Ocier

1.1.5.Regina O. Reyes

1.1.6. Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos
1.1.7. Laurito E. Serrano (Independent Director)
1.1.8.Jerry C. Tiu (Independent Director)
1.1.9.Joseph C. Tan (Independent Director)

1.2. Withhold authority for all nominees listed above
1.3. Withhold authority to vote for the nominees listed below:

2. Approval of minutes of previous Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
___Yes___No__ Abstain

3. Approval of 2019 Operations and Results
____Yes ___No___ Abstain

4. Ratification of all acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management from date of
last Stockholders’ Meeting to June 22, 2020.
___Yes ___No___ Abstain

5. Appointment of R. G. Manabat & Co. (KPMG) as external auditor.
___Yes__No___ Abstain

6. At their discretion, the proxy named above are authorized to vote upon such other matters as
may be properly come before the meeting.
___Yes__No___ Abstain

Printed Name of Stockholder

Signature of Stockholder /
Authorized Signatory

Date

THIS PROXY FORM SHOULD BE RECEIVED BY THE CORPORATE SECRETARY (IN HARDCOPY
TO THE OFFICE OF THE CORPORATE SECRETARY AT 2704, EAST TOWER, PHILIPPINE STOCK
EXCHANGE CENTRE, ORTIGAS CENTER PASIG CITY OR EMAILED TO
CORPORATESECRETARY@PACIFICONLINE.COM.PH AT LEAST SIX (6) BUSINESS DAYS
BEFORE THE DATE SET FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING, AS PROVIDED IN THE BY-LAWS.

WE ARE NOT SOLICITING PROXIES.




SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

, , Filipino, of legal age and with office address at
, do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected and qualified Corporate Secretary of
(the “Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of
the Republic of the Philippines, with office address at ;

2. Based on the records, during the lawfully convened meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation held on , the following resolution was passed and
approved:

“‘RESOLVED, that be authorized and appointed,
as he is hereby authorized and appointed, as the Corporation’s Proxy (the
“Proxy”) to attend all meetings of the stockholders of Pacific Online
Systems Corporation (Pacific Online) whether the meeting is regular or
special, or at any meeting postponed or adjourned therefrom, with full
authority to vote the shares of stock of the Corporation held in Pacific
Online and to act upon all matters and resolution that may come before or
presented during meetings, or any adjournments thereof, in the name,
place and stead of the Corporation.

“‘RESOLVED, FINALLY, That Pacific Online be furnished with a certified
copy of this resolution and Pacific Online may rely on the continuing
validity of this resolution until receipt of written notice of its revocation.”

3. The foregoing resolution has not been modified, amended or revoked in accordance with the
records of the Corporation presently in my custody.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have signed this instrument in on

Printed Name and Signature of the
Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME on in
. Affiant exhibited to me his Competent Evidence of Identity by way of
issued on at .
Doc. No. ;
Page No. ;
Book No. :

Series of 2020.



10.

11.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S

Information Statement Pursuant to Section 20
of the Securities Regulation Code
Check the appropriate box
[V] Preliminary Information Statement

[ ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: Pasig City, Metro Manila,

Philippines
SEC ldentification Number: AS093-008809
BIR Tax ldentification Number: 003-865-392-000
Address of principal office: 28th Floor, East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road,

Ortigas Center, Pasiqg City

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 584-1700

Date, time, and place of the meeting of security holders:

Date : June 22, 2020 (Monday)
Time : 9:00 o’clock in the morning
Platform : Videoconferencing via Zoom Webinar

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is to be sent or given to security holders:
May 25, 2020

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Common Stock £1.00 par value

895,330,946 (as of April 30, 2020)

Are any or all of Registrant’s securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes [V] No[ ]
If so disclose name of the Exchange : The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
Class of securities listed : Common Shares

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE NOT REQUESTED
TO SEND US A PROXY.




A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders

(@)

(b)

Date - June 22, 2020 (Monday)
Time - 9:00 o’clock in the morning
Platform - Videoconferencing via Zoom Webinar

The approximate date on which the Information Statement will be sent or given to security
holders is on May 25, 2020.

The complete mailing address of the principal office of Pacific Online Systems Corporation
(“the Company”) is:

28th Floor, East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605

Item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

The matters to be voted upon in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on June 22, 2020 are not among
the instances enumerated in Sections 41 and 80 of the Revised Corporation Code whereby the right
of appraisal (defined as the right of any stockholder to dissent and demand payment of the fair value
of his shares) may be exercised. The instances where the right of appraisal may be exercised are as
follows:

1.

4,

In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting
the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect
superior to those outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of
corporate existence;

In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Company’s property and assets;

In case the Company decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business outside of its
primary purpose; and

In case of merger or consolidation.

In case the right of appraisal may be exercised, Section 81 of the Revised Corporation Code provides
for the appropriate procedure, viz:

The appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder who shall have voted against the
proposed corporate action, by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty (30)
days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair value of his shares;
Provided, that the failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver
of the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or affected, the
corporation shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock
representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote
was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value
of the shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of
whom shall be named by the stockholder, another by the corporation and the third by the two
thus chosen. The findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall
be paid by the corporation within thirty (30) days after such award is made; Provided, that no
payment shall be made to any dissenting stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted
retained earnings in its books to cover such payment; Provided further, that upon payment by
the corporation of the agreed or awarded price, the stockholder shall forthwith transfer his
shares to the corporation.



Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(&) No person who has been a director or officer or any nominee for election as director of the
Company or associate of such persons, have substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any matter
to be acted upon, other than the election of directors for the year 2020-2021.

(b) The Company is not aware of any director or security holder who intends to oppose any action
to be taken by the Company during the stockholders’ meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) As of April 30, 2020, the Company has 895,330,946 common shares outstanding and each share
is entitled to one vote.

(b) The record date with respect to the determination of the stockholders entitled to notice of and
vote at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting is April 30, 2020.

(c) With respect to the election of nine (9) directors, each stockholder may vote such number of
shares for as many as Nine (9) persons he may choose to be elected from the list of nominees,
or he may cumulate the said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of his
shares multiplied by Nine (9) shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among
as many candidates as he shall see fit, provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall
not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied by Nine (9).

(d) Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners and management.
(1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

The following persons or group are known to the Company as direct owners of more than five percent (5%) of
the Company’s voting securities as of April 30, 2020:

Name
Title of Name and Address of of Beneficial Owner . . No. of Shares
Class Re_cord _Own_er and and Relationshi Citizenship Held Percent
Relationship with Issuer - P
with Record Owner
Common PREMIUM LEISURE CORPORATION ® PREMIUM LEISURE Filipino 448,560,806 50.10
5/F Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Mall of CORPORATION
Asia Complex, Pasay City
Parent Company
Common PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION @ Various Filipino and 327,381,777 36.57
G/F Makati Stock Exchange Non-Filipino
6767 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Filipino/Non-Filipino
N/A
Common WILLY N. OCIER Willy N. Ocier Filipino 80,794,500 9.02

28/F East Tower, PSE Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, Pasig City

Filipino

Chairman and President

(MThe majority shareholder of Premium Leisure Corporation is Belle Corporation.

@PCD Nominee Corporation (“PCDNC”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Philippine Central Depository, Inc.
(“PCD”). The beneficial owners of such shares registered under the name of PCDNC are PCD'’s participants
who hold the shares in their own behalf or in behalf of their clients. The PCD is prohibited from voting these



shares; instead, the participants have the power to decide how the PCD shares in POSC are to be voted. The
participants of PCD who own more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding capital are:

a. Eastern Securities Development Corporation; and

b. Papa Securities Corporation

The shares held by Premium Leisure Corporation shall be voted or disposed of by the persons who shall be
duly authorized the corporation. The natural person/s who has/have the power to vote on the shares of PLC
shall be determined upon the submission of its proxy form to the Company, which shall be not later than six
(6) business days before the date of the meeting.

The PCD Participants, like Eastern Securities and Development Corporation and Papa Securities Corporation,
on the other hand, issue proxies in favor of the beneficial owners of the Company’s shares recorded under
their names. The identities of these beneficial owners, who will then exercise the right to vote the shares
beneficially-owned by them, shall be known to the Company only when the proxies are submitted before the
date of the meeting.

(2) Security Ownership of Directors and Management

The following table shows the shares beneficially owned by the directors and executive officers of the

Company as of April 30, 2020:

Title of Name of Beneficial Amount and nature of beneficial Citizenship Per(;:fent
Class Owner ownership Class
Direct Indirect Total

Common | Willy N. Ocier 71,819,550 8,974,950 | 80,794,500 Filipino 9.02
Common | Virginia V. Abo-

Hamda 2,000 0 2,000 Filipino 0.00
Common | Tarcisio M. Medalla 200 100 300 Filipino 0.00
Common | Regina O. Reyes 300 0 300 Filipino 0.00
Common | Henry N. Ocier 6,000 | 1,203,000 1,209,000 Filipino 0.13
Common | Jerry C. Tiu 200 250 450 Filipino 0.00
Common | Laurito E. Serrano 1,600 800 2,400 Filipino 0.00
Common | Armin  B. Raquel-

Santos 200 0 200 Filipino 0.00
Common | Joseph C. Tan 200 0 200 Filipino 0.00
Common | A. Bayani K. Tan 0| 1,413,000 1,413,000 Filipino 0.15
Common | Romeo J. Roque, Jr 6,000 0 6,000 Filipino 0.00
Common | Mischel Gabrielle O.

Mendoza 390,000 195,000 585,000 Filipino 0.06

All Directors and

Executive Officers | 72,226,250 | 11,787,100 | 84,013,350 9.35

as agroup

(3) Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

There is no party known to the Company as holding any voting trust or any similar arrangement for
5% or more of the Company’s voting securities.
Changes in Control

There is no arrangement known to the Company which may result in a change in control of the
Company.



Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Directors and Executive Officers

The following are the Directors and Executive Officers of the Company:

Name Position with the Company
Willy N. Ocier Chairman / President
Ma. Virginia V. Abo-Hamda Director and Chief Financial Officer
Armin Antonio B. Raquel-Santos Director
Tarcisio M. Medalla Director
Henry N. Ocier Director
Regina O. Reyes Director
Jerry C. Tiu Lead Independent Director
Laurito E. Serrano Independent Director
Joseph C. Tan Independent Director
A. Bayani K. Tan Corporate Secretary
Jason C. Nalupta Assistant Corporate Secretary
Christopher C. Villaflor VP-Central System & Network Management
Valentino L. Kintanar VP-Technical Services
Romeo J. Roque, Jr. VP- Agent Management
Ma. Concepcion T. Sangil VP- Human Resources Management
Anna Josefina G. Esteban Assistant VP- Internal Audit
Mischel Gabrielle O. Mendoza | Corporate Planning Head, Integrated Management
Systems Representative and Risk Officer
Grace L. Gatdula Compliance Officer, Administration Head and
Contact for Stakeholders
Ma. Meliza C. Romillo Data Protection Officer, MIS/IT Head

The following are the Members of the Corporate Governance Committee, whose
functions include the nomination of the Candidates for Board of Directors:

Name Position

Joseph C. Tan Chairman
Laurito E. Serrano Member
Jerry C. Tiu Member

Board of Directors

The present members of the Board of Directors (“BOD”) were elected during the annual stockholders’ meeting
held on May 30, 2019. The term of the current members of the BOD shall be until the next stockholders’
meeting on June 22, 2020. The following are the incumbent members of the Board of Directors (“BOD”) of
the Company:

Willy N. Ocier, Filipino, 63, is the Chairman and President of the Company and has been a Director since
July 29, 1999. He is an Executive Director and Co-Vice Chairman of Belle Corporation and Highlands Prime,
Inc. He is likewise the Vice Chairman of Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. He is also the
Chairman of the Board and Director of Premium Leisure Corp., APC Group, Inc., and Premium Leisure and
Amusement, Inc. He serves as the Chairman of Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., The Country Club at
Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. and The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. He is a Director of Leisure &
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Resorts World Corporation, Vantage Equities Inc., and Abacore Capital Holdings Inc. He also serves as the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of Philippine Global Communications, Inc. He was the former
President and Chief Operating Officer of Eastern Securities Development Corporation. He graduated from the
Ateneo de Manila University with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. In recognition of Mr. Ocier's
corporate leadership and role in providing employment opportunities to Filipinos, the University of Batangas
conferred on him a degree in Doctor of Humanities, Honoris Causa.

Tarcisio M. Medalla, Filipino, 71, has been a Director of the Company since December 10, 2001. He is
currently the Chairman and President of listed firm Paxys, Inc. He is also a Director of All Asia Customer
Services Holdings Ltd., the principal shareholder of Paxys, Inc. He graduated with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) from De La Salle University. He attended the Advanced
Management Program (AMP) at the Harvard Business School. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Henry N. Ocier, Filipino, 60, has been a Director of the Company since June 29, 2009. He serves as Senior
Manager for Corporate Social Responsibility for Belle Corporation. He currently holds the position of President
& General Manager of Guatson International Travel and Tours, Inc. He graduated with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Business Economics from De La Salle University.

Regina O. Reyes, Filipino, 55, was first elected as Director of the Company in July 2016. She is currently the
President and CEO of listed firm, Abacore Capital Holdings, Inc., and President of private company, Click
Communications, Inc. She also served as Administrator of the Province of Marinduque from January 2010 to
January 2012. She was a member of the House of Representatives, representing the lone district of
Marinduque, from 2013 to June 2016. In Congress, she was Vice Chairman of the Committee on National
Defense and Security and was a member of several key committees, including Appropriations, Justice, Health,
and Natural Resources. Ms. Reyes earned her Foreign Service degree from Georgetown University, USA and
her Bachelor of Laws degree from the Ateneo de Manila University Law School. Ms. Reyes is a member of
both the Philippine Bar and the State Bar of California.

Ma. Virginia V. Abo-Hamda, Filipino, 60, is a Director and the concurrent Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. She joined Pacific Online in September 2009 as Vice President of its Instant Tickets Division and
was promoted as SVP for Corporate Planning & Business Development in 2013. Prior to this, she worked as
a Consultant for AB Leisure Exponent, Inc. (1999-2009), and AB Gaming & Leisure Specialist Inc. (2003-
2009). Ms. Abo-Hamda served as General Accounting Manager for D’Agostino Supermarkets, Inc. New York,
USA from 1990 to 1996 and as Senior Financial Analyst for Kraft-General Foods International, New York, USA
from 1988 to 1989. She worked with Carlos J. Valdes & Co., CPAs from 1981 to 1986, in its Management
Services Division as an Associate Consultant. She graduated Summa Cum Laude with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) from the College of the Holy Spirit. Ms. Abo-Hamda passed the
CPA board exams in 1980 at 16" place. She earned her Master's Degree in Business Administration
(Concentration in Finance) from Fordham University, New York, USA.

Armin Antonio B. Raquel Santos, Filipino, 52, is currently the President and Chief Executive Officer of
Premium Leisure Corp. (PLC) and concurrently the Executive Vice President — Integrated Resorts of Belle
Corporation. He is a Director of Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. and Trustee and Vice
President of Melco Crown Philippines Foundation Corporation. He previously served as Chief Finance Officer
of Aboitizland, Inc., Cebu Industrial Park, Inc. and Mactan Economic Zone Il, and First Philippine Electric
Company. He was also former Governor of the Board of Investments (BOI), served as Assistant Secretary
with the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI), Vice Chairman and CEO of the Philippine Retirement
Authority (PRA), Executive Vice President of Philippine International Trading Corporation (PITC), and Deputy
Administrator of Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority (SBMA). His experience includes stints with multinational
companies; Securities 2000 Inc. (Singapore Technologies Group) and First Chicago Trust Company of New
York. He holds a Master of Arts in Liberal Studies from Dartmouth College, U.S.A. and Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration Major in Finance from lona College, New York, U.S.A.

Independent Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, the Company’s Board of
Directors and stockholders approved the amendment of the Company’s By-Laws adopting the requirement on
the nomination and election of independent directors. In line with this, the following have been serving as the
Company’s independent directors and are being re-nominated for the same positions:



Laurito E. Serrano, Filipino, 59, has been an Independent Director of the Company since May 23, 2014. Mr.
Serrano also currently serves as Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management
Committee of Atlas Consolidated Mining and Development Corporation. He also serves as an Independent
Director and concurrent Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee and a member of the Risk
Oversight Committee of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation. He is likewise an Independent Director of
the APC Group, Inc., 2GO Group Inc., and Axelum Resources Corp., and a director of MRT Development
Corporation. Mr. Serrano is a former partner of the Corporate Finance Consulting Group of SGV & Co. He is
a Philippine Certified Public Accountant and has a Master's Degree in Business Administration from the
Harvard Graduate School of Business. His area of specialization is Financial Advisory and Corporate Finance.

Jerry C. Tiu, Filipino, 63, has been an Independent Director of the Company since February 21, 2007 and
has been designated as the Lead Independent Director. He is a Director and the President of Tagaytay
Highlands Community Condominium Association, Inc., Tagaytay Midlands Community Homeowners’
Association, Inc., and Greenlands Community Homeowners’ Association, Inc. He is likewise the President of
the following companies: Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc., The Country Club at Tagaytay
Highlands, Inc., Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., and The Spa & Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. He is a
former Director of the Manila Polo Club. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Commerce (Major in
Marketing) from the University of British Columbia.

Joseph C. Tan, Filipino, 62, has been an Independent Director of the Company since 2017. He is the
Managing Partner of MOST Law Firm from September 2006 to present. He was a Special Counsel for the
Agus Cruz & Manzano Law Office from 2004 to August 2006. He was an Associate of Puno & Puno Law
Offices from 1991 to 1995. He is currently an Independent Director of 2GO Group, Inc., Premium Leisure,
Corp., and LMG Chemicals Corporation. He was also a director of the Philippine Bank of Communications
from September 2010 to August 2011. Atty. Tan holds a Bachelor of Arts with a Major in Business
Administration Degree from the University of San Francisco, USA (Class of 1978). He also holds a Bachelor
of Laws Degree from the Ateneo de Manila College of Law, graduating with honors (Class of 1985).

Executive Officers

Aside from the Chairman and President and Chief Financial Officer named above, the other principal executive
officers of the Company include the following:

Valentino L. Kintanar, Filipino, 59, is Vice President for Technical Services of the Company. He joined the
Company in January 29, 1996. He served as Technical Services Manager of EMCOR, Inc. and was a Systems
Engineer of Technics, Philippines from 1983-1987. He previously worked as Senior Shift Technician of
Fairchild Semiconductors, Phil. from 1980-1983. He graduated with a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Electronics and Communications Engineering from the University of Southern Philippines.

Romeo J. Roque, Jr., Filipino, 51, is Vice President for Agent Management of the Company. He joined the
Company in February 5, 1996. He served as Product Support Manager for Infonet Solutions, Inc. from 1995
to 1996 and as Systems Engineer for ATS Software Pte. Ltd. in Singapore from 1993 to 1995. He previously
worked for Electroworld as Systems Consultant from 1991 to 1993. He graduated with a degree in Bachelor
of Science in Computer Engineering from the University of San Carlos. He was credited with Master in
Business Administration academic units from the University of the Philippines.

Christopher C. Villaflor, Filipino, 43, has been the Vice President for Central System and Network
Management of the Company since 2016. He joined the Company in March 2000 as a Bench Engineer. From
June 2004 to October 2009, he served as the Systems Administrator for the Data Center Operations
overseeing the lottery administration and maintenance for the Visayas and Mindanao regions. In 2009 he was
promoted as Senior Manager of the Data Center Operations and in August 2017, he moved up as Assistant
Vice President overseeing the Central System Management Department of the Online Lottery Division. Mr.
Villaflor has extensive experience in the area of system design, development and testing on both the UNIX
(OpenVMS, SunOS/Solaris) environment and Microsoft Windows. He has had formal trainings on Oracle 10g
Programming PL/SQL and Data Administration, AlX Unix System Administration and Operational Planning
using Software Engineering for SDLC. He graduated with a degree in Bachelor of Science in Computer
Engineering from the University of San Carlos in 1998.

Ma. Concepcion T. Sangil, Filipino, 62, is the Vice President for Human Resources Management of the
Company. She has a total of 37 years professional experience, initially as a Management Consultant for over



17 years specializing in project management, institutional strengthening, organizational development, change
management processes, management and operations audit, systems development and business re-
engineering. She was also exposed to actual hands-on operations and management of a micro-lending
institution, as an executive officer for over 8 years and later as Head of the Human Resource Division for a
multi car brand dealership and multi-media company for 10 years. She graduated from St. Paul College of
Manila with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Commerce, major in Accounting. She earned an MA in Urban
and Regional Planning from the School of Urban and Regional Planning, University of the Philippines. She
was an accredited court mediator by the Supreme Court and a certified life coach.

A. Bayani K. Tan, 64, Filipino, has been the Corporate Secretary of the Corporation since May 2007 when it
became publicly-listed. He is also a Director, Corporate Secretary or both of the following reporting and/or
listed companies: Belle Corporation (since May 1994), Coal Asia Holdings, Inc. (since July 2012), Discovery
World Corporation (since March 2013), I-Remit, Inc. (since May 2007), Philequity Group of Mutual Fund
Companies (since 1997), Premium Leisure Corporation (since December 1993, Publicly-Listed), Sterling Bank
of Asia Inc (A Savings Bank) (since December 2006), TKC Metals Corporation (since February 2007),
Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc. (since November 1993), Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc.
(since June 1997), The Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. (since August 1995), The Spa and Lodge at
Tagaytay Highlands, Inc. (since December 1999), and Vantage Equities, Inc. (since January 1993). He has
been the Managing Partner of the law offices of Tan Venturanza Valdez since it was established in 1988,
Managing Director/President of Shamrock Development Corporation (since May 1988), Director of Destiny
LendFund, Inc. (since December 2005), Pascual Laboratories, Inc. (since March 2014), and Pure Energy
Holdings Corporation (since October 2016), Managing Trustee of the SCTan Foundation, Inc. (since 1986),
President of Catarman Chamber Elementary School Foundation, Inc. (since August 2012), Trustee and
Treasurer of Rebisco Foundation, Inc. (since April 2013), Trustee and Corporate Secretary of St. Scholastica's
Hospital, Inc. (since February 2011) and Trustee of Guimaras Forest Foundation, Inc. (since September 2019),
Reintegration for Care and Wholeness (RCW) Foundation, Inc. (since April 2014) and St. Scholastica’s
College Manila (since October 2019). Mr. Tan holds a Master of Laws Degree from New York University
(Class of 1988) and earned his Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of the Philippines (Class of 1980)
where he was a member of the Order of the Purple Feather (U.P. College of Law Honor Society). Mr. Tan
placed 6th in the bar examinations in 1981. He has a Bachelor of Arts Major in Political Science Degree from
the San Beda College (Class of 1976) from where he graduated Class Valedictorian and was awarded the
medal for Academic Excellence.

Jason C. Nalupta, Filipino, 48, has been the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Corporation since October
2009. He is also currently the Corporate Secretary of listed firms A. Brown Company, Inc., Asia United Bank,
and Crown Asia Chemicals Corporation. He is also a Director and/or Corporate Secretary or Assistant
Corporate Secretary of private companies Sino Cargoworks Agencies, Inc., Falcon Resources, Inc., Mercury
Ventures, Inc., Total Gaming Technologies, Inc., Parallax Resources, Inc., SLW Development Corporation,
Metropolitan Leisure & Tourism Corporation, Sagesoft Solutions, Inc., Radenta Technologies, Inc., Xirrus,
Inc., Glypthstudios, Inc., Loto Pacific Leisure Corporation, and Sta. Clara International Corporation. He is a
Partner at Tan Venturanza Valdez Law Offices specializing on corporate, securities, and business laws. Mr.
Nalupta earned his Juris Doctor Degree, as well as his Bachelor of Science Degree in Management (Major in
Legal Management), from the Ateneo de Manila University in 1996 and 1992, respectively. Mr. Nalupta was
admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1997.

Family Relationships
Henry N. Ocier and Willy N. Ocier are brothers.

Significant Employees

The Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee. It does not have any special
arrangements to ensure that any employee will remain with the Company and will not compete upon
termination.

Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Board of Directors approved the Company’s Stock Option Plan (*SOP”) on December 12,
2006. The SOP provides an incentive and mechanism to employees and officers to become stockholders of
the Company, as well as to qualified directors, officers and employees, who are already stockholders, to
increase their equity in the Company and thereby increase their concern for the Company's well-being. All
such full-time and regular employees of the Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates, their officers and directors,
and such other qualified persons who may be recommended from time to time by the Executive Committee or



the Board to the Committee as qualified, are eligible to participate in the SOP. Shares of stock subject to the
SOP amount to up to five per cent (5%) of the Company’s total outstanding common stock.

The purchase price of the shares shall not in any case be less than the Fair Market Value of the Company’s
shares at the time of grant, and, in no case, be less than the Offer Price at which the Company’s shares are
initially offered for sale to the public. Further, the purchase price shall be subject to adjustment for subsequent
stock dividends or splits.

The shares covered by any one grant shall be offered for subscription over a period of Three (3) years from
and after the effectivity date of each grant that may be determined by the Committee. The Participants may
exercise their right to subscribe to shares under the SOP in accordance with the following schedule:

= 1/3 of total grant within One (1) year from the effectivity date of each grant
= 1/3 of total grant within Two (2) years from the effectivity date of each grant
= 1/3 of total grant within Three (3) years from the effectivity date of each grant

On February 15, 2008, SEC approved the Company’s application requesting that its proposed issuance of
9,954,900 common shares be exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Regulation Code.

On May 6, 2008, the BOD approved the allocation of 2,174,000 shares to its executives and employees and
to the officers of Lucky Circle under the SOP which is exercisable over a period of three years from May 6,
2008 until May 6, 2011. The purchase price upon exercise of the option was fixed at 28.88 per share. At the
grant date, the fair value of the Company’s share amounted to P9.20 per share.

On May 19, 2008, grantees of the stock options exercised 617,000 shares of the Company’s stock at 28.88
per share.

In 2011 and 2010, certain grantees of the stock options exercised 495,000 shares and 455,000 shares,
respectively, of the Company’s stock at 2 8.88 per share.

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no options outstanding or granted upon expiration of the
exercisable options on May 6, 2011.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

As of the date of the report, to the best of the Company’s knowledge, there has been no occurrence of any of
the following events that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any Director, any nominee
for election as director or executive officer of the Company:

= any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which the incumbent Directors or senior
management of the Company was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the
bankruptcy or within five years prior to that time;

= any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, pending against any of the
incumbent Directors or senior management of the Company;

= any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of
competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or
otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the incumbent Directors or senior management of the
Company in any type of business, securities, commaodities or banking activities; and

= any finding by domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action), the SEC or comparable
foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or said regulatory organization,
that any of the incumbent Directors or senior management of the Company has violated a securities or
commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.



Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The transactions and balances with related parties are as follows:

Amount Outstanding Balance
ofthe Advancesto Advances from
Category/ Year Note Transaction Related Related Parties Terms Conditions
Transaction Parties
TGTI
= Advances 2019 a (P3,928,115) P- P2,657,914 On demand, Unsecured
noninterest
bearing
2018 a - - 16,586,029
» Dividend income 2019 c - - -
received
2018 c 6,732,636 - -
= Dividends paid 2019 b - - -
2018 b 99,048,559 - -
=Treasury Stock 2019 c - - -
2018 c 174,384,130 - -
= Reimbursements 2019 a 31,259,301 - -
2018 a 75,624,181 - -
FRI
= Advances 2019 a (10,000,000) - - On demand, Unsecured
noninterest
bearing
2018 a - - 10,000,000
LOTO PAC
= Advances 2019 a 150,967 - 986,855 On demand, Unsecured
noninterest
bearing
2018 a 111,456 - 841,489
LCC & Nine Entities
= Dividends paid 2019 - - -
2018 39,055,276 - -
= Advances 2019 a 79,287,018 986,855 P108,375,661 On demand, Unsecured
noninterest
bearing
2018 a - - 29,958,498
»Rental expense 2019 d 76,662,787 - -
2018 d 32,287,272 - -
= Security deposits 2019 d 22,929,104 - -
2018 d 23,104,654 - -
TOTAL 2019 P986,855 P112,020,430
TOTAL 2018 P - P57,386,016

a. The Parent Company has an operational and technical support services agreement with TGTI
which the former will assist the latter in the following:
(1) establishing a suitable and efficient telecommunications links for the latter’'s online keno
network and (2) overseeing the efficient operation, regular preventive maintenance, and
necessary repairs on TGTI's online keno terminals deployed within the Visayas and Mindanao
regions, including the central data server located in Cebu City. In consideration for lease services,
TGTI pays a fixed fee per keno terminal.

TGTI also reimburses the Parent Company for communication expenses incurred on some online
keno agents/operators and the shared data center.
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The Parent Company granted non-interest bearing cash advances to LotoPac, LCC and FRI for
working capital requirements. The P10.0 million advances to FRI was converted to equity during
the year.

b. The Parent Company received cash dividends from TGTI and LCC.

c. TGTI purchased traded shares of the Parent Company (LOTO) through its stock brokers, thus,
TGTI receives dividends for these shares. The cost of shares purchased by TGTI is included in
the “Treasury Stock” account in the consolidated statements of financial position. TGTI received
cash dividend from the Parent Company.

d. LCC and Nine Entities have existing agreements with related parties under common ownership
by SM Investment Corporation for the leased space of its outlets which are renewable every six
months to two years at its option.

Under the terms of the lease agreement, LCC and Nine Entities are required to pay rentals
equivalent to a fixed rate per month and security deposits corresponding to three (3) months rent.
These deposits consist of amounts paid in advance which can be collected in cash upon
termination of the lease.

Disagreement with Directors
No director has resigned nor declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the date of the

last annual meeting of stockholders because of a disagreement with the Company regarding the latter's
operations, policies, or practices.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following table shows the aggregate compensation received by the directors and executive officers of the
Company for calendar years 2019 and 2018, as well as the estimated aggregate compensation for calendar
year 2020.

Name and Principal Position Year Salary Bonus Other Annual
Compensation

Willy N. Ocier

Chairman & President

Ma. Virginia V. Abo-Hamda
Director & Chief Financial Officer
Valentino L. Kintanar
VP-Technical Services

Romeo J. Roque, Jr.

VP-Agent Management

Ma. Concepcion T. Sangil

VP- Human Resources Management
Christopher C. Villaflor

VP- Central System & Network

Management
Total for the Executive Officers as a 2020 (Estimate) P14,374,498
group 2019 P13,343,054
2018 P15,611,747
Total for the Directors and Executive 2020 (Estimate) P17,141,165
Officers as a group 2019 P16,109,720
2018 P19,535,081
Total for President and 4 most highly 2020 (Estimate) P12,774,908
compensated Executive Officers
2019 P11,861,950
2018 P13,880,275
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Compensation of the Group’s key management personnel are as follows:

2019 2018 2017

(In Millions)
Short-term employee benefits P27.6 P32.02 P34.26
Post-retirement benefits 2.3 2.33 2.50
P29.9 P34.35 P36.76

The compensation of the Group’s key management personnel is included in the “Personnel Costs” as
disclosed in Note 17 of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Other than those disclosed above, there are no other standard or other arrangements wherein directors of the
Company are compensated, or are to be compensated, directly or indirectly, for any services provided as a
director.

There is no compensatory plan or arrangement, including payments to be received from the Company, with
respect to any of its executive officer, which will result from the resignation, retirement or any other termination
of any of its executive officer's employment with the Company and its subsidiaries or from a change-in-control
of the Company or in any of its executive officer's responsibilities, following a change-in-control and the
amount involved, including all periodic payments or installments, which exceeds R 2.5 million.

Warrants and Options Outstanding

Warrants
The Corporation has not issued any form of warrants.
Stock Option Plan

The Company’s Board (“BOD”) approved the proposed Stock Option Plan (“the Plan”) on December 12, 2006.
The Company’s Stock Option Plan provides an incentive and mechanism to employees and officers to become
stockholders of the Company, as well as to qualified directors, officers and employees, who are already
stockholders, to increase their equity in the Company and thereby increase their concern for the Company's
well-being. All such full-time and regular employees of the Company, its subsidiaries and affiliates, their
officers and directors, and such other qualified persons who may be recommended from time to time by the
Executive Committee or the Board to the Committee as qualified, are eligible to participate in the Plan. Shares
of stock subject to the Plan amount to five per cent (5%) of the Company’s total outstanding common stock.

The purchase price of the shares shall not in any case be less than the Fair Market Value of the Company’s
shares at the time of grant, and, in no case, be less than the Offer Price at which the Company’s shares are
initially offered for sale to the public. Further, the purchase price shall be subject to adjustment for subsequent
stock dividends or splits.
The shares covered by any one grant shall be offered for subscription over a period of Three (3) years from
and after the effectivity date of each grant that may be determined by the Committee. The Participants may
exercise their right to subscribe to shares under the Plan in accordance with the following schedule:

= 1/3 of total grant within One (1) year from the effectivity date of each grant

= 1/3 of total grant within Two (2) years from the effectivity date of each grant

= 1/3 of total grant within Three (3) years from the effectivity date of each grant

On February 15, 2008, SEC approved the Company’s application requesting that its proposed issuance of
9,954,900 common shares be exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Regulation Code.

On May 6, 2008, the BOD approved the allocation of 2,174,000 shares to its executives and employees and
to the officers of Lucky Circle under the Plan which is exercisable over a period of three years from May 6,
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2008 until May 6, 2011. The purchase price upon exercise of the option was fixed at 28.88 per share. At the
grant date, the fair value of the Company’s share amounted to P9.20 per share.

On May 19, 2008, grantees of the stock options exercised 617,000 shares of the Company’s stock at 28.88
per share.

In 2011 and 2010, certain grantees of the stock options exercised 495,000 shares and 455,000 shares,
respectively, of the Company’s stock at 2 8.88 per share.

As at December 31, 2020 and 2018, there were no options outstanding or granted upon expiration of the
exercisable options on May 6, 2011.

Iltem 7. Independent Public Accountants

Pursuant to the requirement on Rotation of External Auditors under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 8 Series
of 2003, the Company will recommend the accounting firm of R. G. Manabat & Co. (KPMG) for reappointment
at the scheduled annual meeting.

Representatives of R. G. Manabat & Co., the Company’s external auditors for the most recently completed
fiscal year, are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting to respond to appropriate questions and will be
given the opportunity to make a statement if they so desire.

R. G. Manabat & Co. audited the Company’s statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in stockholders’ equity and statement of cash
flows for the same period, together with the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes. R. G. Manabat & Co.’s responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
their audit. The audits were conducted in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. The partner who
handled the Company’s external audit was Mr. Enrico E. Baluyut.

The Company’s Board of Directors in the annual shareholders’ meeting on May 30, 2019 recommended, and
the shareholders approved, the appointment of R. G. Manabat & Co. as the Company’s independent public
accountant for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019.

In the Company’s three (3) most recent fiscal years, there has been no change in auditor and there has been
no disagreement on accounting and financial disclosures. R.G. Manabat & Co. was also engaged as external
auditors for LCC and LotoPac beginning 2016

The aggregate fees for each of last three (3) fiscal years for professional services rendered by the external
auditors are as follows:

2019 2018 2017
Audit fee P1,848,000 P2,054,000 P2,114,000
Tax services
Other fees 600,000 600,000 810,000
TOTAL P2,448,000 P2,654,000 P2,924,000

It is the policy of the Company that any draft audit report must first be reviewed by the Audit Committee prior
to said report being endorsed to the Board of Directors for approval. The Audit Committee members are: Mr.
Laurito E. Serrano (Chairman), Mr. Jerry C. Tiu, and Mr. Tarcisio M. Medalla. The final draft of the Company’s
audited financial statements was discussed and reviewed by said Committee, whereupon said Committee
resolved to recommend to the Company’s Board of Directors that said financial statements be approved for
issuance and disclosure to the public, the PSE and all related governmental agencies. Said audited financial
statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors during its meeting held on February 20, 2020.

ltem 8. Compensation Plans

Please see the previous discussion on the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan (page 8).
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Iltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities other than for Exchange

No action is to be taken during the 2020 ASM with respect to this item.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

No action is to be taken during the 2020 ASM with respect to this item.

Item 11. Financial and Other Information

No action is to be taken during the 2020 ASM with respect to this item.

ltem 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken during the 2020 ASM with respect to any transaction involving: (i) merger or
consolidation into or with any other person or of any other person into or with the Company; (ii) acquisition by
the Company or any of its security holders of securities of another person; (iii) acquisition of any other going
business or of the assets thereof; (iv) sale or other transfer of all or any substantial portion of the assets of the
Company; or (v) liquidation or dissolution of the Company.

Iltem 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken during the 2020 ASM with respect to this item.

Item 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken during the 2020 ASM with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus
account of the Company.

OTHER MATTERS

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

The Company will seek the approval by the stockholders of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
held on May 30, 2019 during which the following were taken up: (1) Call to Order, (2) Proof of Notice of
Meeting, (3) Certification of Quorum, (4) Approval of the Minutes of the previous Special Stockholders’
Meeting, (5) Approval of 2018 Operations and Results, (6) Ratification of All Acts of the Board of Directors
and Officers, (7) Election of Directors, (8) Appointment of External Auditors, (9) Other Matters, and (10)
Adjournment.

The Company will also seek approval by the stockholders of the 2019 Operations and Results contained and
discussed in the annual report attached and made part of this Information Statement. Approval of the reports
will constitute approval and ratification of the acts of management and of the Board of Directors for the past
year.

Item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

No action is to be taken with respect to any matter which is not required to be submitted to a vote of security
holders.

ltem 17. Amendment of Charter, By-Laws or Other Documents

No action will be taken with respect to any amendment to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or By-
Laws.

Item 18. Other Proposed Actions

The following are to be proposed for approval during the stockholders’ meeting:

1. Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on May 30, 2019;
2. 2019 Operations and Results;
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Ratification of All Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers;
Election of Directors for 2020-2021;

Appointment of R. G. Manabat & Co. as External Auditors; and,
Other Matters.

o gk w

The items covered with respect to the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and officers for
the past year up to the date of the meeting are those items entered into in the ordinary course of
business, with those of significance having been covered by appropriate disclosures such as:

1. Membership in the relevant board committees;
2. Extension of term of the Company’s Equipment Lease Agreement with PCSO; and
3. Designation of authorized signatories.

Management reports which summarize the acts of management for the year 2019 are included in the
Company’s Annual Report to be made available to the stockholders together with this Information
Statement and shall be submitted for approval by the stockholders at the meeting. Accordingly,
approval of the Annual Report will constitute approval and ratification of the acts of Management
stated therein during the period covered thereby.

Iltem 19. Voting Procedures

€) Actions to be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting shall require the vote of the
stockholders representing at least a majority of the Company’s outstanding capital stock.

(c) Two inspectors shall be appointed by the Board of Directors before or at each meeting of the
stockholders, at which an election of directors shall take place. If no such appointment shall
have been made or if the inspectors appointed by the Board of Directors refused to act or fail
to attend, then the appointment shall be made by the presiding officer of the meeting. For
purposes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on June 22, 2020 the Corporate Secretary
and/or his representative, together with the Audit Partner of the External Auditor and/or his
representative, have been designated as inspectors who have been tasked to oversee the
counting of votes.

(d) Stockholders may vote at all meetings either in person or by proxy duly given in writing in
favor of any person of their confidence and each stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each share of stock standing in his name in the books of the corporation; provided, however,
that in the election of directors, each stockholder shall be entitled to cumulate his votes in the
manner provided for by law. For the purpose of this year's annual stockholders’ meeting,
which will be held only in a virtual format, the stockholders may only vote through proxies or
by remote communication (in absentia). The stockholders are encouraged to participate in
the meeting by either of the following:

i. by submitting duly accomplished proxies to the Office of the Corporate Secretary at 2704
East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Ortigas Center, Pasig City or via
electronic copy by emailing corporatesecretary@pacificonline.com.ph on or before 5:00
p.m. on June 11, 2020.

For corporate stockholders, the proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary’s
Certification on the appointment of the corporation’s authorized signatory.

ii. by registering your votes on the matters to be taken up during the meeting through the
e-voting platform set up for the purpose which can be accessed at
www.evoting.pacificonline.com.ph. The e-voting portal will be open until 10:00 in the
morning of June 22, 2020.

(e) The method of counting votes shall be in accordance with the general provisions of the
Revised Corporation Code. The counting shall be done by the inspectors abovementioned,
witnessed and the results verified by a duly appointed independent third-party validator,
Alberto, Pascual & Associates.
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SIGNATURES

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we hereby certify that the
information set forth in this report is true, complete, and correct.

This report is signed in the City of Pasig, Metro Manila on May 13, 2020.

PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

By:

WILLY N.OCIER
Chairman and President
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PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

BUSINESS

Pacific Online Systems Corporation (“Company”) was incorporated in the Philippines and was registered with
the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on November 11, 1993. The Company is
primarily engaged in the development, design and management of online computer systems, terminals and
software for the Philippine gaming industry. It sources technology from leading global suppliers of integrated
gaming systems and leases equipment to the Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office (PCSO) for its online
lotto operations in the Visayas and Mindanao (VISMIN) regions under the terms of an Equipment Lease
Agreement (ELA), which was initially entered into on November 25, 1995. It also provides the necessary
technical support through a Maintenance Repair Agreement (MRA) that is co-terminus with the ELA. The
Company’s ELA with the PCSO was amended in 2004, 2012, 2013, 2015, 2018, and 2019, principally to
amend the term thereof, in response to PCSO’s requirements to ensure integrity, sustainability and efficiency
in its online lotto operations. In 2019, the ELA was amended to allow the use of the Company’s terminals for
PCSO'’s lotto operations in Luzon. The latest amendment to the ELA was made wherein the ELA's term was
extended up to July 31, 2020. The equipment rental revenue earned by the Company with this ELA is based
on a percentage of lotto sales generated by the Company’s terminals.

In 2004, the Company acquired 50% of Total Gaming Technologies Inc. (TGTI), which has its own ELA with
the PCSO for the latter’s online keno operations nationwide. TGTI’'s ELA with PCSO provides for a lease
period of ten (10) years commencing on the date of actual commercial operations of at least 200 online keno
agents. With October 2010 established as the start of commercial operations for online keno, TGTI’s ELA will
expire on September 30, 2020. TGTI’'s equipment rental revenue is based on a percentage of keno ticket
sales or a fixed annual rental of P40,000 per terminal, whichever is higher. By 2013, the Company already
owns 98.92% of TGTI.

In 2007, the Company set up Loto Pacific Leisure Corporation (LotoPac) primarily to acquire, establish, own,
hold, lease, sell, conduct, operate, and manage amusement, recreational and gaming equipment facilities,
and enterprise of every kind and nature, as well as places for exhibitions, recreation, gaming, amusement and
leisure of the general public, and to acquire, hold and operate any and all privileges, rights, franchises and
concessions as may be proper, necessary, advantageous, or convenient in the conduct of its business.
LotoPac subsequently acquired Lucky Circle Corporation (LCC) in August 2007. LCC is an authorized PCSO
agent operating online betting stations that sell sweepstakes, lotto, keno and instant tickets in outlets located
in major shopping malls like SM Supermall, Robinsons, and Gaisano nationwide. LCC earns a certain
percentage of the sales of lotto, keno, sweepstakes and instant scratch as tickets as commission income. In
2010, the Company subscribed to additional 124 million shares of LCC, after the SEC’s approval of the
increase in the latter’s authorized capital stock, which increased the Company’s interest in LCC to 97.64%.

In 2009, the Company entered into a non-exclusive Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with PCSO, for a
period of seven years to undertake the printing, distribution and sale of instant scratch tickets nationwide. The
instant scratch ticket, branded as Scratchit™, provided a steady stream of revenues for PCSO and its agents.
It also expanded the Company’s experience in the lottery business. On March 31, 2015 the Company entered
into an Outsourcing Memorandum of Agreement (OMOA) with Powerball Gaming and Entertainment
Corporation (PGEC) to be the exclusive marketing, distribution, selling and collecting agent of the Company
for Scratchit™ tickets throughout the Philippines. The agreement took effect on April 1, 2015 and has ended
on November 30, 2016.

On June 16, 2014, TGTI and the shareholders of Falcon Resources, Inc. (FRI) entered into a Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) for the former’s intention to acquire the latter’s interest in FRI representing 100%
ownership. On December 11, 2014, the deed of sale for the transfer of shares of stocks was executed. FRI is
a company engaged in consultancy services for TGTI and a sub-distributor of instant scratch tickets. FRI is a
company incorporated in the Philippines.

On July 1, 2017, LCC and the stockholders of the following entities entered into a Deed of Sale Agreement
for the transfer of shares of stock representing 100% ownership.
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a) Athena Ventures, Inc.

b) Avery Integrated Hub Inc.

c) Circle 8 Gaming Ventures Inc.

d) Lucky Deal Leisure Inc.

e) Lucky Fortune Business Ventures Inc.

f) Lucky Pick Leisure Club Corp.

g) Lucky Ventures Leisure Corp.

h) Lucky Games Entertainment Ventures Inc.
i) Orbis Valley Corporation

These entities are engaged in the trading and selling of goods such as lotto, keno, sweepstakes and scratch
tickets, on retail basis. The acquisition is in line with the Company’s business strategy of expanding its market
reach nationwide.

Summarized below are the subsidiaries of the Company and the corresponding percentage of its ownership.

Percentage of Ownership

Direct Indirect
Loto Pacific Leisure Corporation (“LotoPac”) 100.00 -
Lucky Circle Corporation (“LCC”)* 97.64 2.36
Total Gaming Technologies, Inc. (“TGTI”) 98.92 -
Falcon Resources, Inc. (“FRI")** 100.00
TGTI Services, Inc. (TGTISI)** 100.00
Athena Ventures Inc. (AVI)*** - 100.00
Avery Integrated Hub Inc. (AIHI)*** - 100.00
Circle 8 Gaming Venture, Inc. (C8)*** - 100.00
Lucky Deal Leisure Inc. (LLI)*** - 100.00
Lucky Fortune Business Ventures, Inc. (LBVI)*** - 100.00
Lucky Pick Leisure Club Corp. (LLCC)*** - 100.00
Lucky Ventures Leisure Corp. (LLC)*** - 100.00
Lucky Games Entertainment Ventures
Inc.(LGEVI)*** - 100.00
Orbis Valley Corporation (OVC)*** - 100.00

* With indirect ownership through LotoPac

** |Indirectly owned through TGTI

*** |Indirectly owned through LCC (collectively
referred to as ‘nine entities starting July 1,
2017)

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company together with its subsidiaries (“Group”) generated
P989.87 million gross revenues, primarily through lottery equipment rentals billed to PCSO, and posted a
P317.61 million net loss. As of December 31, 2019, the Group had total assets of P1.7 billion and liabilities
and shareholders’ equity of P1.3 billion.

Background on the TGTI Investment

On April 13, 2004, the Company purchased 50% of the outstanding capital stock of Innovative Solutions
Consultancy Group, Corp. (Innovative), which is a joint stock company incorporated to manage enterprises
engaged in the gaming business. On May 31, 2004, Innovative, in turn, acquired 80% of the outstanding
capital stock of Total Gaming Technologies, Inc. (TGTI), a domestic corporation founded in October 2002 to
develop new games for the Philippine gaming industry and to provide consultancy service and state-of-the-art
equipment to the local gaming operators through its strategic partnership with Intralot. TGTI has entered into
an Equipment Lease Agreement (ELA) with the PCSO for the nationwide operation of the Online Keno (initially
referred to as Fast Keno) game. A Shareholders’ Agreement was executed whereby Innovative shall provide
management counsel and expertise to TGTI to ensure proper execution of the Online Keno game, among
others. In April 2008, the Company acquired from Intralot additional 574,885 shares of Innovative for a
contract price of P4.3 million. This increased the Company’s interest in Innovative from 50% in 2007 to 87.38%
in 2008. In August 2010, the minority shareholders of TGTI and Innovative entered into a contract wherein
the minority shareholders sold all of their 2,650,000 common stock to the Company, part of the consideration

18



of which is that the Company, as controlling shareholder of TGTI, will cause the creation of preferred stock, of
which 3,312,500 preferred shares will be issued to the minority shareholders of TGTI. The total preferred
stock of 3,312,500 has been fully subscribed, and of the said subscription, the amount of P331,250 has been
paid. Preferred stock will have a par value of P1.00 per share, non-voting and will have preference in the
distribution of assets in the event of dissolution. On December 20, 2012, the majority of TGTI’s stockholders
and its Board of Directors (BOD) approved the Company’s application for increase in its authorized capital
stock with the SEC from Fifty Million Pesos (P50,000,000.00) divided into Forty Million (40,000,000) common
shares and Ten Million (10,000,000) preferred shares, both having a par value of One Peso (P1.00) per share,
to Seven Hundred Million Pesos (P700,000,000.00), divided into Six Hundred Ninety Million (690,000,000)
common shares and Ten Million (10,000,000) preferred shares, both having a par value of One Peso (P 1.00)
per share. On December 20, 2012, the Company’s BOD approved the conversion of a major portion of its
outstanding advances to TGTI to the latter’s equity. TGTI on the other hand will convert a major portion of its
outstanding obligation to the Company from liabilities to equity under “Deposit for future stock subscription”
account once its application to increase in authorized capital stock is filed with the SEC. On April 8, 2013, SEC
approved the request for an increase in authorized capital stock of TGTI. As a result of the conversion of the
advances to TGTI and the assignment of Innovative’s TGTI shares, the Company owns 173.1 million shares
of TGTI, which increased the Company’s interest in TGTI to 98.92%

Recent Developments

In July 2019, the Company passed its yearly surveillance audit for ISO 2700:2013 and 1SO 9001:2015
conducted by Societe Generale de Surveillance (SGS), the world’s leading inspection, verification, testing and
certification company. On November 16, 2015, the Company obtained an ISO accreditation through SGS for
ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management Systems and ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security Management.
In 2018, the certification for ISO 9001:2008 was updated to the 2015 version. SGS was contracted by the
Company to provide another surveillance audit in 2020.

On August 1, 2019, the Company’s ELA with PCSO was amended to extend the term from August 1, 2019
up to July 31, 2020. The ELA may, however, be subject to another extension should the bidding for the lease
of a new lotto system not be held before the termination date.

On July 27, 2019, the President of the Philippines, suspended the sale of PCSO games - lotto, keno, instant
scratch tickets and Small-Town Lottery (STL). The suspension was eventually lifted on July 31 for lotto,
September 1 for STL and September 27 for keno and instant scratch tickets.

On February 13, 2020, the Company and LotoPac sold 100% of LCC in light of the need for the Company to
focus on its core business.

Agreements with the Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office (PCSO)

PCSO is the principal government agency for “raising and providing funds for health programs, medical
assistance and services, and charities of national character” by means of holding and conducting charity
sweepstakes, races, and lotteries. It also engages in health and welfare-related investments, projects, and
activities to provide for permanent and continuing sources of funds for its programs.

Pacific Online’s Agreements with PCSO
The Equipment Lease Agreement (ELA) was awarded to Pacific Online on November 25, 1995 whereby the
PCSO leases online lottery equipment from the Company for its VISMIN lotto operations.

2004 ELA. The initial ELA as amended on February 13, 2004, allows the Company to continue to deploy online
lotto terminals in its covered regions. General terms of the amended ELA and MRA stipulate a certain percent
share by the Company of all PCSO sales from the conduct of online lotto games in the VISMIN area and a
term of eight (8) years commencing from the date of commercial operations of the Company. Commercial
operation, as amended, was defined to be the operation of not less than 800 lotto terminals. However,
commercial operation was formally effected on April 1, 2005, setting the term of the Company’s ELA up to
2013, even if the PCSO had actually begun operations of the Company’s online lotto terminals since 1996.
The delay in the deployment of the required number of terminals to constitute commercial operation was
mainly due to strong opposition from religious sector leaders and certain Local Government Unit (LGU) officials
during the introductory phase and due to the absence of telecommunications service in many areas in VISMIN.
Thus, this ELA covers the lease of not less than 800 lotto terminals, central computer system, communications
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and draw equipment, and the right to use the application software and manuals for the central computer
system of PCSO for its VISMIN operations for a period of eight years from April 1, 2005 to March 31, 2013.

2012 Amended ELA. On May 22, 2012, the Company and PCSO amended certain provisions of the ELA to
lower rental fee on the lotto terminals for VISMIN operations and for the lease of lotto terminals for Luzon
operations effective June 1, 2012. The ELA provides PCSO an option to purchase the equipment related to
its VISMIN operations at the end of the lease period for a sum of P15.0 million. Lotto terminals for PCSO’s
Luzon operations are not included in the “Option to Purchase” provision of the amended ELA. In accordance
with the terms of the ELA, the Company also provides maintenance and repair services fee which were
incorporated in the rental fee as part of the lowered rental rate provision of the amended ELA.

2013 Amended ELA. On March 26, 2013, the Company and PCSO further amended some provisions of the
ELA, which extended it from March 31, 2013 to July 31, 2015. In lieu of the PCSO option to purchase the
equipment, the Company agreed to reduce the rental fees for VISMIN and with the approval to service PCSO’s
Luzon lotto operations. The amendment also incorporated the fee for the supply of bet slips and ticket paper
rolls for the PCSO’s VISMIN and Luzon operations as part of the rental fee.

2015 Amended ELA. On July 15, 2015, the Company and PCSO further amended some provisions of the
ELA, which extended it from August 1, 2015 to July 31, 2018. The amendment also required the Company to
deposit an additional P5 million cash bond to guarantee the unhampered use and operation of the lottery
system, including equipment, servers, network communication and terminals.

The rental fee, presented as “Equipment rental” in the consolidated statements of income, is based on
percentage of gross sales of lotto tickets from PCSQO’s VISMIN and Luzon operations or a fixed annual rental
of P35,000 per terminal, whichever is higher. This covers the equipment rental of lotto terminals, central
computer and communications equipment including the accessories and right to use the application software,
the central computer system, terminals and draw equipment, and maintenance and repair services.

2018 Amended ELA. On September 12, 2018, the ELA was further amended to extend the term from July 31,
2018 to August 1, 2019 at a reduced rate. The amendment also required the Company to increase its initial
cash bond from P5 million to P12 million, to guarantee the unhampered use and operation of the lottery
system, including equipment, servers, network communication and terminals.

2019 Amended ELA. On August 1, 2019, the ELA was amended to extend the term from August 1, 2019 to
July 31, 2020.

The rental fee, presented as “Equipment rental” in the consolidated statements of income, is based on
percentage of gross sales of lotto tickets from PCSO’s VISMIN and Luzon operations or a fixed annual rental
of P35,000 per terminal, whichever is higher. This covers the equipment rental of lotto terminals, central
computer and communications equipment including the accessories and right to use the application software,
the central computer system, terminals and draw equipment, and maintenance and repair services.

Instant Scratch Tickets. On March 25, 2009, the Company entered into a non-exclusive Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) with PCSO for the printing, distribution and sale of instant scratch tickets effective
December 1, 2009. The share of PCSO is guaranteed for every 500 million tickets sold for a period of seven
years from the date of the MOA'’s effectivity. The MOA required a P10 million cash bond to be deposited in an
interest-bearing bank account designated by PCSO to guarantee the payment of all prizes for each series of
tickets distributed, for a period of seven years from the date of initial launch of the instant tickets and shall be
maintained co-terminus with this MOA. Said cash bond is in an escrow account with BDO since January 2010
and was authorized by PCSO for release in November 2018.

On March 31, 2015 the Company entered into an Outsourcing Memorandum of Agreement (OMOA) with
Powerball Gaming and Entertainment Corporation (PGEC) to be the exclusive marketing, distribution, selling
and collecting agent of the Company for its instant scratch tickets throughout the Philippines. The agreement
took effect on April 1, 2015 and has ended on November 30, 2016.

In January 2018, the Company entered into a Brand and Trademark License Agreement with Powerball
Marketing & Logistics Corp. (PMLC) granting the latter a non-assignable, non-transferable and exclusive right
to use of the Parent Company’s instant scratch tickets’ Brands and Trademarks. The agreement has an initial
term of five (5) years effective on January 1, 2018, subject to adjustment to conform to and coincide with the
term of the PMLC’s agreement with PCSO for the supply and distribution of its instant scratch tickets. The
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consideration is a guaranteed fixed monthly fee. PMLC is not restricted to develop its own brand.

TGTI's Equipment Lease Agreement (ELA)

2004 ELA. TGTI entered into an ELA with PCSO on April 6, 2004, which provides for the lease of the
equipment for PCSO’s online keno games. The lease is for a period of ten (10) years commencing on the date
of actual commercial operation of at least 200 online keno outlets. The rental fee is based on a percentage of
the gross sales of the online keno terminals or a fixed annual rental of P40,000 per terminal in commercial
operation, whichever is higher.

2008 Amended ELA. On July 15, 2008, TGTI and PCSO agreed on some amendments to the ELA. Under
the terms of the Amended ELA, TGTI shall provide the services of telecommunications integrator and procure
supplies for the online keno operations of PCSO in Luzon and VISMIN areas. In consideration for such
services, PCSO shall pay additional fee based on a certain percentage of the gross sales from all online keno
terminals in operation in Luzon and VISMIN areas computed by PCSO and payable bi-weekly. Commercial
operations for online keno commenced on October 1, 2010 and ELA term ends on September 30, 2020.

2019 Amended ELA. On October 1, 2019, the ELA was amended to a lower lease rate, inclusive of VAT. The
minimum price per Keno bet was reduced from Twelve Pesos (P12.00) to Ten Pesos (P10.00), inclusive of
DST.

LCC Agency Agreement

LCC enters into a two-year agency agreement with PCSO for every retail outlet it opens to operate. Agency
agreements for lotto and keno terminals are executed separately at different times. These agreements are
renewed by PCSO pending payment of the required surety bond and compliance with the terms and conditions
of the Agency Agreement. The same type of agency agreement with PCSO is entered into by the 9 companies
that LCC acquired in 2017.

Government Regulation and Environmental Compliance

The Company does not need any government approval for its principal products or services since its business
is in the development, design and management of online computer systems, terminals and software for the
PCSO and not in the operation of the lottery business.

The Company has been fully compliant with environmental regulations and ordinances issued by the
concerned Local Government Units (LGU) and by the Department of Natural Resources (DENR) in so far as
disposal of used computer hardware, office equipment and other bulky operating supplies are concerned,
pursuant to the Republic Act 9003: Ecological Solid Waste Management Act of 2000.

Technology Development, Supply and Service Contracts

From 1995 to 2005, the Company had provided the PCSO a single integrated system for its online lottery
operations using the GTECH Legacy system. In 2005, the Company decided to contract Scientific Games to
provide its new AEGIS™ system, after having assessed the obsolescence of GTECH’s lottery system
infrastructure. On November 21, 2005, the Company implemented the migration from the Legacy lottery
system into the new AEGIS™ System. In 2006, the Company entered into another contract with Intralot, for
the provision of another new system using the LOTOS® application software. Since December 2006,
therefore, the Company has been providing the PCSO a two-network system for its VISMIN online lotto
operations.

Having two (2) online lottery systems running in parallel has expanded the availability of lottery terminals
nationwide and provides a safety net for PCSO’s operations. The new technology also helps provide versatility
in connectivity given the country’s hybrid telecommunications network. These systems are capable of
operating nationwide through GPRS, LTE, VSAT and DSL technology which offer diversity in providing options
to sites unserviceable by specific telecommunication providers. Terminal connectivity is now a lot easier due
to compatibility of the lottery terminals with widespread mobile phone cell sites in VISMIN. Online connectivity
in VISMIN is now available wherever there is a cell site of Globe and Smart Telecoms, as well as VSAT
providers for sites unreachable by Globe and Smart.

Scientific Games
Scientific Games (SG) is a top provider in the global lottery and regulated gaming industries. It has over 40
years of gaming and lottery experience in over six continents. On February 15, 2005, the Company, entered
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into a Supply and Service Contract with SG for the provision of a new system, AEGIS™. On November 20,
2005, the Company migrated into the new AEGIS™ System. Under the terms of the Contract, Scientific Games
will provide the Company with Extrema® terminals as well as the required training necessary for its operation.
In consideration of the foregoing, The Company shall pay Scientific Games a pre-agreed rate of its revenue
from the conduct of online lottery games running under the system provided by Scientific Games. This
Contract was amended in 2012 to extend the period to August 31, 2015 and provide for its supply of additional
lotto terminals. In November 2015, the Company and SG further amended the contract to extend the period
thru July 31,2018. In October 2018, the contract was again amended to extend the period thru July 31, 2019.
The same contract was extended through July 31, 2020.

SG was also contracted by the Company to print the instant scratch tickets under its MOA with PCSO for its
nationwide instant ticket program from 2009 thru 2016.

Intralot

Intralot S.A. (Intralot) is a company incorporated under the laws of Greece and is one of the top gaming
systems provider globally and operator in over 55 jurisdictions. On March 13, 2006, the Company entered into
a contract with Intralot for the supply of equipment necessary for the operation of a new online lotto system
effective December 8, 2006. Under the terms of the contract, Intralot will provide the Company with the
computer hardware, the license to use Intralot’'s Lottery Application Software consisting of the software
platform, LOTOS® Application Software, and the Games Application Software, the terminals as well as the
required training necessary to operate the system. Based on the amended contract signed on July 7, 2006,
Intralot will provide the Company with Coronis HEE terminals. In consideration of the foregoing, the Company
shall pay Intralot a pre-agreed rate of the revenue generated by the terminals from the conduct of online lotto
and digit games running on its systemor a fixed fee per terminal per month, whichever is higher. In April 2016,
the Company and Intralot agreed to amend the contract for the latter to supply additional lotto terminals to the
former and extend the term of the contract until August 31, 2018. In September 2018, the contract with Intralot
was again amended to extend the term until August 31, 2019. The same contract was extended through July
31, 2020.

On July 10, 2006, Intralot entered into an agreement with its subsidiary, Intralot Inc., a company domiciled in
Atlanta, Georgia, through which Intralot assigned whole of the contract, including all its rights and obligations
arising from its said subsidiary. This contract is co-terminus with the Company’s ELA with the PCSO

Intralot is also the systems and equipment provider for TGTI, the Company’s subsidiary that has the ELA with
PCSO for its online keno operations. On April 1, 2004, TGTI entered into a contract with Intralot for the supply
of the system and equipment for PCSQO’s online keno lottery operations. Intralot shall be paid based on a pre-
agreed percentage of revenues generated by the keno terminals. In 2008, the contract was amended to
change the calculation of amounts due Intralot to be based on a percentage of gross receipts of PCSO from
its online keno games. On March 22, 2011, the contract was further amended for Intralot to supply additional
keno terminals to TGTI through year 2020 and reduce the percentage charged to TGTI or a fixed fee per
terminal per month, on an average basis, whichever is higher.

The Philippine Lottery Sector

The Philippine lottery sector is regulated by the PCSO, a government-owned and controlled corporation that
was created primarily to raise funds for health and charity programs of the government. It regulates the lottery
and other games of chance in order to protect certain sectors of society, especially the youth. It is estimated
that the gaming market in the Philippines is worth over P100 billion per year, and illegal gaming accounts for
half of the country’s gaming industry revenues.

For over 60 years, since the inception of PCSO, the traditional Sweepstakes had been the lone source of
funds for the PCSO. This changed in 1995, when PCSO launched the very first online lotto in the Philippines.
This innovation brought in a new dimension of fun and excitement for the betting public.

Although there are many types of lottery games worldwide, the Philippine government-authorized lotteries can
generally be categorized into these groups: traditional sweepstakes, instant scratch tickets, online lotto, online
keno (Lotto Express) and Small Town Lottery (STL). The Company has partnered with PCSO in all its lottery
products except for STL.

The PCSO online lotto games are basically two (2) types; i.e., jackpot draw and digit games. The winning
numbers for jackpot draw and digit games are determined by a draw machine For these lotto games, players
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purchase tickets from PCSO authorized retail outlets and wait for the future drawing of prizes. The jackpot
draw games have three draws a week, while digit games have three draws daily. Draw lotto jackpot prizes
are generally pari-mutuel or based on the number of winners and amount of total sales generated per game
at the time of draw. Lotto digit games and keno prizes are based on a fixed odds payout structure, which does
not rely on the number of players and winners per draw. For online keno, winning numbers are drawn via an
Random Number Generator (RNG) program and has draws every ten (10) minutes on a daily basis.

Currently, the PCSO online lotto portfolio consists of five (5) jackpot draw games and four (4) digit games. The
jackpot draw games are: 6/42 Lotto, 6/45 Mega Lotto, 6/49 Super Lotto, 6/55 Grand Lotto and 6/58 Ultra
Lotto; while the digit games are: 2D or EZ2, 3D or Suertres Lotto, 4D and 6D. All of the nine (9) lotto games
operated by the PCSO are played in Luzon, while only eight (8) games are being played in VISMIN. The 6-
digit game is played in Luzon only, but will be available in VISMIN in 2020. Modifications and enhancements
of existing games and/or the introduction of new games are directed by the PCSO.

Instant scratch tickets, on the other hand, are typically played by scratching off the surface of a latex coated
ticket to reveal a specific pattern of numbers, characters, pictures, or symbols that correspond to a prize
amount if ticket is a winner. The player will know immediately if the ticket wins a prize or not. Instant scratch
tickets like the Traditional Sweepstakes have a fixed-odds prize structure.

The Group’s Online Lottery Operations and Products

As of December 31, 2019, the Company together with its subsidiary TGTI, had over 5,600 lottery terminals
installed nationwide. All online lottery terminals located in PCSO authorized retail outlets are continuously
connected to PCSQO’s central computer system that enables real time recording and monitoring of lottery sales,
and validation of winning tickets.

Aside from the number of lottery terminals deployed, total PCSO online lottery sales depend highly on the
average sales generated by the various online lottery games launched. The table below shows the minimum
jackpot amounts and the draw frequencies of the different lotto games supported by the Company.

Lotto Game Minimum Jackpot Draw Freqguency
3x a week - Mondays, Wednesdays and
6/42 Lotto ........... P 6,000,000 Saturdays
3x a week - Mondays, Wednesdays, and
6/45 Mega Lotto ... P 9,000,000 Fridays
6/49 Super Lotto ... P 16,000,000 3x a week - Tuesdays, Thursdays, and Sundays
3x a week - Mondays, Wednesdays and
6/55 Grand Lotto... P 30,000,000 Saturdays
6/58 Ultra Lotto..... P 50,000,000 3x a week -Tuesdays, Fridays and Sundays
3x a week - Mondays, Wednesdays, and
4D Lotto.............. P 10,000 Fridays
3D Lotto ............... P 4,500 Thrice daily
2D Lotto ............. P 4,000 Thrice daily

In its commitment to support PCSO’s efforts to effectively meet the demands of its changing market, the
Company spent a total of P463.7 million from 2017 to 2019 for its development activities broken down as
follows:

(in Million Pesos) 2019 2018 2017
Development Activities 204.0 34.2 2255
Revenues 989.9 1,935.9 2,320.0
% of Revenues 20.6% 1.8% 10.0%

Market Profile

Approximately 72% of PCSO lotto sales nationwide was generated by Luzon operations, and about 28% of
sales is contributed by the VISMIN regions for the year ended 2019. This may be due to Luzon’s higher
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population density, and higher average disposable income of residents. On the other hand, the VISMIN area
faces some challenges due to its geography, more frequent power failures and intermittent telco connectivity.

As of the end of 2019, the Company'’s total terminal deployment in VISMIN territory covered 67 cities out of
72 total cities and 562 municipalities out of total 791. In Luzon, the Company’s lotto terminal deployment,
covered 52 cities and 74 municipalities. The Company covers 100% of the VISMIN sales and only 7% in Luzon
due to its restricted entry since 2012.

Competition

The Company expects the aggressive push for Small Town Lottery (STL) and the prevalence of illegal
gambling particularly in interior towns and remote areas to continue to provide competition to its online lotto
revenues. This mostly affects the VisMin region due to the popularity of the digit games. With the removal of
the legal impediment for the Company to provide lotto equipment in Luzon, the Company expects to expand
its operations in Luzon, where the additional revenues can offset the lost sales in VisMin due to STL.

Organization and Manpower

As of December 31, 2019, the Group had a total of 781 employees, of which, 574 belong to Operations and
207 were administrative and other support personnel. None of the employees of the Company have organized
themselves into any labor union. The Company also provides its employees additional benefits such as health
card, life and accident insurance, retirement plan, training and development programs, and wellness
programs, among others.

The Company believes that it has maintained balanced relationships with the rank and file and does not
anticipate any labor-management issues to arise in the near term. The Company believes that its relationships
with its employees have been consistently good and productive.

Risks
Some of the risks that the Company and its subsidiaries may be exposed to are the following:
1. General Risks

Changes in the government and PCSO administration may result to changes in policies and the way that
such policies are implemented, which may be favorable or unfavorable to the Company. New legislation
rules regarding taxes on lottery products have an impact in sales as well.

Environmental and natural disasters can also affect the operations in a particular area.

2. Risks Relating to the Equipment Lease Agreement (ELA) with PCSO

The Company’s ELA with PCSO is currently on an annual basis because of the failed bidding in 2019 of
its national online lottery system (NOLS). This means that the Company will have to continue to operate
under the current ELA terms beyond July 2020; i.e., when PCSO is able to hold its bidding, award the
new ELA contract and undertake a transition from the current lottery system to the new system. Should
the PCSO bidding for NOLS be held in 2020, the Company is well positioned to be a front runner in said
bidding due to its credentials and track record. But should POSC not win the bid, it is most likely that the
Company’s contract with PCSO will be extended for another 2 years due to the transition period required
for a new service provider to take over the NOLS.

3. Risks Relating to the Company and its Subsidiaries

a. Dependence on Suppliers

The Company’s lottery operations is anchored on a two-system network. The Company has existing
contracts, each distinct and entered into separately, with two global leaders in the lottery industry, namely
Scientific Games and Intralot, for the supply of computer supported lottery gaming systems.

In the event that the contracts, whether collectively or individually, are terminated or suspended,
operations and business of the Company may be impaired.

24



b. Business Interruption Risk

The operations of the Company and its subsidiaries are dependent on the reliability of its central computer
system and the communications infrastructure needed to run it. Any breakdown or failure in the system
provided by its suppliers, or failure in the communication infrastructure may negatively affect the
Company’s financial performance. However, this risk of business interruption is unlikely to happen due to
the redundancy offered by the two suppliers. The communications infrastructure is being provided mainly
by the two biggest telco providers in the country, namely: PLDT/Smart and Globe. The Company also
contracted VSAT to provide connectivity to sites where Smart and Globe are not available.

PROPERTIES

The Company’s online lottery operations are conducted mainly in Cebu, where its central system data center
and logistics center are located. It also has set up 7 logistics hubs in 7 major VisMin cities to ensure efficient
service delivery to the PCSO lottery agents. The Company Head Office is located in Pasig City.

There are no real properties owned and there are no plans to acquire them in the next twelve (12) months.
The Company, together with its subsidiaries, lease all of its data center, logistics centers and hubs, and
business offices. These properties are not mortgaged nor are there any liens and encumbrances that limit
ownership or usage of the same.

The leased properties for business offices, data center, logistics facilities, and retail outlets reached about
8,072 sgm by year end 2019. About 67% of these properties are located in Luzon, and 33% in VisMin. Majority
of the properties in Luzon are found in Metro Manila while those in VisMin are in Cebu. The logistics centers’
areas are about 3,491 sgm in total, with 1,533 sgm in Cebu and 1,958 sgm in Metro Manila. Lease terms for
most office and warehouse spaces range from two (2) to seven (7) years. Majority of leased spaces pertaining
to retail outlets have one (1) year lease term only as dictated by mall leasing policies. All lease agreements
have provisions for renewal subject to terms and conditions mutually agreed upon by all parties concerned.
The lease agreements provide for minimum rental commitment with annual rental escalation rates ranging
from 3% to 10%. Rent expense charged to operation amounted to P88.1 million in 2019, P126.6 million in
2018 and P87.1 million in 2017.

The Company’s major assets are lottery equipment, which consists mainly of lottery terminals, data center
equipment, software and operating systems. The equipment provided by the Company to PCSO for its lottery
operations are described under the “Business” section.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

1. “TMA Group of Companies, et al. vs. Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office (PCSO), et al.”
RTC 66, Makati City- Civil Case No. 11-310/569 [321-106]

This is a complaint for specific performance and damages filed by TMA Australia Pty. Ltd. and its local
subsidiary, TMA Group Philippines, Inc. (TMAP), against PCSO as regards their contract for the supply of lotto
paper. The complainants subsequently amended their complaint to include Pacific Online and Philippine
Gaming Management Corporation (PGMC) as defendants. They prayed for a temporary restraining order
and/or writ of preliminary injunction to enjoin all defendants from doing anything in violation or derogation of
the contractual terms of the Joint Venture Agreement (JVA) dated December 4, 2009 for the supply of lotto
paper. No damages were prayed for against Pacific Online. On June 22, 2017, a Notice of Dismissal dated
June 15, 2017 was received from TMAP praying for the dismissal of the Supplemental Complaint against
Pacific Online pursuant to Section 1 of Rule 17. No objection was interposed to and/or comment on the Notice
of Dismissal. Thus, in an Order dated June 28, 2017, the court dismissed the case against Pacific Online.
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2. “TMA Australia Pty. Ltd. And TMA Group Philippines, Inc. v. Pacific Online.”
RTC 66, Pasig City-Civil Case No. R-PSG-17-02130 [321-108]

This refers to a complaint for Tortious Interference and payment of Damages filed by TMA Australia Pty. Ltd.
and TMA Philippines (the “TMA Group”) against Pacific Online in August 2017. The TMA Group alleged that
Pacific Online wrongfully interfered with the implementation of the Contractual Joint Venture Agreement
(CIVA) between the TMA Group and PCSO when it entered into several equipment lease agreements with
the latter that included a supply of paper provision. The TMA Group also applied for a writ of preliminary
injunction (WPI) against Pacific Online and prayed for damages in the amount of at least One Million Pesos
(P1,000,000.00).

On 21 March 2018, the RTC granted the TMA Group’s application for WPI, enjoining Pacific Online from
continuing to deliver lotto paper to PCSO. Prior to the issuance of the WPI, however, Pacific Online already
completed delivery of all remaining lotto paper requirements under its ELA with PCSO. Thus, the WPI obtained
by the TMA Group did not really have any adverse effect on Pacific Online. Nevertheless, Pacific Online still
moved for the reconsideration of the RTC’s Order granting the WPI. The RTC has yet to resolve this Motion.

During the mediation proceedings on the case, Pacific Online and the TMA Group agreed, in principle, to an

amicable settlement and are now in the process of drafting a Compromise Agreement.

3. “Philippine Charity Sweepstakes Office, et al. v. Hon. Rommel C. Baybay et al.”
CA GR SP No. 128259 [321-105].

This case arose when Judge Rommel Baybay of RTC-Makati, Br. 143, in Civil Case 12-530, granted PGMC'’s
application for injunction enjoining Pacific Online from leasing its equipment for PCSO’s online lottery
operations in Luzon. On September 5, 2012, a Writ of Preliminary Injunction (Injunction) was issued by Branch
143 of the Regional Trial Court (RTC) of Makati. The Injunction orders PCSO to refrain from 1) implementing,
enforcing or exercising any right arising from the 2012 ELA between the Pacific Online and PCSO 2) ordering
or allowing the Pacific Online, or any third party, to install or operate any equipment, computer or terminal
relating to online lottery operations in Luzon, and 3) committing any act that in any way violates or otherwise
interferes with the ELA between PGMC and PCSO. Pacific Online filed a case with the Supreme Court to
nullify the Injunction. PCSO also filed a case with the Court of Appeals likewise questioning the Injunction. On
July 17, 2013, the Supreme Court decided that the case brought by Pacific Online be consolidated with the
case between PGMC and PCSO in the Court of Appeals, thus making Pacific Online a party to the case before
the Court of Appeals.

Meanwhile, PGMC and PCSO entered into an Interim Settlement whereby they agreed, among others, to
maintain the status quo insofar as the terminals already installed in Luzon by Pacific Online are concerned. In
the same Interim Settlement, PGMC and PCSO also agreed to submit to arbitration before the International
Court of Arbitration (ICA) the issue of the alleged exclusivity conferred by the ELA to PGMC for online lotto
operations in Luzon. Pacific Online tried to join the arbitration but its Request for Arbitration dated May 12,
2014 was denied by the ICA on July 17, 2014, due to PCSQO’s opposition. An Urgent Motion to resolve was
filed by Pacific Online with the Court of Appeals to compel the court to issue an order to PGMC and PCSO to
include Pacific Online in the negotiations. This matter was not resolved by the Court of Appeals.

On January 29, 2016, PCSO filed a Manifestation with Motion to Dismiss dated January 12, 2016 with RTC
of Makati, stating that the presiding Judge approved PGMC and PCSO's "Interim Settlement" dated December
11, 2013 wherein it was agreed that the case will be archived pending arbitration. PCSO also averred that,
on December 13, 2015, PGMC and PCSO executed a "Supplemental and Status Quo Agreement" wherein
the parties agreed to dismiss all pending judicial and civil actions between them but shall continue with the
arbitration proceedings. Thus, pursuant to said agreement, PCSO withdrew its Petition for Certiorari in the
Court of Appeals, which was granted by virtue of the Resolution dated March 1, 2016. PCSO also prayed for
the dismissal of the RTC case, but this was denied by the RTC Makati after PGMC opposed PCSO’s motion
to dismiss.

In the meantime, the Court of Appeals required the parties to file their respective Memoranda in the case. On
September 13, 2017, Pacific Online filed its Memorandum. PCSO opted not to file its own Memorandum, but
manifested instead that it was adopting the Memorandum of Pacific Online. On January 8, 2019, Pacific
Online’s counsel received a Decision by the Court of Appeals dated December 17, 2018 dismissing Pacific
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Online’s Petition for Certiorari and Prohibition. Pacific Online decided to no longer pursue a Motion for
Reconsideration because, to a certain extent, the Petition already served its purpose as after the same was
filed, the RTC Makati put on hold the hasty implementation of the injunction. Subsequent events have likewise
rendered moot the issues in the case, since, aside from the ICA arbitration decision, the ELA at issue in the
case has also been amended and superseded several times. With these developments, the adverse effect
against Pacific Online — the reason that this case was initiated in the first place — is no longer attendant.

DISAGREEMENT WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

There have been no disagreements with any accountant on any matter of accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosures or auditing scope of procedure. During the two (2) most recent fiscal years or
any subsequent interim period, no principal accountant or independent accountants of the registrant has
resigned, was dismissed, or has ceased to perform services.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATING PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

2019 Compared to 2018

The Group generated total revenues from operating sources of about P989.87 million for the year ended
December 31, 2019, a decrease of P946.6 million (49%) over total revenues of P1.936 billion during the same
period in 2018. The decrease in revenue was due to lower lotto sales, which was cannibalized by the
continuing expansion of Small-Town Lottery (STL). In addition, President Duterte ordered the suspension of
all PCSO games, which meant lost sales of four (4) days for lotto, two (2) months for both keno and instant
scratch tickets, and one (1) month for STL. It also took about three (3) months before retail sales levels
returned to pre-suspension period for instant scratch tickets. Furthermore, Keno revenues decreased during
the fourth quarter due to reduced ELA rate on top of much lower sales, which resulted from implementing the
Keno ticket price to pre-TRAIN Law level with lower prize structure.

The Group’s total operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization, for the year ended December
31, 2019 decreased by P247.06 million (15%) to P1.370 billion, from P1.614 billion in 2018. The decrease is
attributed to the following:

- Personnel costs decreased by P31.4 million (9%) due to freeze hiring and non-replacement of
resigned personnel;

- Rent and utilities expense decreased by P53.7 million (25%) due to the effect of adopting the
PAS16;

- Consultancy fees decreased by P30.3 million (100%) due to the termination of a couple of
management contracts;

- Software license fees decreased by P59.4 million (30%) due to lower lottery sales and lower
rates negotiated with Intralot;

- Management fees expense decreased by P44.7 million (100%), due to negative EBITDA;

- Operating supplies expense decreased by P104.9 million (66%) due to overall decrease in Keno
sales for which betslips and thermal rolls are still being supplied.

The decreases accounted for in the foregoing expense accounts were offset mainly by the combined increases
of the following expense accounts:

- Travel and accommodation expense increased by P10.9 million (15%) mainly due to the
increased volume of field visits;

27



- Repairs and maintenance increased by P40.8 million (56%) due to higher spare parts usage to
repair aging terminals;

- Advertising and promotion expense increased by P9.02 million (23%) due to updated marketing
collaterals and training support for Keno and LCC agents due to the changes in ticket prices and
payouts;

- Taxes and licenses expense increased by P3.24 million (10%) due to the P4.5 million DST paid
for stock dividends issued in 2019;

- Entertainment and amusement expense increased by P6.02 million (31%) due to increased other
business incidental expenses;

- Other income (net of other charges) decreased by P176.6 million from last year's P161.4 million
(109%), mainly due to the impairment loss of LCC goodwill, mark to market loss on marketable
securities.

The Group’s net loss after tax of P317.6 million represents a P621.7 million (204%) decline from last year’s
net income of P304.0 million. The lower net income in 2019 was a result of the 42% drop in overall sales
across all products.

Total assets of the Company decreased by P386.7 million (18%) to P1.72 billion as of December 31, 2019,
from P2.10 billion as of December 31, 2018. Decreases in assets are attributable to the following:

- Cash decreased by P234.4 million (41%) mainly due to lower revenue in 2019;
- Marketable securities decreased by P15.2 million (10%) due to unrealized mark-to-market loss;

- Trade and other receivables-net decreased by P112.6 million (39%) due mainly to the lower lotto
and keno sales as of last quarter of 2019 plus the lower ELA rate on keno sales starting September
2019;

- Investment in stocks went down by P108.1 million (24%) due to lower stock market prices of
investments on hand during 2019 versus 2018;

- Goodwill and intangibles decreased by P17.1 million (100%) as a result of the impairment of the
LCC and Nine Entities goodwill;

- Retirement benefit asset decreased by P7.9 million (100%) due to reclassification to retirement
liability account as a result of higher benefits accrued;

- Property and equipment decreased by P152.2 million (59%) due to depreciation of lottery
equipment and other fixed assets.

The decreases in the assets above were offset by the following increases:

- Other current assets increased by P69.8 million (48%) due to pre payments and additional
creditable withholding tax;

- Other noncurrent assets increased by P84.7 million (41%) mainly due to the prepayments of
technical and advisory services pertaining to software development;

Total liabilities of P399.6 million was up by P57.1 million (17%) over last year's P342.5 million due principally
to the following:

- Loan payable increased from zero to P140.8 million (1530%) due to a P150 million loan from Asia
United Bank;

- Lease liability ROU-current increased by P41.5 million (100%), due to the effect of adopting the
new accounting standard PFRS 16- Leases;

- Defined benéefit liability increased by P29.2 million (from 0 in 2018) due to the accrual of retirement
expense for 2019;
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- Lease liability ROU-noncurrent portion increased by P9.2 million (from 0 in 2018) due to the effect
of adopting the new accounting standard PFRS 16- Leases.

The increases in the liabilities were offset by the following decreases:

- Trade and other current liabilities decreased by P100.8 million (41%) due to lower trade payables
resulting from lower operating expenses;

- Current portion of obligations under finance lease decreased by P3.4 million (17%) due to the
amortization of capital lease for 2019;

- Withholding taxes payable decreased by P2.6 million (43%) due to lower withholding taxes
resulting from lower operating expenses;

- Income tax payable decreased by P5.1 million (55%) due to less income tax as a result of lower
net income for the year;

- Obligations under finance lease — net of current portion decreased by P16.0 million (100%) due to
reclassification to current portion;

- Deferred tax liability decreased by P37.3 million (100%) as it was offset to deferred tax asset.

As of December 31, 2019, the Company has:

a) No known trends or any demands, commitments, or events that will result in or that are likely
to result in the liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way;

b) No events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation;

c) No material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons created
during the reporting period; and

d) Not breached any loans, leases or other indebtedness or financing agreement.

Key Performance Indicators

The Company monitors its performance and benchmarks itself to prior year's results in terms of the following
indicators:

As of
Dec. 31,2019 Dec. 31,2018
Current Ratio 2.39:1.00 4.00:1.00
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 0.30:1.00 0.19:1.00
Asset-to-Equity Ratio 1.30:1.00 1.19:1.00

For the year ended

Dec. 31, 2019 Dec. 31, 2018
Return on Equity -24.12% 17.27%
Return on Assets -18.51% 14.46%
Interest Coverage Ratio (54.95):1.00 79.04 :1.00
Solvency Ratio (0.23):1.00 1.56:1.00
Book Value per Share 1.56 10.84

The above performance indicators are calculated as follows:

Current Ratio Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Debt to Equity Ratio Total Liabilities
Total Equity

Asset-to-equity Ratio Total Assets
Total Equity
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Return on Stockholders’ Equity Net Income
Total Equity

Return on Assets Net Income
Total Assets

Interest Coverage Ratio Income Before Interest & Tax
Interest Expense

Solvency Ratio Net Income + Depreciation
Total Liabilities

Book Value per Share Total Equity
Total Shares Outstanding

2018 Compared to 2017

The Group generated total revenues from operating sources of about P1.936 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2018, a decrease of P384 million (17%) over total revenues of P2.320 billion during the same
period in 2017. The decrease in revenue was due to lower lottery sales, which was caused by the expansion
of Small Town Lottery (STL) from 17 to 86 operators and the 20% increase in lottery ticket prices with the
implementation of the Documentary Stamp Tax (DST) on lottery tickets as mandated by the TRAIN Law in
2018. The STL games offer lower ticket prices and higher payout ratios versus the online lotto and keno
games.

The Group’s total operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization, for the year ended December
31, 2018 decreased by P37.9 million (2%) to P1.614 billion, from P1.652 billion in 2017. The decrease is
attributed to the following:

- Consultancy fees decreased by P35.2 million (54%) due to lower lottery sales, on which the fees
are based on;

- Management fees decreased by P25.2 million (36%) due to the decrease in EBITDA, on which
the fees are based on;

- Advertising and promotion decreased by P32.3 million (45%) due to reduction in keno marketing
and promotional activities as compared to 2017;

- Operating supplies decreased by P57.2 million (26%), mainly due to the takeover by PCSO of lotto
paper supplies as part of the terms in the extension of the lotto ELA starting August 1, 2018;

- No provision for possible impairment of receivables was recorded in 2018, while the P25.0 million
provision in 2017 was required for possible impairment of past due accounts receivable and
unused input taxes of the nine (9) subsidiaries that LCC acquired in 2017;

- Other expenses decreased by P20.4 million (45%) mainly due to lower miscellaneous incidental
business expenses.

The decreases accounted for in the foregoing expense accounts were offset mainly by the combined increases
of the following expense accounts:

- Personnel costs increased by P82.5 million (31%) mainly due to the acquisition of the nine (9)
subsidiaries of LCC in 2017, which effectively increased the manpower of the Group;

- Rent and utilities increased by P49.6 million (30%) due to rental rate escalation of the Group’s

offices and logistics centers and the expanded retail outlets resulting from the acquisition of LCC’s
subsidiaries in 2017;
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- Entertainment, amusement and recreation expense increased by P4.1 million (26%) due to higher
business representation expenses incurred in 2018

- Other income (net of other charges) increased by P107.3 million from last year's P54.2 million,
mainly due to the full recognition of the P203.5 million brand and trademark license fee and its
corresponding interest income of P12.5 million covering the exclusive use of the Company’s instant
scratch ticket trademarks by PMLC over 5 years starting on January 1, 2018. This other income
was reduced by the provision of P110.9 million impairment of the goodwill pertaining to the
acquisition of Falcon Resources Inc. (FRI) by TGTI. Based on projections of declining revenues
from FRI’s core business of instant ticket distribution in the next few years, management deems it
prudent to impair the goodwiill.

The Group’s net income after tax of P304.0 million represents a P188.8 million (38%) decline from last year’s
net income of P492.9 million. The lower net income in 2018 was a result of the double-digit decline in lottery
sales as explained above.

In 2018, Company booked a net fair value loss on investment in shares of stock of P306.8 million versus a net
gain of P119 million in 2017. This translates to a P425.8 million decrease in fair value gain on investment,
which resulted to a net comprehensive income of P9.64 million that is equivalent to about 2% of last year’s
P613.21 million net comprehensive income.

Total assets of the Company decreased by P530.8 million (20%) to P2.10 billion as of December 31, 2018,
from P2.63 billion as of December 31, 2017. Decreases in assets are attributable to the following:

- Marketable securities decreased by P22.8 million (13%) due to unrealized mark-to-market loss
amounting to P11.9 million and disposal of P10.9 million worth of securities during the year;

- Trade and other receivables-net decreased by P218.2 million (43%) due mainly to the lower lotto
and keno sales as of last quarter of 2018 plus the lower ELA rate on lotto sales starting August 1,
2018 as part of the terms in the extension of the contract for another year;

- Investment in stocks went down by P272.3 million (37%) due to the decrease in the stock market
prices of investments on hand during 2018;

- Goodwill and intangibles decreased by P110.9 million (87%) as a result of the impairment of the
goodwill initially booked when FRI was acquired by TGTI in 2014;

- Property and equipment decreased by P178.1 million (41%) due to depreciation of lottery
equipment and other fixed assets

The decreases in the assets above were offset by the following increases:

- Cash increased by P124.1 million (28%) mainly due to the acquisition of the nine (9) subsidiaries
of LCC during the second half of 2017;

- Other current assets increased by P30 million (26%) due to recognition of prepaid income taxes
and reclass from non-current of the cash bond held in escrow for the instant ticket MOA with
PCSO that was approved for release in 2019.

- Other noncurrent assets increased by P126.3 million (159%) due to the reversal of the an accrual
for a payable to PCSO pertaining to the long term MOA on instant tickets, which expired in 2016,
and reclass of its corresponding cash bond held in escrow to current assets, approved for release
in 2019.

- Retirement benefit asset increased by P6.5 million (479%) due to additional contribution made to
the retirement fund,

Total liabilities of P342.5 million was down by P271.3 million (44%) over last year's P613.8 million due
principally to the following:
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Trade and other current liabilities decreased by P247.9 million (50%) due mainly to payables
booked as of yearend 2017 for dividends and lotto paper, which were not incurred as of yearend
2018;

Income tax payable went down by P20 million (68%) due to lower net income vs. last year;

Key Performance Indicators

The Company monitors its performance and benchmarks itself to prior year's results in terms of the following

indicators:
As of

Dec. 31,2018 Dec. 31, 2017
Current Ratio 4.00:1.00 2.16:1.00
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 0.19:1.00 0.30:1.00
Asset-to-Equity Ratio 1.19:1.00 1.30:1.00

For the year ended

Dec. 31, 2018 Dec. 31, 2017
Return on Equity 17.27% 24.40%
Return on Assets 14.46% 18.71%
Interest Coverage Ratio 79.04:1.00 67.46 : 1.00
Solvency Ratio 1.56:1.00 1.17:1.00
Book Value per Share 4.17 4.77

2017 Compared to 2016

The Company, consolidated with its subsidiaries, generated total revenues from operating sources of about
P2.32 billion for the year ended December 31, 2017, an increase of P432 million (23%) over total revenues of
P1.89 billion during the same period in 2016. The increase in revenue was due to higher lottery sales resulting

from more

P100 million lotto jackpot prizes, additional draw for Ultra Lotto 6/58 game, additional Keno terminal

rollouts, and acquisition of nine (9) entities engaged in retail distribution of lottery tickets nationwide.

The Company’s total operating expenses, including depreciation and amortization, for the year ended
December 31, 2017 increased by P362 million (28%) to P1.65 billion, from P1.29 billion in 2016. The increase
is attributed to the following:

Personnel costs increased by P99.9 million (47%) mainly due to the acquisition of the nine (9)
subsidiaries of LCC which effectively increased the manpower of the Group;

Depreciation and amortization charges increased by P54.3 million (32%) due to depreciation of
new lottery machines and equipment and other fixed assets acquired in 2016;

Rent and utilities increased by P43.2 million (57%) due to additional logistics hubs set up in VisMin
and the expanded retail outlets resulting from the acquisition of LCC’s subsidiaries;

Consultancy fees increased by P7.4 million (13%) due to higher sales, on which the fees are
based on;

Communication expenses increased by P8.4 million (8%) due to additional communication links
resulting from additional lotto and keno terminal rollout;

Management fees increased by P5.2 million (8%) due to the increase in EBITDA, on which the
fees are based on;

Repairs and maintenance increased by P5.6 million (12%) due to renovation and repairs of logistics
and office facilities;
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- Advertising and promotion increased by P58.0 million (434%) due to more aggressive keno
marketing and promotional activities implemented during first half of the year, while there was no
such activity in 2016.

- Operating supplies increased by P25.7 million (13%), mainly due to higher consumables, resulting
from higher lottery sales;

- Impairment losses on receivables increased by P7.7 million and provision for probable losses
increased by P25M due to additional provision required for possible impairment of past due
accounts receivable and unused input taxes of the 9 subsidiaries that LCC acquired.

- Other expenses increased by P22.8 million (92%) mainly due to higher miscellaneous incidental
business expenses.

The increases accounted for in the foregoing expense accounts were offset mainly by the combined decreases
of the following expense accounts:
- Professional fees decreased by P3.8 million (22%) due to lower fees paid during the period, and

- Entertainment, amusement and recreation expense decreased by P2.6 million (14%) due to lower
business representation expenses incurred in 2017;

Other income (net of other charges) increased by P68.2 million in 2017 from net charges of P14.1 million in
2016, mainly due to improved mark to market gain on marketable securities of P39.3 million, increase in
excess input taxes of P18.7 million, and the P11.8M service income earned in 2017.

In 2017, a fair value gain on investment in shares of stock of P119.0 million was posted, which resulted in a
total net comprehensive income of P613.2 million for 2017 versus P607.7 million total net comprehensive gain
in 2016.

Total assets of the Company increased by P206.6 million (9%) to P2.6 billion as of December 31, 2017, from
P2.4 billion as of December 31, 2016. Increases in assets are attributable to the following:

- Cash increased by P188.2 million (73%) mainly due to the acquisition of the nine (9) subsidiaries
of LCC during the second half of 2017;

- Marketable securities increased by P12.5 million (8%) due to additional marketable securities
purchased at P10.2 million and the unrealized mark-to-market gain amounting to P2.2 million;

- Retirement benefit asset increased by P1.0M (320%) due to additional contribution made to the
retirement fund,;

- Other noncurrent assets increased by P24.5 million (45%) due to the bonds and rental deposits of
the additional subsidiaries purchased.

The increases in assets above were offset by the following decreases:
- Other current assets decreased by P8.2 million (7%) due to application of prepaid income taxes
against income tax payable, and

- Property and equipment decreased by P40.9 million (9%) due to higher depreciation expense for
the year;

Total current liabilities increased by P180.7 million (46%) from P394.9 million in 2016 to P575.6 million in 2017

due to the declaration of P86.7 million cash dividends in December 2017 for payment in January 2018 and
accrual of operating expenses pertaining to the 9 subsidiaries acquired in 2017.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Company monitors its performance and benchmarks itself to prior year's results in terms of the following
indicators:

As of
Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016
Current Ratio 2.16:1.00 2.65:1.00
Debt-to-Equity Ratio 0.30:1.00 0.24:1.00
Asset-to-Equity Ratio 1.30:1.00 1.24:1.00

For the year ended

Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016
Return on Equity 24.40% 20.42%
Return on Assets 18.71% 16.50%
Interest Coverage Ratio 67.46 :1.00 46.77 : 1.00
Solvency Ratio 1.17:1.00 1.22:1.00

Plans and Prospects

The Group foresees the next year to still be a very challenging period, but is optimistic that it will be able to
generate more favorable financial results than the past year.

With the removal of the legal impediment for the Company to lease to PCSO’s lotto operations in Luzon, the
Company can now install lotto terminals in agents that generate more than double the lottery sales of VISMIN
agents and are more easily accessible for equipment repairs and maintenance. The Company continues to
work closely with the PCSO in launching more creative and innovative marketing programs to help improve
lottery sales nationwide.

The PCSO is expected to hold a re-bidding for the nationwide online lottery system (NOLS) in the first quarter
of 2020, in time for the expiration of its Equipment Lease Agreements (ELA) with both its lotto systems
providers. With its ELA expiring on July 31, 2020, the Company definitely plans to participate in the NOLS
bidding. The Company is confident that it will be able to meet all the requirements of the bidding’s Terms of
Reference (TOR) given its track record of over 20 years in the lottery business and its technology partners
that are global leaders in the gaming industry. Moreover, the Company has also maintained its ISO certification
for Quality Management System (ISO 9000) and Information Security Management (ISO/IEC 27001), with
SGS as its certifying body since 2015. In the event, however, that the Company does not win the bid, it
expects its existing contract with PCSO to be extended for another one (1) to two (2) years because of the
lengthy and complex transition that any new system provider will have to undergo to take over the nationwide
lottery.

The ELA of TGTI, the Group’s keno business unit, is due to expire on October 1, 2020. PCSO, however, has
acknowledged that keno is still a viable revenue source for its charity fund and has expressed the urgent need
to improve sales, which have been severely hampered in the past 2 years. TGTI has been working closely
with PCSO to come up with an improved keno game as part of the negotiations for a possible renewal or
extension of its contract with PCSO.

The Company is committed to its vision of being the gaming partner of choice, despite all the regulatory,
environmental and social hurdles of the industry, along with the ever-changing market demands and rapid
technological developments in the shifting landscape of the Philippine gaming industry. To ensure growth,
stability, and sustainability in the long-term, the Company is determined to push forward with relevant projects
and be dynamic and proactive in its business strategies in serving the Philippine gaming market.
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ANNEX TO MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) SECTION

Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company,
including any default or acceleration of obligation

The Company does not foresee any events that may trigger material financial obligation to the
Company, including default or acceleration of an obligation.

All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangement, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons
created during the reporting period

Except for what has been noted in the preceding part, there were no material events or uncertainties
known to management that had a material impact on past performance, or that would have a material
impact on the future operations, in respect of any material off-balance sheet transactions,
arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations), and other relationships with
unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The audited Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules as of and for the year ended December 31,

2019 listed in the accompanying index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are filed as
part of this Form 20-IS.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Market Information

The Company became a listed company with the listing of its shares with the Philippine Stock Exchange on
April 12, 2007.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had an authorized capital stock of 500 million common shares (at
P1.00 par value), of which 125.25 million shares have been issued and outstanding. On February 9, 2007,
the Company issued an additional 54 million shares from its authorized capital stock, increasing the issued
and outstanding shares to 179.25 million shares. On March 27, 2007, the Company offered its shares for sale
to the public through an initial public offering (IPO) with a primary offer of 11.8 million common shares and a
secondary offer of 28 million common shares. Prior to the Offer, there have been no public trading market for
the Company’s common shares. On November 19, 2007, the SEC approved the issuance of 8.048 million
common shares from the Company’s unissued authorized capital stock resulting from the valuation of the
deposits for future subscription as consideration for the issuance of shares, at the total subscription price of
P124.744 million. On May 6, 2008, the BOD approved the allocation of 2.174 million shares to its executives
and employees and to the officers of Lucky Circle Corporation (“LCC”), which is exercisable over a period of
three years from May 6, 2008 until May 6, 2011. The exercise price of the option was fixed at P8.88 per share.
On May 19, 2008, grantees of the stock options exercised 617 thousand shares of the Company’s stock at
P8.88 per share. In 2011 and 2010, certain grantees of the stock options exercised 495 thousand shares and
455 thousand shares respectively, also at P8.88 per share.

On July 11, 2008, the BOD authorized the Parent Company to buy back up to 2,000,000 shares from the
public as a means of preserving the value of the Parent Company’s shares and maintaining investor
confidence. In addition, on October 14, 2008, the BOD approved to extend its share buy-back program up to
a maximum of 10% of the Parent Company’s outstanding capital stock. For the same reasons as above, the
Company bought back 1,478,000 shares in 2018 and 18,771,546 shares in 2017. The Company did not buy
back any treasury shares in 2019 but the number of treasury shares doubled as a result of the stock dividend.
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The movements in treasury shares are as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Number Number of
of Shares Amount Shares Amount
Balance at beginning of P285,267,55
the year 25,233,492 8 23,755,492 P268,660,770
Effect of stock dividend 25,223,492 -
Acquisitions - - 1,478,000 16,606,788
Balance at end of the P285,267,55
year 50,466,984 8 25,233,492 P285,267,558
Dividends

No cash or stock dividends were declared in 2019.

In 2018, the BOD, upon recommendation of management, declared the following cash dividends:

2018
Declaration Record Date Payment Per Share Amount
April 26, 2018 May 14, 2018 May 31, 2018 P0.30 2126,762,110
April 26, 2018  August 3, 2018  August 31, 2018 0.30 126,709,115

2253,471,225

On August 14, 2018, the BOD declared a 100% stock dividend to the Company’s stockholders, which the
record and payment dates will be set subject to the approval of the SEC of the increase in its authorized capital
stock. The stock dividend will be issued out of the increase in authorized capital stock. The declaration of the
stock dividend was approved at the special meeting of the stockholders held on September 25, 2018.

In 2017, the Company declared cash dividends as follows:

Declaration Record Date Payment Per Share Amount
May 2, 2017 May 17, 2017 May 31, 2017 P0.30 P130,101,926
May 2, 2017 August 11, 2017 August 31, 2017 0.30 130,101,926

December 6,
2017 January 5, 2018 January 31, 2018 0.20 86,734,617
P346,938,469

On August 14, 2018, the BOD approved the amendment in the Company’s articles of incorporation to increase
its authorized capital stock from P500 million divided into 500 million common shares to P2,288 million divided
into 2,288 million common shares. The increase in the authorized capital stock was approved at the special
meeting of the stockholders held on September 25, 2018. The increase in authorized capital stock is pending
approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as at December 31, 2018

There is no provision in the Company’s charter or by-laws that would delay, deter, or prevent a change in
control of the Company.

Stock Prices
As of the trading date, April 30, 2020 the stocks of the Company closed at P1.73 per share. The Company’s

stock price was pegged at a high of P1.75 and at a low of P1.70 as of the same date. The stock prices as of
quarter end date for 2019 are as follows:
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2019 High Low

First Quarter 491 4.50
Second Quarter 3.12 3.09
Third Quarter 2.96 2.82
Fourth Quarter 2.57 2.45

As of December 31, 2019, the Company’s market capitalization amounted to P2,238,327,365 based on the
closing price of P2.50 per share. Likewise, its market capitalization as of January 31, 2020 amounted to
P1,898,101,606 based on the closing price of P2.12 per share.

Security Holders

As of April 30, 2020, Pacific Online had 57 shareholders, corresponding to total common shares outstanding
of 895,330,946. The top 20 stockholders as of the same date are listed below:

Name No. of Shares Held % to Total
1. PREMIUM LEISURE CORP. 448,560,806 50.10
2. PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION 327,381,777 39.57
3. OCIER, WILLY N. 71,819,350 8.02
4. ABACUS CONSOLIDATED RESOURCES 43,761,930 4.89
& HOLDINGS, INC.
5. OCIER WILLY &/OR GERALDINE E.Y. 1,439,000 0.1607
OCIER
6. SY, HANS TAN 800,000 0.0894
7. WS FAMILY FOUNDATION, INC. 450,000 0.0503
8. OCIER, MISCHEL GABRIELLE E.Y. 390,000 0.0436
9. KILAYKO, GREGORIO U. 200,000 0.0223
10. LIM, MAURICE D. 100,000 0.0112
11. BENITEZ, ALFREDO B. 68,200 0.0076
12. CHAN, CARMELITA 66,000 0.0074
13. CHAN, CARMELITAD.L. 33,300 0.0037
14. VILLANUEVA, MYRA P. 23,400 0.0026
15. TAGUBA, LUCILA A. 20,000 0.0022
16. SY, CAROLINE TANCUAN 20,000 0.0022
17. SY, HANS JR. TANCUAN 20,000 0.0022
18. SY, HARVEY CHRISTOPHER TANCUAN 20,000 0.0022
19. SY, HOWARD CONRAD TANCUAN 20,000 0.0022
20. PEREZ, JOSE DEXTER F. 18,000 0.0020

Recent Sale of Unregistered Securities
There have been no sales of unregistered securities since 2012.
Voting Rights

At each meeting of the shareholders, every stockholder entitled to vote on a particular question or matter
involved shall be entitled to one vote for each share of stock standing in his name in the books of the Company
at the time of closing of the transfer books for such meeting.

Dividend Rights of Common Shares

The Company’s board of directors is authorized to declare cash, property, or stock dividends or a combination
thereof. A cash dividend declaration requires the approval of the Board and no shareholder approval is
necessary. A stock dividend declaration requires the approval of the Board and shareholders representing at
least two-thirds of the Company’s outstanding capital stock. Holders of outstanding shares on a dividend
record date for such shares will be entitled to the full dividend declared without regard to any subsequent
transfer of share. Other than statutory limitations, there are no restrictions that limit the Company from paying
dividends on common equity.
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Appraisal Rights

As provided for by law, any stockholder shall have a right to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of
his shares in the following instances:

1. In case any amendment of the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting the rights
of any stockholders or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those of
outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence;

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially
all of the corporate property and assets as provided in the Corporation Code of the Philippines and,;

3. In case of merger or consolidation.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MANUAL ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company remains focused on ensuring the adoption of systems and practices of good corporate
governance in enhancing value for its shareholders. With this in mind, the Board of Directors has established
corporate governance principles to ensure accountability, fairness and transparency in the organization.

Its Manual on Corporate Governance was revised last year and submitted to SEC May 22, 2019. Changes
made to the manual are as follows:

1) Inclusion of Vision, Mission and Corporate Values

2) Inclusion of Definition of Terms

3) Inclusion of Board Evaluation/Self-Assessment

4) Updated Board Committees (prior version still had the old committees reflected)

5) Included Risk Officer responsibilities (under the Board Risk Oversight Committee portion)

In compliance with SEC Memo Circular No. 19, Series of 2016 directing all publicly listed companies (PLCs)
to submit anew Manual on Corporate Governance (MCG) pursuant to the new Code of Corporate Governance
for PLCs, the Company, upon the approval of its Board, on May 31, 2017, submitted its Revised Manual on
Corporate Governance (“the Manual) to the SEC. Prior to the submission, a review of the various established
Board level committees and its respective charters were done. As a result, the following comprise the Board
level committees of the Company as approved last May 31, 2017:

Executive Committee - acts on behalf of the Board in the management and direction of the business
and conduct of the affairs of the Company.

Audit Committee - has general oversight of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
processes, audits of the financial statements, and internal control and audit functions.

Board Risk Oversight Committee — assists the Board in overseeing the Company’s practices and
processes relating to risk assessment and risk management; maintaining an appropriate risk culture,
reporting of financial and business risks and associated internal controls,
Corporate Governance Committee — tasked with ensuring compliance with, and proper observance
of, corporate governance principles and practices. Folded in are the nomination and remuneration
oversight functions as well.
Related Party Transactions Committee - assists the Board in overseeing the Company’s practices
and processes relating to related party transactions (RPTs). Reviews all material related party
transactions of the Company and ensures that all RPTs are conducted on a fair and arms-length basis.
A Lead Independent Director and Compliance Officer were also appointed on May 31, 2017.
Members of various committees are expected to serve for a term of one (1) year.

The Company is not aware of any non-compliance with its Manual of Corporate Governance, by any of its
officers or employees.
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UNDERTAKING TO PROVIDE COPIES OF THE ANNUAL REPORT

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD ENTITLED TO NOTICE OF AND
VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE COMPANY SHALL FURNISH SUCH SHAREHOLDER WITH A COPY OF
THE COMPANY’S INFORMATION STATEMENT (SEC FORM 20-1S) AND ANNUAL REPORT (SEC FORM
17-A) FREE OF CHARGE. ANY SUCH WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

MR. A. BAYANI K. TAN

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

28" FLOOR EAST TOWER, PSE CENTRE

EXCHANGE ROAD, ORTIGAS CENTER, PASIG CITY
Fax. No. : 5717464

Email Address : contactus@pacificonline.com.ph
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
|7 1. Busloess

Pacific Orline Systams Comporation (Company™) was incoradated in the PTHlppines and was raqistend
with the Phippine Securbes and Exchange Commission [*SECT) on Howember 11, 1533, Tha Cormpany ks
primanty engaded n (he devedopmen, design and menagemer of DOKE OO pUTar Syalerns, Bmunaks and
s twane o the Philippsing garig industry. 1 souwmes techaokogy from hkesding global sipothars of inbegrated
garmiiv} Gyshons and ates equipment o the Philippine Charity Sweepsmkas Ofica {PCS0) for ds onbing
bt opembiors n the Vicayas and Mindanao |VISMING regans unded he thrs of a0 Egubpment L
Agreemen (ELA), which wes infially entered inta on Navernber 25 1985 1 aisa provides e nessany
Echnical suppor through 4 Mainlerance Regar Agreerend (MRA) thal & co-lerminus with the ELA. The
Company's ELA with the PG50 was anended in 2008 012, 2013, 2015, 2018, and 2019, principelty 10
amend the term thersol, in mespomse 1o PCED's requinements o ense tagrity, sustainability and
afficiency i its onling lotn oparations. |n 2019, the ELA was amended k2 alow the use of (he Company s
torminals for PCS0NS otto aperations in Luzon. The latest amendmeni k the ELA wag made whensn the
ELA's tarmr was axtended up o July 31, 2020 Tha equpmen mntal rewsms aamad by e Company will
this ELA & based on a pavcerdags of i) salas genered by 1he Company's kemminads.

In 2004, e Coampaty acruiredd SO of Tolzlt Gaming Tachmoiogees inc. (TSI, which hea is own ELA with
Lre PO lor e Lafler's pnling ioeno operatiors naiormeide. TGTH's ELAS with PCED prowides for 2 s
porid of e (107 vears commencing on the dote of aciual commertsal GoerEions of Al kast 200 onkie
hihe ek, WD Cctober 2010 sclablshed as b slad of commencial aperations e online: ben, TGTTS
ELA will expire on Sepsaember 30, 204 TGTI'S equipmend rental revenue is based on 2 percentage of keng
Lok ciest oF 3 K Srirusl recdal o PAG 00 per terminal, winchever iz higher. By X013, the Company
akmaty owte T,97% of TGT,

In 007, the Compary Sat up Lot Pacifs Lesune Consoration [LooPac) pamarty fo acquine, exlablish, pwn,
howd, kease, sedl, conduct, operate, and Manade Aectemon], Recneaiond ] qaruitg squiprnl taifies,
and entemprse of meeey hatd and notur, a5 well as places for gdibitions:, Tecreation, Bming, Smusamel
a] ket of the general pubiic, and 1o actuine, hold and opeate any and al privileges, nohis, ranchises
2nd CONCETSICNS 26 May i DIODEr, eCcessary, advartagammes, of Convemend o the condust o it usiness.
LotoPac subsequently acquired Lechy Cwicly Ceeporation (LCC) In Amgust 2007, LCC is an authorzed
PCSCY agent Dperating orine batting sEdons thal sed swearrtlakes, Rttt kerg atd insdan bokads in oyllaks
Wacakedd in mapr shoppang mialks Boe SM o Sipemiell, Robinstns, abd Gasand nabioneids LCC eams B
cevlain percentage of the sales of obio, keno, Sweansiakes and irstanl somabch & Gckets o Commission
income. ki 2(H 0. the Company sitbscribad i adritional 124 mibon shames of LCC, afler tha SEC's apprval
g:rl;r:ﬂ’l;ﬂm W ther lather's authodized ceopdtal slock. which increased the Company’s elenssl in LCC to

In 2009, e Company entersrd inko B pon-aIcisiee Memorandurm af Agreement (MOW) with PGS0, b a
pencd of 3evEn pears o umdedste e rintmg, dberibtion and sk of indan] soratch boXets nasomwide
Tha restant scratch Beioit, brimced o Soratchit ™ proviced 2 seady Kream of revenoas lor PCS0 and |k
agents. | stwo expanded the Company's expenence n e oley beress. On Magh 371, 2015 the
Company eired o an Cutsolmoing Memnaraream of Agresrtn] [CWC1A} with Fowerball Saming and
Erertaanmenl Corporstan {FGEC) & b e exclsive maketing, dstdtution, se¥ing and collecling egent
al $we Company Ior Soretchil™ bokets throughog] e Fhliopeney, The sgeement Dok ofecl] on Apdl 1,
20115 & b @mcha] o Mereemder 3], 2016

On Juma 16, 204, TET] and the sharehoders of Faleon Rescemes, inc. [FRI)artsrsd ane 2 Mano srchan
af Undersianding (MOLR Gor he fomme's inbenbon |0 acqgure tha fere's interest in FRI mepresending 100
(g rehip. Om Deocemibigr 14, 2014, fhe deed of sale lor the manefer of shares of siocks was exacoisd, FRI
R A cornfany evepaner in cwrtancy sanices for TETH and a sub-distr butor of instant scratch ekaks, FRL
B a company ncoporaled i hy Philgpings



On Juby 1, 2017, LOC andd e siockholcons of the bilowang antined ankemed iito 2 Dead of Sake AQmeerme
koo B trawstchor of shanes of siock Mewmebbntineg 100% ceemsrshup.

) Adwwa Venlires, .
b Avery miegrated Hub Inc.
c} Crcle & Gaming, Yenlures e,
d) Lucky Deal Lerurs ke
&) Lucky Forbme Business Yartures Ine.
Iy Lucky Pk Lessure Club Comp.
g Lueky Vanture: Lesur Com,
h) Lucky Gaemea Entectesnsmen Veptures Inc,
i Corbis Valey Corporetion
Thesa el ame engaped m the ading and seling of goods such &5 0k, kano, sweensiakas ann pomch

tickets, o melad hagee. The acquiduon = n e wilh Be Compamy s business srabegy of esparding s
maried raach nahomee.

Smmarizen] bedom ane e Suberdianas of the Compeny and the comesponding pemamags of B8 ownership.

Fergentape of (wnership

e Dirged _ ndivect
Lota Facthc Ledsans Corpodaine Lok’ 10040 -
Lucky Cithe Gorporation ["LCC"* o7 54 2 ¥,
Total Gaming Technakses, Ine. ("TGTIN &g 82 -
Falcan Respucas, Inc. [FRIY- 100,00
TGT] Sandens, Ine. (TGTISN™ 10,00
Athena Yerdumes Ing. [AL1)™ - 100.08]
Avery imegrated Hub inc. (AlHI ™ - B0, 00
Chcie & Garming Yentue, Ine. [CB™ - 100K
Lucky Deal Latama Ine [LLI™ - 100.04
Lucky Foctums Business Vermwes, Ing. [LEVI™ - 100,00
Ly Pich Leisure Club Corp, (LLGG)™ . 00,00
Lucky Venturas Lesum Com. (LLC]™ - 100,08
Lesghky Capmes Endenminment Wenimes [ne.[LGEWIF - 140.04
Cvbis Valley Camporation (WS - 1000

" Wh indirec pwmersinh rounf Lodoes

" indivesty cwned tHhiough TGTY

ey owred Burough LG (cofectivedy mdarmad
o as “nine ovitdies stoing Sy 1, 2010

Fror the year ended Deember 31, 0015, e Company togedher wih its subsidianes (Gmoup”) penersed
P &7 rovihoon Qee=en nevenues, flmarily through lotory pquipment rectaks bk b PC30, ard posted a
FI17.E1 rrubecans Moo ookt A o Cecernbeer 31, 2019 the Growp had tolal as.aats of P17 blion and Esbitien
and ehamdnidets' ety of P1.3 bilign.

Bacicground ot TGT] iy sstment

On Apedl 13, 2004, th Comnpany purchassand 50% of the pulsianding cagital siock of nnovelivg Soiulions
Connttary Group. Corp. {Innovahe), which i 3 jit] shich company ineeporated (0 manoge aonpisss
engraped wn the qaming bumkeas On ey 31, 2004, el in o, accpired B0% of To ouistasding
wapiial sk of Toll Gaming Technologias, Ine. (TGTI), & domestc cofpombon ioursd © Qcinler 2002
o chawion N g ames of e Phllippes gaming industry and Y peovirde congoilancy senvice and stale-of-
the-an e 1 e kcal farming aperatoes trough ds dredegic parinership wity Ikl TGT1 hag
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enleed ivin an Equipmen Laase Aqreemerd (ELA] woh the PCS0 ke e aaliomnde opedalion of e
Coolina Kena (ietialty nefenred t as Fasl Keng) game, A Sharshoklers' Agreement was suscuted whereby
Inrcvatken shall peovite managermerd comnsel and aipertise o TGT] kb amsura poper sxecidion af the
Onlina Keng gama, among others. |1 Aprd 2003, the Company poquined fom Inbrakot sdditional 574,885
shanes of Inedvative b 3 comtract price ol 743 million, This ncreased Bwe COMmpany’s intereae in Innav e
from 50% in 2007 fo B7.26% in 2008 In August 2010, the minorty shanehokders of TGT| and Inncwvative
enfered i 2 conbract whersn M mineiity sharenders. sodd il of their £650 000 common skock b e
Coimpay, part of the concideration of which 1z thal the Company, as contmiing shaeshokhar of TETI, wil
case e craation Of prebérmed slock, of which 3,312 500 prefened shares will be mzued to De mircony
sharchakders of TGTI. The iotal prabarrsd shock of 3,312,500 has baen fuly subsgribed, and of tha s
subscripteon, tha anaunt of P3N 250 has Been perd. Proferrad stock will have 3 par vakee & P1LOD per
share, noc-voling and wil have prrensice in the distnbution of gssets in the event of dissodign. Tn
Docambar 20, 2012, the riayklty ol TG stockhokders and its Boar of Diecios (B0 appmved the
Coiany's. xplcation ko mcreass in fis suthoized capital stock with the SEC hom Fitly Milion Pesos
(P50, O, Q0 (K cirsded ety Forty Milio (40 000, 000) commion thares and Ten MElion [10.000,000]
pre‘emed shaes, both having a pad value aof One Faso (F1.00) per sheoe, b0 Seven Hurdned Mllon Facos
{PT0Q,500,000.00) divided mnfo S Hundned Mairety MBlion (500,000,000} common shares 2nd Ten Milbon
(10000 D00} prefemed shanes, both haviog & por vatee of Cne Pesd (P 1.00) per share, Oa Decamber 20,
2012, tha Company’s BOD approved tye conwersson: of 3 magor porton af its outstandng advances i TGTI
10 the latker's equity. TGTI o the othes hand will comvert a mainr portion of it eutstanding obligation & the
Company friom labilibes to squiy under “Deposi ke ubng stock saberription” acoounl nca ifs appication
10 rcrease wh anthorized capital slock is fiked with the SEC. On Apal 3, 2013, SEC appumied tha raques for
anincresng N authorized capial skock of TOTIL As a result of the convarsion of the advances o TaT] and
the assignrment of Intereatiog’'s TETL shores, the Company owns 1731 milion shares of TGTH, which
increased the Company's interest in TET] k0 99.90%

Hiecen| Doy sopments

In Juty 2019 the Campeny pacted it yearly surellace agdil b 150 77002013 aned IS0 9001715
crixla] by Sockéte Gertere e Soneillance {5G5), e workl's leading irspection, verifcation, |sting
ard cerification company, On Movemndber 18, 20153, e Company obiamed an 50 accrediltion Mmgh
S5 for [SCH 90012008 Craalty Maragemant Sysiers ard IS000EC 27001 -XH 3 bformation Security
klznpgemenl. In 2018, the corificaton ©r P50 Sl 2008 was updsed [0 the 2013 wrnon 363 was
coniracied by ha Company (o provide ancther sarvedlance udit in 200,

Qi Aupersd 1, 2019, the Compamy s ELA with PCS0 was amenderd 1o exlend the tenm fom Aggust 1, 2013
up ko Juby 31, 20X The ELA may, however, b subec tn anciher edenson shoukt e bding kor the
lziasa of 3 new ol sysiern nod be held bekore e 1erminalion dais,

QnJuty 37, 2119, e HﬁhrﬂuihPhﬂm.wlmm of PCST games - iovtn, keno, relam
sofuith frkets and Smesl-Town Loftery (STL), The auspermsion wes gvertually (ifed on July 31 T oo,
September 1 dor STL and Seplembes 27 kv keno el instan! scrakch ooests.

O Fedwuary 13, 2020, the Cormpemy and LofoPae el 1005 of LCC In gt of the need for the Company
i P o e Cone DUSinass,

Agresmants wirh Bha PRilippine Gty Sweesiakey Ofos [PCED)

PCS0 ks e pncDel oWemimenl Apordy for “ratsing and proviing mds for fealh programs, medical
strtatie and safvices, ahl charties of nalional characker” by maate of hobdag afed codoctag dhasty
eiewptia raras and Keiteen. [LalS0 angages in haalil e weRam-relbbed iesstresobs, o oechs, and
aclivities i provice e sermane and coaimuiny sources of nds loe s progrs,



Pacifc Onlice's Agresmanits with PCED
The Equysment Lesse Agneement (ELA) was awanded & Pache Onkne on Movermber 23, 1995 wherety

the PCE0 leases onling kallery expaipmond rom ha Compeny bor ds VISMIN nth opersions.

D04 ELA The wmtiad ELA a5 amarded on February 13, 2004, sfows (he Company ko corfinue (o depiy
il i botty berTTaE A e Caogin] redacns . Cesmerad ks of B amanded ELA and AR sipulshe @ certam
prargant shane by t Cornpany of 2l POSO sabes foem the conduct of ondlne ktte games in the YFSMIN area
and a by of exghl (8] years commentng tom the date of commorcial opatations of ha Company.
Commarclal oporalion, 35 smended, was defind 1o ba tha operaton of not ess than 500 lotha keminsds,
Howrwer, cormmedsial oparaton was krnally sfieced on Aprl 1, 2005, setting tha 1em of the Company's
ELA wp 10 2013, e 3 e PSSO hadd actuaky bequn cperabons of the Compeny’™s onlics il s
Firca 1996, The delay i the deplymend of the sequired number of terminals 10 corstitue Sommete|
gperation was manty dus b STong oppositan from reiows. cecior eacers and cartan Local Govemment
Uni {LGLN efficiets dunng the mimductony pheace and due 10 dee absencs of Iacommannic-alons Seqvice in
ity aeas b VISMIN. Thus, Is ELA oo e et of nol e M SO0 bt berrransks, garitty o iber
siysiem, commiskations and dray equipment, and the righl 1o 158 the appiication softwame znd manuaks
For thas rentral compdher sysam of PCED for s VIZMIN operstions For 3 penod of sighl years Eom Apf 1,
2005 m March 31, 2013,

2013 Amended ELA. On May 22, 2012, The Company and PCEO arrended comlaen prowvesons of the ELA I
v v e O Ahe oo Grminats for VISMIN operations and o fee e of oo il for Lo
PETAIONE Fliectve June 1, 2012, The ELA powedes PCSO an opion 1) purthaze e ogquipment relabed
10 5 /15N operations =t the end of the laase perod for 3 s of P45 milbon. Lol terminats for PGS0
Lo ol e ok acduriend i T~ Ciption ko Purchese™ prowision of te emended ELA. [0 sconedsnce
‘with Lhe s af the ELA, e Company als0 prowdss mainienavice and Mnr scrvces e whash wae
e 1 e rental e a5 part of Le e remal raie proviion of e amended ELA.

20 Arerding ELA. Om Warsh 28, 2013, the Compary and PGS0 further amended some provigions of e
ELA, whach exferched A from Manch 21, 243 10 Judy 31, 715, in beu af tha PCSD apbon 1o parthaws the
equpmen, the Compay A 1 mates the mnlal e for VISMAN and wih e approv iy senica
PCS0 S Luzon lolin cperplbors, The smardme akg incomoried e fee for the supoly of bel sk and
Gcoed. prapey ol for (ho PCECTS WS (M and Luona perations 35 pant o e rental e,

L0119 Arreched ELA O Juby 15, 2075, e Company and PCSD Arther amanted socier provisions of the
ELA, which exmnded & Foem Auwus, 1, 2015 o Juty 31, 2098, Tha amendment sieo nquirsd Bw Company
oy el an adeitenal PS million ceech bond 10 muaranlee e ordarmpored war and operation of he bikery
EYESE, AL epEpameTH, Seveers, et coneruraction ard Exminats

The rerid lee. presenied as "Equipmeant renta in the comolidalpd stalements of income, is based oo
percenilage of groes mdled of labio bokels fom PCEO's YISMIM snd Luzon operstions or a faed anousl
reeal of P35.000 pear tiwmrinal, whichencor s higher, Thes rovers tha sduismentt rantsl of oo emmires,
contral COMPUEr and Cormunicaions, equipment ncuding the acomeaios and aght (o use the appication
e the cental compuier sys'en), mEmina and diw equipmend, and mainkenance and repar

2015 Amended ELA On Geplernber 12, 2016, the £L4 was further amenchad (o exmnd the b o July
3, 2018 b At 1, X018 2 3 rexhuced reie. The amerdmen] gl meguved e Campey I noease G
iffial caesh bond foer PS5 million to P12 millon, 0 guarankss (he Lnfatrpemsd vse ard gpanation of the
ey S yBtem, drciuding ecpiprment, servers, nemwOn Commuesaton and Ermnai

218 Amendod ELA. On Augus! 1, 2019, Me ELY wars amonded 1o extend the form from August 1, 2010 ko
Sty 31, 2020,

The rental 6, presersed 35 ‘Equgrnend renlal in tha corsolidete:d starmants of ineame, b hasad on
peorcEmigne of gracs sakics of £ Wekets rom PR YISMN and Luzon opersbors o a Sosd seacl
rental of PI15.000 per eminal, whicheyver is hagher, Ths covers Ue souipmen rentpl of il Erminals,

4



canbral oompuler ard comurunie o equipmen, including Te atckssonat and mght o use the apphcation
poftwetnm, the centmel compuaier sysie. brminat el e enuepreell, and manbeance and repEr
SEMICHS.

Insdant Seradet Tackae. On Mamch 25, 2000, the Company entensd i a non-oxchee Mamorndum of
Agreemenl (MOA) with PCSO by the pntng, distribaefion and saba of inslan] scredch tickets ofecie
Drecember 1, 2000, The shars ol PCS0 5 quaranbesd ko every SO0 millon ickist s B a panod o sessn
years fom: the date ol the WOA's efectivily. The MOA regquined 3 PO milion ¢oxth bond 0 e depasskad in
ar I rost-ha Aring bk 300040 deigneted by PCEO 5 guarsniee 1he paymend of Al pres i sach Sas
ol Uckets disribumed, for 8 pericd of seven years from (he dade of inftial oneh of e irstant Lokt and shal
b2 rreainfainGsd Lo s with this MCA, Saird cash hard is 11 2n et aocount wilh BO0 smnda Lanuany
2010 o] was aubwrizad by PCS0 for redease in Movember ZH1E

on kiarh 31, 2015 te Compony endered e an Outsourang Memorandurn of Agreomes (OWCOA) with
Prwerbal Gaming and Exteriainment Comeration (PGEC) 1o be e exclusive marketng, dmitagion,
sling arvd colacting agert of the Company for it insiand sorsteh bokets throughout e Prulpoines. The
agrezrmery ook affec] on Apl 1, A5 ard has encked on Movember 30, 2016,

I Sy 2016, fen Company ambarod ol 3 Brand awd Tradomoh, Licanea Agraamend with Poworball
Warketing & Logietics: Cap {FMLC) grafling Me BT 4 mor-asaaiabls, nooHirersibretin and el mhe
SN 0 use of e Parel Compary's rstand soaich chets Bramds ond Trademaks. The agmsmanit has
An il herm of fhee (5} pRars sechve on Jamueey 1, N6, Subweed to S jusire b coalomm i ad onifcige
with the ke of Bw PRLC': agfoemend with PGSO for M supily o didribafion of s nalad seraich
forets. The conskdoraion [ a quaranied faed monthly e, PRILC & mob rettricied By deovion B own
Drand .

TGTI's Equipiveet Lo Agrsermem [ELA )
M ELA. TST! awmened inba an ELA wih PCSO on Al 6, S, which prowides for T ey of e
equiprmit ior PCSCY: anline ke cimes The leass & or 3 period of tan 4100 yery commencing o e
dais of acher commacial operalion: of at kexsl AWK ciine keno DuBsls. The rontal foe s hesed oo A
pamavTiage of M it Sakys o e onlice e fermials o 4 hred anngal rendal of P 000 per feminal
an Cormmial ooesraEtion, whictever s Higher,

20 Amended ELA. On July 15, 2008, TGT] and PCSO ageend o some amendiments e e 14, Lnger
ey s of B Ameecied FLA, TGTI shaldl prosacke (e services of elecommunicabom integrator aned
procume Suppkas lor g cniine kenD operaniora of PSSO in Luron: and VI ShilM aneas. [n oorbiceraon &
such sarvicas, PCS0 shall pay ecdbional kod Based on & callain perceriage of e (s sales Lom af
Sl keno [emenats in operation in Luzon and ViskMMN sees compuked Dy PC 50 and pepalin b mesidy
Com el aperadcns for onling ke comemenced on Oomsher 1, 2010 and €14 tem el on Septamber
30, XX

F019 Amennied ELA On Ormber 1, 2013, the ELA ws amonded o & owsr feass obe, wolusive of VAT,
Tre miniewm price perFano bed was reducad Fom Twedee Pesos (P12 00} b Ten Pasas (PA0.00), inch s
of D5T.

LEC Agency Agresra

L0 ke iRk A -y agancy pgreamen will PCR0 G every bl cullet it apens o apetdle, Agency
8o st o it 26t et bermmiinals e paecuted sepately ol Afiorent s, Theee agrsments oe
enewd by PC30 parden) payrnent of M requred sursly tond ad compltary with e et a0
aondiinns of e Agency Agreermnl. Tha came vme of agency agreemer with PC30 is onered nin by
the 9 companess thal | OO aequbred in 2017,



Lapwsmnmint Requlaton and Emyrrmental Comgliance

The Company doen mol need any gowsmmeal approvel B its prinzipal prdudls or sEMICeE BNCE FE

busingss 15 1 the dessiopment, design and Managemen o oling compuie Sysiors, fEmines and
Eftwcare for e FCS0 and nol i the Grersdion of ha iomery business,

Thwe Compary hees besin Wlly compieant with envrommental requighons and ordinences samd by tha
concermied LAl Govemment Linits (£GLU) and by e Department of Natural Resooms2s (OEMR) 50 far
as dipred of e ek Rardwers, 8CA et and ol budcy ofes s U paiees are concemed,
pursiegrd (o he Regabiic. Al 003 Ecolonical Sold Warhs kanapymen, At of 2000,

Tchnokagy Devsoomert. SUpply and Servicr Contracts

From 1965 to 2005, the Compamy Rad provided tha FCS0 A singee inkeqraled system ko s oline ooy
aperatorm wsing 1he GTECH Legacy sysbemn. fin 2005, e Company devided 10 contrect Soemtifc Games
o provide itz nénw AEGIS™Y sysiem, efler heving acsesmed the oboolescence of ZTECHS inllery system
yrresirucre. Cn Mowember 2, 2000, the Cormpery mplemenixd te migratcon om te Legacy by
Systam oo U aw AEGIS™ Sysem. [0 206, tha Company et it 2ot conbac] with Irirsol,
Tor tve prowhgeon of another new Sysem wsing e LOTOSE appieation softwan. Since Decembes 2005,
hangiors, e Cormgmamy hat beant prowiding e PCS0 3 c-netwock aysiem for its VISMIN oaline il
Operabies.

Hardry] b () b IBiTery' Sysiedms mnming in parslel has expanded the evallabity of e EmMnal
nalinfidde and peovides a salety nel or FOSOS pperalions. The naw Rchmobdgy Ay heips prowide
varsahiy in conngcivty gven L counidy's hpbad ebecommunications nseork. Thete syskwhs ana
sapable of opevafing naticewile though GPRS, LTE, WEAT and DSL echaciagy which offer drentiy m
PTiking CROOrTs 40 Sies wserwcadtie by sheilt B Ecommurt Sion providens. Terming! connesiaty is
mow 2 IM easler due it compatbliny of 1he iiery eTminals with widespeed mobig phore ool 585 N
VIS, Crdine ety in VISRIN it now avattabin whenever thers &5 a ool she of Giobe and Smart
Tedecomes, &= well 32 Y50A T amaies ko e neachiahie by GloGe and Sman

Scharithhe Gaerg

Slenlibs Games (5G] is a tap provider in the plobe iottery and raqulaiad gaming industies. 1 has. over 40
waiars ol garrc] and Wiy #upanence in over six continenls. On February 15, 20046, tha Company, anfend
mio a Supply and Servace Conlract with S5 for the provision of 3 new system. AEGIS™. Cn Hovamber 20,
2006, the Cormpany migrated ko the new AEGIE™ Systern. Under hw terms of the Contract, Scierdific
Geuis will peovvide the Company with Extremad: bermingis 5 well a¢ the mquired Sainig necessany ky 4s
cpersticn. [mcorskdaration af tha leregoing, The Company shall pay Scianitthe Gamas 3 pro-agreed rabe of
s rwane from Che conduct of online lothary garmes nrning under the sysbem pmvidad by Sciontifi; Games.
This Coniract was amanded in 2012 1 sitend the period tn Aaqust 31, 2015 and prowide for it sunply of
Aditional obin eammnalfs. in Noyvernber 2015, the Company and 5G faribar arended the contrmct W axtend
the: penod i July 312018, In October 2013, e conlres! wis again ameaded kb gtend the pancd thiy
duty 31, 2015 The sarme confrach was sonended through Juby 31, 2080

33 was als onbractsd by (e Company by poird e lnstant sered BEkeds oncer its WO@ with PCS0 for
it nagrmwiche DEtant boel o rac mm 2008 tho 2076,

lilf:_t)|

|rtraied 5.4, {Intredol] & & company incoparated uider the eas of Greece and is one of (e g gaming
Syatesns grovcer giobally and oo in geer 55 jurisdictions. On Mamh 13, 2006, the Camgasy emsnad
i & oontract with Intaked B the suppdy of equipmant moceesary for e opsralon o 3 new onling kot
syiem sfectve Devpmbee 8, 2008 Lnder the s of the camract, Iniraic will provide the Company wih
the COMpurtar Raajwaay, T o b us Intraial's Lolery Applealon Softwam consisting of the softwars
paicnm, LOTOSR Aoplcation Softwme, s the Games Apphcation Softwane, the erminas 25 wel 25 the



requirey iraining mecersary Ko operate e syskon, Beced on the emended contrac sigrmed on Juky 7, 2005,
raled witl provide the Company wih Covoneg HEE teaminals, In eonsideralion of the loregaing, the
C.mpmrﬂmwhhﬂ:tam—mm&ir&ladhm&mwﬂﬂhtﬂmmmmmm
af onkne ol and digh gemess runnang. on A5 gystemor a faed b per termingl per month, whichaver e
migher. I Aorl 2016, me Campary and Intrait sgreed bo grezd e conlract ior Ue latter 10 SUPGAy
addimonal ot terminals o e kmed and ey ha berm ol tha contract wnlil Awgqust 31, 2018, In
Senveynber 201E, the conyact, with Inbrsat 'wes a0 emended to exend re bem untl Axgus 31, 2019,
Tha sarna contract was sxterded Brough July 31, 2020,

O Judy 101, 2008, kmrainl emred |nio an agresment wdh its subeal gy, Imraiol InG., 3 compuny domcid
in AlEna, Geomla, thragh which Infrake] asegrend wack: of e contrac), mchadng &l its fghts Bad
bl Afidney from ils aoe subsitary. T oo 1 co-terminms with the Comyeamy's ELA with
PCEQ

Inirai] is Bl O Syt & oo providar for TGT), e Company's swlmadiary Bet has the ELA
with PCS0 o s online Yoo opemalions, On Aprl 1. 2004, TET| aademed mio 3 condrac with il b the
suppdy of tha system and aquipraont for PCS0's onling kong ioftery aperations. Imradol shal ba paid based
o0 3 e-agpheed percantage of mvenoes pencrted by the keno teeminals. Wi 2008, e contract was
amended 10 charge e calculaon of amoudls fe ntrbt 1 e basad o0 a pencentsgs ¢ groas receipls
of PCSO fromn s ording kane gamas. Om March 1. 20171, the contract e further acended for Intrakal to
supphy adtional keno keerminais ko TGTI mmugh wear 2020 and reduce (e prmertage changed 1 TGT] o
f e fem por tormimad par ralh, o 30 Averags bis, whichewer i higher.

Tha Philippine Loftsry Secor

The Phillppios Intery secior & raguiaiesd by Me PCS0, 3 gowernnmean b=mmsd snd oonrolled cparatgn tal
wes ceaiod prmardy D mse funds for Mealth end chaty prodeaeme of e govemment. i mgulaes e
ey ] other games. of chance in grder b proled] cavain Sactons of scclety, ecpecially he yout. (s
eratirraabod Mt B eminy] ko 0 e Proippimes 5 worth over P100 billce per pear, ard ihegal qaming
acgimts for bl of ety garng irndusipy meamuds.

Fnrmrmmﬁmlmmﬂm,ﬂmha:ﬁh:ﬂﬁwqﬂiushadhn&nﬂ'ﬁhﬂ!mrmuf
funda for he POSC. This changad in 1955, when PCS0 lmnchad e very el online o i the
Failippires. This innowation brought in 4 eew dimension of n and exstoment b e DEming pobic.

Afhough thets are many bypes of loiery games, workdwide, e Phappine govarmmment-suthonzed ietenes
¢an peneraty be malepired it hese g e fonsl sweopslakes, inskant soraich teke s, onling ok,
onlne keng (Lobtn Exprest) and Small Tewn Loty (STL). The Company has parmered with PCS0r 0
As inffery prodduchs evcepl b STL

Tha PGS0 online oo games ane bacically two {7) types; | 2., jackpot draw and digi games. The winning
rusmhens lor jacped draw and diit games ang daternened by a draw machine  For these ot games,
players purchase tckats from PGS0 authorzed retol outels md wait ke the Adurs deeming of prims. The
jachpd draw gommes have thiee draws 4 week, whiba digit games have three doenws dady. Do Kb jackpot
prizes arm ganecaly pad-muobedl o based on tha member of winnes and amourt of telal sales. peveralad
frar game 3 ther time of sraw. Lotio digd games and ¥eno pines ang tased on & fixed odds Gayout i,
which choes ool Rty on tha nomber of playars and waaners pey draw. For onkne kana, winnmng number; ane
dramart via An Random Sharbar Genetatef (RNEG) peogram and has. deaws every ten [10) mowsaea on a daily
Dexnrs.

Cunually, e PCSO online Iotm poriola ovnskts of e [S) pckpat draw garmes and fout (4] digit ganes.
The jackpol drow games ats: M2 Lofo, A5 ega Loflo, B48 Guper Lotm, 655 Grerdd Lot amd &%
1Fra Lot; while he digit games are: 20 of E22, 30 or Swermmes Lotto, 40 and &0, Al of te rine: (1 Infio
games operaled by (e PCSO0 sm plaped in Luzon, while only el (B) gatrabd 209 Beany plinrsd bn '] SMIN.



The &g game i playsd n Lucon ondy, bt wil be avaiabi in VISME 0 2020, Medficatons and
enhancermenis of exicling games andior EBw inloduction of new games any dreched Yy the PCS0

Instan saich bckets, on the ofer hend, 3r fypicalty peagesd by Sordching off s aafae of 3 xay cosed
kel i meved o spaciie [afem of s, charssiers, polures, or spmboy fhal gomegeed b a prize
o] i Beker i 3 winner. Thiz Hlayae will kncw immeadusieky f tha lickel wans 3 priza of nol mstant reich
Lekats fika tn Tradiors Seescnciatam Fares 3 fiznd-cods prisa situchoe

The Geroups Qnling Loty Oparstions and Produch

A5 of Decamter 31, X118, tha Compamy ogefer with is subseiary TG, had g 5,800 ofery eeminals
irratalked Aol AN Onling Etery Eominak cabad in PCSC sumontzod felall olfets ane oabingdky
tonnactad ke PCSOTS cantral compwder sysiem thal enables real fme reconding and mondionng of ioteey
S, arml walkdatim of wining Beiets.

Rairle from it rernibee of ioteey ferminads depayed, mlal PCS0 online Inftery sk dapend Bghy on Te
averona paiea pengretad by e varous ol bty famee b, The Tt bealw sl P i
koo amoues o e drew equencies of s oifferert oo Jomes SUnnormed by Te Company.

Lotto Ggmg My m Jackped Drgr F g v
BMNZ Lotte ., . PG IKKG0 Ju e - Wordays, ‘Wedresdays rel Saurjeys
645 Mena Lndin .. P8,000.000 3x aweet - Moleys, Wednesdeys, ard Fridays
849 Super Lot . P 16,000,000 3x & week - Tugsdays, Thirsdays, and Surdays
655 Grand Lomn. . [SRTR I ] 1c 3w - Mordeys, Yedrecday and Sanindays
G158 Elra Lomm. .. P 50,000,000 3% o woek - Tuesdaye, Froays and Sundays
0 Lo, ... F 10,000 Tx 2 week - Moreys, Yednesdays, ard Fridays
KJT. T P 45O Thrice dady
Dlom. .., P 4,000 Thrice day

I % cormmatragnd b suppod PC30s affams o olactvaly meat e dermands of is changing mared, e
Compeny sent 3 bl of PAEY.T milkon o 2017 o 2019 & iy devetonmen activies broten down 35
Iolkows;

{in MHtkon Fesos) 2018 215 FLlkd
Dy plopamear. MeTviiatt 2040 Hz a2 h
Ve 96894 1,935.4 2340
% of REvenues PR 1 5% 10 %
arkal Peeefil &

Apmemaiely 7% of PLSD Do sl naloimerk: wits gemrgiad by Luxta operations, and abou 269 of
Al 8 cormmibuiad by (he VISMIN regicas for the yoar emoed 2% This moay bo foe 6 Lozors higher
popabon dermity, and higher average deposahks Incame of residents.  Onothe olber hand, e YISKIM
arma bred sorme challbnges de 0 ils geography, mors fedquent pewer Dt arel inkormoten o
CormEciry.

A% of T et oF 0185, be Company's el terminad deploy ment in YISKHN iy coreeved 67 cllien oot of
T2 bolad cligs e 562 mwnicipaiitiey oul of [odal 751, In Luzon, e Corngzany's kailn torminad depioymme il
terveret 52 olies 2 74 municipaities. Tha Campany covers 100% of fa VISULN wxiee s trly ™% In
Luran s b A8 reetricodd armry since M2



Canam pertition,

Tha Company expects tha agdressive push by Smal Town Loy (STL) and the prevasence of diegal
gaibling particulady in interior townd and resnabe aress 10 conbnueg o poee compatilion 1o its online kot
revenUes, This maoatly aflects 1he Yshin region due 1o the popatarity of (e digit games. YWith e cemawal
of e bpgad Upendieneanit Sor the Company 10 provida kot ecquipmend i Luzon, te Company expectt (b
aoped B ogoradicnes in Luzon, whern e addibonal revenues can oMae! the loat saies in VisMin due [D
STL.

Capankcation sl Wi i

P o Dopceamibert 31, 2015 the Groug had @ tolal of 721 ermployess, of wivich, 574 belong o Operatons and
AT ware afmirecTratee and olher sLpoor pereonned.  Mone of the empioyees of e Company kv
orpanizes] Menrsiivet mio a0y o anion. The Comeany sien pmoiles 9 emplorees akitona benefis
Ak 2 Fevalth card, 0 o Scrkoenl MeUrancs, rabnereent plan, ey and desEomenl prograans, and
wil NS [ITRYFATHS, SN MR,

The Compeny beliers: Mad it hay maintsine] balancod rolationsh s with e rank and e and doas ol
anticipate mmy |Ebor-management isssas b aise e e near lerm, The Company bolewes thal s
ralaforshing with i emplovees heve been cons s ety pocd and productve.

LT

Some ol te risks ket Te Company and ks aulbmddiaries mey b expased b 22 1he olowing:
1. Gerers Rigrs

Cherges n e govemmen and PCS0 sdmamistration may resull o changes n polcies and e way
thal ouch polcier ap impiememed, shech may e {eworabie or uniovoralie 10 e Company, New
bag(alate nubs resErding Gkes o ey preducts Raed A IMEewT! N S0R0E A% wel.

Enviranmental and revtural disagters e oo afect he ofsratons @ 2 paficulsr area.
£, Fmks Rolaieag 10 the Equeament Laase Agreemenl (ELA with PCSD

The Compeny's ELA with FCSO & sumenty on an annual basis becaums of the Taled tedding v 2018
o it national onling komery spatem (MOLS). This means hat he Campany il kave 1 cominee 1o
opergla Unifar The cumer! ELA kerms bayand Juy XEXD; Lo, wives PCED ks abin by hoid 45 Baddg,
gward the new ELA cantract ard yadamake 3 fraeation fom he: curmend Bitery sysiem 10 TR néw
syslem. Shook the PCE0 hidding lor NOLS be held in 2020, the Company is 'wed poeitiomad to be 3
ool rune an sai Didking chus b its credentiate: e irack meoord. Bur shookd POSGC rod win e bid, |t
S Mol Ly that the Company's ot wih PCSO sl be axlented for anolhes 2 vears dee @ te
traersition perod recuirsd for 3 e service proviter 1o ke gver e MOLS,

3. Rishs Ralabng ip (e Company and its Subsadianes

& Depaeherce on Suppieers

The Company's IGery Dperatins s anchomd o 3 tvo-sysTm netwerk. The Compamy Fas eiling
contracts, asch distinet arol antercd fo sefafabely, with beo SO0 laaders i e OMery elustry,
namety Seiemihe (ames and imorakat, for e supply of compimen supponed ey gaming Ky,
In e evant hat Gw Conimaols, whethe: colectely O adivduslly, ane Ermbtesed o sactponcded,
operaions and tursness of e Compary may b mpaned.



b, Busmess nfemuphon Risk

The operations o the Company and s subsidianas are dependent on the retiahdty of its cowral
COMpUteT Syrsdem 3nd thi commuratabons nfastruciune needad b run b Any brsaldown or l2ure in
tha Srstent provickad By it SLpphers o Tilune in the communicalion nfréstruciune may negaiivety afiect
the Comgeuny™s Snancial parformance, However. s qis) of business intermupton i urilkely 1 happea
due kb the mdundancy offered by e two suppliers. The commeoications inbastruchire s being
praviced maznly by the two Biggeal tehi provicers. m U coundry, nammly: PLOT St and Glabe, The
Company ala confragted WSAT %0 provide coonectiviy W stes where Smen and Globe are not
LT

fem 2 Properties

The Company's cnlea EAECY ofsarabons am conducksd mainhy in Cebu, whes its central sysism data conker
ol IEeris canbar am orated. 1 aks has sl o T iegesfics s in 7 magoe Wishin cifiey K onsie eficient
sorvea dotuary 1 T PCE0 ndlery apents. Tha Company Head Oflice s ioeamed In Pasig City.,

There 8re no real proerhes coersd Ard v 20 0o ks B U thenn o T e Baestve ( 12] imiceths.
Tha Campany, kgedher with £9 cubsitianen kease all of &z date center, bgistics cepters and huba. nd
buminess officss, Theds properas a0 fal Meckepsd noc Sie e Sty s sl sconboescoin that it
ownership or vsege of he sane.

The eased proparias for business offoea, data center, kgistcs fciities, and retal putes reached ahout
B.A72 sqm by year end 2018, About 67% of thasa propemios ae incaded L0 Eumn, and 33% in Vs,
Maparity of tha propevtes o Luzon arm kund o el Manta whis those in Vishin are in Cebu. The togistics
Caniers’ aneAs are sbotl ) 491 sqm in Dral, with § 533 sqrrin Cebe and 1958 som n Metm Manda. Leass
beerms fov gl office and wanshouss spacas renge fom bwo (2) ko saven (7] yeas. Majodty of leased
Epacers perianicg b relad putiets have one (1] vear wase b only a5 dictalnd by mall leasing poficies. A3
iedse agreements have proviedons For renevwal cubiect b e and coadions muiualy sgeeed wpon by =
parties Concemed, The lease GRreamals proada for mnarem (ank commitnen] with acrgwsl ekl
staladon raes ranging bom 3% o 10% . Pent expense charped bo operaton amounted t PBE.1 mlan s
219, P126.6 million in 2018 and PA7_1 millon n 2017,

The Company's major 2ssets, am loery equipmen, whith consisls manmty of otery ermats, doa Centee
rinprranl, sofware and oprating mysiems. The aquipment provided by e Comgany o POSO b o
inttery opemliond Sow JwErnbed under 1he “Busipess” section.

Fem 3 Legal Procesdings

1. “THMA Group of Companies, et o1, va. Prifippine Charity Swespsiakes Ofica (PCEC], o al.
BT 66, Maurti City- Civil Gang Mo, 11-310V569 [124-108]

This it & complaint fov spechc paesnanca and damages Tied by TMA Ausirada Py, Ltd. and its local
subsidtary, TMA Grwp Fhilippmes, Inc [TMAP), aganst PCS0 as reqards thait cortract ke bhe supply of
kot paped. The oirplanants sutdequerly smended (e compian 1 Incods Pacrfic Onboe and
Fhiippne Ganung Managsmend Corporadion (PGWC) as deferdants. They prayed ke & banporany
resiraining order andéor writ of prekminary injunclion toenjom & debsndants om domng anything in nalaton
of cherogaion of the contractual terms of the Joint Vaniune Agreament [JWA) Fated December 4 3008 fr
the supoly of Io00 paper. bo damapes wene praved ke agans! Pacific Ondne. On June 22, 2017, a Hotice
of Ctismeesal daled e 15, 2017 wes recetved kom TWAP praying for the: disrmissal of the Sugpemanial
Complainl againgl Facic Onfine pursgant ko Sechon 1 of Fule 17, Mo objatton was mierposed o andipr
SOTHTENE Ot the Natics of Disrbssal Thus, i an Oncer deted June 260, 2017, Bk court dismbssed B case
anairs] Pacthc Online.
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2, “TMA Ausirwlla Ply. Ltd And THA Group Prikppines, Inc. v. Pacific Onlina.
HTC 65, Paalg Ciry-Chvll Case %o, B-P30-17-02130 [301-108]

Thes: re%ers I & complant for Torgus Imerevence and paymen o Damapes Red by T, Aushaks Pry.
Lkt ared Tivets, Phalppines (e “Thi8 Group”) ageins] Pachic Orne 10 Augled X017, The T Groug: sheped
thet Paxzific. Onking wrorgpfully interkered with the beplemantation of the Comfrachual Joimt Yonbum Agreemant
(T behmson the Thb Getu and PG00 when IEantered i sevenl equipmer, Exs agreemenis wih
the Lator 1t incheted 3 Fupply of paper provigion. The Thid Geoup ateo applied ke a weil of preliminary
injunchion (WF ) agaiest Pacie Onllne and praged fur damages in te smeant of af keast Coe Mlion Pt
4P 1,00 00,001,

Cn 21 Marth 2018, he FTC granted the TWA Group's apphcation for WP, emaning Pacfie Onling from
crrtinuirg to celiver lotio paper ko P50, Prior o te issuance of te WEI howea, Pacihe Crling airaady
comphated deivery of all remaining kodo paper requimens onder s ELA with P30 Tres, Be WP
ebixired by the TMA Group did not really Rz any adverse sffect on Pacikc Online. Mewerheleo, Facdi:
Onilrez 3l mowerd bor e reconsideralion of the RTC's Orded gramting B WL The RTC hat it o resodve
iz hiobon.

During 1he medixden procsedegs o e case, Pacifc Online and b TWA Grous agreed, o princs, (o
an amicable settierment and 3 o in e pmcess o drafling & Compromis Agrearment

3. "Philippine Charly Susepyakas Ofica, otal. v, bon, Rommel C. Baybay o al.”
G GR 3P No. 126269 [£21. 051,

This casa ghse when Judge Rommel Baybay of RTC-Makati, B, 143y Cial Case 12.530. pronted
FOMC's appication }e BEnclion enjoining Pacilc Onling kom leasing 5 equipment for PCS0's online
lottery cperations in Lizon. On Sapternber 5, 2012, a Weit of Prafiminary Inpmctoon |Injunction) was seued
by Bramch 143 of tha Redeonal Trial Coat (RTC) of Makati. The Injunction omers PGS0 kg refrain fom 1)
irnpigmenTiing, BTG o execicing 3y right ancing Fom the A0F2 ELA botwaon the Pacfic Onbng and
PLS0 2Y ordenns o alkowing the Pacifie Onlna, o amy thed party, 1 install or operale vy equipme,
COMpUET of berminml nefating 30 orlina ey opstalions ™ Luzon, and 3h committing any ack that in any
way wiolalat of offerbs mbedanes with Ihe ELA between PGMC and PCS0, Pacic Onlme fed a cace
wilh e Supnaree Coud 1o aufidy the ngunction, FCSO aso fled & case with 1he Cowt of Appecks ikewise
questining e Ipmction On Juby 17, 2013, the Supreme Counl decided that the cass beyugh by Pacshc
Driing b consotdated with Ihe cace betwess FGMC and PUS0 i the Comt of Appeals. Murs maiking
Facific Orling 3 party b the casa bafora the: Cowt of Appoaks.

Wieormwhie, PGWC Brd FEED srtered i 30 inbsim Seltemen whereby ey anead, among others. b
mairtain the staiua qua irsolar 33 the rminaks ooy inchalied m Luzon by Pacis, Ol 3 concemed,
Im B Sarme nbenm Seipemenl FoMC and PCSD sy sqreed 10 submit to athiration bekore D
Inbermatnnal Court of Artlration (ICA) e B of e sligid sachetiiTy ormked s by the ELA 3 PGMC
For anline ioho operalans in Luzon. Pacc Onine e o pn (he arbyvirsion bl s Beguesd kx Arbmraton
darend May 12, 2014 was denied by the ICA on July 17, 2014, due ko PCSO's oppastion. An Lirgan Mobon
ho resabve: wzs Med by Pacile: Orbing with the Courl of Appeal i compel the cout o i9sue an order (o
PORC ad PCED b Inchde Pacte Onling in the nagotialon:  This. matted was not resokod by o Courl
o Appaas

On Lanuery 20 WHE, PCS0 filed 3 anilesmbon wih Moton 1o Dismiss dabed Jmoary 12, 2016 with RTC
of Maral, siefing {hal e presideg Judgs egpmved PGRC and PCSM “Intefm Sotoment” dated
Decombear 11, 203 wheredn it was epnetd Ehal the cass will be arited parding amlation. PGSO sy
vemad hal on Oecember 13, 2013, POMC and PCS0 emeculsd 2 “Supplemental ad Stahs Cuo
Agroomert” whemein I parios agreed i diunies af pencting dicial and civil ections between them bl
shall continue with Ihe arbiraban prorsedings, Thug, pursusnd fo said agreement, PCSO withdoe its
Petitien for Corfiora it ha Com of Apreats, which was qremed by virte of the Fasolstion daved Merh t,
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2016, PCSD aiso praved For te dmicss of me RTC ¢ag2. bl this was demexd by the RTC Mok alter
PEAC appesed PCS0'2 et 10 diberiess.

In the maamdre, te Colrt af Appaakt nequied the partias ko fike their respective Memarsada in the o,
On Sapdernber 13, 2017, Baciic Onlner fled its Memorandum, PCS0 oplod el 0 fe ds-0wn Memcrandum,
bt mrutestind irrsbead that it was adopting the Memorandum of Pacific Onkee. On Jamery 3, 2018, Pacdic
Cifing's counse] recetved a Decision by the Caurt of Appaals dated Decamber 17, 5018 deamissing Pacfic
Ontine's. Petition for Certioran and Prohibibon. Pacific Onliee gecided ko nd bnger pursue a Molion ke
Reconssderaton bacauss, i & certan axknl, e Petition aineady served its purposa as afar tha same was
filed, the RTC Mokati put on bold the hasty amplerentation of the injunclion. Subsequent avants hawa
Bk ewise rendeied ol tha st in the cace, since. goide iom e K24 aditrtation decision, the ELA at
rstm [n 1he oA has slsn boen amandad and superseded several temas. With these developments, e
advarsa #fiect agans! Pacific Cnling — the reason that this cose was mitialed inthe Art place — s no fonger
aftendant

e 4. Subrdes|on of Mettars 10 a Yot of Security Holders

A specedl ghockholiers' memling was tonvened BS Seplember 25, W18, whenen e Increase in
coapitaliraton o P 268 Eion and amek dhddand of 422 431 B31 shams bt s sharetoidars wens approved.
Sa] spevial slock hodbers' meeting was appmwed by tha BEX dumng e msoling on Augued 14, 2678, The
NCTERAGE i ol thacirey] Capsmallr Ao was appamesd by U 5EC on ety 25, 2079 On March 15, 2019,
Ihe SEC appmved the Rocard Date of Manch 29, 2119 and he Paymest Dats of an or before Apnil 29, 20189
ior LOTO's $005 sinck diveends.
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PART Il - OPERATIOMAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

e 5. Marksd bor Beqhsirant's Commaon Equiby and Ralated Sinck
Imfgrmaticn

The Compeity became 2 isted company with the Ksting of its hares with the PHikomne SEock Exchangs o1
Aprdl 17, X007,

Az o Decrribar 31, 2006, the Company had ar suthonzed capital siook of 500 mition common shares [at
P00 par value), of which 125 25 milfion shares haws been stued and outslarding. On Faboany 9, 2007,
the Company seeed an additicnal 54 mdion shares from ifs authorzed captal ock, increasing (he issued
and Ditsianding shares to 175.25 million shaves. On March 27, 2007, e Comgany offered ity shares for
S0 b0t pbkc trewgh an kil pubke ofening (P with & primary offer of 11,8 milkon comenen shanes
and 3 secondary offst of £ rilon common shames. Prior ip The Offer, thers have been no publc frading
markat for the Company's common shares, On Moweenber 15, 2007, the SEC appmwed the issuance of
5048 rulion common shares from the Company's unissued suthonized capital stock resulting from the
valuation of the deposits lor hutne subsCption as corcideraton for the issuance of sharss, o me ntal
sibecniplion price of PTAL T4 mdlon. On May B, 2008, e BOD approved the alecation ol 2174 milkon
whiwes (o its exacutived and employeas and fo tha officers of Lucky Circa Carporalion [LCCT), which
exircigable over a pefcd of thees years from May &, 2008 untl May &, 2011, The exemise price ol the
oprhon 'was flued o PE.3E per shate. On Wiy 19 2008, grandees of the siock ophions exercised 617 fuusand
shanes of the Compam's siock at PB.BE per share. In 2011 ant 2010, cerlan Qeantees of tha stock opdons
axem3ad 400 thousand shares and 435 fioasand shames begaictnaby, 340 2 PE A par thane.

On July 11, 2006, the BOD suthorizad the Pasor] Cormpasry ) burer Bk yp fo 2,000,000 shaes fmm the
publc a5 a meana af presansng G vaue of e Faer Company's shams and mainlaen] feein
comidencs. |n addron an Coober 14, 2004, fhe BOD apptred 10 exterd its shane buy-back progRm up
ko & o ¢ 10% ol T Parent Company's ourslanding rapilal stock. For e saime masons Gs ahove,
the Company bouaht back 1,476, 000 sheases o 2018 ad 16,771,546 shares In 2017, Tha Camgang i rol
buy bk anw reasury shares in 20719 but the qumbeor of messury shares doubiod 35 a2 el of e etk
divihend.

Tha moyemenis in measury thares are as hlows:

__ Detenhibin 31, MR (ewermibe ¢ 35, 2018
Mumber of Humter of
Shars Ammunl Shares Amour
Aoty 2 beeprwang o
the year P ARE R oy L LR 23755402 PGAG60.7M

EMact of pock diricknt 75,231,492 .
Acquisitions B 1478000 16,5067

Rabarcs ot end of the poar  SO.486,080 P2E5.267 088 25.202497  FPoa8 257 A5

Dby b e

Mz ezsh or ghock dhvdends wers declared in A 4.



r 2018, trea BOD, upen racomenendaton ¢ monagemen], dectwed Fe Eplissing cah drvderad:
2015

Ceclaraion Recom Diaka Fayrment Pet Sham ATraUnt

Al 26,2018 May 42018 May 31, 2018 PO P42 TEAMD
Apr 26, 2018 Auguet 32018 August 31, 2018 B30 128708,

P23 471 225

On Auguest #4, 2016, e BOD decrsd 4 100°% suock dividend g the Campamy's siockholdem. which e
R and Permend dalas wilkbe st Subiect i T appmowdl of the SE of e inaedse in s @ thorized
cmpital stock. The sieck dradend will ba issued ol of e increase in aythorized capial siock. The
decloraton of e sitok dhvidend was approved at the special meeting of the o kholders hald o
Seplemier 25, Mt.

[ 217, e Compeary chckwend cash dimdonds & kllows;

Cheaclorton Ao Date Payment Fer Sham Amcan
My 2 2017 Moy 17, 2017 May 31, 2017 Ao P130,101.92
May 2, 2017 Augus 11, 2017 August 3, 247 B3 130101936

Coember 6, 2017 January 5_ 2018 January 31, 201 .20 B6.TM 61T
P34E 538 459

Cn Auguat 14, 2018, e BOD approved Me pmendment in e Compery's arbcies of waarparaton 1o
TEreass is sy cagital stock bom PS00 mlcn divided ik 500 million comnon shars o F72.288
milion e intg 2, 2608 million comman shares. Tha Ircreacs in the somarived catal sioch, was spermwed
al e spasal meeting of the sockholdars el o0 September 25, 2018, The incease in avthonzed capial
shoc iz panding BORmal of te Sec e andg Erchange Commizmon (SEC) &6 ot Deceamnber 31 2018

Thate e Nt provision in e Company’s chaer of by-lawe thet woyd delay, det8r, of pravent 3 change in
ool of the Compezy.

Black Prites

As of the rading dale, January 1, 2020 the siogks of the Compary cosed at F2.12 por shere The

Company's S0k price was pegoert al 8 high of F2.1% and at 6w of P2.00 a5 of fe 2amse date The slock
prices 55 O quacter and dala e 2019 are & Ellows:

FillEj High  Low
First Ovuowmr 45 4.4
Secnd Cauter 317 30o
Third Chuarier 206 283
Fouth e 8T 145

Ai of December 21, 2019, the Comgany's rmarka! capitalizetion armoanted to P2, 238, 37 355 harard on Bg
chorang, prica of P4 30 pir share.  Likewsse, it marke! capilohzation &5 of Januay 31, 2020 amounted ko
P1,6Be, 101 506 besad on fhe chasing pca of F2 12 per shae,

ik



Sacurfty Heolcen

A5 of Deparmnbear 31, X110, Pacie Grine had 36 shamshoklers, ormaponding Lo ol comman ahened
ritsiencing of 895, 320 %46, The ipg M-skockhokiers 25 of the Same date ane ligked Delow

Hams ] _Ho.of Shares Held *% Yo Total
1. FREMIUM LEISURE CORP. 248 B6080 S 100k
"3 LD NOMINEE CORPORATION 337 41377 335654
3. GCIER, WILLY N. 71,819,350 E.0215
4. ABACUS CONSOLIDATED RESOURCES & 43 761,930 48878
HOLDIHGS, THE. _
5, CRIER WHLLY &/0R GERALDIME E.Y. OCIER 1,439 D00 01607
B 5v. HANS TAN [ 2001, 00 00744
| 7. WS FAMILY FOURHDATICH, INC. ' 450,000 0.0503
(B DCIER, MSCHEL GABEELLEEY, L 390 000 0.0436
8 KILAYKD. GREGORIO U L 000 0.0223
| 10. LIM, MALIRICE D. 100,000 TIF
| 11. BENITEZ, ALFREDOQ . j 68200 0006 |
12 CHAN, CARMELITA . ~ £6, D00 gz
13, VILLANLEWA MYRA F. Y. oedsE
14, CHAN. CARMELITA DL o 33300 0.oa3r
15. TAGUBA LUTILA A 0, 00D 1wz
165 CARCUNE TAHCUAN — 20,000 00022
17, 5T, HAMG JR_ TANCUAN 20,000 ] 00022
1B 5Y, HARVEY CHRISTORHER TANCUAN | 20,000 N3z
10, 5Y, POWARD CONRAD TAMCUAN | 1 20,000 0.0022
M. PEREZ, JOSE DEXTERF. o 16,000 00020

Recent Sais of Linrglsbersd Sacuriton
Thers havs been NG Ak of urnEestored et since 2017,
Widing Rights

At each meeting of the sharchwers, avery sckhakier erditied 10 vote on a parculer QUESTON of MEter
involved shall be endified o one v B8 gach shave of siock Sanding in his name in e books of e
CanTapny 2 e tima of certing of Hwe Urenaber bookup SO Such mseing.

Dibniciend Righre of Common Bharss

Tha Compamy's booed of diecion is suthorized o declars cash, pmpamy, of ok diadends or a
comibination Tereol. A cash dividend decarmion mequires he approrsal of e Board and na Srarshodar
apwoal i necassary A stock divcand declamdenn reduires the agaioval of e Boad ad sharehaders
reposErging Bl leas wo-thims of tee Compsiny's dulstanding capial shock. Hobders of oustanding shares
on B drvicend record date ko such shoes will be entfer) o he hll divicend decismed withoul regard o any
Bubeietuaerd taveh of share. Ofey Man statutory lmiations, thers B 0o resthicions hal linid tha
Comparny frem pay ing dividests on comman eguity.

Appiabal Rights

Az parwidexd fof by (W, By shock holter Shall v 2 i % dissen and demang peyment of e feir yalue
o Rig dhares i e iolowing instances:
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1. Incase any amendment of the arbcies of inmamoration hes B oMt 0l changing o eeimchng te
righls al ary etrck hokees oF chaas of shares, or of BUtharizng prefersnces o any e pect supsior o
theiss of oudedaating =hares of any class, or of axkradli] Of shomEning e bem of coporete
fiihCs,

2. Incase of sale, keame, pachange, teasler, morigage, pledge or ofter dspositon of o st mlally
oM of e comoratn property s ety g poovidad e Coporption Code of fea Phillpoess and;

3. Incasa of meper of cormsoidalion.

Flnancial Gopdilon o

Reaiim of Cperathors and Firemcial ©ondithon

A8 Compared fp 2013

The Groug qenarated takal reweriees From operatng scarces of aboud FBES.ET milbon bor e year ended
Cedpmber 31, 2013, a docreaxcn of PB4E.G midkon {45%] over todal revenues of F1.926 t4lon during the
same peridd i 2018, The dechoasa 0 Fevenie wis dla B Dwer oils saes, whch was canaibalized by the
Conimuing exparsion of Srmall-Town Lotlery (5T, I adddtion, Prassdent Dutenie ordened the suspension
al g1l PGS0 games, which meant st sakes of tour [4) days for kot bwea (2) menms b Boh keno and
instant scraich bickeds, and one (1] month for STL. i also ok sbau three (3] months bekmne nelal sales
et reduned Bo pre-sUspeneion periad for instan sorach ticksts. Furthamiane, Kamo teenies decrsesed
during tha fourh guarler due to reduced ELA mle on bop of much lowar sakes, whoch reuted from
imphementing the Keng toket pade b pra-TRAIM Law teve| wifh kower prize sinacdune.

The Gmoup's ol operating expanses. incuding deprecialion and amatfimtien, e e pear s
Decernter 31, 2019 decreasad by P247.06 miton {15%:) 10 P1.370 biken, kom P1.614 hllion in 2013 Tha
deciease 5 ambued b e klowing:

Famsannal ocogts deoeesed by F31.4 miflion (2% due bo eeza hikng and non-repacemend of
regipe persanne;

Fem and vivioes experse decesed by P53 million [25%) dwe D e sMecl of adopln the
PAS1E:

Congsiftaresy 0 davarsaeed by PL0.E w100} e 1 ey berranaten of & coupla of
T Ot

Software koerrsn Iees detreasad dy PS04 million (30%) due b lower ERTY S5 3 ey
rales negotae-] wilh indrl;

MWanagarmed fews aperas decressed by Pad T odiaon 1005, dua o negate EBITDW;

«  Operaling supplies expense dormedsed by PA04.D millica (6] due ko overall decresse
P Saken for wch Deslics angd Seermeal milks ang St Deng suppbed.

Tre decreased acooymed kv in e omegoing expense spcounts were oftsel mainky by the comdned
irereases of Ihe inlowing SXxpevsn aGchuts:

- Travel and acoormmodation axpeness memsssod by F10.0 miion ¢15%) meainty due o the
AEreasad yolume af ekl wits,

L)



Repars ond maimtenance incraxesd by P04 milion {955%) due i hegiar Egsam parrs oo )
Toua il ST DTl

Alveising A pormten e g pemse incregmend by F9.07 million (23 %) due io updated marketing
colineralt and iy supoor lor Keno and LCC agents dum to e changes ik kM prices
] TS

Taxes omd licanses axpanc ind raaterd by P2.24 milion (109%) te 1o e P4.5 milfion DST paid
o s100 deewdencds esoad o 2015,

Entertzanment and armesangal expenss nomeese] by P9 02 milion {31%) due o increesed
ootheer b inciendl gapermses;

Ortheey incomie (nst of ofher chams) desrored by 21765 rmillign fom Igsl pear's P161.4 millon
{ 109%}, mairty duh L0 B mpsnment ioss of LG ooodwill. mark o maned e on markstiahe
sec1 mties.

The (Hrag's mad loess et 12 2f 731 7.6 ndflicn reprersanbs 2 PE2.T miln {204 %) decine fom Last pesrs
ret incoma of P00 mithon, Tha ipwer fat incore in 2019 wit 3 resull of the 2% drop M overall eaes
a(1mss 2 prooucky

Tods aseats of the Company decneasad by PS5, T rrallkon {18%) ta F1 72 bition as of Oecmber 31 %019,
fromn F2 10 billion 23 of Decembar 31, 2018, Decreases in a5se1s ane eiibutable 1o et ooy

- Cocth dectoter) by P4 miRion (41%) mainly due k omsr revenue in 2015;
Mok atabile securliBs GecTastad by F15.2 mefion {$0%) due to unmaakred mank 40-market loss;

Trace and ather Mcsdyabies-nd Echeited by P12 6 rillon (39%) due mmenly o fhe kower
It e heeonr mabect vt of L e of 2019 pus e lower ELA rale oa ern saies Staeting
Sepior e 219,

Inpestmeant in stocks went down by P08 1 malion (24%) dus fo Iower steck mar poces of
wiverents on hand during 2015 wergps 2018;

Gorhwll fnd INEIi dedreaserd by P17.1 mikion {10080 28 a mgult of the impaamment of
ther LOC and Mine: Ervities gocehwill:

- Retinerabn tevefl doset deocreased by P78 million (1009} due b reclaccieeation i radimmeae
Kabiity account 25 & mesul of higter benalits aron e,

Progery et equipment decmesed by F152.2 mdlon [599%) due to depreciaion of bimy
& umenl A othey' fired assets.

The detmasss i) te imsols ahowe were offsad by T kolowing increases:

Ochef cammart assids increased by PGSR mebwon (487%) dug o pre paymems and aidiona
o hech P et T M

O NONCLUTESTE BBy i Medrbed by PEA.7 rifion (41%) mainky dus b the prepapments of
technical s advisory sevicas pedaineng 1 eofiwas doweloprment;

Talal Laklioes of P35 § mifon ws up by P57 3 milkor {17%; aver (251 years P342,5 milion due prircialy
bt frelcowing

- Loan payebis incrassed fom zem ko #1408 milkon {15300 dee 10 4 P150 mkon ban fom
ASiA |nimeit Eank,

¥



Laaze Kabdity ROLU-cument mcressed by B 1.5 milion {1 009%), dup 1o the efeet of adopting the
nérw ACcoun i stadard FRRS 16- Leasps;

Definad benafl Labwity ncreased by F23 2 milion ifom 0 in 2048 dua to the pomual o
riimemaer) B part s for 3019,

Leasa lighdidy ROUEnancument portian indneassd by PE.2 mdion (fom O in X018) due to e
itect of adopting e new accounting stendard PERS 16- Laases.

The ifcreases 10 Owe Babitie- wene offgal by The falowin dermeaces

Troda and other qument lisb@ites docroased by PIGGE milon (d1%} dws 10 kewer Tadbe
payables reculing fom fower pperaling gxpersas;

Cumant pactian tof obligarons urdsr finance W denessid By F34 mdmon {1750 doa (o Te
amertz ation of capltal ke for X 8,

Wilhhokding Laras payable decraased by P26 mulon {(43%) due Yo kewer withholding tees
esullite] Fronn Mmad 03l &xpa s

fincoime tax paryad e decreased by P4_1 million [55%) due ko less income fax 35 3 esull of ower
net income for e yaar,

Obligations undes financa easa - ned of curmenl portion decreased by P16 & milion {100%) due
b rclaeifeabon 1o comme podaon,;

Defermad tax Nabity decreacad by PST. 3 mion {100°%) a5 it was offol 1o dedarmed tax asse!

A% of Decarnber 311, 2015, the Corrgany has:

a} Mo knoawn ieends or any demasds, commtmees, or svents that will rezut in or thal are
ioady tor =St i e Ul Increcreine) of JBCTaESITG in any rahenl way,

By Mo events ihal vl bigaer drect or comingent Fancal obigation thal o matenal k tha
sinpany, acheing any dafaul or accelaration of an obligation;

4] Mo maledel ofthaance shes Tansections, amanQements. DbRgatons (nchading
coragent chigabons], and ofter relationshns with unoorsolidated entlies of ofher
parsong cragtad during te reporting period; and

d) MNelbmached any koans, leases of oihar indobbadness or fanancang agreemant.

oo imdcal
The Company manfmem fs periommencs and bemchmorks tsall [ priot v s regults in e of e ioliowing
T CaloTs:
a0
[ Dmc. M, 23 Dec. 1, 2048
"Cumeni Rat Td33i 00 400100
Dietal-to-Eoqusty Ratia Qarim 0.19;1.40
Assat-bo-Equily Rate 1.30-4.00 1.1%; 1.0
—— T o e e R
b Dec. 31, 2019 " Dee. M, 2018
; Filum oo Equaty -24.12% 1TEH
? Fetum on Asseds 1B 5% ~ 4,465
Inerest Coverage Rabo e [T e 100
Sahvency Ratia (0235100 15100
Book Yalue pai Shearn 1,56 L !
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The abowe parfonmancs Indcators ane caicutded o Sdows,

Cowrart Rt _Currond Axcag
Cormerd LMo
et by gty Faan Totad [iahilries
Totad Equaty
Azped-Io-aguity Rato Tolal As=els
Todal Euiy
Redum on Sckhoklers” Equity bl teccarian
Tokal Equity
Redum on Asels M Inciome
Tioal Agrogte
Interesl Cowerane Ratio I Tax
Imavest Evperse
Sohency Rpbo e incoma + Deprackian
Total Lol
Bk Vel per Shane Tode Sxpamy
Tolal Sherms Outsandog
kG o HNT

The Group genersrd Tial reveries o ofembng eowtes of abod F1:4938 bilion for the year ended
Owrcenreber 31, 218, 2 cecrecece of P38 milon (17%) cved ol revenpes of F2 220 bieon during te same
pard i 2017 The deccets 1 Favenoe wes due i e iotiery fudes which was coused by Lha & apansion
of Sl T Laftery [STL) lom A7 to 88 operators aned the XP% increass kL obery Gos picaes with
mpiemertaion of he Coosmentary Siamp Tax {CST) on loteny Gcheds a5 mandated by e TRAIN Lew in
1§, The ST games offer ower tcket prices and Righee paeold ratos versus e e 1ofto and keno
S,

The Group's Dtk cparEting saperss, includeg deprecaion and amodizon. for tha vear ended!
Dwcenrtber 31, 2010 decreamed by P74 miion (2%) (o F1.614 bBon, Fom F1.652 BBion In 2017 Tre
Tt o At bed b the iodoweyg;

- Coitary feos decrpmser by P35 2 maon (5 %) due o kower DIty salv o0 witich e
fegs ame bared fn;

Wtaragomen] Bt chacra e by FE5 2 milion (36%) due 0 the decnexsa in EBITDA, on
wiih 1he s e based on;

Advermi] and promoton decreaspd by FAZ 3 mieon (25%) due ™ mdecton in kemo
markatng ared promctional acivities 25 compaed @XM T,

Oymratig syppies decreasad by FS7.2 milion {26%), mainky dus 1 the Ukt by POS0 of
oD Paper BUpREE 88 [ of the e i The extermsan of e lotl ELA stating August 1,
28,

Ho peonision for poesibile Imparmend of eeesabies wes recomed in 2018, wie e F25.0

milion provision in 2017 wias reuicsd ine posstie impairmest of pasd due accoans
receiabie and wheted inpat taves of the aing (%) subsadianes hat LCC acqpired o 2017,
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Crther = apmanges darreased by F20.4 millian (5%} mainty Jue 1o ipwer misceiareoys nodenial
Lo AR,

The dameasss sctounied kxy m the fomgoing emrms acommts wers offsar manky by the combined
incneases of e follcwang, BXIERSa AcCoUms:

Parasnrd cosls Inemsared by PEZ.S iidlion (31 %) Moy dish 0 i sacauisbon of e ram (9]
subsidiares of LCC in 2017, which sfiect] sy increased he manpoese of be Groun;

Renl and Jtilites incrapsed y FA4TE milkon (0%} due bo ramal rae esoaleion of e (up’s
ffices and Egesties cenbars and e oepeaded rolol ouiets esLdtng feom e acguedon of
LOC's i m 01 7

Enktanmen. amusament and recheshcn aepmt mearectad by P 1 relon (2055 dus b
B beer bueuness Mepressahon expences incaned in X115

Clhex incoma et of other charpes) increasad by F107.3 millicn from B pear's P .2 milion,
ergindy due by tha Rl reeagnition of tes P25 million brand and trodeeruosk beoren b and its
comesmnding mevesl incoms o P12.5 milion coweing Ue excloame 1sa of the Comparny's
inxlart scratch cket radermanrk s by PMLC over & poars plaing on ey 1, 2018 This o
PO weet revducesd Dyt proeisicn of F1 ). 5 milon imaaemei of 1he goocheill permaning &
they aoquesition of Faicon Restunes Inc. (PRI by TGTI. Bosed on pmyectns of declining
revenwes rom FRI'S core business of oslam boet dsibubon n M reexl e opears
CTAENBMEATEN ] DT/t pradarit 10 irhpcer the orchedl.

Tre Grouy's nat meome ater | of P30 milkon reprosenm a F165.8 mlkn [30%) declns from e
vear's gt income of PAS2.9 millon. Thr ower nat income in 2013 was a el of e doublg-dign declos
in ey SAk0s BS explarad shove.

In 20718, Tompamy bookad a nat B valne e on imecstnard in shanes of <inek of PS8 millipn versus 3
na gain of P119 million in 2017, This rarcdabes 10 a F425.5 millon decnease in fair valus gain on inesment,
which reeallied] 13 2 nal comgretendtive income of P96 million that is eque sband (o sbol 2% of las year's
PE13.2 millewn med Comprohensve income.

Tota asets of e Cornpsany cecreacad by P08 milion (2078) 1o F2. 10 Mlion 33 of December 31, 2018,
Trom P2 63 dfhon 2 of Descorntser 31, 2017, Decreases in agsels arm atirbulatde b b ifowg.

Mol oot 2ot St dearBusesid bry P28 miflion {13%) due to unrealiresd mank: Io-merke I
amolnteg (o P11.2 millewn and dispesal of P 10,9 mllhon werth o securites duning the year,

- Trade and other moefvabies-net decmaced by PZ1E.2 rmulion {42%)] dug mainky i he igwer
ifto and ke sakers 8% of [ast quarss of 2018 plus B ower ELA e on iptto sakes saring
Augusl 1, AHE a5 peart of the bermes m e stemion of (he contree for Bnother year,

Mrrverstrcnl in Sonks werl cown by P272.3 milion (17%)] doe 1o the decmeass i T gk
ekl prices af invesimants on hard during X013

(zocahidll and intangibees decromsard by P09 milfion (879 35 2 resull of te Impaiment of
e gouche]] ity beoowad whien FAT wers acrpeired by TGIT in 2014,

Propesty and equipment decreaed by FI173.1 mikon (41%) due to depmciaton of kmeny
eyl iperaon ] ke Roedd Assats



Tha decrert |7 B X656t =g wene ofisat by the Inloeing nteasss:

- Comh meressed by F128 1 milon {78%) mainky due ko the aoqpusiion of the e (5)
submadlaries of LG during the secomd hatl of 2057,

Cribet CLATRR Assats incroasend &y P30 milon (26%:] dua iy pecagndion of prapaed incorme: baces
A nechaes from tgna-cament of the cash bongd held & estaw b e mstant hekal MO with
FOS0 Hiot was appoowed foc malease in X8,

- Ciher nontument asseds ncregsad by F126,3 mifion [150%) due lo the reversa of the an
aconsal ki a payatie to PLE0 perlaxng ta the kong lerm MOA on nstant Bckets, whech sxping
in 2015, and reclass of its Cormesponiting cesh bord held in @scrow to cument assels, apprted
for relzgse i 2014,

- Rebrement benesit asset increased by P65 méllion [479%:) Jue o additional contribution made
o the reirement furd;

Tolal Katites of P32.5 mikon was down by P271.3 mion [44%) ovor 2 yaar's P13 mkan due
Py &y e folkening

- Trade and othar coeent Eablitea decreased By P24T.Y miion (S0%) dwe mainly ko poyahies
eokort e of wea e 3017 {or dhwiclersd 5 g ol peer, s s rod oo 55 o pooiored
2018

- Iewotam B paryalaie sl oo By R0 millon (B8] dua 1o iower et ncome v |2kt year,

Key Performance indicators

Thea Compuarny menitons ik peronmance: and berehmarts ok ke pior yerars retlts in B of D bl
dicalors:

As of

Dec. 3, 2018 Dmc 31, 2017
Current fedo T aAM M 2,16 1.00
Dabt-4o-Couity Ratin T e ' TN 00
Rssel-to-Equity Rali ] 119100 130 1.00

Four the year st

Dec. 31, 2018 Dec. 31, 2007
Ftuen on Equity 17.2T% TRTCY
Fotuem o Assols B E 11 16,7 1%
Inkewmst Soverage Ratio 7004100 5746 1.00
SencyRaio | 1AW 117 100
Book Vo perShae 417 477

2017 Gt o J07§

The Camparry, ool abad with it subretkarics, penarsind iolal rewanses from operabng soorees of bt
F2.52 billion For the waar eroded Decemdar 31, 2017, an incraase of PA32 rikan (23%) ower iodal revenyes
of F1.89 befeon during e same pokod (0 22006 The B in nevedd was 0us o higher ioheny saies
resulting from more P00 mallon Bln pekood pries, addioned disw for Wa Lotio &'5S3 pame, addtional
mmmmm.am aryashan of nina (3) enfties engaged n relal distribution of Ty ckals
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The Company's w0l operating expencas, Inciuding depreciation and amortization, & the year emled
Onribwer 31, 217 incrwzaad by PIAD myllon (28%) bo P65 biion, fom P1.29 blon in 216 The
inGRase i gttt e i B folkbwing:

Personme! costy incoezsad by P0G mdBon (ATR ) mainky due 0 the agquisdion of e ries (9]
subaidianes of LOG which effectvely increased the manfoeal o the Growgr

Crpreition anch sy tiration chiemes imrearsrd] by P55 miien [22%) due t0 depreriastion of
ney hoftery machines and equipment and other foed assels acquired in 16;

Rl and uithes incrasserd by P2 mibicn (575 dos 1o attionsl bgtstics bubss sat up i1
Vieshin and [he snpanvied retail ouflets resulting fom e acuishen of LOCS subsatianes,

Corsutansy fess ncreasacd by PT 4 mlion {12%) dua ko higher saed. on wikch e Bes am
Dt o,

»  Communication experses rereased by B84 million (5% doe b adtitional conmunicabon s
reguimg o eddibonal kuim Band e lerming sllcey;

hanopamon fees mcnemed by P52 milon [B%) des ot incmacs i EBFTOA, on which
the Reet afe bt on:

- Repairs axd mainlenance incremsed by P36 million [1:5%) dus o renowsdon and reoms af
DgEes ad offce bclites;

- Advarising and peoreteon ierersed by F59.0 million (4. 14%) dus o more BRRessie Kend
maiupling ergd promolional activites implemered duning first hall of L e, whils Tem was
o quch activiry in 16

- Qeoeraling rupplies increesad by F25.7 miflion (13%), mamly due 1o Righey consurmabes,
resuling from higher kfary axe;

« impearrant kossas on recavebies moneaced by PT,7 milion and proision ior probabke s
Increrna by P3SN due i aceiong? provision renuirerd Ko possibie impaerment of past doe
B0 Nl neceratle and umezed ino aces of ta 5 subsadiones tal | CO acruomd.

- Dhorexpences increasedd by P2 B mion (D29 mainly dua o Bk e miscebeols intidentsl
DusiTgss Experees.

The increases ecoounisd for in (he forBgoing capersa acooumds wene after mainty by the combimed
MMdmmm'qmmtﬁ
Professional fees decressed by P3G million [227%) due 1o wer e poed during e pennd,
and

- Enferainmen. amesemenl and recreation sIperss decrassed by P26 mifion (14%) dug to
Towor Busnegs represarlaion expenses (neurmsd o 2017,

Oty incomss (et of ofhe chenges) increceead by P63 2 miion m) 201 7 foin recet ¢ hapess of P14, 1 miinoin
A5, mamly dow 1o g ok 1o mare gain o marketable secunties of P29 3 mdBon, Dcease o
exXcess pul Lok of PE8.7 melleon, and fhe P11 8M sanice ircome eamed in 2017,

In XH7_ 2 fair valee gain on imestmeal n shares of sock of P119.0 mikon was posbed, which resued m

A btal reed cormpreesnsive mecoma of FE 112 mislon lor 2017 varsws PSI7.T mdion bl net comgrehensive
ek in 2016,



Total assats of the Company increased by P205 6 million [3%] ko F2 6 bllkon a5 of Dedember 31, 2017,
browry F72.4 bl as of Qecember 31, M1 G Incresss 0 acssts ang attnboimbis o Hw odowing:

- Cash norrased by F188.2 millon [F1%) mainty dus o he aequisifon of the ning {9)
subsafiaries of LOC during the second hall ¢f 2017

Markiabi: pacwmes ncreatsd by P12.5 miion (B due o eddiflonal maketahie secuniies
puchasad st P10.2 rdbon and he iothealied maek-1o-market gan amounfing & P2 2 milion;

Fatremenl banai 3scet intraassd by P1OM E3005%) dus b acellional conbritudion madde 10 B
redirererit furd.

Cthar noncumenl assats incraxsod by P2d.5 mallion (45%) duse i e Donds and rendal dopoerdts
of the ackitiornal Eubcaduames puthated.

hmmnmmﬂmaﬂmhrhhbﬂmm
Crher turmenl assats decreased by PA. 7 mifion (7%] due o applicalion of prepad incoeme Wxes
apairct roima lge poyalie, B

= Froperty and equorment decneasod by P05 mlion (S5 cus ko RkgPor depees Lefon aspaere
kx the: year,

Total cument kabifees. nemased by F180.T mikion (A5G} bram FEB4.9 milloa in 2016 b PST5.5 milion o
01T fue by the dexcLarshon of P85 7 miflion cesh dvicenes in December 2017 lor payment 6 Januaey 2011
and goorral of operating asparses mefaninyg b e O suboikares sonuimed @ 2017,

Ky Pertitriange IiCton

The Cormsany oo e perfrmanes dhd berchmanks tseft ko pior ya.ar's sesLUIE in farms of me fokoeng
indry:

——— TR TES L e e

Aa of |
Dec. 31, W17 Dec. 31, 2016 '
farrant Rato _ 216 100 265100
Ciplb-4r-E quity Ratin i 0.3 : 100 (.M :1.00
Agszito-Equiy Ravo | 1.3 100 1M 1.0
| For Uha year onded |
Dws. 34, 04T Dec 31, 2018
Retum on Equiny 24 407, 0.57%
[ Fetun tm Assas I T 1T S T
IMerest Coverape Ratio ) &l 46 1.0 4577 +1.M
Sotvency Ralio 17w | 132m !

Plang and Froapes

T G Borergee= W oot year o 54l B 3 wery caoliomging peviod, bt i opimecte: that i will be siie i
genGrala raons teoraiin fromcial resuls: than Be el

'MW e et af B e iniedime 1 o Bhe Coompny Y beade b PCS0N: it e i LLson,

Ihe Conpsny can now inslal il terminals in agents fat gemerate mors than doutie the ey saies of
WESEM dpanks and are mone easly acoeasila for EQUAETENT epais and maintenance, The Campany

n



nlaen to wodk Gty with g PCS0 in laynching mone creatrse and inroative mrereting programs D

The PCEG is axpacted 10 hoid o re-Dedding for e natdorwide aomg 1o3tery system (NOL3) in the frst
quarter of 2020, in Bme ko the eapirsbon of fs Equipmet Lease Agrasments (ELA] with both s lotto
syglems provaders. With s ELA expinng on July 31,2020, ha Company dafiribely plans by partcipaia i the
MOLS Biddireg. The Comparme i confdant tat o will ba abla 1o mest @l the requirements of e wbkdng's
Termres o Reterancs { TOR) grven b track racond of cwver 20 yeaws in the Wotlery business and it echnology
patnets thar ane giobal loades in tha gaming industry Worecver, the Comgany has sliso maintsines s 150
cedlification for (eraly Managamend System (IS0 S0 and Inkymabicn Securty Managament {ISCNEC
2T001Y, with S5 a2 s cartifing body amics 2015, In tha sl Boweest, Hhal thar Conripany' dises ol wet
Hhwer b, it 2ot ity exdiding contract with PCS0 o be extended ke anothes ane )0 twa (2] years benause
ol the Jengthy and coenpiex transition khal ey new System provider will have 0 underpo 0 take over e
ngticmada Iofteny.

This ELA of TGTI, U Grongl's keno business und, is dua o eapie on Qricher 1, 2020, PCE0, however,
has acknowesiped that ke s shll 3 viabies reverme spime ior ts charty fand Snd hes evprerssar the wment
e 10 Improws Sk, which howe been severely hamperesd m e pasd 2 years, TGTI has beon working
Xy irn PCS0 Ercons up with an mpmeed heno game &6 par ol 1he negiobal oas for a pocssibla renewat
or extormsion ol ity conbrect with PCEC

The Company & oommifed ib is wsion of teirg e gaming pavtner of choee, despiée all e mgulatony,
environmenal Bnd sl hudies of M chesley, abwg with the aver-changing marke| demands and =pd
technological devenyments in B sniting Brdecaps of the Philloomg gamig ndustry. To ensure growth,
stabilty, ond zestainsblfy in the longtamm, the Company & deletfined o meh breend with relevant
progechs and bet oAt Snd privechhes o s bysiness sirategies 0 serving e FPhelppine gaming markes

hem T, Financlal Stetsmants

Theet awxdBeed Financial Strsemets and Supplemerstary Schedles 23 of and ¢ the pear ended Cecermber
N, 2019 oresenzad in e acoompanying indes 1 Francsl Shtements and Supplemeniay Schadvies are
Fied a5 parl of thia Fonm 17-A,

kem 8. Chenget in and Diddgrneméanb with Accountants on Accounting and Finapelal
Digghesum

Pursiant o e recunemenl on Rodaion of Extemal Auritors wrder SEC Memorarduen Cireutar o, B S
ol 2003, I regisirid will ecommend tha accounting firrm of R G. Marehal & Coo K eesporstltmtn| 2f
gchaced amual meeting.

Reprsearilmves of the principal accogntani (R, GG, Manabal & Co ), the Company's extermnal audios for the
mast ecanty congiemd bl pear am oipected 10 e presemd Gt T Annusl Meeting o respond b
appropEian quectors amd will be given Lhe opnodtumety 1o make 3 siabormenl [ Fey 50 e

R G. Manahal & Co. sudded I Company's stalernent of financial posion s 2l December 31, 2718, and
the steserel o comprahesive MGome, siaterne, of changes n snckhoiders’ sulty ol shalement of
s Aouns for B3 year ended Decernber 21, 2019 and & sumemary of sinificard acopebng pobces nd
ather erplnaory ok, R G, Manabat & Co.'s neaparmlbelity & I0 axpiers AN ppinith o Mese Fnancial
wlatements hame] on tair mdt. The pudits wers oomdubied n accor ance with Phitpone Standards on
Audiirgy. The pariner who hardied e Compamy's oxtemal axdit wes M. Dinda e M. Do,
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The Compary™s Boord of Dreeiors in the sl ahasshobders' measn] of by 30, 2019 mecomrmeed
and the sharcholters appowad, the apponmmesl of B G. Manabal & Ga_ a3 me Compeny's ndeparcent
public g ountant lor tee fscal paar goding Doosmbar 34, X015,

W e Comgany's hree [3) most reoenl el yeam, thers has bean po changs in aodior and thane has
been rr deagreamant on aescanting e francial dechre ves, For LG arel LotoPac B extornal audior
conirached wis Purdngbayan & armudo for 2015, byt was changed b BG Manabal § Co & 2016

Th anyprogats fods 1o ach of kel twea (3] fiscal years lor profesciona sarvices endaned by e soemal
andiiprs ang g5 Iliows:

—— et T s e .
Audil Lo F1.84% 000 PROSa0) | P2 114000
Tax sendces |

- ey kees o S IRn il RO, D0 110, D)

[ TOTAL  Pz,445 000 P2.E54 000 P2 424,000

it it e peodizy o ey Coormpeany thel any drel gudil repot must irsl be reviewed by te Aumil Cormmitiee prior
b0 said repont being endorsed 1 the Board of Direckos for anprowsd.  The Audit Comamithes memtsars e
M. Laura E. Serana (Charmean), W derry . T, =t M. Taeisic M. Medalla. The final drafl of e
Coatpary's 2adied Francial ctlements wag dscursed and reveesed by sad Commifies. Ahemsupon s
Comnntine resnived 10 racormimend 3 e Company's Boand o Direcio® (et sa Snancisl sabements b
appwoeea for esuanes and distiesune b e pubic, e PSE and all nated govermments| agoncies. Said
aiwdbed Anancial siaements ware aporoved by the Company’s Board of Direclrs durng &5 meeting heid
on Fetnyary 20, 2020



FART Iti - CONTROL AND COMPENSATHON INFORMATION
Cl and Fx bt Ragyiatrant
Dilrwrtors ardd Senbar Man 1oement
The Efowing sets o cartamn avhrmalion 25 to the Crecions and Exscuiee Oficems: of the Company'.

Name ) Pealtion with the Company l
[ Villy N Celer Chaimman and Presided]
Ma. Yirgiria . Abc-Hamida Ditector ard Chied Financisd Ccer
Ayrnin Anfonis B, Raquet Sartos Dietler ;
: Tarcizo W Medalia Dimcor
: Menry N. Ogier Drector
(RognaDFaves | Gicior
! ey €. Tl Laad [ndepandent Diractor
« Laurlko E. Serrano | Indepentent Diractor
Josaph . Tan rh'.:leperm Dhirecter
A Bayan K. Tal [ Comovaie Secratzry ]
Jagon €. Malupla Assistanl Comporate Secredary
Christophes C. Yo | WP- Cantral Syatem & Metwork Management |
Valgntineg L. Kinkanasr 'u'P Techaical Sendces
Roman ). Roge, Jr. F- hgand Managament T
Mg Corcaocion T. Sl W—meﬁmnumashlmw
Bcar] of Cirectnry

Tha present members of the Baard of Cirectors {"B007 wane dbcid daieg e annudl stk hoiden:
Moeking fodd on kay M, 7019 The lerm ol te current memnbors of the BOD shal be unbi the rext
sock ity meetng on kay 25 2020, The flicvnng 5@ thie ncasmband niem by of e Bosrd of Dinecrs

("BOD" of te Compey.

Willy N. Qober, Filpino, £3, is e Chalman and Presalesd of the Company and 2 Director since July 249,
1355, He is an Evecutive Dwector and Co-vica Chaimman of Balke Comporation, Highlands Frame, Inc. and
Tagaylay Highlands Inbemutional Golf Chub, Inc. He is siso the Cheirman of the Board and Director of
Framhm Loesura Comp. 25 wel ag with APC Coap, inc., ad Premium Lesune and Amisemant, dnc, He
zerves &5 M Chairman of Tagaymy Madlands Golf Clab, Inc., The Country Club 3t Tagaytay Hehkands,
e, and The Spa and Lodige inc. He is 8 Director of Lessune 4 Resorts Wil Corporation, Vantage Equiies
nc.. znd Abacore Coplal Hoklings Ine. Ha Ak serves as te Chairman, Chiel Executive Offcer and
Prezident of Phiippine Ghobal Communications, [nc. He was the ket President and Chial Operating
(Micer of Eamtam Securites Devebogment Carporalion. He gfaduated bom Atenco de Mania Liniversdy
wih a Bacheior of Arts degnes in Booncrts. [n moogribon of Mr. Oier's {orporsE leadership and rok &
proviching employmierd opRartunties 1 Flipincs, the Linemrsty of BEMangas confEmed him a gegass in Oookor
trf Hurmandies, hanonis causa.

Tarcslo W Madilla, Filpo, 71, 2 a Dwecior of the compary amcs Ciecernber 10, 2001, Ha is camenty
the Charrman and PreseexT of lsted firm Pargs, Inc. He ks aisc 3 Director of Al Ao Coslormer Sarmatg
Hekdingn Lid.. the peincipal sharaholdar of Pays, Ing, He greduated with 3 Bacheion of Seenon S8 o
Commpra (bEpor i Acradirming) om O La Salle Universty. He attanded e Advanced onaomont
Program [AMP} at Harvand Business Sehand, He is a Certified Publc Accountam



Herury M, Ocier, Fliping. 50, & a Dimecnr of e aompany since Jupe 23, 2009, He serves a5 Deoecr
heruger b Corpares Socis Asspormibilty Er Bole Copomlion, He tumertly hods e gooshen of
Pregidat & Geteral Manager o Guatson damatorad Travel and Tours, ine. He gradussd with 2 Bacheicr
of Seience degres 1 Busicess Beonomics borm Ce 1 Sale L inivemy.

Reging 0. Rayes, Filpno, 55, elecied as Director last iy 20, 2016, She 5 curmently the Frgsident ard
CECH of Asted frm, Abacowa Capit¥ Fodiews, Inc., and Presicent of privale omempoany, Clck
Communitations, Ine She alan saned as Administralor ol the Province of Manindeque from January 2010
o Jerpary 22 She was 3 member of tha House of Representatms, reprasonting the fone distrct of
Wacindaque, from 2013 o June 2016, |0 Congness, she was Vice Chagman of the Commitiee on Natonal
Lefense and Secunty and wad 3 menber of several key commmitiees, inchxfig Appoopiations, fushks,
Heatth, and Haturel Resounces, Ms. Fieyes comed hed Fomesgn Senice degroe from Gaompeltm Liniersily,
LISA ang tew Bachedor of Laws degras fiom (he Atergc de Manila University Law Schod. Ms. Heyes e o
rmber of bath Bhe PRRIpDine Ear and the Sty Bar of Caifomla.

Ma. Yirginka V. Abo-Hamda, Filipeo, £0, i3 a Denecior and Cheed Financial Ofcar of the Company e
youned Pactic Onding in September 2000 a5 Vics Presiderd of Insland Tickets Drvision and was promobed as
SVP for Comparats Planmeny & Beesiness Devalopetanl i 2013, Pricy o s, s worked 253 Corsultant for
AB Leisurn Exponar, InG. (1950 2009), and AB Garmire] & Leisitt Spocialst Inc. (2003-2009). Ms. Abp.
Hamda served as General Accourding Manager for [PAgosting Supermaskets. Ing. Mew York, L34 Trom
1520 W 1996 and &3 Senior Finencial Anahyst for Krat-Genersl Foods miemational, Mesr York, USA om
1588 o 1089, She warked with Carloz J. Vaddes & Ca, CPAs om 1381 k0 1386, in 1= Managemenl
Sarices Drision 85 an Assnclals Considtant. She qradueated Summa Cam Lasde with & Bachelor al
Silence dagred in Comrmene [Major ey Acsomviieg ) oen College of the Moty Spenil, bis, Abo-Hamda pagsed
tha CPA board exams in 1550 al 16® placs She aamed her Master's degree i Bugewrss Admaesiration
[Concentrabon in Fnance) foxn Fordham Liiversity, Mew York, USA.

Armin Aptonic B, Raquek-Santod, Filiping, 52, is camendy te President and Chief Executive Cffcer of
Fremium Letsurg Com. {PUC) and concumeanty te Execobive Vics Pretadent ~ Ireqgratad Feasods of Belia
Corporation. He w2 a Director of Tagawtay Hiqitlands irermabonal Goll Clb, fre. ard Trustee and Yica
President of $ako Crown Phiippnes Fowndation Corporation, He wes former Chief Firence Officer of
Aboitiziand, Inc.. Cabu Indusirisd Park, Ine and Maclan Economic Tomd || ad Fasl Philppine Elecirc
Company He was Ao former Goveernor of te Eaard of Imiestmerts (B0, saned a5 Assesiant Tecnebary
with thee Depertmeit of Trade and Intusby (DTI}, Vice Chasmas and CEO of Pl Retirrnent Authoty
[PRA), Erscrtve Vice Prealient of Phalpoine Intsmational Trading Corpeeabon (PITCH asd Dapuky
Administratod of Subic By Matrapoliten Authority (SEMAL His expedence mchades. st with rresting Hons
COCnpanies, SeLUrhes 2000 Inc. (Sndqapore Technoleges Groupt and First Chicago Trus! Comgany of Wew
Yok, Ha holds & Mashar of Arts in Liberdl Shudies from Dartmouth Coega, U.S.A and Bachodor of Sciencs
i Buzness Adranisirabon Maor m Finance from lona Colisge, US4,

inhbcpeecier Direciors

Pursuarnit bo e reqursments of Sacon 38 of the SRC, e Company's Board of Direciors and stock holders
approvcd e amendment of he Comfary's By-Levs adopting e requereivant o0 e nominakion and
akcticn, of indepeniert direciors. In e wih s, the Boar] of Deegioes has elocied Mgsars Lagmio E.
Somarg, sy C. Tid ans Jasph ©. Tan 36 tha Campang”s indepondan drecions.

Lautta E Semana, Fiigng, 59, is 2 Director of te company since May 23, 2044, Mr. Samand clmently
serven s Indopender Chrecior and Chalman of the Ak and Risk Mansgemanl Commites of Atas
Consohdated Mining and Dewsopment Coporatcn. Ha so serves a5 a Independer! Clector, Chamtan
of the Audit and Complisnoa Commftes and 3 mombor of the Rigk Choraght Cormmitbee of Rir
Commerial Baming Comenion. He i likewise 8n Independent Dinector of the ARC G, Inc, 260
(S Inc., and Axehen Resoumes Com., and a diectar of MET Develogment Caporation. BAr. Seman ks
a laner parted of the Cacponsta Finance Consutting Gmup of 2GY & Co.  He is a Philippine Cotifed
Fuble Accowntant sod has o Maste's dogres in Business Administadion from Harvand Graduate Schoot of
Business. Het aea o tpecializalion is Finangial Advisory and Comperate Financa,

&



Jiary C, Tl, Filinine, K], & an ndepesband Draciar of e company Sirce Februay 29, 2007 and was
eppoaried s e Lead Indesencer Dok Lu klay 31, X7, He = a Diredor and the Prosidant of
Tagaylay Hgntands Commurly Condorminum  Amsocision. Ing.. Tagalay Widbnds Someunity
Homeowaars' Arsacigion, nc., and Greenkands Community Homsowrse' Acsncialion, I, Ha e lkewse
the Proeckent f ey fllowrtg cornpeues: Tagaylry Highlaeds Intermational Gl b, Inc., The Couniry
Cluht 2l Tagaytey Highlamdz, Inc.. Tageyley WMidiands Gal Club, Ing,, ard The 502 & Lodge at Topayray
g, bne. Ha 5 3 fommer Dhrecdor of e banis Poig Club e howss & Barheior o Sceence deqree i
Cormmeme {hiagr i Markatng) o Univemsity of Baitish Colormba

Alty. Jodmph C. T, Filipino, 62, is te Founding Parinar of MOST Lew Fiom from Seplember X006 o
presant. He wat a Special Copngel Ior (e Agus G & Manzandg Low OFce fom 2004 fo Augrsl XEE,
Ha was an Associake of Pumg & Funo Law Offices iom 1921 b0 1595, He is curmemty S0 kndaps ndent
Cirector of 250 Group, [nc., Premwom Lesura, Comp., Pacfic Onee Sysbems Compoaten ard LWG
Charmicals Comporaion. He wad st 3 direcn of Philipeass Bank of O sticationns i Sepherber 2010
b amgurd 2011, Atty, Tan holdh a Bachetor of At with 5 Major in Eusiness AdminEirason dagrea from
Leveraity of Sem Fravcisco, UGA (Cless of 1378). He akso nhokls 2 Beereor of Lanies g i e Alan
che Woris Colliogs O Low, Mok Ciry, grostuiing wifh beonors, {Class of 1538,

Exscultya Dffcors
A gxde Forn et Precicdertt amd CFO ieed atnve the exseutive afficers of the Cormgeny mcluoe the Intigaing:

Ykonting L Kintenar, Flipinn, §9, i3 vice Presient kv Techrical Serices of ta Compaty. He jomed Te
Cornpaty in GJonuery 24, 1906, He sered 25 Tochrsl Sarvicm: Manager of EMCOR, Inc. and was a
Systams Enginesr of Techrics, Phiipyatas fom 193311687 Ha previoosly worked 35 Sowor Shilt
Technician of Faincchild Semeznductons, Phil. fom 1580-1953. He grecused with 3 degres in Bacheior @
Soanee i Dot and Communcetiong Eaginesring fmm the Liniversty of Southern Philippines.

Romea ). Kogque, K, Fliping, 51. 5 Vice Presthnt bor Agent Managemeant of tha Company. He joined the
Cormepamy in Fetryary 5, 1096, He sarved 35 Froduct Suppor Meananer or nfomst Solutions, Inc. from 1995
o D96 el 4% Sybtorms Engineer for K15 Softwane Pre. L. 1 Singepare bom 1993 o 1955, Ha pravieusly
workixd Tor EvcTownnd a5 Syemms Conmullant mm 1991 b 1983, He gracuated with & degent i Bachekx
of Sehen in Compular Ergiresaring frum Linfwersity of San Cancs. He was credited wilh Mester in Business
Audrinbtration acwiemi; wuts fom the Uinkersiny of the Philigmines.

Christopher C. Vifaftor, Fdipino, 43, is tha vice President tor Centrad Syatem and hhatwork hanagement
ol the Carngarmy snte 2016, He joired the Compary in banch 2000 a5 a Bench Engmesr. From Juna S004
b Dctober 2009, he served a5 the Systems Admenstrator o the Data Cenber Operatons cvarsaaly] e
latiery adeifcsiration and mandenance koe the Yisayas and Mindanas regons. In 2004 he was promoled
a5 Senoor Monager ol the Dets Center Operations and in Argust 247, me moved up a8 Assistant Vica
Presidant gwarsaeing e Central System Manegement Departmend of the Oriling Lotary Divisaon. M.
Wiahor has exhentiva Bxpenentg inthe area of syslem desin, davalopment and 1esing o0 bodh th LINIE
(Cpenyads Sun()S.Cotars) enviranme and Micreoft Windoves. He hag had formal traimings on Oacis
10y Programming PLSCA and Dty Adminkstrabon, ALK Unix Sysiem Adminisimation and Operationad
Planming wsing Saltwere Engineeny For S0LC. He graduated with & deqees in Bachelor of Soience in
Compader Engineering from the University of San Caros in 1298,

Ma Concepcion T. Sangll, Filpino, 62, & 1 Vice President ior Himman Resountss Managament of the
Corngeany. Siwe has a ol of 37 yrart professional aspenence, inftialty as a Manegement Consian or
oar 17 yeary speciallzing m pecmac] managemen!, mstittenal strengthening, orpanizational dewainpmenl,
chianga manaderman] processes, Marspemers. Bl Operstions audit, S ySIETTS deveyme and Dusireda
ME-Engoment rine] . S Wt afeo ewposed o acdtual hamd-an operations and managemen of & mic m-lencig
ruEtten, 2% a0 ¢santve offieer ot gver 3 vears and later a5 Head of the Human Resouwts Division ky a
MR ar b diesalerrtd A moi-eadia company i 10 veans, Sha graduated bom 5, Faal Colage of
Winrula with & chog e of Blacheslen oof Sciencs in Comme e, mayor i Accounbting. She eamed @n W& in Lirban

26



are] Peqgional Plenning f e Seodl of Uvbn ad Fasgicnal Planneng, Lniversty of te Philpemes. S
was an aceredied oot mediator by the Suprerna Coue and @ cedifex] e coach

Mr. A Bays K. Tan, 64, Filno, | the Coporate Secratary of the Corporation {smca May 207 Fublicy-
Listed), He iz also 3 Director, Corporate Secretany o bath gf the kebrsang reporting andior Ested sompanias.
Balle Corpiiation [sincz May 1994, Publicly Listed), Coal Asia Holdings, G, (90 July 2612, Publichy-
Lieted), Drecavery Work Corporation {since March 201, Publich.Listed), FRemit, [ac. (sice May 2007,
Publchy-Listad), Phiksuity Gioa of Ml Fund Companias (since 1997), Premium Lessme Corporation
feinrg Decornber 1553, Publohy-Listed), Ssering Bank of Asia Inc |4 Sanngs Bark) (snce Decembes 2006,
TKE Metais Corpovation (since Febusary 2007, Pubdcly-Listed), Tagaylay Hohlands Inkemabonal e Club,
I (since towvernbar 1853|, Tagaylay Mdftands Golf Club, g, {singa Jung 1987, The Gountry Chdy at
Tegavtay Highlands., T, (sce Augusl 1995), The Spe and Lodge af Tagaylay Hehlands, nc. {smee
December 1999, and Yarlage Equities. Inc. (since January 1993, Publick-Lsied). He 5 (he Managhg
Fatnar af tha low oieees of Tan Verhwarza Valder (since it was estabiished in ¥OBE), hianaging
DHrachiPraside rl af Shanrnck Davebapment Corporabeon (e bay 1908%, Cwectorof Desting LemdFund,
I {Singe Cegambad 2005], Pascun Laborakones. fne. (sinca March 2014}, and Fure Energy Holdinga
Corporation |nze Cokber 20 A), Managing Trskea of te S0Tan Foundation, Ine. [gince 198E], Prasident
of Cataman Chamber Elamentzry Schoul Foundation, Inc, {siwce August 2012}, Trostes and Treasumer of
Febisco Fourdation, Inc, {Sines Apll 2013}, Trustee and Comomie Secrotary of Tl Schokastics™ Hooeal,
Inc. (sinca Fobruary 2011} and Truskes of Guimaras Foreat Foundation, Inc. [since Septembar A1 H),
Reintagraton for Cang and Whalenass {REW) Fowndation, Ing, (singe Apl 2014) and St Schelastica's
Collage Manda {sance dciober HHY), b, Tan hokds & Masier of Laws degree from Mew Y ork Lneversity
(Class of 1568 and eamed his Bacheky of Laws degree Tom tha Lniversty of the Philgpinas (Class of
15830 whers e wes a member of e Onder of the Pupde Feather (LLP, College of Law Honor Socety]. Mr.
Tan Haced G in the bar examinations n 1591, He has a Bachelor of Arts major in Polibcal Soence degree
Trom the San Beda Cofege (Clags of $976] fom where he graduated Cirs Vetedictonan and was awarded
the medal for Academic Eapefence.

Atty. Jion C, Walupda, Filiping, 48, s the Assistant Comarate Secratany of the corpomioon Since Oclober
2008 B is also comenty the Corparata Secratary o Aotetanl Comoraln Secrstany of ibed firts A Brown
Company, Ing., Adda Linited Bank, and Crown Aza Chemicals Comaration. Be i st a Dirpcky andik
Compotate Seonelary or Assilanl Corportts Secretary of prvale Comednicd 5o Camowarks Agencied,
.., Faioon Resowras, inc., Memury Vertyres, Inc  Toded Gaming Technakegeas, Inc,, Farallay Resgyrces,
nc.. SLW Derooprnent Copoation, Meimpoftan L eisure & Tourism Corpocation, Sagesoft Solticns, (nc,,
Fradenta Technologies, Inc., Xines, Ing.. Ghypistudios. [nc, Lot Pecific Leisum Corporston, and St
Clra Intamabanal Coperaban. He is a Parmar al Tan Wenjuranzs Yaldez Law Ofices specigiiang on
conprabe, Seourties. m busingss (ws, Mr Nalupta samed his Jris Doctardegree, 36 well 25 his Bachedor
al Ssienga gedpres in Management {magr in Legal Management), from Ateneo e Manila Linbrersity in 1506
and 1992, raspectively. M. Nalopla was amibBad i tha Phaloosna Barin 1997,

Faanitly Rl aticrrshipn
Herry M. Coer snd Wity W, Oewr ame brdhers,

Significa Employeey
The Company i it dapendant on he senices of Ay AUl empoyes. |F oo not Ve Gy special
Srangemants b ensure thal amy empioyes will remain with e Company and will ol compaobe upon

Sock Cpdon P

The Company’s Boars {“BOCT appeed the proposed Stock Option Plan {the Fian®) on Cegember 12,
006 The Campamys Sock Option Plan provides an incenkive and mechanmm k) cmpiovees ad oMicers
b bez e Sty of ihe Compary, 32 wel Az ) qualfied disectors, oficers s empiopees, whe o
stroaty sinckholders, K incregse (heir equity m the Company snd hemby moraase heir concem fx the
Cormgamy's weld-baing. A8 such fultime and eguiar smpiovees of e Company, iy subsidianes aed
arffiaticd, trowr it ard difecitns, and such dther quaiied pereong who may be recommended fom tare
e firmes by the Exes;uibrwe Corverruiites ot B bo b Cormomittes a5 quaibted, are siglble o parfiogate n

F e



the: Pl Sharrus o o Bubiecd in e P armonr i e por op i (5] of Bwo Carmparm s o oltetrehig
GEHIIMA STk

The purchass price of ths shares shall nol i 20y case b s Than he Faie Maed Valoe of tha Company's
shares 3t the me & gram_ and. in no-caze, e kess han the Ofier Price 2t which bhe Company's Shares are
inflimty ofiored for s2ie W0 the public Further, e porchesa poce shall he mabject o adyesmment or
sulreeguel Siock drecends o aolls,

The shares amesesd by ary e grant shaail be offerad lor subescriptien over 3 paviod of Thres (3 yoars om
and giter the ofieclvity dae of each grend that may be cetermingd by D Comrmites. The Partciuenls may
exaite thel nght to syt ko shares ymder the Flan in Baecordance: with e ndowing schedule:

« {73 of el granl wathin Oee [1) year from B efectvlly dake of each grand
1% of el grand wethin Two (2 peary o e cMachity dete of each grent
* 13 ol ol grand wetten Trves {3) pairs fmm be eflectvily date of sach gran|

On Fobryary 15, 2008, 3EC approver) the Company's appicaton requestng hal s proposed issuance of
14,254, 900 comeron shaves ba axempt fmm the mistration requinments of the Securlics Regulaion Code.

Gy Mgy 5, 008, the BOID popoved e ellocaion of 2, 174 000 shares 10 i3 executive=s amd ermispess ond
o the cfficers of Lueky Cimle under e Plan which is semisabi ovar 3 pariod of thres pears iom May 6,
2008 uril May §, 201, Tre puthess price ypon exgrirse of the OMon wes foed af B5,88 per ghara, At
e qront &8s, e G value ol tha Compamy's sham emourted to F9.20 per share,

O Moy 18, 2008, grenboess af e S100k oolions exercited 637,000 shacers of the Company's siock at B850
Pl .

o ¥pt1 and 2010, cartan grantees of te sock opfions gmencmed 495 000 shaves argd 455,000 shaes
mesaertaly, of the Company™s Slock at @ 8,86 per sheae

Ag gt December 31, 2010 and 2018, e wara ng gpions ourancths) of granted upon expraton of Be
exerigable: oo on Mey 62017,

Imvofyemant in Certaln Legal Proceedings

Aty A Beyan! K. Tar. Aga resull of e detay i e deireety of the [acilibes of tha Urvarmal Leisues Club,
Ing., some of i3 members intised & Complan ko Estafa (1.5, Mo. 08K-19713) agesnst LILC, e Liniesal
Righdhield Propedy Holdings, Inc ard the Universal Leeane Cop., 26 well 25 theil respective oficars and
dimctors. including their fermer Corporate Secrelary, Ally A, Bayani K. Tan, the mcumbent Comporaie
Bacratary of thw Corporalion. The Complaint was submitted for resolution in 2009 and was acied upon and
dismissad by the City Pressecutor of Marda {0CP) only ¢n hiach 18, 2013, Complainants belatedly filed
mation kx mcofdadefanon ke which reason, wneng oihers, the OCP denied maotion on June 16, 2014, A
Fatibes ke Review dited barch 31, 2014 was (Hed by the Compiatnant befona the Department of Juslios
{0HY). On Auguet 7, 2004, Atty. Tan fied hes Cornmend ko tha said Patition. M a Resabotion duated Aprl 17,
013, the Petition for Raview was dented and the DL disrmissad B cormplaint Sor Estafa,



Rem 10, Exacutive Compensaikon

Tha Kdowinyg Tkl Sows e BRGIEgate SHTENSAEoN recoved by e diegiors and exetutvs officars of
the Compary for caenda years 2019 g 2018, a5 well 35 e estimalxd aggregate compenzalion o

coterder e MM
Harme and Principal Pogiin | Year | Satary | Bomus Other Anual |
| Compenaobion: |
 WWilly N, Ccaer |
. Thaiman & Prasident !
i Ma. Viniria V. Abo-Hamda ;
; Dinetor & Chvaf Fmangial Crificer '
Yalanino L. Kintanar :
V- Technical Services e '
Romen §. Roque, Jr. I
WiP-Agend Managarmen
Ma. Concapeion T. Sangd
VP Human Resoumes Mongrerment
Chrssephar C. Villahor
WP Cortral Syshon & Mecbwork
Management
Todal S the Exacutive Officers azagrowp 20020 (Esbmala) Fi4,374 438
Fab) | F13.343,004
218 P15 611,747
Todal ke e Dingctons e Executive 020 (5 himaks | P17,141,165
Oificers as o grup Fal] | P16, 108,720
i)l P19,535 a1
: Teodad Tor Frecidend and 4 mos! highty 2020 (Ealmae ) P12,T74 508
| Compensatal Exacitiva Odficis
; WG F11,881,950
S 2016 _ P13.880,775
Compensation ol he Group's Kay managerment pasonnel wm a8 llows:
2018 g . 2007
fhn tlhons)
Shafl-larm arrpioy e berefis Fer.5 F3z o2 P32
Pt ratirernend borehts I X 133 _ 230
F29.4 P35 F36.76

T compensation of e Groug's key management porsonnel 2 included n te ‘Pemsonnet cosbe™ as

discosed in Mot 17 of tha aadted consckdated Indncial slammants.

Oy e e deripred abgse. there 2 no other standa or e Smangements wharsin dirsctors of
e Coamgmarny &) oompeated, o see 10 e compenaaed, directy or indeecty, for any senvices provided

as A dirmetre.

Thars 5 (v SOy phan of amangsmmen. including paymes o be recetvod T he Carmpany, wedh

Feapec] b vy of its axecadne OFCE, which will resolt bom tha

remgriation, hetiromend oc any ol

bermdnation of any of fls sxpcubivs FRCeTSs eripioymen with (ke Company and il sybsriares or am e
Q- N-COnirod of P Compoony ©F in any of s exacubves ofics s nespomsibiltis, folowing 2 change-in
confrd and e Mot vweewed, inciuding & peridic payments o sk, which dcamds B 25

rralleon.
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ham 11, Security Cwrership of Carmain Bemoficial Ownars and Management

Security Jvwnamhip of Corlatn Recond and Bonflc 2] Cwnars
The Iolicwatgy SO0 oF PP ar known 1o i Compey a5 dinec] geners of mone than feve perasl (5%)

al P Company's witim] securites 25 of Deceber 31, 2010

—_—

Numberof
Shams

Peqcant

FREMIUM LEISLRE

] LCRPORATION

: BF Tower A, Two E-Com
I Canber, Mol of Acia

Comelex, Pasary City

444,560 B0

50,1000 * PREMIUM LEISURE CORPORATION

FCD
CORPORATEHON

HOMINEE

327,361,717

365654 | VARKOUS

2H8F

WILLY N. OCIER
' Condre, Exthangs Foad,
Coticas Cantar

East Teewar, FSE

71,518,350

8.0H5

WILLY W OCIER

Sacurity Owrerahip of Direciors end Manegermem

The fllpwmyg bie sheen Me shares Dengficially cwned byt dieciors and executive alficers af the

Comgany 3t of 31 December 2014;
1»;ﬂ‘ll:ni Name of Bonficls| Amour and natare of beefelal | ppipanuy, | PRl I:
L Cramey cwnarshlp | Clar .
Oawel | Indirect | Towl | i
Cammon | Willy N. Oclar TIEBS50 | 2074850 | 80794500 |  Flipeno 207
Common | vingmia ¥ Aba-Hamda FITT 1 2900 | Fligina 0.00
Lommpn | Tarcisio M. Medala 200 10 30 i Figeo 0 £ |
Common | Reging 0. Rayes 300 T 0 Filpan n.mji
Common | Hanry N Ocer | 6000 | 1203008 | 7.08.000 | Filgma 013
[ Common | Jemy G. TR 200 250 J,ﬁlﬂ" Filipenia 0.00
[ Comman | Lauiko E Serang 1500 B} "é.-um‘;L Fagpe 007
Common | Armin B RaquekBantes | 200 X FAgea 0.0
Cormmon | Joseph C. Tan 200 M| Flpeos |00 00Q
| Cammen | A, Bagam K. fan — 1013000 1 1453000 [ Flipno 0.1
Common | Romed.). e, J7 500 ' B000 | Faigino 0.0 |
[ Carnnan | FragencC, DyBunco 200 - 0| Fgino G
Commen | Misciw] Gabnehe 0, i T
Mandora 190000 195000, 585000 | Figwne {106
A Directars and _ | E
Executive Officor a8 zrovgqes:  TLMT200 g4 043680
*group L B | i
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4. The Pamnl Cormpany has an opeational and isdine:al Auppiat sersces agmement with TGT|
whch  the  fnmer  wll gssist he  lfer o bw oo
{1) ecdabiiching & sullshic ol BCEnl tElorratwnimacatos ks tor T Bies online keno
etk and () rversoeing e #leenl opereton, regulsr preverie mMolTUANos, af
sy repars on TGT ' onling keng lprmingls dopioyed within the Vienas arg hietonsy
regiors, inchuling the cenltral dst sorver Jocaled in Cabu Ciry. I conskiersbion ky leass
sarces, TGTT parys 3 foo fes ey Kono lerminal.

TGTI aday redminrges, e Paend Company b aommuncaion spenrses incurred on some
ol Kang SEnODGrETrE M M chared dlata comier,

TIeF'm{hfpmrm Mon-TRENS bearing cosh avaros b LoloPac, LGS and FRI
:rh'gmmh Capalad rexparemeanis. The P10.0 million athvances i FRY was convered o squry
Yo ,

b The Parert Company recimexd cash dvicends from TGT] ang LGC,

o TGTI percheeed traded shams of fe Fagnt Company [LOTO) Beough ks sinck brokers, B,
TTI mcefves divitends i mess shares, The cosl of ehanes purckarsad by TG is inchoied
in e “Treasiny Saeck” acrounl, in the consotidated aetrert: of fnancd poston,  TETI
recuey] caeh dhvickers) om the Parent Comipny .



d. LCC and Mna Enities hawe existing agreoments wih mebsled pontes under comnmon
wnership By S Irvestmend Coaporstion e the eased space: of its oullets which ae
rerevatin auary s morts Lo fwd peas af is DpEion.

Under e bpemes of e bease agreemend, LCC ond Mipe Ertities arg equired {0 pay rerals
equivaend to a kel rade per meath and securlly degoslls coamesponding (o tes (3] monts
Fent These deosds consis) of ancants pad in advance which c2n:be oodeciad in cash v
BT Of U ksdas



PART ¥ - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Campany (emans ooumed o ersuris] e adomion o Sy=eme &nd pecticss of good coponse
AvHTATEA ¥ Aanhancay) voe T d8 chowtoidars. Wil thi oo, e Boand of Dhisckors Ras
esletished coporale govemance pnnciples 10 ensyre accourally, fAmess ad famsparecy o e
g AL EiOn.

M5 Monual on Corporsie overnance was revised b=t year and submted bo SEC May 32 2019, Changes
rmaha {0 the mariual ang s Klows:

15 inchesion of Vision, kiisea e Comorale Yalues

2y cdusion ol Dwfindticn of Tesms.

3 wAusion ol Bearl Evshuatieoybell- Ascrpemnd

4} Upcalnd Board Commitees (priod w50 £6 had the nid commiliees reheced)

S Ircluded Risk Offcer respormdxdmes (usder e Board Risk Crarsgght Commimes porgon)

In cramplicrics with SEC berno Circular Mo, 19, Series of 2018 gineciing 2 pubilicly |rsked companas {PLCS)
m submid anow Mamal on Corparale Goverronnd [MOL) pussant o the now Code of Compomte
Govamances for PLCe e Commpany, upan B appyoeal ol s Board, on beay 31, 2017, submiried is Rariagd
Mann of Cowmaonet 8 (rewereanca (T bacal) 1o e SEC. Prior ky e submissan, & v i e vadicos
establaheel B Ml cOMMIMRes o its rrspecties charars weans doms. A3 A et tha kailtninng
eomse the SO el comirtiees of the Compaty o0 o et May 31, 2017

Execitive Comemithes - 6Cis on behall of fw Bosd in e manegement ad doection ab the
by ey ] ool of the aftairs of the Company,

Aufi Commities - hes general oversght of e Comoamy's accoumting and finaeal reponing
processas 30 of the hnancal stalemems, ard remal conbel and apdd hrckons.

Board Rink Overnlght Comefhee - xscichs fe Boord i oversiens] the Compare's pracicees
and procises ralaling o sk aeseseriant o sk MAnSenAn MDY an aaorpnste ik
cljura, repafing of finarcial and barsingss fishs ard exsoEaked Memal contms.

Coporste Govemnancs Committes - imied with emung romplance with, &l poper
chsarvancs of . Corporale sowarmancs Loncpes and prachoes. Foited [nam the ominadon and
PETAINGYF 201 v LINCTONS 35 el
Rotrted Parry Tranascfions Comminies - acstds e Boerd ® versesing fhe Company's
prachces and prtcesmey relaling o related party rermacoons (RFT5). Reviews all matedal med
perry rermacinns of te Company and esiess (hat all RPTs ae conductad on a el s aims-
Iength basi,

A Lead lncependand Director and Complanca Coficer wene alun apgeinksc (n biay 31, 2017

Wbk Of ‘waots: COM TS A7E: oapocipe b sans for 3 baem of one [1} e

The Lompamy is Ied Gware: O By Hon-Comglaros with 3 kil of Cororas Gavemanda, by army of o
CEaCers o SiTipiysEs.
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PART ¥V - EXHIEITS AND: SCHEDULES

Ham 13. Exhibis sd Ropaorts on BEEC Fom 17-C

&, Exhibitc

Tre® am ng extibits by be gt thal e pgpiicabile i e Company,

b. Repwty on SEC Form A7-C

Decumen D Fllad Mo b, Mrtter
SEC FORM 17-C daed O ——
Jarney 24, 2018 Jarusany 25, 2044 kg & ! Kozt
SEC FORM 17-C daled L Amend-1 Natce of Annyel or Special
Jeewary 31, K19 Jerery 11, X113 Marm 9 , Smokreiders Mestig
SEC FORM 17-C daled e SAmenGnants b Aefics of
March 5. 2018 Mamch 5, 2415 tiom 9 oot
Ecmfﬁd;'“ March 18, 2015 Hem3 |  [Amend3Declarsbon of Shocx Divicands
. _ I s Bndsends
SEC FORM 17-C ded Fieaults of Al o Speadl Stchhokiars
May 30, 2648 My 11, 201 Hems d ard b ol
SEC FORM 17-C daled Fituss o Drgasnizalional beetng of Baa o
May 20, 2019 _ My 31, 218 I 4 god & o
T T I niumbed of -
SEC PO 1)Lkt | i chares af N
hip15Egis ) MR e sxa Clancalion of Mews. Repro
! ousIEIng
i rumbes ol
SEC FORM 170 daed s o _ ]
Miby 25, 2018 by BT | e sk Repdy % Exange’s ey
- ﬂl.l:ﬂﬁl'ﬂl'lg —
i rumibed of
SEC FORM 170 daed
Wy is | WY | S [amenst Reply o Emhanges Guery
I ouisandng i
; o ﬁf ;.I;Dﬁﬂw July 29, 214 Bem 3 MEHi MANTHALOTHIAAONS
| —_
i
i SEC :ﬂﬁ ;': .I;DE'B-M Juy 31, 29 [ Clarificarkon of Mgy Rapeorty
“I:ﬁ-ﬂ::: 1125:1;# Al 2, 13 Il 3 Mabesial Indermanon Tran Racons
BC i Lt | Sopertor 0N I Carkergn of Hews Fipcs. |
BEC FORM 17-C dgiag o enenge n Corporaia Contad ;
Dcioer 7. 2053 Ocicker £, 2059 L P Dol e |




SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 17 of the Securiies Regulation Code and Section 141 of the
Carporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunio duly authorized,

inthe City of Pasigon February 20, 2020.

By:
Jj e P e
Chairran of the Board and President Chief Financzal Officer

FEB 2V 2020

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 2020, affiants exhibiting io

me their Community Tax Cerificales, as follows:

NAME COMMUNITY TAX  DATE OF ISSUE PLACE OF ISSUE
CERTIFICATE NO.

WILLY N. OCIER 04596093 Jan. 20, 2020 Pasay City
MA. VIRGINIA V. ABO-HAMDA 14481731 Jan. 23, 2000 Pasig City
A BAYANI K. TAN 07573862 Jan. 21, 2020 Manila
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PACLFIC OMUINE SYOTEMS CORPURATION AHD EUESHDLARIES
HNDEX TO FINANCLIAL STATEMEMTS AMD BUPPLEMENTARY BCHEDULES

Fage Mo

Flranch Btaiwrareds
Srataron, o Wasragemes Fespeseltiily b Financial Statements | S Altocher] F5
Rapat ol Incapenden] Publc Audigrs }
Srotemeerrs o Financk) Posithan a5 of Dacember 31, 2018 aed 018 ]
Stabamants o (G ]

o tha vears enced Decembor 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 ]
Stataments of Gormprahenshe (noime ]

for the years ended December 11, 2019, 2010 and 2017 ]
State-mants o Changes in Equly ]

for ther years enced December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017 ]
Statemants of Cash Flows ]

for the paars ended Decsmber 31 2019, 2016 and 217 ]
Hobes b0 Faancizl Stedéernents ]
EUpoharmriary Bl L hes
Fepor of Independant Audtors To Accomeany Financhl Seiomenns fr Filing

with 1he SacUriters ancl Fachange Comivistann
Reconciliation of Retaned Eamings. Avelable o Dividors] Declamibion SEE ATTACHED
g Of Comjiomerin SEE ATTACHED
Echedule showing Firamcisl Soumsdress |mdcatomn SEE ATTACHED
Suppiemenlary Borecubes of A 63 SEE ATTACHED
A, Finacial Assets SEE ATTACHED
B Amows Recwvabie o Direciods, Cficers, Empioyess, Relaied Pasties and

Principal Sirckhoddesm (Other (han Axanchaimes) SEE ATTACHED
C.  Amowws Hecoivable Fom Rolalpd Partien which oo Elmiraied duing the

Cormolitelon of Finencial SElements SEE ATTACHED
0 Longierm Dubl SkE ATTACHED
E. inceteriness ™ Reteed Parlies BEE ATTACHED
F.  Guaraniess of Securihes of Other s SEE ATTACHED
G. Capd Sock SEE ATTACHED
Repo on Imdepantiant Auilkors Compireilt of Fininci Soundiess miciom
Scheviule shoming Fnancial Soundness indicaiomn SEE ATTACHED



PaciFic ONLINE G r——

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management Pacific Online Systems Corporation is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to anable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free form material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or emror.

In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related
to going concemn and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either
intends to iguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do
S0

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidaled financial statemenits including
the schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members

R. G. Manabat & Co_, the independant auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
consoldated financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Slandards on

Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the
fairness of presefitation upon completion of such audit

Signature

WILLY N. R / Chairman of the Board

Signature
WILLY N. OCIER / Chief Executive Officer

Signature

A. VIRGINIA V. ABO-HAMDA / Chief Financial Officer 410

Cille
i thei &
Signed this 20th day of February 2020 e
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AUDITED FINARCIAL ATATEMENTS
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PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS
CORPORATION
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED ANMANCIAL STATEMENTS
Decembar 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017

With Ihdepandant Audilors’ Report



R.G. Monaoat & Co
The KPMG Canler, &F
ETB7 Ayala Avarus, Makati City

Philippines 12256

Telephone +53 {2] BAA5 KD
Fax HE (2] BESL 1985
Welmile home.kpmg/ph

Ermail ph-inquiny & kpmg. com

REFORT OfF INDEPENDENT AUDNTORS

The Board of Dirscers and Steckhaokiarns

Paciflc Online Sywiema Corpo reikon ard Subakd|arkes
28th Floor, East Tower, Philipmne Skock Exchange Cantre
Exchange Raad, Onlgas Centar

Pasiy Gy, Melrd Manila

Cyirricn

We have audited the consolidated tnandal statements of Pacilc Onling Systems
Corpomlivn and ik subsidianes {the “Group™), which comiprisg (e conskidated
statements of finanolal pozitlon a5 at December 371, 2019 and 2018, and the
consaldaiad statamonis ol ncoma, the conealdaled stalomonts of comprahensive
ingome, consaicated slalemants of changes in equity and congalicalad slatamoms of
cagh llows lor eech of the three years in 2 pariod ended Dedaember 31, 2018, and
notas, Compnsing spaficant acoounting policies and other explanatony iffommation.

In Gur opinign, the gccompanylng consolidated hnandial stavements pragant faimy, i all
matenial raspacts, the consdlidated financial position of the Graup as at Dacamber 31,
15 and 201 &8, and fle congolidad Bnarncal peromance and e consolidaed cash
flows for each of tha thies years in the pariod emced Dacomber 31, 2012, k1 accordance
with Phikpping Financal Reponirg Standards (PRRSS).

Basis for Opinion

We canduded our awdils in AscorJanca with Phuhpgene Standards an Avdiing (F3AS)
Clur responshilities under thaae standards are furker deserbed in the Aodiacs”
Respongibiilies for the Audil of the Consolidaled Finanoial Steterments section of our
repart. Wea are indspandant of tha Group in accorfance with tha Code of Ethics for
Frofasshanal Accauntants in the Philpgenas {Code of Etics) together with the ethical
reuramants Inat ara ralevant 1 our audit of 1Re congtrdatad hnanclal gtatemams in the
Philipginae, arwd wa bava 1uffiled our other ethical responsibililes in accordance wilh
these requirements gnd the Code of Ethics. We believe that 1he audil avidance we hava
vtRained s sufficient and approprdate 1o provide 8 basis lor our opinien,

[ A PR ST VU L TR F g T - i
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xFUE:
Hery Aucht Mattar

Key audil matter v the matier thal, in our protessional jrdgrant, was of most

s nificance in cul awdit of the consolidated financial slakements of iha currant porod.
This matier was atdnessad i the conlaxt ol our audit of the consolidated inanaial
slelements as a whole, end in loeming Gur SEinion theraon, and wa oo not provida a
separata openion on 4is mater,

PFALS 13, Ledsas
Hahker b Moles 4 and 20 19 he corsolidated linamnal sialsm&ns.

Tho risk

The Group adopted Ine ngw stadard on leases, PFRS 16, Leasas which
replaces FAS 17, Leases. PFAS 16 inlrtduces & new lease accounting modal
whore lessess ara raquired 1o recognize a righ-of-use (ROU) asset and & ease
habilmy.

As gt Dacamber 31, 2019, 1he Group has RO pssats - nel of depreciation and
leage liabililies amourting 1o P50 298 070 and P&7,602, 005, respecivety,

Tha assessmant ol the impact of Iha new standand is signidicant b our 2udt, a8
the relevam, balances ard amounts recognized by the Group are

matenal Substantial time and eMor was requlred to gudit the rignt-ol- use a3sats
and kease llabilitles recognized dus by numeraus lease conlracts sulnjetted to fha
tranarits and significant judgement wag required for the assumphicsss 2nd
estimates made in order to detemire the ROU asselt and Isass iamlites.

CAIF rasrawTEg

Crur audit procedures incuded inquinas with management and eview of relavant
documam™s fo understand e Sioop's agproach bgomplameanting FFARS 16. e
evaluated whether lhe new acocunlineg policies on leases arg @ propnate and
congigtent with PFRS 16, We evalualed the design and oparaling effecliveness
o Key contrds over raw processes intrggucad 10 apply PERS 16, including those
ralavant 1o transtion.

Wao wsted the completerass al he population of leases subjected 1o PFRS 16°3
mequirgments by wamfying the laase contract dalabase against fha rental
paymants made. Wo rawiwed leags conlradts lo 895655 whelher 839365 have
baan appropmiately ifentified and measured. We oblained the Group's
quantification of ARG assats and lease lablfities and avaluatad the
apropriatenasa of inpuis usad includire discopnt rates and laasa tarms, and
performed computaten checks,

Wa glzo avalualed the adequacy of disclosures required by PFRS 160 he
consolidated finanomal slatements.

Obear Irniares ncw

Managemer 5 respomafde for the ofmar ifarmaticen. The othar inlormation compnzses
Tha irformation included i the SEC Fomn 20-15 {Deliniiee Enfommedion Slalamant],

SEC Form 17-A and Annval Repar] for the year ended Docembor 31, 2018, bul doas not
intiuda he consalicated finanacial slaememts and our aeditors’ report thereen, The

SEC Form 20-15 {Dehinllive Inlgrmation Skatamem). SEC Famn 17-A and Annwed Repart
o e year ended December 31, 2015 Ave axpaciod to ba made available o us atter 1he
dake of his puditors’ report,



KB

Cur opinian an Ihe consolidated linancial siatements does el oowar the olhor
information and we will ol BEpress any (o o assurance conausmdn B raon.

Int connacton with our audits of 0w consaldated financlal statemants, our regponsibility
i5 00 medd the other inlormation wkendiflsd abawe whon it begomgs availablo and. in dokng
30, congider whelner the glther inkomabion 12 makeially incorsistant with tha
consolidaled hinancial slatomeants of our knowladge cbdained in the awmdits or otherwiss
A0S o be makarigly missiated.

Rasparsiiites of Manragement and Thase Chamed win Grvamancs for g
Consoddaled Fingncial Xalaments

Managamert is Mesponginle for tha preparation and lair presemation o the consolraled
finarial steisments in aocordanse wilh PFRSs, and for such intemal conlial &5
managemeri delemines is necessary to enabla the preparation of corsolidated
financal stalamants that arg frea Trom rmaterial misstatement, whathar due o Feud or

E Mo,

Irt prépanndg the consalidated Tinandial slalemants, managemant is responsitla for
asaessing he Group's abilty bo continue 85 a gong cancem, dRclosing, as applicable,
mattars ralaled to going condern and using the gaing concem basis af accounling unlass
managemerd aaber intends & hgwoate tha Group Of O Ceass operalions, or has ng
realiztic akemative Bl 10 do 50,

Thoss champed with gowarnance arg respongdbe for overseaing the Group's Linancial
MeCLing procass.

Aledifors” Responsltios oy the Al of e Consadiciamed Finagnca! Stalaments

Qur chjectvgs are 1o olain reasonabe s5surpnce about whether the consalidated
tinancial slalaments 85 & whole are free from maberial misgtaemant, whether due o
frawd ar emor, and te issue an auditors” repor That indedes cor opinion. Feasonabe
gssiNance i3 4 Mgh lavid ol assurance, tuf B ot a guaranted Ihal an awdi conductod in
accordance with PSAS will always detect 2 mataral misslatament whan it oxists.

Missie lemants can acize rom frawd o eror and are consadered matenal i, indnidually
or in the aggragats, they coukd reasonatty ba expected T nfluenca tha aoonQmic
dacigions al users taken on tha baste of thasa consolidated fimancial stalaments.

A% prart of an audit in Aceordance with PSAS, we exercise pralessionat judgment and
mainkain protesseons skephosm trooghoul the aodit, We also;

» |danilly and assess e ks of malenal msstatemant of e Soasciadatad financial
sutements, whather due o faad or arnoe, design and pedorm audit procedures
rasponsive to hoase risks, and Gotain audil evedancs that i sullicient and Bpproprials
10 prowicks a begis for our opdnion. Tha Ask of not catacting a matonal misstatemeant
rasulting from fraud s hghar T lor dne resulting froen arar, a5 aud may ok
cxlluseen, lorgery, intanlignal Gmissiong, misrpasamations, o the gverrlde of
intarnal control.

o CHrn an unoestanding o intmal Sontrd nglaviant o 1he audit in onder 1o deskgn
aud’ proceduras thal ara approprigte i the cirgumstances, b nal for e purpats
o eXQrecsing an apincn on the effechivenass o the Group's intamal conlrol.

» Ewvplugls the appropuialoness of accounting policies used and the regsonabdengss ol
acccunling aelimaias and rolated dlsclosuras made by Mmanagomant.



xhmb

»  Conciuda on the approprataness of management's use of e gang concern bass
e accounting and. bagsed enthe audlt evidence oblained, whether a material
uncesrtainty exisla related 16 evanls or conditiong that may cast significant doubt on
the Sroup's abilly 1o continue as a going concem, I we conclude thal a rmatgnal
uncantalnty edisls, wa are raquired o draw amention in our auditors’ repdat 1o the
ralaled disclosures in g consakdatad linancial slatementa o, if Such disclasures
are inadequate, I modily our opinicn. Our £oncluslons are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of cur audilars’ repearl. Howavar, [Itme avonls of
conditions may cause the Group 1o cease Lo continue as 4@ gaing Soncem,

» Evaluate the overall preseniation, structurs amd conbent of Iha consolidaled financal
FAatements, induding the disclosures, and whelhar the consalidaded firarclal
slatements raprasant the unda ryving transactkons and avants in a mannar thal
achioyes fair prasentation.

= Dfain suMicierd appropnate audit swdencs regarding 1he fingncial inkmation of the
entitios ar bieinass activities within tha Group 1o Spress an opinion on he
consoieiated hnancial slemants. We are responablo for the direclaon, spansion
ard parformanca af the Qroud audit. Wa remain Solely (asponsible for our aedn
DEniGn.

We communicate with thosa chargsed with povemance (egarding, amaong other matters,
ihe planred scopa and liming of the audil and sgnificant audil findings, Mcludiog any
sighifrcan delciencies in mternal contral thal we identiy duning cor audil.

Wa afso prowide hase charged with govemance with a statemenl that wa have compled
with ralavan! alhkcal requiremeants mgarding independence, and Sommuncats sith tham
all reationships and Mhor matiers that meay reasenably be thought ta baar on our
independenca, and whare applicable, related satequands,

Fram tha mattar cammunicated with those charped with govemanca. we determine b
mafer thal was of mast gigndcance in e audit of e consddated finamcal stalemearts
af the cueran! pareed and is tharetore 18 Key awdil mattar. We deacriba ks mattar in our
Auditonrs” oot ynlass law or regulanon procludes public dlecosdra abowr the mater or
whien, In axtrgmedy rara ¢lroumstances, we drlarmine tat a matter should not Bg
Commurncaled in Hur repart becanse the atvérse consequercas of daing 50 wiuld
reasorably be expected 1o mutwaign he poblic ntares! banafils of such communicabon,

The anpagemant pafrnar an the aufit resuting i this indapancont uditors” rapan i
Ennce E. Baluyut.

A.. MANABAT & €O,

e lE

ENRICC E. BALUYUT
Fartrar - -
CPA Liceng Ng_ 65537
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Tax entification Mo, 131-029-752
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__ PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBS!DIARIES

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FIKANCIAL POSITION

Drarcintibdr 31
Moje s 2018
ASRETS
Current Anarie
Cash arg czsh equivalents F o PEXITATLEES PO 260254
Markatatla socurikes a 140,45, 5M 155,704 592
Trade and ofer recamwallas - net 5 172 501,60 285,063 805
Ohar curmrent agsats 10 214 285 314 144 958, THE
Todal Currew Asssin Bod 208 33 5,156, 567.821
MNoncUrrer Ascaels
[rvEBrmanE i stocks It X47 420 BAN 455 ™S, A0
Property and equipment - ret iz 107,415,991 255,876 260
Right-d-use assals X 50, 202070 -
Goodwl 13 - 17,046, 265
Befarrad tax assats - nat is 5T =0 28= -
Retirement banafits aesat £ . T.855.054
Othar noncument assets 2 14 29 2 B4 060 205 827,541
Tolal Noneurrant Assata _ AJE, 134,308 448,111,550
P1,TIRAZO 4TS P2 10079 281
UABEIMES AND EQUTTY
Crarfand L iabilithes
Trado and othar curment [kabililias 4 P41 FRS5071 466
Loan payatds 5 180,000, 000 .
Laasa lighalithes X Ba,AE3, 121 -
Currord pewtion of oblgations under financo
leasa 20 . 182,379 463
Withteidling wxes payable 2438412 6,096,017
ncorie tax paya bl 4 274, 40 9,415,467
_Current porton of nstaliment payabie - 9205 042
Total Current Uabdities 00,318 429 269,167 4565
Moncurment Llebikibes
Laacsa Banlibos - net of cumant portion Fo ) 9 248 Wb -
CHipatans under finance leass - mat of cumant
ATy 20 - 15,995,011
Dredined bangfit fiabithy =2 29 a2 Tod -
Dalnerod 8% 1ahilles - nat 13 - Ay &7 133
Tolal Noncurrer LiabliHkes PR5.001 052 P53 2ae 150
Total Liabillties PIRADOTE  F32459605

Foveared



Deeambar 31

— MNele 019 18

Equity Altributable to Equity Holgers of tha
Parenl Company

Capital stoch 15 PORS3ANEABR P44T7 665473
Agcitional pakd=in capital 16 257 250 8TT BeT 20 87T
Traaswry stock i (2AS267.568) {205267 558)
Stock dividend distibutabie G - 422,431 531
Fair value resarve I (396.801.971)  (2BA.726,021Y
Fatwamani benefils resere s2 (17 514 803) 308,280
Remined gamings 11, 1§ pes 178428 1199822535

Hon-cantrod ing rteresl

1308075910  4,753704.577
5,340 443 5,004 799

Total Equity

1313419250  1,760819.776

P1,712 530429 P2 103.079.3531

Swa Modict o e Criepolicptad Fingncial Shoerpss.



PACIAC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AHD SLIBSIDIARIES
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF IMCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017

Nts 013 _ 2018 W7
AEVEMUES
Equipment renial 2 B0 P61 480, TST P 448 317 811 P1,840,580.981
Cormimission and distribution
income 25 IGAIS10I0 4ETAMEIAS 47B4AT2AAE
BESASS I8 1.935543,995 2,319,943,376
C{STS AND EXPENSES 18 1,500 £2F 1614488192 1,652,402 4E0
CRERATING MCOME
(LCE8) {30020 228]  AS1455804 567500016
OTHER MCOME
{CHARGES]
Diiviherr! indome g 11 41,857 2 23062, 445 20,528 055
T e R ooy qporc il 13 {17.046,268) (110,533 996) -
helari to-rarie Qaln (oas] on
marietable sequnities g  {15348.317) {11 B03.085) 2 204,500
Financa chamges 20 (7,022,536 {6,187.252) (10,859 855}
Interest ncomea 7 15425619 1475113 B53 A
Licanga fea ingma - L 458, 1 -
_Onhars - e 2t I9060.888)  SE430481 41,323,074
(16,164 443} 161422797 54,155,446
INCOME (LCO=28) BEFORE
WHWCOME TAX (393,387 ABT1] 4B2A7RE01 721,746,362
MNCOME TaX EXFENSE
(BEMNEFIT) 15
Curearnt 7600280 1313072 230041248
Delemed ) (2018577 47402314 (1,160, 0B}
(74418267} 176830586 220 /50374
NET INCOM E (LORS) | (Pa20872774) PIMMBMNE  P4RZA55.982
Anirhutable toy:
Erprity halchors. of ta Faranl

ha
L]

Cormpany (31R411,058) FI0PA5HS.355 P480,101.221
Fowoamnalling Intsnest (1,581,233 1288645 2 76, 75T

{F1209723T4) P30A0MEDNE  P4T2,865990

Ahribinsbie ko Equity

Hodders o1 the Parent

CompaiTy
Bag; Eamings Par Shan 23 (PQATEL) POASTD FO.5733
D¥luted Earnings Per Shars 23 {POLYTAT) POAETS PO.5TI3

S Pt 20 B ekl e’ FInnaralll STRCMMTRRHA.



PACIFIC OHLNE SYSTEMS CORPOAATION AND SUESIDIARIES

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017

Note 20E Pty |1 207
NET IMCOME {LO53) (F320.972,374) P304 0a8 015 P402,865.864
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOBE (LO%S5)
Marna that will nol ba
recizzaifind ia profit or logs
Femmasurameants al refiromeant
banalits, net ol @x 22 {18,152599) 12377190 1,244 S5
Falr value galn {joss) on
inresimants i shchs i1 {108.0r3.050) {308 TEZ 380, 113,697 500
_ (18 2 0ast (234 405180) 120).246,512
TOTAL COMPREHENHYE
INCGOME (LO53) [P4aT 200, 43D) POF42Z825 PRI 112,30
ARt riburtabbs to:
Equimy holdars of he Pararit
Comparey (PAASINGAT) PA2S1TE  PEI1034TTIA
Non-Sormmaling Intsrest (1,581,358) 1,305,640 2. 764 TEY
(PaT, 200 A1) PRELZ RS PHR15,112,500

Saen Mintaa [0 e Coremovclafng Frarioll STy,



PACIFIC ONUMNE SYSTEMS COAPORATION AMD SUBS!MARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 21419, 2018 AND 2017

MNote 201% ZU18H 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
IncomE (W53} befors incomes
Fx {PIEs3BT Ar1) P4E2 AT 801 P72, Fag, s
Arjustments for
Depreciaton and arrcti 2ation 2 1215815 o,y i 725 444 PTH
Deppreciaton of dght-ol-Lee
assats 0 451 2 EI8 -
IMpainmea, K155 40
Gopchwill 13 17,8296  110,933.604 -
Traga and cther recervables 5 17 2,147 391 - 25,000,000
CHwrdend income & 11 [21,257.224) (MWOA2.45)  {20,828.055)
Interast income Fa21 (10,149%18)  (14,031,515) (BE3. 54
Fla frgenn Tt Coesk ZF 18,2656, 466 12,180,410 11,181 A5S
Falr value k55 (galm) on
markatabla sacuritios 8 15244311 11,500,085 (2204, 528
Finance charges X ¥l 34 €. 187 252 10,859 855
Gain on Sak al.
Merketabis securitlas a2t - (1,548,255 .
Property and squipment 21 (E09,812) (1,038 518) {155,142)
Unreshizad foreign exchange
[T _ _ 21 BAS 05T £Ra e 1588713
Oparatng income {loss) alws
working capital changes [1SB 06538  BOZAT2012  B71.880,718
Decreasa [tncraasa) [m:
Trade amd other receivables 110,414,855 218,239,380 {114,053, 9%d]
Crnar cuffert assets (60,329 58) (32 860.265) A0 41 B
Righl-gf-use assats (&7 BA08 BFT) - .
Ot noncurrent Asssts (B4,060,518) (128.219634) (9,583,587
Increasa (decTeasa) in:
Tratha and other Cument
lahiltias (100, 639,516) {163,065 885} 41,212 426
Withrokding 1axes payabia (& A57 B05) (4,985,780} {7 435 063)
Lease liablities 128,007 552 - .
Imierest recahned 10,149,516 14,001,615 Ro3ndd
Incomes b, puid (13,824 T37) {149,371 B45) [(243.B07 657
Fatirermant coniibubms 22 (6,500, () (1000000 (11, 00.583)
Mot sash Rows {Ueed) provided
by oparafing activities {T75,108 E20) 6570094 60865 S0

Famand




Mot mIa A8 217

CAEM FLOWSE FROM

IMVESTNG ACTIVITIES
Acrarifics of:

Maremble secunites & F - P o (F17,034,1.30]

IvEStmants i SEOCKE i1 - {32 490 020) (&8 2003, 070)

Proparty and aruipment 12 (M65IBATE]  (45.671.156) (156,774,505}
Divirdands rocalsad g 11 31,657 2724 20,002 445 20 828 055
Froceeds foim gala ol

Markababia sacinbiss . 12,425,090 6,748,000

Propary 2nd equipmen| 81,974 1,610,461 1,089 280

I e arThS in socke - . 172,833,550
Cagh resabad Inam acqksidon

al subsldiarkes L - 76 584,703
M cash Aows pravided by

fused g imvastng acihitias 2112422 (37095180 36,060,123
CASH FLOWS FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Gersh Bvidends paid - (F3A7.273.130) {25509, R3]
Loan preceeds 15 150,000,000 - -
Dacroaaza (Increasa) in-

Choligations ymidar linancs

lsase a5 (asAat4d474) (9488510 (4447610

Instaliment payvable {9,205, 2] 3,761 219 5,441 A23
Payrrenl of laase |labilites 20 (G0, 0, Bl 7y . -
Acouisiions of reasury shames 15 - (16606, MR8 {211.B41.55)
Financa charges paid 20 (7,022 938 (6187, 358)  [(10,B5%,658)
Met cazh tlows provided by

{used In) linancing Activitas 57.911,899 (%5 734551 (518,829,559)
NET MCREASE (DECREASE)

M CASH IMEBA 253} 124,170,040 167,508 A8
CASH AND CASH

EINVALENTS AT

HEGINM MG OF YEAR ST1,200,2% 44713090 5 9785
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE

RATE CHANGES ON CASH 21 6 FT0 (40 TE1) 297,708
CASH AHD CAGH

EWALEMTS AT END OF

YEAR 7 PATTATLA PSNMZBOZSA P4HT10.9MG

St I 12t CoriacAcibag Py SinfamaTts.



PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019, 2018 AND 2017

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Additional Stock Retirement MNon-
Capiial Paid-in Treasury Dividend Fair Value Beanefits Retalned controlling Total
Nole Stock Capital_ $tock Distributable Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Interest Equity

Balance at Jenuary 1, 2019 P447,665473 P257,250.677 (P285,267,558) P422,431,981 __{P288,726,921) P538,390  P1,199,622935 P1,753,714977 P6,904,799 P1,760.61 9,776
Net loss - - - - - - {319,411,018) {319,411,018) (1,561,356) {320,972,374)
Other comprehensive loss i1, 22 - - - - {108,075,050)  {18,152,999} - (126,228,049} {126,228,049)
Total comprehensive 088

for the year - - {108,075,050) (18,152,999) (319,411,018) (445,639,067) (1,561,356)  (447,200,423)
Transactions with owners
Cash dividends 16 - - - - - - - - - "
Stock dividend distributed 16 447665473 - - {422,431,961) - - {25,233,492) - - -
Acquisition of treasury

shares 16 - - - - - - - - - -
Othver - - - - - - - - - -
December 31, 2018 Pg95,330,946 P257,250,677 {P285,267,558) P - {(396,801,971) (P17,614,609) P855,178,425 P1,308,075,910 P5,343,443 P1,313,419,353

Forward



Equity Attributable to Equity Holders ot the Parent Company
Stock

Additional Retiremerit Non
Capital Pald4dn Treasury Dividend Fair Value Benetits Retained controlling Total
Nole Stock Capital Stock Distributable Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Interest Equity
Balance at January 1, 2018,
as previously classilied P447,665,473 P257,250,677 (P268,660,770) P - P116,820,810 (P11,838,800) P1,474,292,424 P2/)15,530,814 P4,536,058 P2,020,074,872
Realized portion of fair value
reserve 11 - - - = (98,774,351) - 98,774,351 - - -
Balance at January 1, 2018 447,665,473 257,260,677  (268,660,770) - 18,055,459  (11,838,800) 1,573,086,775  2,015,538,814 4,536,058 2,020,074,872
Met income - - - - - - 302,859,366 302,659,366 1,368,649 304,048,016
Other comprehensive
income {loss) i1, 22 - - - - (306,782,380} 12,377,190 - {284,405,190) - {294 405,190}
Total comprehansive income
for the year - - - - {306,782,380) 12,377,190 302,659,366 8,254,176 1,288,649 9,642,828
Transactions with owners
Cash dividends 16 - - - - - - {253,471,225) (253,471,225)  (95%,441) (254,422,666}
Stock dividend 16 - - - 422,431,981 - - (422,431,981) - - -
Acquisition of treasury
shares 16 - - {16,606,788) - - - - {16,606,768)} - {16,606,788)
Other - - - - - - - 1,931,533 1,931,533
December 31, 2018 P447,665,473 P257,250,677 (P285,267,558) P422,431,9¢1 (P288,726,021) P538,300 $1,199,822,935 P1,763, 714,977 P§,904,799 P1,760,619,776

Forward



Equity Attributable to Equlty Holders of the Parent Company

Additional Retirement Non-
Capital Pald-in Treasury Fair Value Benefiis Retained controlling
Note Stock Capital Stock Reserve Reserve Eamings Total Interest Total Equity
January 1, 2017 P447,665473 P257,250,677  (P56,819,178) (P21 67,740} (P13,087,762) P1,322,465903 P1,955.307,373 Ps 323,531 P1,960,630,804
Net income for the year - - - - - 490,101,221 490,101,221 2,764,767 492,865,988
Other comprehensiva Inccme - - - 118,897 550 1,248,962 - 120,246,512 - 120,246,512
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 118,997,550 1,248,962 480,101,221 510,347,733 2,764,767 613,112,500
Transactions with owners
Cash dividend 16 - - - - - (338,274,700} (338,274,700} (3,552.240)  (341,826,940)
Acquisition of treasury shares 16 - - {211,841,592) - - - {211,841 592) - {211,841,6592)
December 31, 2017 P447 665,473 P257,2580,677 (P268,660,770) P116,829,8610 (P11,838,800) P1,474,292,424 P2,015,538,814 P4,536,058 P2,020,074,872

Seo Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLDATED FINANC]AL STATEMENTS

1. Raporting Entity

Copornta Il akon

Pacific Onine Sysiems Corporadon ("Pacifie Online” or “Parent Company”) wis
Incorporaied In dhe Phifppines and registared with the Phidippine Securiles and
Exchanpo Commisgon (SEC) an Movember 6, 1583, The FParant Company I= &
publie nompany under Secton 17.2 of he Setumies Regulaton Coda {(SRCY and S
shares are listed on 1he Philppine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) staring on Aprl 12,
207. The Parenl Campany's registernd office address & at 28th Floor, East Tower.
Phllippine Siock Exghange Comre, Exchange Aoad, Orlipas Cenlar, Faslg Cliy.
Matrd Mania.

Tha Group i5 8 50.1% cwned subskdiary of Pramium Lasure Comparation (PLC)
Ymmediale Pasent Compamy™) and its wimate parent company 18 Bella Comporation
(Bala). Baa and PLC are corporations with shares listed on tw PSE.

The pocompanylng consoldated fimandal statementy comprise the finantial
statements of o Parent Company and is subsioiaries (pollechively refamad 1o as the
“Group™. The lolowing submedmnas are incomporated in the  Prilippines and

regisared with SEC:
Percentags of Crwnership

_ _ Direst T [l |
Lo Pacihc Leisure Compomtion ["LotoFac) 10C. %0 -
Lucky Cirgla Corporatian [LCCT* 7.4 2.5
Tatgl Gaming Tachnologhkes, Inc. (TGTT} o 5 -
Fak:on Resources, lnc. [“FRIT™ - 10000
TET) Samvicas, Ing(TETISL™ - 100,00
Alhena Venhves Inc. (AVIE™ - 100,00
Asary Integqmted Hub Inc. (AIHI™ . 100,00
Clrcle 8 Gaming Venlura, ne. (CEY*" - 10000
Luckoy Daal Laisura Inc. {LLI™" - 100K
Lucky Fortune Busingss Yentusas, Inc. (LEVI)™ . 100D
Luciey Phok Leisure Club Comp. (LLCCH™ - 100.00
Lusky Weantures Leisure Corp, (LLCH™" - 106,00
Liacky (ames Entartarmeni Werturas Inc, (LGEVIF " . 10000
Otz Valey Comparathinn (OWVE - 100.00_

= gty ownedr ditooh TOTH
" inuirgctl aamid SV LT {EORGIbe TR £ 28 “hinr Eniiied] SREg vl 1, 2O0TT ol 1.3)

Pagifc Onlia

The Parent Company i engaged In he develogment, dasiqn and management of
onling computer Syslems, Terminals and sottware Tor the gaming industry. Tha Pareri
Sompany can alkn engage in ary lawful amanpesmenl lor sharing profits, wnign of
interest, unitizafion or Memel agroament, reciamcal CoNCRESkon, or coopeTation with
ANy Corparalion, assoialion, parnership, syndicate, orlty, erson or govarnmental,
municipal ar pubde auteosdty, domestie or kg



mmllﬂ was Incorporaled and registaved with SEG en Octoper 23, 2002, The pamary
purpose of TGTI i o lease gaming equipmanl and provide  Consulancy SENVIGES
miafve W online gaming o thata angaged in gaming bBusiness, renprofit
Irestuticns, and other enlitigs.

Lodctac

LotoPac was incorporated in March 27, primardy 0 acquire, eslabilish, own, hald,
lease, sell, conducl, oparams, and managée amuserman), recreatkonal and gaming
aquipment ladiites, and anleqrme of evary kind and natune, as wall as places ke
panbiions, racrealion, gaming, amyusarnant snd keisure of The ganeral public. and 1O
acquire, hokd and gperate ary and all privileges, rights, ranchises and coNCESSions
25 may ba propar, necessary, advantapasus, of convenlem in tha conduct of g
bistiress. LoloPac acquired LCGC I August 2007

oG and Ming Erldigs

LS and Mine Enbties were incaporaled and redistered with SEC 10 angage In the
uminess of frading and gellng of poods such 85 Swespmlalkions hekars, okets of
shows and concarts, amd such other number games, indwding bul i limiked 1o
thosg Introduweed by Philipping Charity Swaepstakes Ofice (PTS0).

LCC amd Mine Enklies are aufhonzed agents of PCE0 opeorating iofery bakting
shatons Incaled in major branches ol shafping malks kKB SM Supermalls, Aobirsons
and Gaisans, naticnwide, LOC and Mina Entibes, as PCSO agents, aam a cenain

percenlage of tha sales of loHo, Weno, sweepstakes and instant scratch Bckats
{Moia 2).

ERI

FRI wag incoporatad primanly 1o engage in te business of lrading of Salkag of
poods on whokesake or retail bass, such a3 sweopsmkas, instam gama Nckets, and
cther kttary ard garminp tokets, induding, but rat imited o, hose intoduced by
RCSD; as well as lickats o showe, cONCEAS and ofhar 8vems,

TGS

TAT Sendces, Int. was incormporaled primadly 10 engape in, conduct amd camy on
The business of prosdding kgisheal, technkcal pporl. and consullancy sarvices, and
pronsiding ends to-arnd solutions 1o entites in Ha parmng mdwstry Inoall its aspects.

2. Agresmems with PCSO

PCED |5 the principal govermmeant agency for ralsing and providEng funds I health
programs, medical ssdstanca and sandors, and chartiss of national character. [t
ganesatns unde kor its programs by hoiding and comducting charty sweopTakes,
races and |otteres,



P ' i

Tha ELA was orginalty awerded to Pacitc Cnllne on Movernber 25, 9905, whereby
the PCSO leaced online kotary equipmernt faom tha Parent Company lor PCS0O's
VisMin enlina ket aparations, This was amendad on Fetwuary 13, 2004, wherain the
Pargnt Company was aBowed 0 conbnue deployment of anding koo leaminals in
VisMin for a period of wight (B} years from date of its commerclal operaben, which
wag oefined 10 be opeation of not less than 8O0 latto termdnals, With tha Faront
Compamy's commercial cperalion stiscted on Apnl 1, 2005, its amended ELA was
due 1o expire March 31, 2013 In addan 1o the koo terninals, (his kease induded
the ceniral computad SySlEM, CNmMUuncations and draw equkpment, and e night 1o
usa the appiication soffware and manuals tor the cantral computer of PCE0's VisMin
onlire lotleny systam.

20712 Amernchexd ELA, On Moy 22, 3012, e ELA was amandad 1o include tha leasa
of kofto terminals in soma of PCSOTs oilery operatom n Luron which rasaligd n e
reduction al the fass, Tha amendment also includes supehy g Betting sHps and Hoked
paper mlls i FCS0, incorporating maintengnca and mpalr senices a3 part ol e
Peps, and giving 1ha later an cption to purchase the kfio equipment in VISMIN for
F150millicn at i and of e Bats tarm.

2M3 Amanoed ELA. On March 28, 2013, e ELA was further amended to exend
the tamm e Marck 31, 2013 0 July 310 2045, [n ey of the PCE0D opteon 1O
purchags e equipmer, tha Pareml Comgany agresd i mduce the fees or VISMIN
and 3howioar tha cost of halting Hips and ticket pa e rolls for Luomn ard WISk IN.

015 Amonded ELA. On July 15, 2015, e ELA was agdin amendad to camond e
larm from Augugt 1, 2015 g Juby 31, 2018 T amendmant alsa requsred ha Parent
Company to depotit an addilional P50 milion cash bomd o guaramtes the
unhampeod wso and aparakon of e komery syatem, induding equimesit, Safvers,
network communicaion and larminals,

20718 Amarchat ElLA. On Secismbar 12, 2018, the ELA was amende] B extend the
Ity froon Awguat 1, 5018 to July 31, 2019, The amendmeént tequired tha Parart
Comparmy 1o posl an acdiional deposit of PFO milkan cash borwd. Tha tolal cash
bond of P12.0 rmilien 5 ingluced uncr “Omar nencuarrent 3ssels” in fee oongolids b
stateimwaTts of financlal posonn (Aol 1)

2078 Amended ELA. On August 1, 2019, tha ELA was anmandad to extend tha term
from August 1, 2019 w Juty 3y, 2020, The PCEO anncunced That 3 biiding for is
nationwlda Iofary system (NOLS) will be conducted during the aardy part of 2020,
The Parént Comgany has seqirassed its madiness 1o participata in e 5aid edding,
as it had joined the PCS0 bioding exemises held In 2019, The Pargnt Company's
ELA with PCS0 is curmently on an annual basts bacauss of the Filed hitkding in 20149
of its NOLS. Thic maans that e Parant Company will have o contime 1o opara
Lenckasr e cumant ELA terms beyond Juby 2020; 6., when PCS0 s atbla ko hokd s
bddding, award the new ELA contact and undeitake a Gansiton from the corment
letbery syslem o the new sysbem. Should tha PGSO pldding for MOLE De held in
2020, tha Pamol Conyrary & well phsidonasd b be a firont runner in said tedding due
I {5 credertigls and treck ecend. But ehould PCSC el win the Bid, the Pament
Company will cankines 1 oparats gheen Ihal the Parart Compary's conimact wikh
FCS0 wil be sxtended for another ane (1) W wo {2} yaars cue 1o e transiton
period requirgd Ior 2 new service provider b ke aver e NOLS.



The lags. presealed a3 *Equioment ranlal” In the consolidaled statemerts o income.
are based on a gercentage ol gross sales of loto taminals or a fixed anmal rantal ol
Fa5,000 per tarminal in commaengial aparation, whichevar is bighet. The number al
mmalied lotto lrminals tokaled 3,785 and 4,029 as at Decombar 31, 2015 and 2048,
mspecively. The Parent Company's squipmant rental cavenue amounted o
P427.9 milkon, PR milkan, and P1036.9 milion in 2015, 2018 anrd 2017,
tespactvely. The relaied receivables from PGSO, induded undar “Trade and cHhar
receivaties” account in ha consokdared skatermants of inanclal position, amadntad
o P42.7 milian and P72 milllon g5 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, raspectivaty
{Male 9],

frrstar! Serakeh Tackeds, On darch 25, 2008, the Panent Company omarad inlo a non-
oxchsive Memomndum ol Adgreamant {MOA) with PCS0 kot tha printing, distaution
ard sale of imtart s$crach Hokals effeclive Decomber 1, 2008 undl Decembar 1.
2016, The share of PCS0 is guamnkead lor 500 milkon nokedd 1o e sold over 3
perod ol s@/en years Irom he dale of the MOA's affectiity

The 1A0A requires a cagh bond amownbing ke F100 mitkon 1o be deposiled in an
Irtaros-erarng bark apcount desigraled by PCSO o guaranies the paymant of all
pripas bor each sevies of okt disinboted, sobpect b reviaw by PCRO for 3 parcd o
soven years from e dake o initi] faungh of tha Instant Sokels and shall be
mainizinod co-terminus with this MOA. Tha Inlarest accres o 1he Parent Company
and is crediled L 3 saparate bank aceounl, [0 2018, 1ha Parent Sompany eoeived g
eanificaton from PCSC [or 1ha release of such bond.

On March 21, 2015, tha Paran Sompany entered ima an Outsurging Mano@andum
o Apgreemnenl {SMOAY with Powerball Qaming amd Enterlalnment Comporamdn
(IPGEC) authariring PGEC as Ihg eedisha marketing, distribaton, selkng and
colecting apent of the Parent Company throughold the Philipgings. The agrasmant
book sflect on Apnl 1, 2315 and shall remain efleclive 35 ong a3 1ha MIOA with
PCSO ar any exdension Ihereol shall b affecive.

FGEC agred o assumwy the Parenl Company's commimiert & PSSO 1o sotaly
shouldsr T projocl cost for the Instant Scratch Ticket program, which consigls of
lhe costs of producton, distibution, wambousng, . software and  hardwarg
maintenance, advenising, markating, salllng and other relaled sxpenses. PGEC =
anlitied to aW the ravenues, sums and proceeds from the Instanl Scralch Tlckels
beginning Aprt 1, 2015, and shal be obigaled to showder the pay-outs for all
winnings Imym Baid tehals sobd baglnning Ap 1, 2015, An existng fansullancy
agreamarn] batweon the Parant Company and PGEC for the seratch tickat oparatons
was immediately terminated upon exeogticn of e COMOA in 2015,

The MOA with PGSO expired on Movember 30, 2018 and the Pamnt Company's
O A with PGEC also expired accondingly_ All bokete distnbuied 1o tha rakailars and
Bpemts., wore alkwnd 17 be markelsd confnuously umtdl fully $odd and he
toftaiing varnings tharea! wore honored and paid aven atter the parod of he
MOA with PCS0.

In 2018, tha Parent Company received a cortificalion from the OIC-Manager o
Accounting and Budgel Cepartment (ADB) ol PCSO stafing the fulfifmand of tha
Pararl Company’e obgaton unoer the MOA end thereby Glgarng tha Parent's
Compary af any accourtabliy Fareundsr. ADE corfifiad that ine Parent Company iz
antithed 1o e reheasa of tha P1O0 million cash band. Tha cash bond 18 presenmd as
"Bands and deposits” under "Ofher Cumant Assabs™ accolnt fNote 10



In Jarwary 2016, the Paranl Company eeted int 5 Brand and Tradarmark Licenss
Agreemen with Powertall Markating & Logistics Gom. (PMLG) granilng ha Ener a
non-aeckynable, non-rarnslerabie Brd Gxciusive nght to use of the Parent Codnpary's
Instart scraich Bokets” Brands ond Tradevnarks. The egreamant hag an inilial term of
five {5} yaars eflectve on Janyary 1, 2018, subjecl 1o adyusiment 0 carform & and
colncide with the term of e PMLC's agrsement with PCSO tor the supply and
dicinibuthon of its Instant scratch ticksts. The consideraton {5 & guarmntesd fred
monthly ke, FMLC |s no restricted to develop ths i brand,

TET) Equipment Leasd Agreemenl

o4 ELA. TG has an ELA witn PGSO for a pericd o fen (10) years from e dake
A actal opergton of at laasl 150 onling kene oulets 0 Septernber A0, 2020, This
covers PCSO's online keno lotlery operaons, The lease indudes onling keno
Pouipmant and accessones,

7008 Amancied ELA. Cm July 15, 2008, the ELA was amended wharein, TG shall
provicks thz services of telecomminications integeater and pmcurement of paper
sappiies for the onling kene operaions of PC30 i Luzon and VISMIN areas. In
conclderaton 1or sech Sonsoas, PCSO shall pay addiional kee bapad on g cerain
percerage of the gross sakes from all onbne keno tarminaks In operation ¥ LU200
and VISHMIN araas compuied by PCS0 and poryabia bhi-wealdy',

2010 Avmeted ELA. On Octaber 1, 2019, the ELA was amanded 1o 8 Kwer ks
rale, molusive of VAT The minimun price per kend bet was reducad fmm Tweke
Fasgos (F12.00) 1o Tan Poses (P10.00), inclusiva of D3T,

The fres, prasontad as “Equipment rental” n the consoddaied stalamentts of INCHDE,
are basad on A parcontage ol the gross amount of toket sales from al of TGTIS
oniing kana Ioflery leminals, exduding valuva-added fases (VAT) of & fixed arinual
remtal of P40.000 per tarminal in commercial dperabon, whichever is higher. The
number of installed koo Wmingls toaled 1,833 and 2434 as at Decanber 31, 2018
and 2018, rospectively. TGT's equipment rental ravenpa amownted o PI53.6
million, PE5A,T millike, and PENES milllon 2019, 2HE and 2017, respectivaly. The
related recaivabies from PCS0O, induded under “Trade and gther rgcatvables®
account In the consolidated statements of financal position, amouwnlad W F22.7
mition ang PTT.1 milion ag al December 31, 2019 and 2018, respactively (Mo ).

Om Juity 27, 2019, the Prasiden] ¢f tw Philippings, suspended tha sale of PLSO
pames - boro, kero Instant scratch Hckets 3nd smal-town ofery (STL]. The
suspension was ewormually [feed on July 31, 2018 lor lote, August 24, 201% fr STL
and Sepember 27, 2019 bor kend and sorawh boeis.

3. Bl of Prepanmion

shatemant of Comall ned

Tha carsalidaled financlk slatements have besm prepamd in compliande Wi
Priipping Pnandal Reporting Standacds (PFASS). PFRASs are hased on
Internaforal Financal Repotieg Standars ((FRSs) Ssued by e [niomatonal
Accounting Stwandards Board (4S8} PFRSs which gre issued by (e Philipoing
Financial Feporing Stendards Councl (FRSC), conslst of PTRSE, Philipping
Aocounting Standamds (PASs). and Prilaine Iniarpetatonz. Tha accomparing
comoldated Frandal stalamenls were approvod and avttezad or Fsuancs By the
Board of Direcis (BOD] on February 20, 20630,



Bagls of Meaguremant )
The coreatidaled financsl stabermants have baan prapared 00 3 hashorhcal carsd Dashs,
exoagl for e fallowing irems, which are measued on an almmative bage on gach
[Eporting cato:

' markatata securtios and Imsesiments 1N Stocks G maasured al falr valus,; and

=  dofined benefts asset which & measured 2& he nat otal of he fair wvalue of e
plan 8556k and e prosent value of e chafimed benaft obllgalon.

1 il
The coneadidated Fnancial sixtements am prasanted o Philipping pest (P O PhEl,
which |5 e Parent Campany's lunclional currency. Al amounts are rounded ali I
™ neares] pase. axce when oifemkdsa nokca bad.

Baziz ol {:onsojidation

The cxmoiated fnandal salements compriae the financial stalaments of tha
Parent Company Bnd [1s subsidiarkes. The lnanclal stalaments al he g brsidianas
are piepared for 1he same reporing year as e Perert Company Lsing CONS ST,
accouniing policies.

A yulmidkary is an ertity contralied by e Group. The Group commols an enidy whan
il is oxposed &, o has Aghls 1o, vanakia ralums from it imedvament with Be antity
ame has te ahilty 10 alecr those mums trough 8 power over the anfly, The
Group M-as56Eses whather o nat L contrds an mvestes If facts and CIMCAWMStancas
inckeate that Bwre ara changes 1o ong ar rone of the thraes elements of conbad.

Wihan the Group has lass than majorty of the veleg or similar rights of an invegtas,
the Group congiders 2l rekevant fachs ard Sirumsiances in essassing whoe il has
powar owar an Lnvestee, indudng ihe contrachual amangemen with 1ha other
sharshobiers with 2 rghl to vate of the Invesbee, Aphts ansing fom other cenirctual
amangerments and e Grous's vobing Aghts and palental voling fgits.

Tha finaneal statements of the sutskdkaries am indudad in the corspidamed financhal
clatoments from e date when the Group otfains conmal, and continue o be
congoiciated untl the date when such conml ceases.

Tha conpokdated financial stataments are prepared lor he same Teportng perod &5
the Parent Company, using urffomn accounting policies for like Iansachons and
other svents m simier ctroumstances, Intergroup balances and TanzAchng,
imchuding Intergroug unrsalined profts and ossas, are eliminglad In prepanng e
conanidared financial slatements,

Nar-carmdiing imerest represents e portion of profl or logs and nal assets rid
held by the Parent company and  precanizd separstety in he maclidated
gigtements of Mawma, corsolidated stalements o comprehensive  [pComs,
covssoddated statemerts af Shanges o equity ard within equity in Ihe consolidated
statermnents ol fmancizl position.

Morrcomrolling inlergst reprasents e interest not haid by the Faranl Company in
TET.



A changa in e ownership Intares) of a subzicRary, wilhoul B ks of gontril, 15
accounted for B3 Bn edquity transaction. 1l the Group loses control over a subskdiary,
the Group: (it derecognizes the ascets {ncluding poodwill] and Kabiilies of the
subsidiary, Ihe camylng amount of any non-contlling inlerasts and the cumulativa
ranzaction dHlerences racoided In equity: {iij recogrizes the falr value ol the
consldamion racakad, the Tale vaipa al any invasiment edaned and amy surplus of
delicit in prakil of kes; and (i} reclagsify Ihe Parent Company's share of components
pravicusly moognized in other comprehensive income Yo pofil ar loss or raqined
eamings, &5 appropate, a3 would be required if the Groun had directy digprsed of
tha rakated ascetz or Habdties.

%, SlgnMicernt Accaunling Polickes

The accounting podcles a1 out bedow have been applied conskslantty 1o all yaars
presemed in thesa consoliduied financial siatements and have bean appied
consistarty by the Group entities, exced for the changes in a¢oounting policies as
axplacraid below.

Adoption ¢ How G0 Roviged
Interpreiabons

The Grmup has adapted the followlng 2mendments ta slandamd staring Januwary 1,
2018 and acoordngly, changed ils acemanting policies. Excopt as olhémiza stalad,
the adoprion dic nod have a rmalavial inpact on the Group's consodidated financial
cha hemerts.

« PFAS 16 Leasas supowmedes PAS 17 Leases and the related Philinplne
Interpeetations. The new standard Iniroducas a single Inasa accounting modd for
leezsenns undar which abl major leases ae mcognized o-balance sheel, nemoying
the lease classicaton tesl Lsase accounting for leszors essantiilly remalrs
unchangod exce Tor & number of detais including the appication of ha new
legse deliniion, rew Sak-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-kaasa guidance and
rew distiosure roquirements. Practical expedents and tanjelad reliets were
mtroducad inchading 20 cptonal lessea exemptian for shon-term Gases (leases
with 2 term of 12 montha o 1085 and 1ow-value Bems, as well a5 the pemiEsion
of postiolo-davel accountng nslesd of apphing the requirements o Indisdual
\nases. New esimates and Judgmental thresholds that affect the denfificalion,
classfication and measurarmanl of kass ransactions, as well 8x redquirarants It
réassess cartain key estmates and judgmeant: at asch reporting date were
Itraduand.



Tha Group hes adopted PFAS 16 on the dale of Imtda! application, January 1,
2019 (Mt 20). Reter 1o Mglg 20 for tha impadt (0 the consolica ed finardal
stlemants, The tansiton 10 PFRS 16 k5 discussed under e succesding
accounding polkey lor keases, The misnum fture ental paymerts as at
Decparbear 31, 2018 amawied 1 PR, 335,553,

Arvourt

Leasa commitmeants dieciosad at Decembar 31, 2008 P50 335,653
Weighted average incremental bamdwing rato at

January 1, 20138 T%
Discountad operating leasa commitments as al

Jamoaey 1, 2019 0,059,014
Lass. Commimets refating o shor-term legses 101, 6= 8548
Less: Domemitments retaling 1o laases of low-walog 2500 -
Add: Commibmants retaling W leases previousty clagsified a9

limance I3ASES AT AT
Andd: Payments im pplional gxdgnskon panmds ngl recgnized

at Decennibar 31, 2118 . B, 1IT 872
Leasa liabilily recognized al Januany 1, 201% 104,582,714

Whan maasunng keass ligbifes lor Basas that were classifd ag ofemEing
ases, he Group discountod lase payments ueing i Incremental bormwang
rale 3l January 1, 2015 The averape r'e applied lor [ease conbtacts with
duration o 13 momths K 23 montts is 5% and he rale applied for kease
capvtracty with duraton of 24 montdE 1o 35 monhs g 8.5%.

The lodowing amenched standants and Intarpratations are relevant but &d net have a
shnllicant impact on the Growp's consoldamed inancial staemeants.

Philipgine Interpredation |FRIC-23 Uncarminty cvar Ingore Tax Treatments
Pramapment Feaiures witn Negabve Compamalion (Amendments e PERS 9
Financal Insinamants}.

Long-term Imtarasts In Axsnclams and Joinl Veoles (Amendments o PAS B
TrreessTmenks I Assoclates and Joind Yenhares).

Ptan Amendment, Curtailment or Sattiemant (Amendmeants jo FAG 13 Employes
Borufits).

Anrsal Improvements 0 FFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cyela,

Stendands Issued pigt NGL Yot Adocted

A number of new slandands and amendmeme to sandamds are eflacthae tor annual
parnds baalrning aler January 1, 2015, However, tha Qe has net applisd e
idlowing new or amanded standamds in preparing Tess consoldated financial
gabarments. Lnless otnenwise stated, nona al meso are eapecied [ Mava a
sgnificant Impact on te Group's conscldaisd financial stalamenrts.

Efactive Jaraary 1, X020

Ammrndmentts o Baforances i Concephual Framework in FFRS Standardy sots
Oefnibon of Malers! (Amendments @ PAS 1 Fresenlaton of Finanaa
Stalements &nd PAS B Acoramiing Podcies, Changas in Accambng Eshmaies
and Errtws).

Dol of & Buseass (amercments 10 PFRS 3 Buclness Combinalions).



Effacitva Lnoary 1, 2023
PFAS 17 Insurancd Commacts,

Etnarigl Inginmeets

Date of Facagruon. The Growp recognizes a fmancial assel or a Ainancial labiity in
tha cansslidaled Seiemants af tnancial position when it becomes & party 1o the
conmectual provisions of the inslrumenl. In e case of & rfular way purdace of
sake af financial assels, recogriticn it dona using seiament dale ACCTAITNT.

Inikal Recogmtion of Financla! Insinaments. Financlal instrumems are recognized
Wnitally a1 fair value of the comsiderabion given (N case of an asset) or recoived
fin casn o a labiity}. Tha indiai maasursment of Fnanckal instroments, axcepl or
those desigrated at Rir valre through probl or loss {FYPL), indudes transackon
COsts.

Subeequent to iritizl recognition, the Groan claselles s financal assels in A
IMowing caboganes: financial assets at FYPL, financlal assats at lir value hrough
othar comypmbanslva Income (FAOCH and financial agsats at amonized cost. Tha
dlasaificaton of mantial 235415 depends on tha pasks of the entity's busRoes mide!
ior managing the linancial assets and the conractual cash faw charactenstics al he
financial assats,

The Group daessdias ils financia] labilites as sther Anancsl labiliias at amorized
cost of francial sabiies at FYPL. The Group classies all fnancial Dabilites at
amonlzed cost, extapt kot

{2} finardal Nebdlties cesignated by the Group at inftal recomniion as et falr vales
Through proafil of 1658, when doing so results inmore alevant imormabodn.

by mancsl labifies that arse whan a rangker of 2 financial asset does nol quality
lor demecognition Or whedn tha continung invokamant appoach applies.

ic) contimgen! conshidemton recogniesd by e Group in a busingss combnaton
which shall subsequarty be measumd at kir vakia witn changes reeogndzed in
profil of kss.

(Y Mnancial guamnizs contracts and commltments 1o provide a 1oan 2l & ez horwy-
markad ntarest rate which are mitally maasured at fls valoe ard Subsecontly at
the nighear o amorfired amacrnl and amount Gf kas alicwanca.

Managammn determines e casedicstuoen of 15 financial ascals and finardial
Nabdlties af inifal recoprition and, whare Bllowed and apropiata, re-evaluates such
deskraabon at gvwery reporing dam.

Dodwmminaficn of Fair Watuee. Tha lait value of Mnancial inskramants traded in acthe
markets Bt pEoting date 5 based on thefr guard marke! prce of dealr prce
quOtations, withoul any Deduction for rarmsaction costs, When cumsnl bid and Gk,
prices arg not evailable, the price of thi most recent fransacion provides evidersa o
the cumem tair value as long as Ters has nal baen any signifcanl chanpe in
BOGHOMI: CHAIMSIARGES Wnda Ha tirna of Iha trargacton,

For all ofher financial lnstrements not ligled in an ackive marke, e @l value =
oetEmined Ty uSing approfeate valua bon Echnkgass. Valuation Bchoigues includa
net pretanl valug lschmquaes, comparson © similar Insirumerts for which marde
obcarvable prices axisth opion peicing modaks, and ether fEevani valualion medels.



All astats and liabilitias for which fair valoe is measured o disclosed in the
congoldaled tinarmdal statements are calegorized within the lair value hieramdy,
deszibad a5 folkows, based an the lpwest keved inpul thal W9 signiticant to fhe faif
value measusgmanl a5 3 whola:

= Laval ' quoted prices [unadiusied) I actve markats for identical assals ar
llabilities;

' Lavel 2. inpute omer than qualed prices inclaked wittin Lavel 1 that are
observatia for tha asset or liabfity, elther dlmecty or indinecty; and

= Lpwel 3 nputs for the asset or Kabillty thal ara nal based on observablé ma ket
data.

For acsals and lighikties that are recognized in the conzsnidated financial slalaments
an a recwring bess. e Group dalemines whether transkrs have ocoumesd
batwsen Levals in the hierarchy by re-assessing the catogodzaton at the end of
g e ko,

For purposes of the falr valse disciosore, the Group hes delermined classes of
asmats and labiliies on e basis of tha nature, chareceristes and Aaks of e assal
oF lugtaifity and the bevol gl te fair value hlemschy, a5 explained above.

‘Day ' Profit. Whara the lransaction priea i a non-activa markel is aifarant Irm the
fair value of the other chsanable cundnt mariet Fansacticns In e 5ames instrarment
or pased on a valuation technigue whise varables include only data from
observatie marka), the Group recomnizes e difterenca betwoen the Imncacton
prica and fair value (a 'Day 17 paodit} in profil or loss unlass It qualfles lov e g reteon
ag some other ivpe al agsot. In cases where usa |s made o data which are ol
observabla, the oifiarence betwesn e transaction prce ard madel value i3 Onty
recognized in profit o loss when the inputs Become obsonabie of when he
ingtramenl s derecognized. For each ianzaction, he Greap delznmings e
appropate methed of recearizing the ‘Tay 1 profil amounl.

Fi agl

Finamdal Assam & FWPL. The Groun measures A inancial asss al FyYPL ondess it s
rrsasured af amozed cast o at FYOC!, Al indtial mcegniton, the Group may
chogsg 1o inewocably designate a financial assel as mearaed gt FYPL | doing 50
adirmidas of sanfcanty recuees a medsUEmet or recogrillon incorsdgtency hat
wiuld offeerwize arsa framt measurng assets or [@bites of recegnizing the gains
ard Wessos on tham on differar basas.

Financal assatks al F¥PL are camed in the cwesolkated statemants ol financkal
pasition al fair value with pains or kmsses rcogrzed in proft or 1955 . IMmerest ez med
iE recomed in irtares] income while dividend Income s recorded (m DIRET incHma
whar the nghl o receive paymant bas been established. The Group detenmines tha
cout of nvestments S0kl Usnyg speaci ;. identifica ton methaod,

The Growg's fvastmeonts In equdty securites. inchodaed nrdkyr “Merketabls secules”
are clasefed undar s categony [Nale B).

Einancisl Assars a1 FWOGCH, The Group doskgnates an aquily Inslument as a financial

assel at FYOISH it the aoulty secunifies rapreseaTl kvestments that the Group inlends
10 hald for a g ke ke Strateic purposses,

S0 -



Al inkilal receygrition, the Group imavocably ekects 1o presant subsanuent changes in
e iraETmErt's fair value Inafher comprahensive incomes. The elechkon i made on
an invastment-by-nyestment basis.

Sytmequent to inilal recognition, financial asset al FYOC! gra maasured ai fair
valug and chanpes thesein ae recognized in oher compdahensve Income and
presamtad in the *Falr value resere” in equity which can ba transhemed to retained
aarmings when eamed. Dividends samed on howding FYOCT souity seauities arg
recogmzed as Tividend income™ {n prot of Iss when e ngiht i receiva paymenl
has been estblishod, Gains ard lossas oa aquiy finandal assets at FYOC] ara nol
reclassfied Lo profit or ks and ne mpainmen is recogized (N protit o7 Ies.

The Group's [nvesbmants o eguity secuities imciubsd Linder “ nivealmHnts In stockg™
atcounl ara clasaried wncker this catepony {MNale 11].

Fingrcial Assals 8f Amorfized Cost. Tha Group measures a fimancial assat at
amomtized coskif it i nol detgrated as at FYPL and both of the Iolicwing conditions
a1 met

{a) the financal assel is held within a business midel whosa ciieclive is B Colkart
ool cash Aows, and

(b} the contmectual Temms of Ihe fnancial asset ghve rse on speciied Jates fo cagh
fows thal are soledy payments ol grincpal and interast on the princgal amounl
oumstanding.

Soch linanckal assets mre camied ab amorized cost using the gflective inlonest
mathod less any allwancs fof impainment. Amartized cost is calcuialed by taking
inig ageount any discount ar premium on acguisition and fees that are integral pan of
the affecva intarasl mata. The perodc amormzation s mouded as part of Snteresl
Income” in Ihe concolldatad siatements of Income. Galns and ossas ang recognized
in peafil or o=E when the fnandal assets at amodized cost are derecognized o
Inpalied, a5 will as tircugh the amortization progess. Financial assals at amortized
rasl are mcluded in urtenl assate if manrity is within hehe months from repoing
data CHherwisa, thase ame classilied a5 noncrment Assets.

The Gmoups financial assets af amortized cosl Imcdwde cash in banks, cash
erpuivalants, Tade and qiber retivablos, depoots and puarantea bonds.

Cash includes cash on hand and In banks which are stated at face valua. CAEN
equivalentt arg short-team, highly Tiquid investents that are meadily convertible o
krcrny aEMCunits gl cash with arigiral matunbas of hee manths o kess from he dals
ol acquisition and ane subjoct to an ingegnificant risk of changes in valea.

The Group makes an assassmant ol he cbjectives of a business mpdal in which an
assat is hats al 3 portolic keved becavse this Dest reflacs e way the Dumknesa is
managed and iMomation & provided b mananpement. The infomaton consiceed
Imcldes:

» e smad policies and objeclives for e portiulk and the oparation ol Hwose
policias in pracicd, In parficulsr, whather managament's stalegy [otusas on
garmbyy conlractul interest revenug, malnkining a parfcutar imbeares rate prefile,
muarching the duraticn of 1he tinancial assets ke o duration of the Rabilies thal
are funding those assets or realizning cash flows Tiough tha sate of ha assets;
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»  how the perfomance of the ponfglio 15 evaluaked and repoded (o the Groug’s
manaEement,

= o risks Thal affect The parormance of e buinass modsl [and the linandsl
aszels held within hat buslness model) and how those rigks are Managed;

= how manzgars ol e busness are compensated - .9 whather campansation is
hamsd on the fair value of e assels manapad o the conrachul cash fiows
colbac tewd; arwd

v the frequency, volume and timing of sales of firandal assets in pior paricds, 1he
reason tor euch sakes and [t expactaton anout hmre sales achivily.

Financial assaks |hal are held e wading of manapad and whoese pedcmanca &
avehiated In 2 kair valus Basls are maasured at FYPEL because By ara neithar e
1o colec] contraciual cash fiows nor hedd both 1o ooflect confrachual cash fiews and ta
sel nanclal asoelks.

Lmeres
For the purposs of THs assasament, ‘pnncpal’ Is defined a3 te falr value ol he
Financdial assal o Irifial roognition. Tnforest is dalined a5 consideratian (or e tme
valug of monay and jor the oedil associared with e pndcisal amourt ourslard ing
during a pamcular pepod of tme and ko atvar basic lending feks 2nd costs
{a.p. hquldity nisk Brd administrativa costs}, as wal as profil memin.

in assetsing whetha r the contractua! cash Rows ars solely paWTENTs of prncipal and
interest, tw Group conskders the contractual terns 0f he ingnamem. This indudes
assacsing whether the financisl assal comalng a contrachual temn hat coukd changs
e Hming of amoum of conbraciual cash Mows such Mal i wiakd el mesk IS
concitlon. In making the asseseranl, e Group cormickers:

* contingent evenis hat woukd chande e amsunt srd mkng of casn fiows;
= |pwaraga katures;
*  prepsyrent and exiensidn lems,

" lemms that Kmil e Goup's clalm to cash Bows bor speciod assels
(8.4 narkrecouwrsa assat Arrangements); and

+ lgatures hat modty consadembnn of ha Gme vaue of maorgy - 6. panadcal
resel gl nterest rabas.

i Flnanaigl Assebls and L L

Financial Asseis. Whan, and only whan, the Group dhanges its busness mode! far
managing finandal asselz, it shall melassly al affected financal rassts. Such
changes are determinad by Hw Group's senkor management 25 a rasult of axlemal
or intermal chameat amd mus! be skgnificam kB the enlity's operafons A
demarsTrabe: 1 extamal parties,

A changa in the Group's business mode! will oocor onty whett the Group efher
begins of ceases Yo perform ap acdwity hal s sligniiicar, o ifs cperakons; for
eAmpla_ whan Ihe entity nas actulmd. dsposed of or taminated a busingss e

Fingncial Liablies Tha Grgup shall rol reciassty Gy financial liabify.
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Fingneial Lisbiides af Amartized Cosl This categary periaing 10 lnancel liakalies
that ate not designated at FYFL upon incapton of e lablty, These inciude
latillHes arskyg from cpemtions of bomowings. The linancal @blites ars
recognized nitizlly al fair valua and are subseQuenty canfiod at armowtized cost,
imNng infe sccount Ihe Impact of applying the effecthve  Interast melhod o
amorizatian for any related promlem, discount and any directy atmibutatda
wansaction oogte. These financial lisbdiies are Included in current [abiltes I
maturtty is within bvalve months from repering date. Otherwise, hese ar classihed
a5 roncumend liabliths,

This cegory includes the Group's brade and ofher curmenl Hablttles and koan
payatle.

fi ¢l Fl 13| i
Financinl Azsats. A Noancial essat (or, where applicable, a pan of a iinangigl asset
ot part of 2 provp of gmilar fnancal asseis) is derecegnized when:

= thg rights to recsdvo cash Rows o e 3sset axpined,

= thg Group retalns the nghts ® meceva cash Rows fom the assal, bol has
assuned an oblgation o pay tham in Tull withol malerial datay o3 hird parky
under 3 “mass-hreught™ arrangament; o

= the Group hos tansfered g nghts t0 receive cash Fows fom the azsot amd
olther; (@) has ransiered subsmnially all ke nisks and rewards of e Assaks; of
{b] has rweithar trarslened oo retained sustankially an the rise and revands of
thl BE5ol, b has ranslermed contral of tha 85341,

Where the Ciroup has transfemed its oght 1o retetnd cagh iows from an asset and
has neither trarstermsd not retalmed substantially al tha riske and rawands of the
aonel nov traresemed controd of the asset, the assal is eagnized b0 1he exten) ¢f Mg
Group's continuing invohement in the agsal. Conbnuing invohemant that lakes e
foom of a guaranlee ovar the trareforred 2ssel s measured at the kwer of tha
exiginal camang amount of e assel and he mazimem ameuent of comakeration hal
e Grongy could e reguared o rapay.

Financial Liabilings, 4 financial ligbiliy i daracognlzed whan te cbligaton undor thea
nabllity s drscharged, cencelled, or hag expired. Whan an exkadng linarncial 1abilry |s
replaced by enather Irom tha same kendor on subatanilally difterent tarms, of the
mre of an existing Eabilty are sybstantaly modified, soch an excharga o
mindihegmon is treard a5 5 demacogrition of the onginal lighilty gnd the eeogailion of
A rew ianiEly, and the diMferanca in he respecive Gamying amounts |5 recognized in
prolt OF oo
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Irny T i3

The Growg usas the expacted credil losses mede (ECLT) which is apniiad to al
gquity instruments measured a1 amortized cosl of FYOC! ag well a6 o Issued lcan
covmiments and most financial guerentea contracts. The ECL is a 'fhres stage
approach which s basad on the changa n cradit quality of linansial assels since
initial resce-gmthon. Assets mave hrough the threa stages as credil nuallly chenges
anl the stagas diciabe how an entity measwes kmpaimment ssas. Stage 1 iniudes
Anancial Insiromsals that have not had 2 sinificant increase in credh rish since nidal
recogmition or which have kaw credit fisk at the reporing dete. For thase ilems,
12-mentn ECL ara recognized. Tho 12-monlhs ECL are the expacied credil losses
that result I defaull events that are possible within 12 months after e feaparting
date. Stage 2 Includes fnancial inslruments that have kad a signiticanl mcraase in
crBcit ek since intial tecognitlon (witess thay have low Greddt risk at the repaning
data] bt am net credit Impalrad, Far these Hems, Kotme axpscted credt lossas are
recogrized which ks the weighted averags crad losses with the probabiity el gdalaull
a5 the weight, Stage 3 incluces linancial assets Ihat are credit impaired at the
reportng dats, For these Hems, liletme expacied credit losses ara mecognized. MNo
Impalrrment kass is recognized on equity invesiments.

A fnancip! asses |5 crodt Impalred when ana or more everts. that have & darimental
impac] o e estimatas furure cash tiows of e linancial asset nave Jocumed.

W¥nen detanmimng whether the sk of defaul on a financial ingmament has ncreasad
significantty  slnce  [nibda! mcogtion, e Group considars  reasonable and
guEriabia intormation hal i rahavan! and avaiable wifhoul undue cost of afton,
This ncludes both quantitative and que itatve Informaton and analyss, based on tha
Qroup’s Wstedeal experisnce, oredit assessment and including  hrward-lpoking
infomation.

The Intomraticn analyzad by Iha Group includes tha kallowing, B mong offars:

= actunl and expecsd apoiicanl chenges i Ihe political, regquialory and
echnakogical amviroomant of Ihe dabtar or in its Duslpess acivities.

= paymeqt record - tis incdudas overdue Shs a5 well 83 & Enge o varables
Abaun paymenl Abos.

» oxlging and lomxzs) changes n T busingss, Onancial and BEOHHTIG
condilions.

Tha Group consicens a frandial assat 1o be in dataull when:

s the dablx & onlkely to pay 35 cindit obiigaton ko the Group in hall, withow
rgnotrse by Be Groug o actions such as realizing sacurity Gf ary i3 hald); of

» e dabor is past due More than B days on ary matenal ¢redit cbigation o e
Group.

IMpuUIs iNle e assescment of whether a financlal nstumarn is in dafaull amd (fear
sigrifcance neay vary aver lins 1 sallact changas in Sirtumetances
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Tracke and cther ecenables ara writtan off (eliher parfiglty or in full) when e ig no
raglstic protpedd of racovery, This ks genarally the caza when the Group detemrmngs
fhat e Domower does md, hawe 250t or sources Of inceme Wat coukd pencrale
auMcient cash fows ta My Ba amounis sugecd o the wile-ol. Howeyer, the
finandal agees Mat are witten off could still be syt to ankrrcement Bt bes in
orkar by comply 'wih the Gmup's precediyras. kot recowvery ol amours dus.

The canying amdouni ¢l tha assat s reduced is hmugh use o an allowance aceT,
The impaimment ioss for e pedod i3 recognided i he consoldamd Stalgemant of
Incoma. I, B0 a subsatquert pewiod, e amount of e impaimend kiss decroasaes and
e decmase can Da rafalad ohyecaly D an evenl Geturring afvar the impeimen,
was rocopnized, the previously recogrired mpalmant 1055 s rewersed. ARy
subsaquart reversal of an impaiment |oss & recopnized in the corsakdated
atztement of ngome, ko the artent thal the camying amou al thae ascot doed nal
excesd 13 amontized cost at e reversal dak.

Wientting Fi ia) Inst |
Flnandal assets and liabiities arm offsel and e nal ansaunt 8 reporled @ the
oamoldamd stalemerts ol linancial positarn 1, and onky |F, there iz a cumenlly
enlorceabie right 1o offeol the recognized amounts and tharg i inkorban ko saltke on
a mal basls, o o realize The asset Bnd sete tha liabily simultznecusly. Tha iz ao
ponamfy ™e coso with master nelting agresments, awd tho relaed assels and
lialilities. e presacted gross In e consolidaled staternerts of finzardial posdton.

Soarg Pas and Supplies

Spere parts ard supplies 3 valiesd &t lowar of cost and el realizabds vaioe.
Gt includes all costs atrbulable 1o amigition and ie detarmired wslng the first-in,
first-out mEthod for spare pars and suppies. Nal realizable valus iz tw curent
replacemen Sisl or Bpare parnt and suppies. The camying amourt of spare pans
and supdies ks reviewed B 6ach reporting dabe to refiecl e adcurate valyation m
e consolidated tlinancial stalomenls. Spae pars and suppliss dentliad to
ookt and wusEDEs are writlen-ofl and chamed a5 expbnsa for Bne period,

Fr

Proparty amd equipmant are sEEd 8t mgl, eudwdEng he costs o day-mo-day
gandcing, |ess accumulated demreciaticn, amotization and any (mpaioment n waloé.
Such post includes the cost af replacing pan of such propety and equigmanl whan
thal cost |s Incurmad IF Vs profabla that e ffure sconomic benefts bssociawed with
tha expendiure will fow o e Group.

Yihen magr mpale and malntenance g pertmed, s ol s recognized in the
camying amount o he property and gouipmant as a replacamant 1 ir ks probalkis that
the fulure ecoromic benetits. assoeda bed wilh o opsnditurs will Bow 1o he Group.

Cwapreciation Arw] Bmoedzation are comporbed wsing e Talgr-ine methoed over the
Tollowing astimalod uesaiul Infas.

HNumbar of Years
Loktery equlpmeni 4« 10 or e of the beese,
whithavar perod is sndier
Lessabckd Improvameants 4 of torm of tha lease,
whichavar partd s shorlar
Office equipment, furaiture and fixturas d
_Trarsponaton equipment 4-5

-15-



The assats' raskiunl voluos. uselud Fys and deprackaon and amartimation mathads
arg reviewed and adiusted if appropdale, at sach reporting date, to ensure hgl tha
porod and mathoos of deprecizion and amortization are consigkent with the
eyt b pathem ol eoonamic anefits rovm items of property and edquipmsat

Fully depracialad propenty and squipment e rekaied In e AccoUma unitil ey ane
no Banper In use and ne Rarther daprediation ks chargod 1o cument oparabons. Anem
ol propery and equipmant is derscognized wpon dispomat of when no e
aronombe benalits are expecled rom its use or digposal. Ay §a-n o [05% ansing on
gorocogriton of the assel (caloulated as tha diferance betwean M nal disposal
precesds and tha camying amounl of the aseat) s incleded in praft 4 Kss i fe
waar tha assat is derecognlzed.

The Gn:h.lp ARSESSES at Eﬂ{!h r&puﬂrng -e:l.atﬂ wh&ﬂ'lﬂr thare 15 an [ndicaton hat
proporty and eoquipmenl, righl-of-usa a3sets and intangible assels with definide nseful
lifig may Be imgaired. I any such indication exists and when anrgal impairment
lasting Mof an asset S required, the Group makes an eslimate of e assets
nieovarable amaount. An asset’s recoverabla amaunl is Ia highar of an asset’s cash-
genesling wil's fair vale less cosls to sell o s value [0 use and is detemminad o
ar ndinddual assot, unkess the 358a! does ot genamte cash nflaws thal are langety
indepondent of those from ofher assets o group of assews. Where the camying
amount b an esset exgesds s regaverabla amouny, the asset ia Gdnsidarsd
impaired and |5 wiitten dowm 10 its recoverable amount. In datamindng falr walee 1658
costs 1o sell, &n approprate valualion modsl & uvsed. Thesa calculations are
comphombed by valuation mufiples or ofner avaabka falr value ingicetars.  In
asgassing valve in uge, the estimated futwe cash fows ara discouniad o fheir
prasont valuo wsing a prelax dseounl rmte hal relects current market assessments
of tha time valres ol monday and the sisks specic 1o the assed. Impamment [a5545 are
recoqnized [n profit or ss in the experse calegary consistent with e funclion of the
impalred asset,

AN assagsmant iz mada 3t sach repartew] daba as 10 whether here i5 any Indicatian
that praviously recognired bmpalmant kossEs may e konger gxist or may havo
gecreased. Il such indication exists, the Qroup makes an astimate of recovarable
amount, A previgusty recogrized Ergainmanl kas 15 revarsed only [T here hag baeén &
change in the astimales peed 1o dotarming o assat's recoverable amount since ha
{ast Impalrmant 085 was recognized, H that is the case, the camying amaunt o the
asset |9 intreacad 13 it ecovarable amownt. That IRcreassd amount canmet axcesd
the camyving emount that woold have boon determlned, net of deprecigtan ard
amartization, had no impaiment Iges been recognizead bor the assal in prie years.
Such rewersal s reoogmized in profit oF (0Es unigss he asset 5 camed at mvaluad
Brsunt, I whech caze e vayarsal i tredtad 45 3 revaluation incregsa.

Businggs Combinations

Bueminess combinations arg accounted 1or using the acquigitian method. The cost of
an ecquisition is measured as the aggregate ol th considaration transhemed,
maasures] at acuicition dale Rir value and e amount of any non-caatling
Intasast i e acquinga. For @ach busingss combinabon, he G massunas the
rovecontroding Inlgcest In he acquires efter at fair valug or 2t He poponkonate
share of the aspires's derbfable rat xesata. Aoqusibci-relaled cosks mdume
ureder ‘Costs and axpeness’ aceount 0 e consoldaked stalaments of mooma.

Whan tw Group acquires 4 bUsiness, il 43523389 he Rnandisl assals and IKHlides
assumed lor Eppmgnate clssification amd desipnation in accordance with the
ENAChE BT, SCOnGag sirgumstunces znd perinent conditons as gt tha
acoukeltion dale,
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K the business combinabion {5 acheeved in slapes, he acquisiton dale falr valus; al
e actuliers previousty held equity snterest in ther acquiree |s peméasuned o TaIF
value at the scquistion date and any gan o kss |s ecognized in tho consalidxad
comprehansiva incoma 1 |5 then considered In Fe determinalmon of poccwil.

Any contingent coasidaralion ik ba transhermed by the acouirer will be recognized al
fair value al the acruisi%on dale, Subsaquent changes o e fair value of tha
coningen! consideralion which |5 deemed b De an ascet or kability, will B
ecoghized in accondance with FFRS 9 0 prafl or hoss, Il Tz contivegemnt
considaration 15 caesfed as equity, it shaukd ot be remeasursd uatbl i s nally
satied wathin eqLaETy,

Gl

Gooowill acquired in a busless carmbinakbon |3 miialy measurad at cosl being e
axcass of e cost of he busindgss combenabon cwer e Group's intarast in the nat
fair value of the acquirge's |dentfiable assets. Mibibtes and comingent labilbas.
Subsequentty. poaadwill is measured at cogl kess any accumulated bpditmient in
valoe. Goodhwill is rawawed for img@iomant, G least annually or more frequerty, if
evanls of changes in cicumstances indicate thet 1ha carndng amount may be
imnpsairies] .

For the pumposa of impairment testing, goodwdl acquited 1 3 DuEness oambination
is, from the prquisiton dake. Alocarsd © aach al the Group's cash ganerating units,
ar grep al cash ganedaling walls thal are expactad 1o banali from the symeargies of
the combimabton iraspecive 0f wiwther other azsets or ligbiiliss of e Group ane
assigned 10 those wnils o group of units. Ezch unil or group ol units 10 which the
godwill & 50 allacatad:

»  repregents he owest (el within the Group at which the pooowlll is monitored
te irtanmie] Manamamant pumosas: amnd

* ig rgk larger than gn opermfiog segment o datermined i accanrdance with
PFRS B, Coer2ting Saegment

Impairnent k@ determined by masesding the rggovemble amownl of tha cash
penerabing unl or gioup ol cash generabing units, 10 which the poacknll ralates.
Where 0w recoverable amount of the cash Qensrating unit or group of cash
genembing unls izn ks than the carryirg amounl, animgairmeant kes 1s meognlzed.
Whare poodwill forme part o & £ash ganerating unit of growp of cash generaling
uncks and par of e cparabons within the unll = disposed of, the goedwlll associated
with the cysarabion disposed af s indoded in tha carying amawnt of tha operalion
when datemmanmg (e gain or koss on drsposal of oparation. Goodvall disposad of In
thig clroumstznca s measwred bazed on e relative values o the coparatkon
cisposad gl and the portion of M cashganarating it retained. Impalmnent lo<s
with respeoct 1o goocwil i Nl roversad.

Wk b miniess COMDENG o invoives mes than oo exthange Tancacian (Seaurs In
stipes), aadch exchange tansacton |5 raaksd soparately by the Group, using the
cost of wargachon and fgir value inMcomaBon g the date of each exchandge
bansactorms, o datermine e amount of goodwi’| 2esocatod with that rarsacton,
Ay Bdjustment m Kir valkea reanng 1o te previoesly held Interest 15 8 pevahuthon
ard iz accoumied for az such

When subsilarkes are sokd, the diMerence between ha seling prge and ha net
assaks plus poodhill i mconnized in profil ar kss.
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Hpn-pentrpling Interest

The aoquisiiens ol non-controliing intarest are accoumsd tor ag rancactons wilh
tviars in Unedr CRpacy A% owners and thenshora nd geacdwdl 1= ecogioed as a
resull of such transachos, Any ditferancs batwoan the purchase pnce and e nal
assets ol acguired amety is recognimd in aquity. The adjuesimants ke non-cenimihng
imares! are based on a propotionate araut ol the net asams of the subsidiary.

Transacioms 1hal restdt in chanpes [n owneship interests whila retaioing ool arg
accolinted bor as transacnors Wil quity halders | thaeir capacity as equity hokders,
Mo galn of dpsE on such changes is recopnized in profd o ks nstaad, Ut is
recgnizd in equaty. AlO Mo Change m e Carning amounts of assets (nchading
ocachidl] or b hites ks reconnized 3% a result of Buch fransacions.

Intangible Assaby

DeyBoomant aapard|bne s capdtalized only if e expendilure can b2 maacured
rediably, the producl of process is Echnically and commerdially hsasinla, fUidne
poanpmic banofts are probabie and e G nends © and has sofdent
MesC-urces i complela deyelopment and 10 use e assel Oherwise, It is recogmized
In profit or kss as incurmed. Subcogueary to nidal ooogniton, an iremelly
ganerated inargible aesat is maasured at coct lass accumcialed amorbzation and
ary accumulated dmpairment kosses,

Subsaguent axpencdihere i capialized only when it increases tha Riura sCanomlc
Domneafits amibodiesd in the Wpecific assal ta whech # ralatas. AL othar axpendifure,
Includng expenditune 4n intoraally gorsrated goodwill and Broncs, & eoognized in
RrTHTE d oS5 a5 incumed.

Amorizabon ks cakuaked ko wrile off the cosl of intanglble assis kss ther eslimated
rentius| vaben ing e sraight-ing melhod gver heir estimeted usehd fas, ard
penerally moognized 0 peeft or kess. The esiiraled usebol It s 2 - 3 pears,
Amorimbon meothods, melul lives and residual vBlegs am reviewsq al each
raporting data and asjusied H appeopiata.

Piervi
Frovksions are racopnized whein the Growp has & prasent obligaton (logal of
conginpetne) s a result of & past evenl, it iz probabie hal an outfiow o resources
ambodying sconomic Benefits will ba required t9 seite e oligator; 2d 2 reliatda
£stimata can be macs ol tha amolnl of the obligahgn. 1 the etfedt of the time wilua
o ey is material, provislons are detarmined by disoounding the axpectad foiare
¢ash MNows at a pretax @ie that reflects curment market 23sessment of tha LME value
of money and hose dsks specifs b the liabdity. Where discounting is ussd, e
increase in the privision due o the passage of Uma i3 recogrized as a Inance cosl
Peowvisions am ravigwed al each roporting date and adjusted to wellect the currenl
best estimate,

Cormmon stocks ara caseied g equity. [neramental costs directly gimbuishie o ha
iSSUance al COMMon ke are Bergnized a5 cedoction from aquibty, ral o army B
effaits

T



Treasury Stock
When captal slock recognized a5 equity is repurchased, the amouwnl of the
ronsidaration pakd, which Includes directy atmbutable costa, net of any tax efects, is
recognized a5 a3 deduckion Wom equity. Repuichased shares arg clasasified a6
lraasury shock, When the Iroasury slock is sold or reissued subsequently, the
amount receved is recognized as an Increass in sguity ard e resuling suntius Is
nized a3 additional pald in caplial (APIC), whils the resutting deficl is applked
againgt the APIC aniging from the ssuance of easury stock. Any ramnamning deficil is
applied pgainst ratained aamings.

Stock Qvideng Crigmidgbie
Common Skachk dhadend dlsiibutabls 15 cdassfied 35 equity. ThiS 8coount PERRSEnts
amchk dhvidend declared by tho BOD bud nol yet disbribited 10 Group's Siockholdars.

Falr Yalue Resaryp

Fair valua rsarva represants the cumutative Shangs in B 1alr value of iresimeants
in emocks um ey are derscofnized. Mevormerms. in Fe ressree are sot oul in the
consoSdated stammants of changes i enqully,

Batalnad Eamings

Retained eamings Incucke prafit atribuablo o the Group's seckhoklas and reduced
by dividends. Dividends 2 recognied as a liablity and deductad rem equity when
thay are declared, Imerim dividends are daducted from equity when tey are padd,
Remmined samings ara spprogiated 1or the cost of Iressyry skck acquired. When Ihe
aporapriabion 15 no longer needed, i is reversad.  Dividonds for the year that ara
approved aller the reporting date are Sealt with as an event after the regorting date.
Retmined gamirgs may 3120 includa elfoct of chanpes In accounting palicy as may ba
resuaired By tha stardard's transihonal provisions.

Qoergling Sogments

AN opemmbng segmenl is a compenent of the Greup thal engages in business
mtrtie Moo which it imay eam revenues and Incur experset, ncluwding revenues
and axpamses 1hat relale o Fansectons with any of the Group's other COMponants.
All oparating segments’ operabing resudt ara reviewed regulaty oy the Group's
Fresden| o maks doclskons abwod pesoUrces 10 e allpcated B the segment and
askes its pw rhovrance, And lor which discrata financial irformation is Avalkate,

The Grpup's opaating bisinezsss are opanized and managed Senaraby accanding
1o thea nature of the products and serdces pravided, with Bach SEETEM raprasenting
a sirategic buginesys und that offars dflsrenl products.

Sapmen! Assats and Lyvbiifies, Sogman assats Include al oparallng assets Lrsed oy
3 segment and congst principally of operating cash, frade and other recetvalies amnd
pioparty and aouipmanl. Segment lablities nchude Bl operating Habillles and
gkt princapally of rade and olher conent labiitiss. Sagmant 33385 and Nkl
o et Inclucke gelermad incoms Eakes, investmants and advances, andd Bommwings.

ft-cerument Transactions. Segment revenus, segment axpenses and segmert
pavformance InCclude transfers amang business segments. The transfers. d amy arg
apcourted lor al competive markst prices charged 1o unafflialed cuomers for
simiar producls. Such ranstecs are elminated in consaltaban.
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Revanue fram Conkacks wilt Sustomers, The Gioup meognizas reEvenueineme
wihan it transfers conlrol cver & good ar Sarvice, Bevenued]neome |6 measured at the
rensaction pice which the amity axpects to be entitted in axchanga (or 2 good o
sarvics. IMartnabon abou! he nature ard imlog al Be saishaction of pafaormance
obligatons, signifcars, payrnent iefms 2nd recognition poltes ioliaw.

Cudpment Rantal Revenud s recogniTed Bassd on & pelcantage of gross sk of
i lassea's onkne IOTERY OpEraticns, 4 compuled by the keases in accarmanca Wil
tho zgreemenl. o @ Mxed annual rental per termminal o commgncial opormton,
whichemgr 5 highar. Minlmum base paymeri kam ha fized anual remal is
meoopnized on 2 sheighiHine basis ard ary axcess of the pedceniage of grass 5365
ia contingentt rant racogrized I the paniod gamed.

Comymigsion ang Desiiboron focong. Ravenes from 1ha disTibution 4l inthary ickels
such 25 lofo, keng, sweepstakes and instant scramh lickets Yo customers, inclutbng
mlaikars ard sub-disinbutors, & recognired Lpon delmery af tha tokels 1o the
cuslommers, Revanue is compatsd basad on & parcentage of [otery Noke! Sakes in
accomance with the agreamant.

Diatermining whether the Grogpp /s Ackng a5 Princal or an Agent
The Group assesses its revenue arrangaments Using he ioliwing procasses o
et e whalher H s actng as a poncipal or an agent:

= ety 1he specifed goods of sardces (o be proviced 10 the customer (which for
axarnphe, coukl ba a sghl b0 & good GF Service 0 e prendden By anmher party);
and

»  assess whather it controls oach apecified good of serice Roigmo that good of
Barvice 13 trangfemed fo e customer.

The Group has dalsrmmad that i i aching 83 an agent In s comenission ard
ol FTOULRON NCWmE Amangemanis.

Lionss Foe fcome. [Mosme (8 meognied al he pant in tme el which tha Foense
transfers fo the customer and when e cuskoame b5 aiie 1o Lsa and benefit from e
[hpense. The icenoe fes in maasured al he anzasion price, ad|usswd e tha eflecks
of 2 significant financing companant 1o 2n amount hat reflects tha cash selling prica
wian the Roense manstermed to he cusiomer.

fanvce income. Revenud |3 ecognized when fhe sendce i tha osiomer ks
paricnmed, Sendon ncoime consists of ke camsd by TSTI Servces Inc. 0
providing repairs angd mairtenance senvices o Rapkd Blnge equipmant of AR Letsure
Exponant 0.

inlerest. Ingeme i recognized as tha ittanesd acirwes, takng Mo accownt the
alfecteg ekl on b assat,

Chidhdds Incoma s ecognized whan ha Group's fghl o recalve paymant is
getabilshed.

Ot Faoovng. Incams i3 redtgrizad whan aarmod.



Gt ond Expences .
Cosln and gapormes dre recognized when currted and are mported in the
ennsniitated steamernts of Rooma in e penods 1o which they ralats.

Empensas g algn recognized In ha comsplidated statoments of income when a
docrassa in jubre scordeTic Denatits ralaled 10 A& decreass in an AsSel oF an
Ircrease in 3 Yiabilily that can be measured rghabdy has arican. Ewpanges e
recogmized 0 the consclidated statements of income o0 Ihe basks ol a direc
anenciafon batwaen cosls mourmsd and the aarmings of spectiic barma of income; on
the basis al systemalic and rational allocation procedures whan ecenomic benafits
ary axpecied b adse ovar several accounting penods and ha association can only
b& broadly or Indirecty determird; ar imrmedialaly when an expencliiure procaces
0 fulure econcmic benefhs & winar, and o e sxtent thatl hture econamic bandits
do not quality oF cease o quaNfy, for recognitian in the consolidaled statements of
financial poskon as an G5,

Leasgy

The Growp has gpplied PFRS 16 using e madiled ralmapscive approach with tha
cumulgfiva aifes! of initially apolying the Stardard recogrigsd gt Januaey 1, 2013, Ha
data of immal epoleaton, and hemrdore the comparalhme Inkemation has ot bean
mastated ard conbnues 1o be repored uader PAS 17 and Fhdipping Interpratakion
IFAIC 4 Delevmoming wiwlhes an Arsangeman! conains 8 Leaze The detalls of
atcaurting policles nder PAS 17 ard Philippine [nbamprataton IFRIC 4 ans disclosed

separalely,

Oy fiow] oF 3 LAS5E

Pravioushy, the Group detonmined i cortract Incepticn whathar an amanmgemant wis
of conlgined a lease under Frifipgpine Inleqpwalaton IFRIC 4, The Gmgp now
azsasaas whethar a contracl 1S or contalns 8 |eas3e based on tha detinitan al a lease.

On iEnsiion to PFRS 16, e Group stacled ko apply the prachcat expediant (o
grarcfather the asseswment of which ransectiome are eases. Tre Group apqied
PFAS 16 only 10 contracts that wera previgusly identfed as leases. Contrmcls thal
were not identified as leases urder FAS 17 and Phlkippine interpremation IFRIC 4
wore hot reassessad for whathar tere |5 a lease umder PFRS 16 Thewedore, the
cdafirton of 5 ease uncer PFAS 16 was apalisd only 10 contfacts emered into of
chaurgad an or afmr January 1, 2018

Falicy Appicatds fom Janpary 1, 2019

Al incapton of a contract, the Group assasses whelhar 2 contrect k=, or coMBing. a8
lease. A contract IS, oF contams, a lease of e ootmet conveys e right 10 comtl
the U of an entifkad assel for a4 pakad of i in exehange lor consadeation, To
ausess whathar a cantraet cormveys the dghl b comni the usa ol an [dentified aasal,
tha Group uvses he definition of 3 ease in PFRS 6. This policy is appied to
ContiBES entersd e, o O gt Janwary 1, 20158,

As 3 Lessee

Al cammencament or on mpodificahon of a contract that contains a masa component,
tha Group alocates the consldamlicn i the contrack ta #&ch leaze component on he
basls of kB redative stand-alora prices. However, for the leases of propenty the Group
hae akactod red 0 saparate non-faacse aompanents and ascount (o the Bass and
rari-bass SoMPOnAants a5 a Single ladsa ComDOnEDL,
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The Gmoup reoognizas a rgit-of-use assl and g base [zbdity al the kease
commencamant date. The nght-ol-use asset o initialy messumed al cost which
comprizes tha inftal amount of the kasa lablity Bdjesed or any 16358 DAyMANLS
made gl or belone e cammencemant dale, plus gy inilig! direc! costs incurned and
an ostamam al cosls o dismantke and remave e underying assel of ™ restore tha
underylng asset or tha site on which it 1S localed, less any laase Incanlivas recavad.

Tha rght-of-use azset s subsequenthy dapretiaten using the straghr-Ong meathod
foam The cormmancerrient data fo e and of tha lBasa term unkess ba lease ransers
cwmership of M undénhying assot 1o tha Group by tha end of tha kasa tam or he
cosl ol e right=ol-use assat eects thal e Group will axardse 3 purchase optan.
In that case, the mghl-oi-usa asset will ba dapreciamd over the wseiud lilo ol he
undamying astat which is datamingd cn the same basis az Those of propeny and
exJLapmenl. 1n acaton. the mght-o-irse 25581 is perodically redwced by ImEaimmen
hegpsaas, Il amy, and adjielad kr cartun rameaturanrenits of he [easa labily .

Tre lpase Eabilmy is Intlally maasured at tha presend value o the lease paymems
hat ara not paid At te commancamant dabe, discawiled using the intarasl rate
ImpRcl in e leage or it thal rae cannotl be raadly detemined, the Groups
incramantal porrawing rata. Genarally, e Group uses Bs incremant) bomowing rale
as the discount rale,

Tha Group Sgianmines its Inormmantal borrewing rate by obiinieg intaresl rates fom
axtomal financing sources and makes cerlain adjushments o reflect the terms of e
maze and ypa of e assael based.

Laaga payments mcluded in e mezsuremert of the lease Akt compdse tha
Mofipwing:

d l¥ed paymants. inciuding [n-substence fiked payments,

» varable leass payments thal depend cn an index of a tate. [nibally measured
uskng the inckax: or rate as at the commenssmant data;

= Attt sagpreched 10 ba payable under a reskdual vae guaranies; and

= \hg exarclse price uvder & purchasa option that te Group is reasonably centaln
O eMEHGiee, lmase payments in an opbonal renawal pepod it the Groug g
reasonably cerain b exerclse an extenslon option, and penatios lof early
termination of a l#ase unless the Growp is reascnably carain ot W tarminate
eary,

Tha kease by ks messured at amortzed cost uslng he effecthm Inlersst Method,
It 15 remeasured when tema is a changs in fiune l2ase payments arsing from 2
chamga in an index of rale, H there is 8 changa in tha Grougs estimate of the areaunt
axpeced 1o be payable under a residual value guarames, il he Group changes its
aapegsmiet o whether it will sxercias g purchase, edanslon of tarminaton opoon or
il hera is A ravised in-cybeErnes frad 16350 PayTrn,

Yhen the lease |abilty is remegsured in this way, 8 cumesporading adustment 1S
made i the carming ameunt al the right-of-5e 25568t of 18 recorded In profd o nss i
Mha camping amaurtt of e AgH-al-ese 2356t kag bean reduced o zem.

The Grup umad & nomber af practcal axpadignts whan applying PERS 10 K Eaces
pravitdely classfled as oparating Izasas under PAS 17, [n padkcular, he Grougr

+  did not recognize mght-obwsa azsets and (lailses for leases or which e lease
Emn gvds within 12 monks from be date of inital apetication;

=  gxcdudad initlal direct cosis from b messuremen! of e nghof-uss azses al
the Jats of rtial apolica bon; nd



»  umed hindsight whon dakymining e leasa tarm.

Chovl-tom Leases and Leases of Low-vales Assals

The Group has elecred nol 1o recognize dght-ol-use assats and leass lixbiites for
leases of kwevalue assets snd shov-lanm ases, Incleding IT equipment. The Goop
mcoQnized the (ease payments assodaled with thesa leases as an expeanse on &
stralght-ing Bade ovar e keass term.

As 3 Lesgor

Al [reeprton or on modification ol 2 coniradl thad contains a feass cOmponent, e
Group BMcates e consmerabon in the conlract 1o gach Base companént G Hhe
basks of Fur ralative stand-akone prices.

When the Group Bots as a lessor, it detarmynas al lsaso inception whathed each
laasy |5 & Hnance REASa of an opmerating keasa.

To Aassfy aach leasa, hw Group makes an overall assessrment of whether the lease
fransfars substanaly all of the nsks and rewards cdenial 1o penechip of e
undedying asset.  tes Is he Case, than me lease 8 3 inanca lease; it mal, hen it is
an operating lease, As part Of this assessment, he Gmup SONSide® cartaln
indicatars such as whethar the lasa s lor ihe Mmooy pan al the: economic lile of thae
assat.

Whan tha Group IS an intermadiate kessac, it accounts for M8 imereats 0 e hegd
kpase and e sub-toass sopaicloly. it assesses the eage dassiicalion of 8 sub-
Ease with elerence o he dght-ol-use a5sel afsing from Mg head 12388, vl with
referencs 1o 1he nderying essel. IF 3 head lease i a short-leem lagsa g which 1he
Cemp apoiber. e exemplion desonbad abawe, oo (1 clasedfies ha sub-loasze ag an
opergting kease,

¥ an gmrangemari contains kease &nd RoT-ease components. hen ha Grup applies
PPRS 15 I alkocate the consideration in e conmact,

Loneent whan e Qroup does not tracsder sobstarnhaty all e feks ard rawasds of
meniership o the 2scet are clegslfed as operating eases. FRemal income ks
merrgrEzed on A slralghl-ine basis aver tha Ease fwerm ol the laaca. Initial direcl
costs incirred In megatabng an oparaling (ease are acded b 3 Camyire] amosnt of
tha eated assel and recpgnced over the laase tenm on the same Basas as renfal
oo, Contdgent ranks arg neaofrilod a5 ravened in e pockad In which Bey are
amed.

Goneraly, the accouing policies sppdcatls ™ he Croup as a lessor in e
oA v perod were not JiMerent Irom PFRS 16

Poliey Appwicatds el Januay 1, 2018
For comirasts entared iMD bekora January 1, 2019, \ha Group determingd whea her
the arrangamenl was or aerakned 3 lease based on 1he assassment of wielher

= {ulflirenit af tha arangasmenl was degerdenl on ne osa of 3 specfe assel or
asaets; and

* tha arrargermant had conveyed a nghl to use e aseat An arrangsmeand
coriveysd thie right 1o usa e assaet il ong of ha keslowing was met:

a. the purchazer had e abdity or rghl 1o oparale he assel whike ct@lning or
catrdling mgre than an insdgnificant amount of the oubp;
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b. the purchaser had twa abliey o right o cortrad prwekcn| apcess o fhe agsel
willa obralning or cortraling meana than an inskyrificant armdiart of e ougpat,
or

C. fects and circumshinces ndicated that it was remota that athar parties wiud
mhe more than an insignitcant amount of the oulpad, and the prica por uesl
was naither fixed per unit ol auipd ner edual 1o e curnent market prca par
urit of o,

Ag g Lessge

n the comparathve padod, 35 a lessee the e dassifisd loases that ranslarmod
substantially all of tha nisks and rewands of cwnership g Anance 143583, Yihen his
was Iha casa, e lasad assels ward measured inially at an amownl squal o the
irever OF their fair valug and tha pressit valog of the minnum 358 cawments,
Minlmum leasa peyments wara ha payments over e ease kim that the lasses
was required to make, excluding any conlimgert rent. Sobesequant o inlkal
racogndtion, e assets wore acoguntsd for in accomtance wirh the accounting porncy
applicabla 1o hal assat.

Asgpts held wncer ofhdr ksases Wware clascfied as oparaling leagses and wersg ol
mecogrilzed in the Group's consclidated stalemant of Ananclal pasition. Payments
made undar oparating leases wore ecognized in profil o Inss on a stralght-line baskz
ovar the km of e lzase, Leaga incamtives moshed wane mcopgnlzaed as an inlegral
par of tha wtal lsase expandas, owdl tha tam of he leasa.

A8 8 Lassor
When e Group acted a5 a Weeor, f gatermined al lease Intepbion wihilhal each
Base wad & flnance lease or an CRerzong Eags.

To das=ify &ach ksasa, tha Group mace an ovedll B3sasament of whathar he [eass
transiemad substantisly all of the righs and rewards Incicental o cwnership of the
undemying agser. H hia wis the case, mem the kease was a fimance kease, il nob, than
It WS A0 oparatine] lease. Az part 0 M9 assassmant, e Group conskderad caftaln
Indcators such 85 whethar e leage was fof 1N Major part al ke aconic e of
the asse),

Laasas whnare the Group does not tansiarn subsiantally all the riskes and rewands of
pwrergtep of Me assa, Are dagsified as opmrating aases. Aenlal Inpome is
rgcagmrad o a staighb-ing basis over the lease tarm of Me lease. omal drect
casts cumd in negoliadng an operating kease are agdad b the camying amount of
the leaced asee! and mengnized aver the leaze term on the same bases as rental
incoma. Confingent rents A racognized as reveriue in te poricd in which ey 2ra
carmed.

Shert-lern Empicveo Bonatity

Shor-herm amplogyee bhenefits, are oapansed as M related sorvica € provided, &
iatilthy is recpgnizen for the amaourt expected o be pald If e Group has 8 presant,
lexgal of Corstructive obllpation 1 pay this amount a8 & ragalt of pasl sendice provided
by the employees and he obligaton can ba esbirna bed redlably.
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Rogrement Cogt
Tha Pavant Compery, LOC and TGTI Rave nonconirton cefired Denefits
ratirement plans covaring $ubsiantialy all of its qualfied einpidrpoas.

The Group's dafined banalm chiganon is caloulgted by estimalog te amounl of
futura banalit that emphoyees haye gamed N ratum ke hedr Service in ihe cumen!
ard prior pariods, discounling that amount and decicting the alr vallke of any plan
assats.

The catculabion of gefined bamafits chligabon iz pefomed anmeally by a qualiled
acary g the propecesd unit chadll method, When e calculabon resubs B
patantial anset bor the Grown, the recognized assot s Nimeed to e present valua of
dconomic benefits available in the form of aductions in futurg contbiintions ko the
plan. To calculaie the rpscnt valua o economic benafts, conskaraton & given o
any Appicatie mindmum urding reguireteenis.

Rernaazuramants of the nel defined benefits Eability, which compiss achuarial gains
and losses, the retum oo plan Bssets (eachuding interecst) and tha effect of tha asset
cgiling {il eny, escluding intanest), are recogoized |mmedately 0 ohar
compranensive ncomea. The Group delemmines the nal interes) expanca of Income
on the net detined benafit obilgation or asset lor the pariod by apphying fha disocunt
e used 1o measure the defived benedit abllgation at twe beginning ot the annoeal
peiad b the thanhenal dafmed banefit obligaton or agset, king 1M account &y
chanqes in the rat dafined benetit obiigabion o assed duning the parod as a result o
contributions and benaftt paymenta. Nal inlerest axpensa and olhar expanses related
to datined baneft pans are recodnized in profit or s

YWhan g bangfits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is cortalled, e rasulting
charge I beralit hal relatas o past serica oF tha gain or kess on curilmant |s
reconnized Immedkalely in profil o pes. The Group ecegnizes gains and kegsas on
e safamsant of 2 delined henefit raticamarnt plan wehean T saltiaenant ooours,

Acvuanal valualors ars made with soflicient regulary 30 hat e amounts
recogasd i e consalidatad financlal stalaments do nar differ materally e he
amsourts 1hal woukd e deteon|red at reporting dak.

Eorgan Cumency Teansacting

Transactions denominated i foreign currency ana vecarded in Pielippine peso by
applying 10 tha koreign cumancy amount the axchanga rale batween the Philipgne
pass arwd e lereign currancy at e dete of tramsaciion. Moneary assets and
Lakwthers denominated in forgign cumencies ara restatéd using ter cOSIng exchange
ralg 2 reparng date. Al exchange rate diferences including thoge arlsing from
tranciston or setemearnt ol monetary [teme b rates diffarent from those at whch hay
were inifiakty recorded ame recognized i the consoldaked statements of ncome in
e yaar fuch dfieronces adca.

Jaxeg

Curranf Tax Currart Bx 3asets and labiltes hor the cument and pior yedrs are
maeasumd at the amount sxpocied to be recovensd from or paid o the laxalon
autnorfty, The tex mles ard fax lews used o oomputs e amount are ihosa thal ans
enacted ar subslantvely anacted by e end of B repoming peod.

Defered Tax. Detemed fex is proviged on 2l mmporary diferances at the reporting
date Datwean the jax bases of ascete and Rabdities and thelr carmying srmounts for
financial reporting pUrpoSes.



Dafewrend B kbilia= oM recogmized Iod all Gueebie termporary diterences, except

= whera \Ne defamed Lk babiley anises from (e ingial recogritan of goodsall o ol
an assat or Egbifty in & ransaction thal is not 2 baslress combinaton and, al the
time o tha ranzaction, affectt naithar Na AcCoUNdng INCOMmEe NoT LEXRADIE INCom
of (055, and

= in respe] of wabde tenporary differences associaied wilh imvestmeots in
subsicharias, associates and inleresis in jodnt vertures, whene Ma timing al the
royarzEl of e lamporany diterences can ba oorirolled and i1 is protabde That the
tempaorarny difterences will not raversa in e rasasable fumra.

Dalarrod tax assats am rocoonimsd for oll deducticle temporany diferences and cauTy
kxrward enefis of urussd Ex neees - Nel Operating Loss Camy Cwar (NOLEO) and
micimLn copeorate incoma e (MCIT), o e exient 1nal it i proGabes that e
Bucabie proft will bo avallabe against wikkch doductibes empomny difgrences can ba
UiTed exoopr

= whare o drlared tae asset roiaking 1o the doducile fomeomary difevences
ariges fmom e inital recogrikon of an Assal of Babily In & ransachon that I3 no
a b=iness cambinaton and, at the Gma of tha Iransaction, aflects nether the
AccounEng Incomea nar taxabio ineme o boss; and

I respetl of geductibe Mooy ditferencss associated with Ivestments
suddarks, asaoddatas and nlarests in jolnt venturas, dedamed tax assats are
recogrized only o B &xtert Het il is probable hat e emporany ditferacces will
rewerss in he foresssalde leure and guable proft will B avsallablea against
which the dedudibla armporany dilebrdas car e ollized.

The camying amawnt of delamed Bx assats i reviewed at each reocdicg dawe and
reducod to B oatent tal it |5 no Jonger probabke that sufficient xeble mcoma will
to pvailable fo akow all or pant al lhe defamed @x assels to be wtiled
Livw et ogpvized dotenmed lax assets are reaseasced sl each repting date and are
recognizad to e extent that 1 has become procaba hal Ivure taxable incoma will
allow e detarred @x Assek: o be racowared.

Defamed 12X assels and liabllites are maasured &t he t2x rates that are expectad 10
apply in ihe year when Ihe agssel is realized or the liability 5 satied, bagad on las
ratas and kax [aws thal have beon enaciod or sobclantvely snacted by the end ol hea
rapcning padod. Defamnd 3% assols and lablimes are cifset, if 2 1egathy enlorcepble
right exizie W offeel curmen! B a5z againsl cument B liakilibes and s deferrad
1aves mlala to tha same laxabia bty and thea Earma tavathon authodly,

In detamining tha ampunt of current and delamed tax, he Group takes ni account
the impact of ucestin tax pesdtions and whether additonal taxes and inberast may
e dwe. Tha Growup bolloves that &5 accragks for tax llablites ere edaguale for al
open tax yeam baszed on its assessment of many 1achors, ingluding interpratabion of
tax Lws ard peice’ Sxgrerionca. This assocomeat! allkas on actrmates and assumohims
and may maokva a senes of judgments about futume evenis. Mew infpormaton may
become avalatda thet causes the Goup to change i pxigment regarding e
adaquacy of aeizling lan abilides, sLoh charges W tax habdites will impact tax
anfienso in tho penod that such a detaminaton = made,

Caurrent tax and defemed 13n are rocognized 0 siatemant of Gompreensve Incomme
gxcepl i the extert that il relzles I 3 buelness combination, or ilems recognmed
directy 1 equity ar in cfher comprehoncye Incoma.



Vahre-added Tae (VAT Bevarie, expenses and 255415 are racagnized nel of the
armourd of VAT e,

»  Wrore the VAT moumed on the purchase of an gosel o sence |s not
recoverable from thae tex ausharlty, in which case 1he VAT is ecognized as part
gl the cost of acouksilion of Ba assot or pan ol tha expense tem 6% appicank,;
ard

=  Regavablas ard mayablas hat are stabed With the amounn? o YAT inciuded.

laf}]
Basic EFS iz computed by divmding the net income for the porkod alribotatde o
eqUity hobders of tha Farert Compary by the weighted-average nomber of iBcised
and ourstanding commeon siares duning the parod.

For the porposs of computing diluted EPS, e nat income lor e penid atributtba
o equity holders of e Parent Company and e weghted-average number of
igsumer] and oustanding aommcn sharas are adjusmd for the eflects ol all pokential
dhihdive instramenis.

Tha current and prigrperiad amounts e basie and dided EPS are adjusted for
Iransachons hat, oier han tha conversion of pooandal ordinary shares, adpel e
number of ordinary shares outstanding withoul B comeaponding chamge in resaurces.
This Inclodes stock dividonas thal da nol hava cash altemative, from which additicnsl
Rhares =s0ed dre Temed as | they had been issued since ha beginning al the
ealiest perod presented, necessitating metmapective adjustments 1 EFS.

Aglaled Padies

Relaled party redationanip exisls whan ona party has the abiity o control, directly or
indirectty, throogh ona or more intermadiaries, the other party of axarcise signiflcant
inltuence pvar the othar party in making financial ang operating decsions. Such
ralatonship ako axisls botwaen and/or amang anbtles wihich ars undar Comemn
controd with the reporting emMerprise, or between andfor among the repoting
graipnze and s key macagement personng, direChors, or its stockholdars. In
conmsidaning sach possitde relzted pardy relabionship, atention & dirgcled 9 tha
subslanca of the retatonship, and not meanaky the legal lom.,

Lobingendss

Continger |laksliles are not recognized in te consolidated fnanclal skatements,
Thay zre desciosad in ba noles o he consolxdalad financial saemerts uniess the
poasbligy ol &0 owffow o repaurcss embodving eaaoms: benalits 1S remota. A
cormfingert assat is not recognized in the consolidawd financlal smtements bl
disciosed In the nokes W the consolidated Anancial siatements when an infiow of
goonomic bammafits o prooabis.

Eventg Atler fhe feporing Dalg

Post ypear-end events thal provide adoltional sormabion aboud e Group's
conaoikdared financial positkan at the reporting aale (edjustimg evants) are reflectad in
fha comadidaled fnancial slalements. Post year-end ewverts that are not adjusting
gwers arg disclessd in e noes g e onsaidabed fnandal slabmems when
mgterial.
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B. Significant Accounting Judgrismia, Extimates and Adaumphans

The preparation of Hwe Gmou's comaidated Hnandal statements In gerondances with
PFR5s mequirgs manapemant 1o maka judgnents, aqimates and assamabons thal
ghecl tha applicaton of accountng policies and the amauani:s of assals, liabdldes,
Imoome and exporsas epomed in the coreoidated Fnanclal sttements a1 tha
roportng date. Hewever, uncarainty about these |udgments, estimales and
assumphans coukd resuit In an outcome hat could raquite & matedal adustment o
e carying amount of the aMecied aasa or Babaity in ihe frtura.

Judgrments and estwnates are consinoally evalualed and arg hased on histodcal
expenence and other Raciprs, Induding expaclations of lulura averts tat ara
bedieved i he reasonabs uodar he crrctmstances. Revsions are moognizad in G
period i winkch tha udgments and esiimales are reviged and in amy e perdon
afleced,

JUorients

i the process of applyayg e Goup's asccunting polcs, managemeart has mada
the following judgmants, apart iram thosa Involving aslimaticns, which haya the maost
gignificant &ffact on the amounts facognied in e conscldamd financial skakemenis:

Evahigiing Reventa Racogriton, Contac Temm and Caistence of Sprificant
Firging Compansnt

Aevenug Fecogmifion

MamanaTent detamined thal the Gooup's lesnsing of s cistnet brands and
frademarks provides a rka o use inlalleciual property a5 it axists 2l 1he point o Heone
al which the license is granted because thers is no Implicit or mmylied obligabon 1o
urckeraka activdes dorng e lksnze parod.

Confmc Tgom

Managemarnt domrmimned het te licensa granied povides e kenses £ valuakbks
fghl becausa M engnles ko Bp nlo he exstng Instam scatch tokel cuskiomers hal
patroniza tha Group's desfinct brang and redemarks. The sxdstence of such valualbla
gt is conslderod 2 substarrties peraby for e icensee 0 mrmmale he eanse
agreamant Qiven Mat il s costly 10 rebrand and also % daveksd and markst rew
instart scraich bokat degipgngiaanks,

Fi r
Manapemert determined that a significant financing companenl exists kor e license
Egreemer becausa the (kwerss padod is long tanm and the Axed conskhmmien

payable ¢var 8 perod ma, The tinancing compomem i ecognired a5 Imeresl
incorma whean ha llcenaee pays In amearns.



Estimates gnd Agsumotiens

The hey astimates and assLmplons used in the comsglitaked Anandal statements
arg s ueon management's evakuabion of elevant Bcis and drcumstances a5 of
e date of the comaoidated financlal Statemiarts. Achal resulls coud diTa Thom
such egiEmates.

Aliwance M Impainmen! Lokses on Trade and Ofwer Aocefalies. Tha G
mainkins alowancs for impalmment lozces on rade and cthar recsvabls at 3 lavel
congidered adequata fo powvice Tor potentsl unopllectibls raceivablas, The kwel ol
s aliowance is evaluaked by the manapeneni on a basls of factors hat alfec \he
collectability of he accounts. Thesa factors Indudse, but nal limited 1o, e age and
stahe of recetvabla, the FBngth of reltonship with the coslomes, the Cuskemen's
payment behavior and kewn market lectors. The Growgr review's e allowance on g
GOALrUCAUS DaSS.

The Group uses the expected credit ksses model in astmatng the lewel of
Allowance, which bdwdes forecasts of fulure events and conditiong. A credl 1055 iS5
the difierance betwean the cash fows thal ane due In gocordance with tha conbact
gnd the cazh fiows thal are expecied o be received dsdounted at e oniginal
efeciva intarast rate. Tha moded represants a probatiily-welkghted estmate ol the
diference over the remaining e of (e recsivabdes. The maunty of tsa Group’s
receivables is less than ene year s the lifatime expached credil lsses and tha 12-
et swpoected oredi kessas are similar, In addibon, management assesaed the
credi risk of 1ha racekvables a9 al the reporting date as low, thangfore e Group dd
ngt have o aasess whalhar g significznl Ixrease in Cregit rigk foas oicamad.

Almwanca bor impalment sses on rade and other recehmbls amourmed 1o F2.1
milions and il a5 at Dacember 31, 2019 and 2018, mspeciively. Trade and e
Tecervabies amounted to P172.5 miillon and F285 1 milon as al Decembear 31, 2019
and 2018, recoeacivety (MNota ),

Esfimafed Usefd Lives of Property and Equipmeni. The useful lilg of gach ol the
Group's proparty ard equipment s estimated baséd on the pariod cuver which 1he
ageset s axpecled 1o De availabla for v=sa. Swoh oestimaton 15 based an & colective
assesament of industy practice, intfernal technical evaluation amd expenence with
similar aszets. The eslimaled useiul e ol sach assat ks raveevwad pariodlcally and
ypdatad Il cxpectations diffar om pravious astimales dua b physical waar and 1oar,
technical af commetial tbaolescence and legal or ather limits on the use ol the
asset, Il 1S possibia, howane!, that hinre finanddal pelommancs coud be matenally
affecled by changas In the amounts and Hrmirg o recardesd axpensas breaoghl about
by Changes in g factors rmantioned abowe, A reduction in the esiimated uselu lite of
any property and equipmant and infangitla assol with usahul ke would incregse the
reanded oporaling arpenzes and decrenso morelrment assels. Thars wara i
changas n astmaled wsathl livas n 2019 and 2018,

Tha camyling ampum, of propsrty and equipmet as 3t Decomber 31, 2019 and 2018
amaounbed t P07 .4 millicn and F252,9 madlion, respectivaly (Nola 12),



impainhant of Novk-financial Assees jaxce Gootwil) and Deferred Tax Aswels.
PFRSs require that an impaimment review be parformed o0 pmperty and equipmenl
and wign cetain impairmant [ndicakes are prasent. Dlamaining e mcoverable
amount o property and equicmonl requires tha esfimation of fulure cash flows
axpacted 1o be genermted from the cortinued ugs and viimats dsposibon of udh
assels or fair vAlug less oosts 1 sall, whichaat i higher, While il s balievad hat Iha
assumplions used in the eskmaton of falr values reflecied in tha conzoildaled
financial statements ae appmpnabe and reasgnabla, signilicant changes in ess
psSumgbions may matenaly alect #a atsessment ol récoverable amounts and
rersulling in impai maent ksE.

Managemer, assassad that thom ara fa mpairmel ndicabers atlechng the Group's
progearty and edipan and cMarrad 1ax assots as al Decembsr 21, 2019 ard 2018,

fmpairnant of osdwnll The Graup Sertermings wheihar goodwill ks Impaired gt laasct
anrally. This reduires g asbrmaban of tha valug n uss of e cash-gane miing uniks
1o which lhe ponowil ts alocated, Estimabing walue in yse requinks mankgesmanl 10
meks an astimale of e expected hAure cash Bowes frowm the cagh-gonsrahng Units
and 1o choose a suitzble discount mta 10 calewlats the presant valee of Iose cash
fiows.

Manzgement considared tha pralitabilly of LCC 2nd Meta Entbias in ashmating the
epactedd cach Mowwe g5 at Decambar 31, X119, and the affect of change in FRI'3
axciuarymy arrangemanl with s princopal in estimatn he expedied cazh Bows as at
Devember 31, 2018, The key assumptigns used in the impalornant 165t of gooowdll
arg discusssd in Make 13 10 0 conseldaled financial siaiamants.

Impaimment loss on goodwill amourmed o P47.0 milion and P110.8 milion in 20159
and 2018 respactively. The camying armour of pooddll amourmed 1o nbl and P12.0
milligm as ar December 31, 2019 god 218 (Mote 13).

Relirement Coed, The present value of the defined benefl obligation depends o A
rnumber of fastars that are delarmined on an actusrial basis usng & aumrber ol
apeunplions. The aszumpbons used in detamning e net casl for rodromant
Irducie the discount rates and rafe of dubure sarary iNncreasa.

The Grougy daterminas b apgropeata discount rata at ta ard of sach year. This (s
the interest rate har k5 woed to dataming o prasent valua of astmated fubsra cash
outhows eiDecic] W be required o sette the defined benefit obligation, In
detarminmg \he appropriate discount rmhe, tha Group considers g irterext ratas on
gowermment bonda hat are denominatad b e currancy [0 whkch e b wili ba
parl, amd that mave terns © matusty eppoximatmg the ems of e miated
rativeml Gabdity. Other kay assumptaoes for rétindmant liability ard Basad it pa on
current market condiions.

Whita A & baligved Thal the Gromp's assumptsans ars reaschable and appwosrate,
significant difacencas in actual expastanca or crilcant chamges I assumpniis
may matenglly atfec! he Gmups rekrement liabllity, The pregent valve of dedfimd
banahl ohligation armdaunted ta F12B.8 million and P7T2.9 million as a1 Dacembar 31,
2012 and 2018, respmactivaky (Nalg 223},



Estimating the Tansadcten Pocn of fecome froem Bands aad Frademarks Loensga
Agrgament

The Group adhusks Te piomizad amount of considermbon ko the ik value of monay

o estimata ha Iransacten prica in a conmacl. o making Iha assessmanl, e Amup

conedars the kilpwing faciors:

= Sovnibindd Aflact of ther GaHecied bngth of ima gf tha contract;
v paymeriemms of ihe contmct and
»  pevmiling irveresd e w e refavant market.

The dEccunt rate used in getermining hea finandng comeonent of ha income om
e Group's Keves agresment is 6,776 This represents he risk-frse nlerast rabe for
the pa e pancd pios estimamd credil sraad, The fnandng comporsant dedyicted
from e license fee income amountad t3 PIS 5 millian in 2016, The accreled Interest
inppme amountad o PAE milion and F12.6 millon in 20149 and 2018, esptdivaly
fMale 21).

Agaizatiify of Defamad Tax Assats. Tha camying amount of deferred tax assets is
ravidwad At rach reoorbng dato and recucsd to the exmerl that it is no kagar
probable that sukcient wxebe peofit will e gyailatie o afow all or pan of te
cgfemed B ascpty 0 Be ublized. Managoement axpeetts flure operationa will
ermarate suffioani taxable inoome bal will 2liow 21 or part of he defamed By assais
o be ublied, Quang 2019, the Goup B has derecognized and Jmecagzed
defarred e assaks amouming io PG.3 millon and F17.0 mllicn: respecivety.

Drferred tax assets (|labditles) - nel amounted o PSES million and  [P37.3 million)
as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 regpexttively [Not 14).

Contwencas, The Group cumenty has lew lax assessments, legal and
admirkstratve daime. The Group™s estimate of the probabe costs (of B reaprion
of these assessmerts amd claims has been developed in conswlBton with In-Aouse
as wall a5 oulside hegal couseds handing the posacimon and dedense of these
rraatters and |5 basad on an analyeis of pobanbial results, Tha Gmoup curermy doaE
nol belisve that these tax assessmets. lagal and administrative clalms will have a
malgrsl adverse elec on it comoidabted Rnancial poslton amd consoldated
Mnarcial perlomanca, |t ks posoie, hiweyver, et houre 1inanclal parformanca Goukd
be malevialy afecled by changes in the estimates or in e eflactivanass of
slrakegins ralabing o eso procacdings. Mo accnals wera mada in relafon 1o hese
proceadinga,

v THMA Grotn of Covipraregs, of 4l ws Fhilprine Chafty Swaspsiaies (Mg
rECEO) eral This ks a complainl My specific pedomance and damages fiked by
TMA Australia Py, Bd. and A= kocal subsidiary, TMA Group Phillppinas, Inc.
{TMAF), against PLSO a6 regamds heir confract ke Ihe supply of lofto paper,
The compklilmants subsequanty amendsd ther complanl o Include Faclfc
Cmiine ard Philippine Saming Management Corpomation {PGKE) a5 delandants,
They prayed for @ wwmposary rastraining oodar andor wit of preliminary injuncton
to enjoan all delendanis from doing anyttng in violaton of demgatan of 1hg
comachug) tems of the Jpint Menhure Agreement {(WA) dated Decambar 4, 2005
forr the supyty af ot fapar. Mo damages wara prayad (or agalns] Pacflc Oaline.
On June 22, 2017, a Nobca of Dismissal dated June 15, 2017 was reGaived from
THAP praying for the dlamizsal of the Supplemental Complaint ageinst Pacilic
Online purscant 1o Sactien 1 o RBule 17, No objsgcton was nterpased o andior
comment on the Motice of Dismlasal, Thug, in a0 O dadsd June 28, 2017, tha
court dismissd the case agabnst Pacilic Crlina.
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TMA Ausimfa Pry, Lid, And TMA Grows Phitippinas, Inc. . Pecific Online. This
refers to a complaint for Tortous (eterfarence and paymeant ¢f Damages filad by
TMA Australla Ply. LG ard THMA Phillppines {he ThA Group™ agains! Paciic
Ol 0 August 2017, Tha TMA Group allaged that Facific Online wigngiulty
interfered with the implemantation of the Conbmachal Joint Wenk e Agreemant
(CvA] batwean tha Thia Group and PCS0 when it ontered Into seveml
eppren! teese agresments with fhe later hat inciuded & supgly of papar
provision, Tha THMA Group alsa applied for 8 wiit of prelimingary inunction (WP}
againgt Pacific Online and prayed lor damages In B amount of at least One
Milkon Pesos (F1,000,000.00).

Cw 21 March 2018, the ATC gmrmed the TMA Groap’s appiication lor WPl
anjoining Pacf: Onine mgm conlinying b geliver kofc paper o PCEC, Prigr o
M issuanca af the WP, howgves, Pasiiic Online almady complated delivery al
all rarnakning loblo paper requiremeants under s ELA with PGS0, Thus, the WE|
obtared by the TMA Group did pol really have any aoversa aeffoct on Pacitic
Cmiina, Mavarthaless, Pactic Onkno ol mowvesd for the reconsademtion of 1he
RTCs Cwokar qrantng e WP The RTC s yet & resibg His Maticn.

During e medaton proccodings on e case, Pacfic Onftig avd B TRA
Group agrasd, in panciphe, 1o an amicabla seffement gnd are dd i T POCEEs
of drafing a Compromise Agresmenl. Tha finamcial mpac |5 sA0 Imprachicabie
I thetermmins.

Fhilppine Chanly Sweepsizkes (e, ¢ al v, Hon, Rommal & Baybay o al.
This cass arose whan Judge Romme Baybay ol ATC-Makatl, Br. 143, In Cil
Case 12530, qranted PEMC's applcation foy injunction anjeint Pactie Cnline
from Jeasing its equipment lor PCS0's poling loftery oparatons In Luzon, On
Saplamber 5 2012, a Wt ol Proliminary imunclion {Injunciony was ssued by
Branch 143 of the Regional Trial Cout (RTCH of Makak, The Injunchan ondars
FCEC to réfraln from 1) implementing, enforcing or sxerdsing any rghl ansing
frivn the 2012 ELA Dabwean tha Pacilc Online and PCS0 2} ordanng or alkowing
iha Pacliic Ondne, or any thind party, o i@l or operata any aogquipment,
compulsr or lermingl releting o online lodery opemtions m Luzon, and 3)
committing any sl Ihat in any way violates or thanwise tnterfenes with the E14,
batween PGMC and PCS0. Pacliic Online fled a caze with e Suprem2 Courl
to iy the njunchon. PCS0 alsa fled a case wilh ke Courl of Apreals
lkewica questaning the lnjucton. On Joy 17, 2013, the Swprame Courl
decxded that the case brough! by Facillc Orllne be comaclidated with tha casa
between FGEMT and FCEQ in the Court of Appeals, thus making Pacific Onllna a
party to o casa balore tha Caurl of Appeats.

Meamwrhile, PEAMC and PCE0 antared intg an Intarim Satdement whersty Hwy
agraod, amark] offers, ta mainkdn tha status gQuo insolar as e tarmEnalg
already Installed in Luzon by Fadlflc Online are concamed. Im the samé Imanm
Seflamant, PG and PGS0 also agreed o subiit 10 arbitration bakare e
Intermational Coert of AsbHrabdon {ICA) the isske of the allaged exchashity
confemad by the ELA to PAMC for online othe operatons in Luzon. Padific
Online fried 1o join e arbirelicon bul iis Regoast lor Arsilralion dateqd May 12,
2014 was danied by tha 104 on duly 17, 2004, dua 10 PSSO oppasllicn, An
Urgent Motion o resobva was flad by Paciic Onling with the Court al Apraals bo
compsal e court o issue an ohar Ip PGRC and PCSSH I inchuda Pactfle Onling
in tha negotiatdons. This matied was rot resalved by the Court ol Appeals,



On January 29, 2016, PCE0 filed 2 Manitestation with Motion o Dismiss dated
Jangny 12, 2018 with ATC of Makal, siabng Hhat the pressding Judga approed
PGMC ard PCSC' “Interim Serfernact” dabed Decombar 11, 2013 wharein &t
wis ageeed that the case wil be amhived pandng arblmation, PLCS0 also
avarred that, on Doceber 13, 2015, PGMC and PGSO execilsd a
‘Supplamental and Status Ouwe Sqreement” wheraln the parias agreed o
dizmisg all panding juckdal and vl actions bansoen them ot shal contineg with
the artheation procesdings. Thus, pursuan o said agresment, PLS0 withdrew
e Patiion lor Certoan in the Court of Appéals, which was granted by virtug of
the Resclution dated March 1, 2016, PESO alss prayed for the dismissal of the
RATC cane, but this was denied by the RTC Makall after POMC opposad PCSOYS
mobon b ismlss,

In e rrraardirma, the Couwt of Apeaals reguinad he partkes to file their respestive
Memomnda in the case, On September 13, 2017, Pacic Gnline filed its
Memom@rdum. FCSO opted not to ha it tem Marmarandut!, but manBested
instead Hat il was adeddirg the Mamorandum of Pacific Onfice,  On Januery 8,
219, Pacihic Onkne's counsel recefved a Dectsion by 1he Court of Appaals dated
Degember 17, 2018 dismissing Pacfic Ontne’s Petibon e Ceddorard and
Prohition. Pacids Oming  decddes 0 Ny ewpr purse 4 Motoo lor
Reconsidaration Decauss, o 3 certan extert, the Feliton already sarved ik
PUrpCse a5 aler the same wasg filed, the RTC Mehali put on heid Hha hasty
mpemeniaton o e injmclicn.  Subsequsnt evets have Ukowkss rendared
moot he [33ues i the CASe, snce, adide from the |CA sibitaton dadslon, the
ELA gt issue in the caze has giso been amended and superseded sowaral imes.
Wilth thess developments, the advarse affect against Padile Onlire - the raason
that this case was ibalad in Ihe brst pace - s 0o (ongar attendant

Moasrmant of Sair Valvas. A mumbar ot e Groug's accounting pefides and
disciosures require the measuremsnt of fair vakies, lor both fnardsl and non-
financial azsats and lizllities.

Tha Growun has an established cortied feamewark with fesect 1o the reasersment of
lalr vahrez. The Chad Finance Officer [CFO) has cverall responsiblliny lor cuerseeing
all gnificant fair value maasurements, mcwding Laved 3 Rir values, i ary, Tha CFOQ
reqularty ravews sknfican! updbesrvabia inpots and valbalion aEustnsents. (8 third
party mfomafion = usad o measere faic values, fen the CFO assassas the
avidance oblalined to suppod te condusion thal spch valgfions meel the
requirements of PFRSS, includireg the 18val @ the fadr valua hiararchy in whkh soch
weluatkoa shookd e cipmalfed,

Tha Group uses mMAamet chaarvabsa dats when measeing Bw fir valoe of an asset
o llabiity. Fair values ere careporingd irmm diftarant lewats in a fale value hlerarchy
based on tha Inpubs wsed o the valrabon dechnigues (Maks 4).

If the inputs 1sed o measure he I8 valus of an as3et or B llabdiy mighr e
cabeparizad n diferent kovels of e lair valwg hisrarchy, then 1he fatr value
measuEment 2 categodmsd in ks anbraty in tha same feysl ol e fale valua
higrarchy as tha Imwast kel inpud thal is significant o the enilss measurement The

mathods and assemplons sl o estimate feir values for finandal assets and
Rabiities arg wscussed in Molg 24,

The falr vale of Anancii Fekats pmcamted to P11 billlon and P16 billicn a5 al
Decemier 31, 2015 and 2018, respectvaly, The falr valoe of Anandal flablitkes
amcuniad b P3E0.0 million and P286.7 milllon a5 at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectvaly (Male 24,



4. Ssgment Information

Tha primary seypnent feporting lomar is presented based on business seEments n
which e Group's ks and rales of relum are affectad pradeninanty by diffarences
in the products and samnviges providaed. Tha oparakmg buzinesssq 3re anganiyed and
raraged separdtely acconding 10 1 naure of the prducts anad Sanvioas proviced,
with oach zagmont repregomting a stelegic business il that offers differant
products and sarvas diffanod markals.

Tha CGroup is engagen i the businesses of loasing ktary equipment 1 PGS0
(leasing activities) and sake of oheny Gckets e Wi, keng, gweemsiEkes and nstan
Bk [distritubion and otail actyvites), ameng ofars. Aayenass generamd from e
loasry activitlos account for 6805, 7%, and T9% ¢ the Grgup’s revanues in 2013,
2015 are] 2017, resmpectvely,

Ferformancs |s moeasiisd basod on segpmem ncime Delore noome a1, as ingludad
in fhe intemal management reports tat are eviewed by the Gmup™s Presdent
Segmenmt il irGome 15 used 1D measurg parfnmancs A% management bedieyves thal
such irformalen 1= i st mEvant 0 avaloating e resules ol coraln segments
redattve o othar enmifles thal gperate within e indugines,

[t ematon regardneg tho rasuie of sach rpofabho Sagmot s shown balpw:
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7. Caxh snd Cash Equivalenin
Thes accounl coneksts ai:
Nortn 010 2018
Cagh on hard and in banks PFXG G .TAR  PET1 280,258
Cash euivalents 38,281,781 =
27 P ATIAM PST1 260258




Cash in banks and cazh exquivalants eam [nterast ab he respochive Sark deposait
rates. fnetest lncoma from cash in bandes amouted 1o P15 milion, P1.3 milien, amd
P35 ravillior i 2019, 2004 ard 2017, respetivoly.

5. Marketable Securitics

Tht account cormsists masnty of Invasiments m quoied shares of swock of Lasuma and
Resors World Comeration, Yantape Equitias, Ing,, and APC Group, Inc.

Tha micwomarts i rmarketards sacudbos are 35 Iolows:

vale e XHB
Balange al beginning of year Pios, 704 203 P10, 460,042
Armurstions - -
Dleparesls - (10.874,EE%)
bl ri-bo-rriariet loss {15248 311} (11,903 08 5]
Balance atend ol year 24 PFlaLasSeS81  P155, 704 B

Tha fair valpas of hega secutics are bEesd on closng quoted market prces o 1M
lasl market day of 1fe year,

Drdend Inoome amounisd 1o P47 millice, P50 rliban, and PE.T ondkion In 2075,
2018 and 2017, respecively.

49, Treda andd Dihar Recelvablan

Moz 18 e
Accoiimts recevables & FI26602.Ted P35 20 N0
Acz g livense leg Inoome - curend
powtion o) 40,083,153 ar sor o
Adances;
Officers and empoyess 4 575 758 o X &858
Canrackers and suoplias 2249 2% 3847 37
Ot receivabies 11906 2,00 387
174,649, M0  F2R5, 06 B9
Less alcwance for impaiment [oss 2147391 .

P172,507,8600  F285.0873 835

Arcounts recatrabile s ganaraly on a J0em=-A0-day crexdil termms, The rskg amotiated
on this account are dischosed in Nols 24,

Acrymunts  reCoivalbe inglyde advance paymants (or Instam scramh  thehels
arvlinting 1o nil and P71.8 millkon 25 at Dooamoer 31, 2010 amd 2018, respochivehy.

The movarmants in zliowanse o irmpalmend ssez a5 81 December 31 arg as

[l R
Mot 29 2018
Balarcs al aginrdry of yasr F - F -
|mpainmenl sses reccgaized during
the year 12 =147 31 -
Balancy At ernd of yaar PT.147. %1 F -




Alirwanca recogrdzed durirgg the year padains o the accounls recalables from
AT,

10, Orher Currerm and Moncyument Auppsis

Cuermnt Agoaly
Mole 201% at ) I
Cradicaba wiihhelding Exes PES MY ITY PaS OE2 138
Frepaymenis 71,897, 11E 11,249, 5950
Spare parts and supplies at cosl b4 ITAIDAIE 60,978, 4
Input VAT 5,170, 0083 3,618,513
Cash baond 2 24 - 10,000.000

P714,265314 P144,935, 786

Prepaymants repeasert mainly tha yranplred potion of insurancs and rent, it alsd
ingludes prapaid techmisal braining, advisory and malntenance services ralated o Tha
softwara davaepmant contract i 2019

rent

. MNodat . _2mg 2018
Salwam déwvalopment P10, B1E, 400 P -
Accrped license hag incorme - net of

cufranl porThion 6 S5 G2 130122122
Prepakd sarvice & mainignands 40 AFF IT3 -
Fahndakhe dapeibs 24 35424 154 o) BB
Gugrantged deposis 2 24 12,000,000 2000000
thars 1 93T 678 8,573,722

P290,2858,060 F20o,627.541

Refurdabls depoells are subsert 1o adjustments svery year i rent mbes intraase and
shall be refumed o the lengee withou imeresl.

Guaramee] dopnsits per@ing o cash bonds held in esnmy account as parl of the
agresmend wilh PCSO (Nate 2.

Saoftware oevelOpment represenIs payments for the creation and deveoDman. of
few padming sdlulions b snable saling of ey Sckets througn dilarent channets
and anhenco existiog kotery syemm efdencies in response o the changing
GLoNomic condifipns of e emirpnment.

Prepaid senice and mamtenance pertgins Io advance payment for echrical and
raining supper serice.

.37



11, Inwieabrrsinia in Stoeks

The movermenis in imyestmanhs in ochs ane a5 Kl

Kota 210 _ 2018
Balanca at begirning of year PASS, TOS S0 P7ET.000, 200
Aopulsnons . 3 490,020
Disposals - -
Fadr valiw \nss (108 076,060) {75065, 78, 3640)
Balance at e o year 24 PTEMABG PaBA 706 530

There wora NS ecus iones of despoeaks In 2018 1o tha above lnovesiments, The Rir
value e on invesmants in Shocks is repared as “Othar Campreheresive Incone
{LOosS) in e coarelidaled skaigrmonks af Companansive Incaome.

The gain on sale of invesiments in stocks wes (ecdassifed from tha “Fair valua
reserve” attounl b "Retanad eamsngs” account m tha 20158 consoliated skatement
Ol changos In equity,

Dividard Irectrme arnoumesd 1o P27.0 milion, P24.1 midion, and P14, million in 2019,
2018 and 2017, recopenrtivaly.

12. Proparty end Eou ipmenil

ThE Wcvadedls | e Accant Ara 35 (oS

-
Eysipmerd,
Loraie'y Lihigtwal Pt ed T
L | Erplioiae'd A MAHTEAE Pl v L o I
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sy B, 2T B Fre Pl sk 5 FOGACEENE P L EES T FOOEAD. 148 P 573 Ird g
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[S= 1= iH ' [ BT, 11T T 144 1M apS
Pl (R 7L Y [kl — ATRLETRTIT
el 113200 200 | |67 50| A LI 473,307 ga7) LA T21 Ta%
Eniemmblbaler 31, 2T L LR H b =t b LT, i 1,1 ok TAT
Carirg e
Da-samber 31, 2000 Pl 4 MWL EWATIR FELL LA HETAR
eyl 71, 3010 FIRCHLED Flomme e PRELMJ AT FMEET G FIECLIE

Lo¥ery euipmatt acouirsd under finarce laasa as of Jamnwary 1, 2019 were
reclassified o night-of-use ascabs.



13. teosoarwlit

Gonchwil Boguired tirongh Buainess combinations has been alocated 10 dstribubon
ard retail actviiies, a cash-gencating unll {CGU), which i alsa the seporabe
operating segmert Iy wmpalment tasting. The group performs irmpalmient 1esting
anrwa by Or mere Irequeniy when Ters ane indicabgrs oF irnpairmeant kar goodwill,

Gl represents tha Lair vlue OF supecmed Bynergies from the aculsioon of LCC
in 2007 and Ine MNine Enttees in 2017

) . 2018 g
LCC P - P13, 363 454
Nine Ertities . 4682 752

P -  PI7.046,266

Gonawai! from Acqurgition of LOC and & Enfitles

Tha recovaratle arcurt al gocdwill from tha acquislfion of LOC by LotaPac and
Mine Enttas oy LCC was detammined basad on a S-year valua-ln vse colculation
esing aciual past results and obsensabla markel daea.

Growih rates 2nd oparating mamgics weed 1o astimale fulue perhormanca Bne edually
pased on past perormance and experience of greeth raes and operafing marging
achienable it e relavart indusiey. The expecmed cash Aows are discourtcd Dy
amilying a sulable YWekghled Average Cosl of Capital (WACC). The discount R
appied o pretax cash Bow projections was 14.1% and 1% for the erminal grewth
rala.

| myealmuant boss on goodwil amoured 1o F17.0 mifion, P119.% milkon amd nil in
2019, 2018 and 2017, reepeclivety.

14, Trada s O™ O stk LEabeliPLbes

MNerla 2018 15
Actpns paYyabie PrRA8T, 172 P54 248020
Acrnmend Sxpanses:
Frofossronal beas 258,151,800 o6, 400 S0
Communicaions 11,9085 204 9,458, 4.0
Fental and uHlies LATO.RY2 B, 556, B4
Maragemani fees - 1274375
Corsultansy, sefhware and licarss leas
pAyarda 17 207,081 37,535, 214
O Lax 454 845 dz 845
CAthaars _ 8204 437 B ETo, 724

2 PLHZNIS]  PR5071,458

Ancounts payabla generally has a J0-to-45-day credit tarms.



Conzulancy, sftware and licensea lees, and managenani laas payable relale ko the
Tolkcrarineg 3 graanents:

.

<

Loy Agreements

Tra Groap hmd e eardcos of several consulants for ds gaming operabions.
Consultancy fees are based on @ cengin percamage of the sales of certaln
variants al PCSO kttary. Conkulancy fexs amounted to nil, P30.3 millipn, and
FES & mdllcpn In 2015, 2018 and 2017, rospecttwely (Mote 18],

Sclenthc Games

Qn Febryary 15, 2006, ta Parerd Corpamy anterad into a contract wilh
Sugemific GAmMes, B company incormpaatd wnder the Eawe of e Aapublic of
Irgkgrad, Mor the supply of compater hardwara ared opsarating Sysiem softwars,
ndar tha tenmes of ke “Contract for the Suppey of the Visayas-Mindanano Cnling
Lottery System,” Scemific Games will provide BOD onling kettery terminals and
termingl sftware ngcessary bor thie Parent Company's loasirk] opferaioms.

In consckeratbon, e Parenl Company shall pay Scemific Gemes & pra-agreed
perceriage of tha revenusa genaaled by Ha tarminals o PCSOs conduct of
onlind kflery opiraton using e computer harcware and opergting sysiem
prvided by Sdentific Games, The comract shall contifee as lomg as the Parent
Company's ELA with PCS0 isin effect.

On Oombey 2, 2012, the Parant Comgany and Saantlic Games amardad tha
contract o anend tha pannd lrom aprl 1, 2013 until Augest 31, 2015, and
prowice for the supply of adaitional tasminaks.

On Novemiber 20, 2015, the Parent Comparmy and Schanbfic Sames further
arrenched #Re conbac by extend the pered from Saplambar 1, 2095 until July 31,
2018 and provada for the suppl of 1,500 bcand new 1erminals to the Parant
Comparty. The amendmem also removed the provision for e [nattive Tarmminal
Fee gl USE2C00 per mrmirgyl per month ke any addibonal temminals not
connecied 1o the aoivware prowded Dy Sceanbific Games,

in August 2018, the cortracl with Scolankic Games was futher amended o
exiend the mered uril duly 31, 2019,

On Saptember 4, 2014, tha contracl wilh Soenlitic Games was further amendsad
by extamd the perdtod vl July 31, 203,

Somware and ifedse feds amountad B PE20 milllkn, FIFA milllon, and
FEE.S millwom i 2019, 218 and 217, regpeactively (Note 18],

Irtralal

. O March 13, 2008, tha Parartl Company enterad imto a conbrach with (mrekgt
{Imralot Ereaca), a company incuporated under the aws of Gresce, for the
supphy gt gling kottery systern necessary v the oparabion of a mow onllos
ktlery system effectve December 3, 2006, Under the 12ms of the ~Contract
for the Supply of the Visayas-Mindangg Onling Laltery Syslem.” Intralet wilk
prowiden tha Pangrt Company e hardwarg, oparating system softwane and
tarmanake and the requirad tretning. In consikderation, the Parend Company
shall pay Intralot 2 pro-agneed parcantage of the ravanue genergted by the
temmanals om PCSC0M's corduct of pnlina kaktery Gparation o a fided amount
of US33910 per termiral per month, whichever is higher. The (ontact shall
continue &5 lkang as {the Parant Company™s ELA willh PCSO iz o affect.

-4 .



O July 10, 2008, [nirzlo, enlered inle an agresment with infakl Inc.
firtrakl USA}, & subeidlary domiciled n Atamea, Georgia, UBA, whersin
Intraiot Gresca assigned W Inirakm, USA the whale of [t condrBct wath the
Parent Compary, indading al its nghls and obligafions arising from it. The
Farenl Company will pay Infralat 2 e-agree] pecanige of e revenus
penarated by e 1emmonals from PCSO's onfne loftery operations or
U533 110.00 par terminal whichgwar is Righér.

On Seplember 6. 2013, the Perent Compary and Intralat further amancied
te conbtact for the supply of addiional tefminals 1o anatde the Panant
Company ko expand its online iflery opeiatons, EMective April 1, 2013, the
Parertt Company ard bntralot agreed 1o lower the periontags ol ravenues
paid by the formar o b kater.

In Al 2018, 1ha Parent Compamy and Intrelor again afméandsd the canlract
for e laiter (o supply acditional reconditionsd o refurbisied D tenminals
o The Ienre and axiend the tarm of e contract urdil August 31, 218,

On Sopember 25, 2018, the conmact with Inbrakt was further anmonded to
axtend thie pencd unbl Juiy 31, 3018,

O Juty 1, 2015, i contract with [nwalg was further emended b axtand fw
pariod until July 31, 2020

nltwares and license lses amounied 1o PT1.6 milkon, P984 mitlon, and
FBO, 7 million in 2019, P018 amd 2017, recpactuady (Mote 18).

il. O Ageil 1, 2004, TGTI ertered into a contract with Intralot ker the supply of
onling othery Systam necessary for tha operation of a naw onllne lodery
sysiam etlective bntl Seplember 30, 2020. In considaration, tha TGTI shall
pay Imidlot 8 pre-agreed pemmentage of the evenus generalad by the
terminals Irom PGS0 conduct of onling lottery coaration. On July 2008, the
canttac! was amended sueh hat Instead of recebing mormhly resrunarakion
calculated as a perconiape of the gross receipls of TGTL from iy ELA with
PGSO, Intmlgr wil now mcaiva monthly remunaration calouiated on g
percaniags basks of the gross recespts of PCS0 irom e onling ke Games.

On March 22, 2011, the cordract wag furher amended for Imrakd D supply
aicitonal onting kama terminals o TGT and meduced the percemadge
charmgad by Inlelot @ TG or USSED.00 per mrminal par month o an
everape basis, whicheyer |4 highar. TGTI aken ondedook a latter of
puaranies amawrbing t© F20580 miitken not Emar than March 28, 2011 in erder
kor TGTl w0 securs tha paymenl of Inficfs remumeration. The sald
QUAME NS was pravionesty receymized Lndar Tther noncument assets™ in e
cormoidamd slatements of Arancal posikan,

Software amd licansa ez amoomied to P42 millon, P51 .6 millon, amd
F58.1 makia in 2015, 2018 and 2017, respecively {Mola 18).

4. Managemnest Agragment

The Paremt Company hag 2 Managemant Agresment with AB Caming and
Lelsore Exponenl Specialist, Inc. kor ha later to provicke investmoent znd
managemednl ot amd 1o acl a5 manager and overseer ol te Farent
Company's operations, 0 constemton for hesa services, e Parant Sompary
shail pay a momhly fea o POL1 milllon snd an artcunl ageivalant b0 a cenain
pe-Tentge ol ey Company's aamings badore Interest, taxes. deprecigtion ard
arngrizatipa (EBMTOA).

4 -



TQATI hes Managemant Agrsemenl with AR Gamang and Lasuie Specialist, Inc
(A8 Garming) M ks onling kang opeatane. In conssderatson, TGT! will péy AR
Gaming a managemenl fee equivalen! 10 B ceraln parcertage ol TGTiS
samirgs Belore inlarast, Laces, doprecia ion ang amortization.

Manapemant leas amounted ko nil, P4, 7 millon and PED.S milln ;m 2019, 2018
ard 2017, respecivaly (Mo%e 18}

15. Loan Payabila

Cm December 18, 2019, the Parenl Company availed ab 2 F150.0 millkn unascured
ipan Irpm Asig Uniteg Bank with an inlerest rale of 5.25% por annem, payable in
gty Inatalimienls for a perkoad of one (1) wear

16. Equity
o, Capilal Sleck
oy il
Humbar e
_ofShadad = Amount | odShanes 0 Amoudt
CARITAL 3T
A fthaalneg,
TN AMRTER - 1 [ar waliek oA DO D00 P2 ol (e, 0l S0 D0k (KK PN TN, D00
[ ol
D larpal & Emalpnirice] o il 44T M 4T TR AN AT ELG AT L4 T ORS 4T3
WSO i the yaar MTPALAT 447,88 4T - :
Blaakber A0 & & i WSS RS RS LG A4T 88847 LT ES ATY
Tr it 'y St
Balanca ot beegeraning ot year =70, R 5T BS54 23 7R AT S8 B0 TT0
EMae] of a%ck of heaclow] 25, R AR r
acharers duerg B viar - 1,478 (0 16 6080 TER
B0, 00, el Hb T S P L Pl o
fusslardryg shares MW DEZ  PSIQOETIRA AFZaa1 a1 Pk Y A5

On Auguet 14, 2018, tho Board of Directors epproved the amendment in the
Parant Company's articles of incorporabion o increasa ik adthorized captal
shock oo P90 miticn civided into SO0 millioa common shares to P2 208 millkn
dividad inkg 2,288 million common shares. Tha incfoasae in the auikorized capital
ginck wae appiowed at the specizl meesting of the stockhoiders hekd on
Seplember 25, 2018, The incraass in acmonzed caplial s1ock was apprived by
the SEC on Fetywoary 28, 2019,

B Stock Dividend Chstributatie

O August 14, 2012, tne Board of Direclors declared 8 100%: sheck dividend to
the Parent Company'a stockneders which the recond and paymen! dates will e
sat subject ta tha approval of ha SEC of the Farenl Company's incraase in s
autharized capital stock. The stock divedend will be isswed oot of the iNcrease in
authorized capirel gieek, The stock dvidend declaration was appioved at s
spockl meeting ¢f the stockhokders hedd on Saplamber 25, 2018. The increasa in
authewizad captal slock was subsequenky approved by SEC 1ast Fatwuary 28,
2015, On March 15, 2019, the SEC approved Ihe record date of March 29, 2019
and thd paymend dale of on oF betore Aprl 29, 2019 for the Pamnt Company's
100% stogk divicand,

- 42 -



c

Dev ichiends
Mo cash or sk oividonds wene declared in 2019,

In 2HE, e BOD, upon resommendaton of management, deciaced the folkeing
cagh dividends:

Cracignprion Fecocd Dhalw Pay st Per Shara St

Aprd 26, 2B kay 14, 2k lay 31, MR POA0  P1E4 7SR 11D
LA 26 118 Avust 3, 2018 At 2, NE .30 126, 708 11%
P253,471 4

In 2017, the BOD, upon recommendation of managameanl, declared the klwing
cagh dlvidands:

Doclamiion Hoeod Datd Faymant _ Per Share Arrunil

May 2, 2017 May 17, 4T ey 31, X7 FL.OOD P16 gad dRd

May 2, 2017 Augus 11, 27 At A0, 2T .30 126,504 211

Dacarbi 6. 2017 Janunry 5 2008 Januaey 31, JHB 0.20 B4 781 %9%

' PE38.274,700
Treasury Stock

On Juty 11, 2008, the BOD authodzed ha Parent Company o buy bk up 10
2,000,000 shares from the public as & méans of pieserving tha value of the
Parent Compamy’s shares asd rdintalning mvesior corfifenca, Il additon, on
Octobar 14, 2008, the BOD appowed kK earend its sha e ury-back prigeam up m
a rmaximom of 10% of te Parent Company' s cutsiasdipg capial shick.

The mowvements in ey shock 2m a3 holfdews:

Dacamber 31, SF1H Deramibar 31, 2018
oenibeer of thmibar ol
Shares Amaurd Sy Aol
Bakarnch at bginming of
HE yaar 25233 492 P2B% 207550 ZE3755 400 Poh LD T

Effimet af stoek divicheyd b ] -
Ao ssttons - - 1,475,000 15 606, 760
Balarce ol ond of e yeir  5O480.081 P2B52TEER  ZAZINAEZ  P2ASPET550

e¢. Retanad Eamrings

Nt 201% 2018

Lrapew cpriated PASSITAATE P965 A0 215
Armirapriabed:

TGTI a - 20,1000, Cxl}

LEC b - 20,000,000

. 230000, 00}
PE65,178,423 P1,1598,822 535

a. On Cohobew 24, D7, tha BOD of TGTl, upon mecommendatllon of
mEnagamenl, approved e aopropriation of PRO000,000 oA gl TGTl's
unapnrearlatand retained samings o uturg sxpEncion progeamns. n 20198, e
apropraion wa s aversed.



b, On Oocombor 5, 2017 omd, he BOD o LCC, upwon recommendalion of
management, epproved the appropdaton of PROL00O000 ot of LLCH
unappopabed redained eamings 1or rancvation of exlsting relail outkers and
consTucton of new anes in 2018, in 2019, tha aporoeiaton was revarsad
as |0 decged 1o delay ha renovatons of e oufiers and aparing of new
gites and purehase o 0fica and computer aquipment.

17. Feleed Party Trarnsactions

Aascuorll
el Setencas b Aovesoss oo
=iy Thd Wosk Trtsocon  Felivid Panies  Fivied Fariies Tk Ctaullbibtrl
™n
LT ] .- | ] 1.9 1TF, rF - FIL,ETAH  On dereiec) ceaf Lifsiedound
eyt Jaering
g ] (LA H A
§ D] b covmed Fedbkodd  BEAR ’ - -
=ne d IR
= Dl Gl Hiw B -
Pl 8 4R SE
= TAbche fyt G, b < .
1. ] 2 171 A )
+ Fiaha'rin walePae 10 &A1 0 e
‘MIE a4 e
e
+ ity Hip PR LN -l ) - - b oy s, 1091 LRSSl
Iy bremsig
Fo a+ . hLig- CHL ]
LT M AL
¥ Mniieick Logl] ¥ [[FR T EEE T defrecd, o Lie'nirin ]
Iy Caarir
mn " 11084 . [ LN ]
LL & My Lniftiem
= Colebghpra Pl Fab | -
il o TR . .
0 A el i a4 Tk DL LT i e, cur- Whrriae ¥
L L ]
ol | ] . by B0 10
% Randsd areaasn b0 g PRMHET .
g 0 Sl EE
" oy ey pne d  x2icrk 10
108 4 3N 0% EE4 . '
TOTAL o 1) PR M LAy
TETAL mn P . EA R RS

Tha Parent Compamy has an aserabonal and echmcal suppont sardices
agreament with TGTI which the former will assist the latler in e falliwing:
{1} es\ablzhing a sulbhle and eficlent Islscommunications links far e [ater's
anling kana natwork and {2] overseaing e Sfrciant operaton, sQular preventive
malntenanca, and Necassary epairs on TAT's online keng fermminals depkoyed
witin the Vicayas and Mimdanae egans, inclading the ceniral dika senver
beacated [ Cabou Sty

Int Gongidern ion for bams sorvces, TOT] pays 4 Hixed o per Keno tarminal,

TGTI alse reimburzas e Parent Company in caah [oF communicalion axpertsas
Incumed o soma onling keno agentsope Aicrs amd g chared dala canter,

The Parent Company gramed non-interest bearing cash advances 16 LomPac,
LCC and FRI lor working cactal requirgments. Tha P10 million advances 1o
FRI was corwerted 1o equity duriryg the year,

b, The Parent Company recelwed cash dvidends rom TGT] and LOC.

i F



e TGTI purchased tradad eRaras of tha Faren Company (LOTO) through its STk
brokers, thus, TGTI receives dividends for hase chares. The cos! of shares
purchaged by TGT & included i e "Teeasory Stock® accoumt n 1ha
conealidaked statoments of krandal poaition, TGTI reeeived cash dividend Irom
tha Parent ComparTy,

d Lo ard MNine Enbtios have axtsim] agreements with relabed paries urder
COMaTon twinersnip by 5W Investment Corparation kar the eased spacs of (s
aubets which arg rarwrerible dvdry siocncnths b Two yaars al ks opbion

Urder e 12ms of the kease agreement, LG and Nine Ertes are required (0
pay renkals equivaint ooa fieed e par Mot and Securty  depoails
cormosparadng 1o s (3} rrorths el Thesa doposlts consist of amaounts paid
In advance whath can be colleced In cash upon lemmination of the ease,

The Ikotal recalvabdes snd payables sliminaled amowntcd 1o P15 milllen and
P393 miillon, respactvaly,

Compensation al tha Group’s kay managerment perconnel am as olkows:

2019 01— 1. L
il deilind )
Shon-term employee benefts FIT.hG Fad. (2 Pad 20
Fost-reirement benefis - 13 2.33 2.50
P29 P35 P38

The comporsaton of he Gmoug's kay management peconnel b2 ncisted in the
"Persomned miss” as dizsiosaed nkote 18 o e consalidated financial statements.

18, Cost» and Expenees

Nola 2018 2018 N7
Parecannd cosks P34 088 424 P M5 4AB)SEH P22 DEL5TH
Depreciatoen and
amotizalion 12 219363495 223,200,081 225 M 278
Hent znd Uhlibes 2 160,558, 1l 214003, T 164 356377
Gattwrare arnd licanss
leas 14 136217 42 195,747 02 151,656 99
CommLEica foas 126 667 748 125,025 510 12106678
Fepars 2nd mainisianss 113,281 844 72,500, 7D 55210127
Travel and accomemwadalion B3 ATS 380 2536500 BH 541,580
Cparating suppliea Z 83,871 0581 159,806,141 217 a3 o
Marketing and pre-mcdion 48,013, 008 S, 44 LT ITE
Taxes arsd leenses 34, P T PR a2 7a2 310 39,34 227
Emtarta vment,
amusamant and
eSS arytation 28, 50 09 19,565, 548 156,483 481
Prolassional hees 15,084 914 14,752 874 13,567 5%
Pravizadnr kar empairmenl
oss & 2,147 381 . >R 00,000
Mpnapement lees i - 44 655 BI7 B%853, 145
ConsSttancy fescd 14 - 30312175 a5 571 479
Mwers L 28 58 A8 25,151 (124 45,510 885

F1370,001.8%1 #1614,4808,192 Py G52 402,450
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Parsocr cosls Ang A% ilkoners:

Meda 215 i} i 217
Salaries amd wagos PRMAT21.IT1  P2ER 125674 F214,117 360
Chhar BeaT-EEmn
empIyes benedis 57 059 607 €5, 1681 414 37 G5
Fogt-gmpigymerit
b it 2z 18,265 465 12,183,420 11,181 &60
Fl11a,086 404 PM5400508 FP2H63,09684 539

18, Incorrm Tax

The momncliabon of intome @ exparse (benefi) compoted =i the applicabla
slabfony Incomer tax rae b incore tax axporso (Banalfil) Showt n e consofdamd

shalements of income is a5 Fiows:
2019 2018 207
Incorma [loss) balore NGt
(P58 .6T1) P4R2ATRGOT  PT21.746 M2
IncawnE [AX eXpEnse a1
statultry income tax rabe
3T |[F11B81E30t] FPi44.B63580 P216,523,908
Acitions B {reductons ing
LAeIrThe ta:
Mondaduciibis axpanses 21 50, Jid 5,433 96 15,653,680
Liruaconrized HOLCO 17,0eLB 687 - -
Morrable noome (457 ,18T7) (8,7, 733) (6,087 625}
Darecognized MOLCO 6270418 . -
Impalmnent loes on gotdhdll 5 113 880 29,260,159 -
Ma rh-To-market Dss (i) on
markatabie securltas 4574 451 3,570,928 (147,381}
Incoamna subjeghed o Rnal lex {513,443 19523,1735) (215, 749)
Galn on sale of markesiakis
gacuriles - (454, 4E4] .
Othens {T93,250| 1,424 P63 3,153 527
IF73.415,207) P17B.B30,588 P228,.8230,374

Tha comporents of e Goug's defemed las ecognized In ofheer compreheraive

ircome g2 8% oliows:

205 2014 anT
Amount chamged (credibed) b
pro or ks (PE2MESITY P47 AT 314 (P1. 180, b}
Amgunt chargad (credited) to
ather compraheniive Income {T.77H B5TY 5 0. 510 578.0M
(Fea 7o My P32,736.034 [F3E2, 904




The components of Jalarrad tax assaks {anllles) are a5 pikgws:

£% 81 Decamber 31, 2013
. Beglnning  Movemants Ending
Remae Recognized in Proff, or
Lipaa
Linamortinesd pasl semcs cost P00 s 1,089 82%  P11,688,T81
Alkrwance {or mpaimwent
hroses on trade and pfher
e blers LN LY. ry 140,585 4,185,152
HOLCO 2,503 a5T 82258 553 71,861,130
At ] BEpenSas 217,700 {1,349 25 1,087 Bad
Unirgakipad Iesgign exchanga
grak 255,004 55176 A2, 060
Frapayments {310,551} {404,300 (T15.451)
Retirement benafits liability
(AR5R1) (5,542,371} 281158 (2,730,137)
Accnued license fee ingome (50,304 696} SAZ0 000 [0 TR 096
(37,023 584} B2 018877 1 999 A
Ky Rerognlpwd I Ot
Compretssng|ve Incanw:
Rermeasurement of relirgment
et (273,545) ¥ IT9 857 ¥ 806 312
{P37T28T1M) PEO.7085M  PL2 G0N 260
ag al m i 1
Bagirinirig Mgvrarnanks Erwling
I'tam3 FRecngnizad in Profil or
Lreay
Unamgrired past service cost PR 462,745 F1.540,180 P10,002 BG
Alcwanca for impairmen,
ksses on Irade and olhor
recolyabe s 4,05 557 . 4 045 557
NOLCO 1,466 823 1135635 2602 457
ACCIeT Ex[arTsas 2788 503 (371,403) 2417100
Unreatired {orelgn oxchangs
QAN 478 B0 (211,008 255, 684
Prepayments (310,551} . (310,551)
Ratiremant benslits gsaet {6521,2TN 879,005 {5642,271)
Amcnmd beermse Rincome - {(pDAMEDE)  (30,404.596)
10,408,720 {47.432.314] (37,023,584}
Itams Raccgrized in Ol
Cormpretonsgive becomss
Remeasurement of ratirament
benefs 5 (30,5965 {5,304 510) (273,545}
P15439 585 (P52, 736,624] (P37.237.179)

Repuilic Al (R&) Ho 105963 or e Tax Refoom b Accafemton and [ndusion Aol
[TRAIN} was sigred indy Ew on Decombar 19, 2017 and fook alect January 1, 2018,
mgkirg the new tax [aw anacled as o thal data.
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The TRAIN Law, which mok effaci on January 1, 2018, mepweserts Packadd 1 of e
comprahensle tax refom program of tha current zdminishaten that aims to comed
oApS In e prement o systam, abowing I 1o be more fectng and equltabee. Balcw
arg tha salestt pointc of the TRAIN Law,

a. Feduction in parsanal incons kxes
b. Changes in cagtal Income taxes
v Final withholdling tax o interest Irom foreigr-curmensy daposits increased ko
15% {from 7.5%)
= Caplal gaing tax on uniistturmraded shamss increased o 1576 {frem

5% 1}

a  Stock ransacton tae on listedfraded shames Increased to B10 al 156 (trom

of 1%

c. Amendmes k ctherfaxes
<1 Uﬂiua-a.d:ﬂe-d lax {WAT)
Cartain VAT rarc-rated transactions o becgme subject o 12% VAT upon
implamentation ol VAT rehend sysiam

- WAT gecomplion Hueshold ior zale ol poods and sanices inceased O
Phgcams (freem Phpd, 9i)

- Included in VAT-exempt ancactions. ameng othars: Tranders gl
progadios pursuent 5 4 Bec-lree marger; Assoclallon dues, membgrship
fgos, aryd other ascessments ard chacgas collected by hormeowmare
ass0cations and Condominiem coporabicns

c.2 Incragsed documentary stamp kaxes (DST) rates by 50% to 100%

&3 Exsish gt
Revised excize taxes on cigams ard cigarettes. manudachred ois and
other hals, palmdeam prexdocts, avtomobiles, and minarals

-  Exparndad scopa ol exgisg BX 10 Ncluds non-essential servicas and
sweelaned beverages

ARteigh most of te changas will affect Individuals, he TRAIN Law alsg imnodessd
changes to Income BX, VAT and axcise taxes,

24, L Senmirn memits

Leases a5 Losgea (FFAS 161

Ther Group Bases offics spacs, oullets and wearshousas. The leasas hyplcally un for
a period of 2-5 years, with an oplkan 1o renew the lease afler that dare. Freviaushy,
hasa leacss were classfiad as oparating leasss under FAE 17

i Rkght-of-se assets
Right-ol-use assets rolaked o Based propetes whisa leasa lemms arg morg

thar 12 months.
0T
Orrtiets aned
MNota WarsivH Equinment Towd
Elalomce g Jomuarny 1,
a14 PO, S PH, E2L 20 D, D50l
Compoation charge s
the waar - {27,508 1T} (RIS | {46,133 800)
Achiitions K righl =11
m5eTE 13T 552 - 17,371,502
Bulirp it Dealrindpa- 31,
Mg P, O 0P O P - R0 208 [
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i, Lease liabilities

2019
Balance at January 1. 2019 P8 18 24
Fedassdication ¥oen fnanca lasse” A5 3VL,474
Inbarest chame ko fhe year 7,022,048
Faymsents made {E0 485 847)
Addificns 0 ase labilhes ) o 17,372 000
Balance ot Decomber 31, 2018 ) PB?,HJE,L‘I_!
CLATY AT R AT i
iii.  Armauts by ba ocognized In profit or loss
Mixis ) 2019
2018 - Lopnss undar FFRE 14
Imtaras on lease labillty P72 e
Depreciaton expense 8 448,13, 626
Rer axpense relating o sharl-1enm Hases 14 92,024, D81
2013 - Opargating Lasses undess PAS 17
Renlk expense P214,003 T91
Tokal cash outflowa far lsasas in 20013 P14, 180,831
T, Owewr [nizcrivn {Lo8A])
"Orhers" under Chiar income aansists al
o Maole 2019 2018 =7
Extts itgu AT (PRAMATTH PI2EEF219 FEATRXTT
Accrated Interest inocome 2, 5 i, e, D2 12 556 482 -
Sarvida Koo &, 30 307 5, 16L.e0 11,B35 B30
Gain on 3ake o
narketpHe secunties - 1.8 225 -
Prispearty eouspmant sra B2 £ 518 155,142
Forelgn exchange kssas {1,180,525) (845,518 (1,887 430}
Odhers 5207 80T 4,341 828 2471, 165

{PO50 65  PSEATN 481 PA1AXMDT4

On Seglombar 1, 2005, e Cormomssioner of Bureau of Inlemal Reverws [BIR)
signed Favanus Regulations (AR No, 16-2005, which ook =ffect on Mavarnbar 1,
205 The RA, among cthers, intraducsd the KBewing changes:

a. The powesnement or any ol its politiea] subdivisions, irdumentalites or agecoae,
Irciuding govemment-owned o contried corpomtons {GOCCs) shall, bafore
mking pEymenl pn acpourt of sach purchase of goods and/©r of 5erdeesd Hred
at 12% VAT pursuant !0 Sectons 106 and 102 gl the Tax Cods, deduct and
wAmhoid 2 nal VAT dua at the rale of 5% of tha gross payrment thareal, e
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. The 5% Mnal WAT withhokling @Ale reprasents the nat VAT payabla al 1he saller.
Tha raraiming 7 eflectively accounts for he standand ingut YAT for gales ol
QoDds of Senices W povemmen! of amy of I polfcal  SubanAsions,
instrumentalibies or aganciss ncuding GOCCA, in liew of the adual inpud VAT,
Shewbd actual inpu! WAT exceed 795 of Qrogs payments, the @Icess may Hem
pan of the celler's expensa o0 Gosl. On the othar hamd, d AcmAl Input WAT IS less
than 7% qf gross. payment, the diHerenca must be cloged 1o ncoma.

The Gmp reognizes (ha gocass of standard inptl VAT over achsl inpd YAT
g5 ingoma of ampensa wiich I8 prasemed as “Cxcess inpul WAT' o e
gonsalicabed Flatamenns ol incomae.

Orhera consist of mainly misceflanaaes incame, bank champess, and seller's prim
ferum winming Hokets eceoding B10,000.

+i, Fefiremeant Fan

Tha Farenl Someany, TGTI, LCC and Mine Emities have funded, noncontribumry
haforwen] Eeenatiis phars covenng substan ialty all of it regular employess. Annual cost
5 dalomined wsing e projectsd unll cradit mathad. The talest actuarial valuation
data |5 Decembor 31, 2719, Yalualions are obrained on a perdodic basis.

The Refireerent Flars of the Parenl Company, LCC and TGTI pmovide a redrement
Earvalil equal 10 22.5 days' pay for avery yaar of credied sanvicd. The Plans meal the
PR rort P nk Eeereefil specitied undier Heproatsic act Te41.

The retiramen plans of tha Parenst Cosmpany, LEC and TGT] arg administered by a
Trugtas bank ynder the superision of a Retirement Plan Cammittea (Commitlee), as
appoimed by the Companiss in e Truat Agresment. The Trysiea is responsifle for
e Irvestmanl sialegy ot the retirement plans.

Cruring 2019, the Group amended thelr plan 2ssel B incude the death and dsabiey
beanahits which resulted o the recognitn of pasl service Sost



Present Value of

Defined Benefit Obligation Fair Value of Plan Assets Defined Benefits Liability (Asset)
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017 2018 2018 2017
Balance at heginning of year P72,912,774 P84212,651 P73,976,755 PB80,768,327 P85,560.924 P74,299,987 (P7,855,553) (P1,357,273) (P323,232)
Acquisition of Nine Entities - 716,002 - - - 716,002
Recognized In Profit or Loss
Current service cost 9,816,655 12,297,526 11,438,381 - - 9,816,655 12,297,526 11,438,381
Past senvice cost 9,357,392 - 9,357,392 - -
Interest expense 5,750,268 4,749,206 3,980,142 - - 5,750,268 4,749,206 3,980,142
Interest income - - - 7,123,506 4,998,686 4,309,150 (7,123,506} (4,998,686)  (4,309,150)
Interest on effect of asset ceiling - - - {464,657) {135,374) (72,487} 464,657 135,374 _72,487
24,924,315 17,046,732 15,418,523 6,658,849 4863312 4,236,663 18,265,466 12,183,420 11,181,860
Remeasurements Recognized
in Other Comprehensive
income
Actuarial {gains) losses arising
from:
Experience adjustments (681,139} {691,375) (2,846,877) - - . (681,139) (691,375} {2,846,877)
Changes in financial
assumptions 33,150,515 (22,323,512) (2,475821) - - - 33,150,515 (22,323,512}  (2,475,821)
Changes in demographic
assumptions {1,548,460) (5,235,515} (575,931) - - - (1,548,4690) (5,235,518) (675,931)
Return on plan asset excluding
interast - - - (293,111} (7,194,150} (3,170,012) 293,111 7,194,150 3,170,012
Effect of asset ceiling - - - 5,281,172 (3,374,553} (801,697 (5,281,172} 3,374553 801,697
30,920,916 (28,250,403) {5,808,629) 4,988,061 (10,568,703) (3,971,709) 25,932,855 (17,681,700) (1,926 920}
Others
Benefits paid - (96,206) - - {96,206) - - -
Contributions paid - - - 6,500,000 1.000,000 11,004,983  (6,500,000) (1,000,000) (11,004,983}
- (96,208) - 6,500,000 803,794 11,004,983  (6,500,000) (1,000,000) (11,004,983)
Balance at end of year P128,758,005 P72,912,774 F84,212,651 P98,915237 P80,768,327 P85569,924 P29,842,768 (P7,855,553) (P1,357,273)
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The changes in the affect of asset ceilng e ak RI0WE!

e 20148
Balarce at beglnng of panod PE5,BB4 570 2,374,952
Aemeasurement pain on the changa in the
etfect of aaset ceiling (4,234,171} 3,374 585
Intarasl expeanse on eMfect gl assal cailing 484 &57 135572
Balansa al evnd of peoriod F1, 058, 2 P&, B BTS
Tha faic value of plar assets concicle of the Tollowing:
2019 2UtH
Cagh ar cash equdvalants P& A52, T P2, 742 707
et onSinUmEnls - Qoemimel bonds 45,600,082 44,713,836
Dt ingimimants - other borwds 2 frad TOT a4 A BL7
Lini lawastrrant inust tunds AP, 189,935 2,478 501
Others 1,568 53] {3,377,104)
PO, TS, TIT  PRO,7RE 9T

AN debt ingruments and uni investment el hexds Rave quomsd pnces in Rctve
markets, Tha 2018 Sgures werg adiuesiad (g algn with 2019 breakdosmn,

The Farent Company, TET and LG dupacd o corerbute F100G milicn, F3.0 mifion
and P1.5 milkgn to tha benali glan in 2320,

The pnncipal assumptions usaed in detemmining be ratirgtent Tabilily o he Gmoup
Are Ghoem Exkia:

g
Parent
Company LoC T™an
Discounl rato 3.25% 5.10% 522%
Fuiure Sakary incregse 4.00% 5.0 % &%
2018
Farant
Company [ i TGT
Diccount rabe 8.06% 8.04% 72X e
Futura salary incrdasa .00 2O _ BO0%

Assumptions tor marality rates are based an Tha 2001 CS0 Tatle - Gersratonal
(Sl AN Sordy of Actuaries]. Assomplions lor disabilly rates ane basaed on The
Deaability Sudy, Perod 2 Benefid 5 {30oaty of Actuanes].

Az a1 Decemixar 31, 2015, 1he weightad avarage duratan of 1w b roaant liabdity o
tha Sroup s 12.4 yaars b 308 yaars.

.



s furity Bnakysis af Tatal ba nefie paymenits of e Grodp:

Expacted Benakil Paymeants
Fgram

P i CONTpAETY Lo TETI Todal
Pl ran P15, 759,745 F3.305 656 Pe1E8,15] P28 25).558
okl | 3,795 865 ET 149 r 3,853,014
X2 1,540 N4 =] I ot - iR

b 1] Az23rarz 315 158 2T 3,823,258
Mrzd 913,788 1771 638 . 1091 406
2005- X0 c b FHE 0 5 67T 085 . - 31, 659005

AR al Decambar 3t, 2018, 1he wasonable posabis changes o ona of Ine relevant
actyarial essumptcons hoiding ofher agsemptiong conslant, would have alfeced e
cerfired beoreclit cbligathon ey e ampunts Dalaw:

1 Parcert 1 FPecont

nLrease Decredss
CHgoount rats {14,485 000) 17,877,142
Future salary In:radass mte 17308 7o (14,48 550}

These deflred enefit plans ermpose the Group 10 actuaskal dske, such as iongety
rigl, imicresd rale risk and markel risk.

Aczal-iabilly Makehing (ALM)

The GQroup does nal padomm amy ALM shady. The overall invasimert palicy and
sirabagy ol e retirement ptan is basad on he Group's SuiBbiley assassmenl, a5
provided by its us! bam, in compilance with the Bangko Sentral ng Filipinas (B5F)
requiremerts.

23, Diluted Esmings Fer Shass [DEFS)

The Iiowing whie presents inkmealion necessany b cakculats bose and diutad
EPS during the year:

_ _ 2ma 214 X017
I55ued « beginming o yoar Bady BAE AT PA4TBEG AT P47 665 4T3
Traasury shares o baginning o
YE (2523408 (R).755.402) {4,083 BE)
urgmandieg 81 baginnieg of yoar,
balore stock dridends . 422431 081 423000881 440 681 5T
1% 9inck dividenda

Al| o9 zhares 44T GBS LT3 447 BES 473 447 685473
On reasury shares {26 233 402} {20,755 402} (4 GRT.548E]
Rertrisspeaciiees Ellact of Bk
dlvidenda 422 4271 21 423 006 51 442 CH1.537
Owdslardding o beginnng o waar,
aher stock dridends (&) B B8, i BT 819962 BAS 36,054
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218 2018 217

EMect of goguisition of reasury

Ehams on wighled average,

talore alfect of stock

dwidengds F - {P1.113,433%) P15.256,425)
Eltact of 100%: stock divedends - {1,113 437 LIS.EEE.#E‘E]
EHet of acruksitin al treasury

shares, after stock, dividends

i) P - (P2226.879) (P30,512.850)

Weighted average nurriwer of
shares outstand|mg dunng e
year lor Basic EPS and
Dituled EFS (a+h} P544.863 952 PBAS 59300 P854 550,20

Mal Incoema (oss) attributable
10 equity halders of the Parant

Coamgany (5} {319411,018) 302659385 490,101,221
Basle EPS and Dihtad EPS
i) (PO3781) Po.3570 FO5735

Bask EPS s calculad by dividing the net wncome kor e period by the weightad
avearaga nuber of ahares gutstanding during the year,

During 2019, the Group isseed a8 100% stoch dividand 1o its sharcholders, The
BAmings par shars preseniod B arrpuled wilh ralrodpective appocation gF the shock
dividardds 1o e aafkes] paiod presented,

Cilrted EFS 15 cakulated [m the same manner as basic EPS adiusted 1o dilutnis
instrumerds. The calculation kr 2017 indudes the effec of me 1005 sock dividend
cleckared during the vaar, The increaso in adhonzed cAplial ok wad spproved by
Ina SEC on Febvuary 28, 20009, (MNolg 153,

24, Financ|al Inelramants

Flranckal Bisk Managemert Cinactives gnd Foligas

The Group's pincipal floancal insnments are compoased ol £ash i banks, cash
pguvalknts, Ireda and albar receablos, makalable sscixities, nvestments in
stocks, rdlundable depesiE, quacanies bonots, made and other cuorent liabilities, o
payabie, lease liabifties, cigations urkder tnanca [sase and insalmenl payatle,
The man pupase of thess Arancl nstraments B 0 provige iinancing far (e
Growg's caplial expendiures ard oparations, The Group has vanows ohar inanciak
assets and iabdiies suct as bagde and ather recalvables, fafundable Odeposits,
guarantes bands, Trade arnd other curment Ksbllitles, wivch ardse direcly from s
operatons. The maln rsks adsing from the Group's linancisd instraments ane cradit
risk, aquity price nisk, Bouidity sk and foreign currancy risk. Thers has been no
change b e Sroup's egresura 1o hase nanclal fkks or e manner in which il
manapes 2rd measunes the risks, The Group's BOD and mansgarmgnt réviaw and
Apress on el policias 1o manacing each al thess risks as Summari2ed bedkow




Lot Rish

The Group's recepmbdes anse mainly from the ELA with PCIE0 and he lictnse
agraemen! with PGEC, Since the Group has cignlticant cancentretion of crédil sk
an ite recofvabde Irom PGS0 asd PAEC, it s the Group's policy that ail credit terms
apecified in e ELA and the eense agreement an: Somplied wilh and paymeant
lerrng are coserved. With respect 1o othae recalvables, e Group MARARes Credit
risk by Iransacting onky with recopnlzed, creditworthy thind paries. Il is tha Group's
polloy thal the BOD approves the maky transachions with 1 parties. Recevable
balancas ara manitered en an ongoing basiz with tha objeciva thal the Gmup's
axpaslre to bad debis iz mat signifcant.

With rasperd b cresit risk ansng from the pfher fingnedal assets of the Group, which
arg composnd of cash in banks, markatable Secunbies, imvestments i xiocks,
refundable deposis ang guaran e bonds, the Group’s exposure o credi, ik anses
e chefaul! al e countorpany, with 2 madmum expasura acual lo e Camying
amount al fesa insrunmants.

Tho tabde: Dekys Shows the meximum oxposyrs b credit risk fon the Group's hnancial
az=ots as ot Cecombar 3t, 2019 and 2018 withaut @king o account any collalersl
ar] pther eredil enhancemants:

- . Mote Z0% 2018
Cash in Banks and cash aquialents 7 P3IZ.A30313 P&E4 838,235
Trada and ottssr racarvatiss - qe" 4 218,831, 504 334, 550, 292
Merkatable securies 8 140,438 681 155, 704 B2
Refurdakio doposits 1 25.424,154 34,030 657
Invgstments m Slocke 17 347 620,680 455,705,930
Guaraniss bonds™ ) 12,004,000 42 (00 0]
Total credi sxposure P1,081, 273622 P1.587. 770045

“Mrdoetiv Of OrCTE AR S Tiges oF A5 e S A WICOM BTCerGing (0 PRE § mdon an' 3L ] Ry
AT e ot of Aefeliendd A Mouling o PS5 matdon and PETLE mdhon as af Decambde 31 2578 and SO18.
Nt (i raly.

"Unehaches e cash bono ook Tihay Emﬁijiﬂ-ﬂ'ﬁﬂmmﬂmm’wm

Tho labke bedow shows e aging anahysts of receivabies othor financosl assaks as at
Decemnber 31, 2040 andd 2014,

N il 1y o)

M|ttt Past

Do nor
e mpaine Lmpathsd Total

Trade and other recelvables -

nel e 108 370 P - PTE 1083
Accriad recasvable” 134,615,088 - 135,675, 01
(Gus raniee bondz** 13,000 0 - 1.2, Do, 100
Asundatio dopasits 3E,424,154 - 55,424 184
Chhiad raceivatias 1,168,670 - 1158570
P20, 305,740 F - P260, 305 744

" Inchparim OF NOOCTATAn! DOcTRNE OF SCAas Mo e of FREG rmieon Sd sucstsg off Bhvance pRyTeTE
F58.2 melor.

=" Wciais i SREN D] GGk "THRA CLaTt sty [Tar aoncalicasd Sl amerss of finencek! ot



Fall]:

Maiter Past

Dha ror
Impgired iRpained Total

Trada and ofwer racakvables -

maEt” FPi81 441 3¢ P - F1683 441,257
AL ] reCehabhas” 168 015 55 - 168,015,650
Guarantes bonds 42 (00, 0 d 2 000,000
Raluvndable deposits 4,500 9T 3,830,657
Crhar reteivablgs 3,093M7 3,099, 387
P11 480,550 P . P41 480 589

* iyt G nancrenl porkion of foecse dad piearts of SRR | e g g heshe of sdvamce Mt of

F3d o mrlson.

* nchuier thy Gzl ha ucier T curer A%aafa™ b1 e Cortsnbp ad Sepaments of (el podice].

Retahables fal are pas dug bt not mpaired 2ra il caollsciblo bassed on e
assesament of cebior's abilty o pay and collection agraement.

The tabbe bedow ahows the credit quakty of the Group's neither pas! due e impalred
finanmal eseets based on Mwar histoncal expadence wih he comeapanding i

partieg:
_ LAy
_Grga A drade 8 Grade C Tow
At A owrliked st
Caah b barka Sl cagh

Bouivale s REE T RTE] [ P - P332 BRO,I1Y
Tl‘.ﬂ.ﬂ& A1l oy nacaady albin B -

il TEMAOE 13881588 212 281,504
R iandab-do Sopogits - 35 424 15 - 35 434154
Goaramoa hards - . 12,000,000 12,000,000
Al FYRL-

Markstabia securibes 140,456 150 Y40, 455 581
APV
Invastrments in Stocks 347,830, 850 A7 530,580

PRITIAE T PR 0 000

PIE000000 P08 27 522

" fE s F nonraTar oot of Bocnsed Boanse dog Inceer amierdtiog o PR G nalon sl aoidies of

SN TS o C5E 2 o

a1g
Gl A Grada B Grace £ Yolal
AL amortined oos-
Cash i banks P BeBS, SR P - R - o B T3
Trada sl othar recpnmbioy
et 165 a3s 18AOE85D I S50,
Rahndable degosds - 34 990 537 . S O] 607
Buaranisas bonds . 43,006 00 42 Lull] ol
M By
MLark s Bhle gacuritera 155,704 ik 155, Ml FA
A PYOC]
Iniversreis 1 abockE A58 T0O5 B #55 705 B

P1.342.801 B PEDR G, 350

P2 0 003 F 1,587, 778,048

"IN Of AW Doviian 4 e iend Araieg o npomy amrmeding i PO mltorr deid aechusiok of

BONCY TR oF FEOE makion



Grade A perlains to hose Cagh in hanks amd guanniea bonds that are depacited b
repummEbla  barks, investmonts with raputable publicdy |&led companies and
receivables from PCSO which are conesllanty collectsd balore tha maturily dae.
Grade B parking 1 recalvabios hat are aoflected oo their dug dates aven withoud arn
eHor from the Groue 1o holow tham . Grade G pertalns 10 recehatie which aie
cotlecied on teir due dates provided that the Group mada a parsstant afforl o
codect ham.

Exfmabog ECL

The Rble ek presems the Groug's spasura to credll fsh and shows T Gredit
qudlity of the financial assets a3 at Dempar 31, X019 by indicating whathor e
fancial gosets am subpclad to 15-marmh ECL ar lifetime ECL. Assds hat are
crgdit-impalred ara saparaloly presenied.

Pirmcial Aot it Atuartieed Coad

Likelma B2L
Ml Craeit Carrying
Dusamesr 31, 219 1 -aorth BCL Impabed Tetmd BCL Aot
f'Lxch i -Daniy s sash
Fria (e T F - Pl B, 3 P P 13
T ke ared Glhir
Moaspiv LM - " 215 X e - 1 SAGNS (247 gt XS
Fharl ofuiubabe s o7y
ity BALIH . e v 04 - oA T
uamnise bokds 1 i oy folns . 12X - 12 000 000
PR 131 4937 P FORSEIAAME  [FLyéT XN} PIEL 1B8.08H

" Ingiegham O vy ewtied o o Boonse e e vkl [ PR B Ml e guoishes of Johanea
T o Pelrt 3 sl

Fanoroxd Aooets ab Amochesd Ladt

Tiacama CLL
Pron Crestt Lty
DCoErher 31, 2038 12 Month ECL e i Tol ECL AmHARH
Camh in barma And SN
B PoGL. ARG T P P G 2N P . PHASMINM
Trase 1yl i el
Pt - mat” 00T - T 550297 : M 550792
Faduncctds Bac mby
| 54, Q30 A7 . 0T : B0 DT
Gt Borrk 42 LK) 23 . A2 0o DO : 42000000
FOTE, 307,007 F oo PITE 367 227 P - et s

TR O OO DOV o Eocn o Beovise e iy amonniie e L P vt e ot Q4 st
P T o PEGLE el

The Group compudes Impalmment [oss on tracke and other receivables tazed on pasl
mlection sapernences, current Cclicumshnaes and e mpact o lotum Bcomomic
coxdiboeTs, i arry, availabin 3l e repoting penod. Liase rales ara based on actual
credit k=g susadance, Any edustments to dee 55 rabes for forecasts of fumrs
ecarenic coeltoms are ol gapected (o e matedal. The Groop epplies the
simplifiend approach in providing ior ECL ragcribad by PFRS 9, which parmils e
usd of te lilethme axpecied 1085 proviskon and apples 2 proyiskon metx,

Cash in anks and cash squivalents are coumdersd o good gquallly as thase partaln
ko daposits in reputable Benke

Impirnanit on SAER has Besn measured on a 12-month apecled 053 bases and

rafbeacts tha Showl maturites of tha axposures, Tha Group consaders tat its cash has
Yo cradil ek hasad o tha extemal credil mtings gl tha Coundampartiss.
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Fecoivpkdes and refuxdabla secudly deposlts are considenad of good Aualty ﬁn-l.':-l_i.'
hasa ara ransacwsd with counterparties with high axdamal credit caings. e Crodit
qualimy of thage fnancial azmets is conskersd | ba high grade,

Manetahle Sacurtes and Imvesiment in Socks are apnakdersd pood quality 5incs
Rhesa aig yaaEd I companics Nisked in e FSE.

E .
Equily prica gk i3 tha rak hal the falr valee of saquily invesiments decrsases as a
result of changes in e valug of Individual emck The Group's cuerent esyeeudre bo
equity price rek ralales primanty o he Group’s guoted manatabk securties amd
Imvastments In siocks. The Group rmotons 1Re souety investments based on markat
expectabons. Significan] Investmeants whhin he poffctio are managed on an
Irdivieal banis and 2l by and 2l deckEnns am appoved by he BOD.

The foliowing table damorstaies (e Sonctaly [0 d reasonably possible change in
ety pice, with all other varabies hedd consem, 4l e Grou's consolidated
incoimve befora Income lax and equlby:

Mamarrde Socu s
Effoct on Consotld rmed
Increasa (Dworsxss) in Equlty Price Inceme before Incorme Tax
201y
5% PT,022 829
S ). JN (7,022 B9}
X018
&% P7.7B5 245
{5%] {7.7B5.245]
Iestmants [t Stocks
Efieet on Comprehans v
nchaans {Dmeranan) in EqUity Prics T InCoIme
2018
- -7 FI7.047)
{Bie) L {ar g AT
2013
B% P36 456,475
(8] {36,458.475)

Losmotclley Risk .
Liguachity risk is the risk, thal the Groug will ba unabea 10 meat s paymant obdinations
wian by 13l due Joer i mal ared siress circumEEnces and eguin securides. To
lamir 1hes risk, the Group chosaly monilors its cash Bows and ensures thal cradil
lagiites are availabin ™ meal i oblgateres a5 2nd when thay fall due. Tha Group
also hag a commbited line ol credit that it can acoess 1o mael iquioity needs,

The Group mainiging sidficiant cash 1o finanee s opeabans.  Any excass cash is
vastad in Shof-lenm maney makst placernents and ofulty securies. Thesa arg
maimained i meat e requirgmenis for addllicnal capdtal expendilures, mailunng
otliga bort, and gash drvicands.



The lable below summadors the maturty profile of the Godm's financial labiltes
basad o0 Contras Al uniscounted payments:

ba-li s _
Ll thuer i-B q-12 Moy than
it Pl ) onthe o Eh-e 1.3 bl cnThan Tk
Troede and ofter
] Bald s 14 PalI4sSATE  PRIENA B PR B PITERTEOS P R BH
Lkl e oty b 15 ST o 00000 37 R000 . 16501, Do, Bx1
L Eu Lipaibes ™ M BFIM__ IMARTHN 3134 143 o TanRM A7 A% OO

PR RT0TT FING 0NN PRLISE MY PAMLITREN PTSRPRL S

* Exiohucing paiiny Mebebbas Smooertey o P 1 B R Ao
® JncRechl off ALl SoeTies

by [

Lk Then =Y 512 " W gan
3 WAl Ay e 12 ey Total
T and o Surie
|Labrition" LAl Nl P - FIDQD o0 PaT 6E M PR 100 06
UL B Ly SR fuch
loarsa™ A0 BARRTAl 21.HESA - 05 3T AT
Rl e Lanri i’ ] - . o en [sd2

P g PoBss Y PN PTG T PR, T EN

" EXfading rialdony Bty amounbeg fo 22 B el
! ngenas H ALl oDk

Forolgn Gmancy Bk

The Gmap has ransactions! cumeney cxposuras. Such exposure arlses fom cash in
hanks gred payables (o cartain suppliets winch ara danominaled in U.S. dollar {U55).
The Group's Hrancal Instromanis which are denomingied in lonsgn surmenty Include
cash and consumney angd sglware and Beensa Isas payable. The Group malmaks
a LSS acoaml &1 mabch (B fores SUrme ey FeUireiments.

A5 at Decomber 31, 2019 and 2018, assets and Habdiies denominated in USE
include cash In banks amountng to P58 millpn $1,022,373) and PALS milon
{EA31,254), and consultancy and softwers and ligensa fes payable amounting 1o
P17.2 milfica (3309, 722) and PI7.0 mdkon ($716.411), respectvedy,

In frarslating kregn sumency-danoninatad monatary assats and [lakiikea imo peso
amounks, W axchanga raies vood were PSOE and PS2.4E o USSE, e Php o
USS axchangs ralgs, as at Decambar 31, F019 and 2018, respeciedy.

The lowing table demonstrales tha sensilivity to & reasonably possle chanpe In
tha Php-USE mechangs rates, with all owar vanebles held constanl, of e Group's
consad il alad Inoome bedore tax. Thare is no other impad an the Group's squity DU
that thosa already aftectingy profit o Bes,

Increass (Decreane) in LSS Effect on InCovne
Exchangs Asts hafors ncone T Effect on Equity
Fopl
Lo 9 (F1, 728,208} (F1,20% 807)
. {5%) 1,728,708 1,208, 807
201E
5o, (691,698} {484, 188H)
[5%) ) 91,698 Apd 1AB

The eroase i s rake means stromger LISE goaingt Php while the decmass in
LSS rmeans stronger Phyy adsires the UG,

-5g.



CAgial Maragengn)

The prAmary ohjectve of the Group's caokal mantagesent s to safaguard the
Group’s ablity th conlined 25 a going <oficem, =0 at it can provide matums bor
shareholdars 2nd banelits 1or other stakeholdars and o maintain an gpkimal caplial
streture o rechuca te costar capial.

The Group mamages e capeml sirocture and makas sdjustmants o if, in light al
changes in ecopomec condifigns,  To maintin or adjust e capital stuching, Hea
Group may Adusl the daddend payment ko shareloklsr, rafufn camtal o
SharahHHE, Peactiirg 5 own shames, oF BSue naw chares, The Gogug maniiprs
capial on e basis of cument ratio and detr-to-equity m@fio, The Grug's stratedy,
WG was unchanged oM price year, was i mainlain corrent ralio and daltd-1o-
ecuzly ralia at managaabe levals.

Tharg wera np chanes in Ind Goup's speroach T capitl managamant duting e
YL,

A% at Cecombar 31, 2018 and 2018, the Group is campRarnt with tha mirimwn pobic
Hoat respuirermant by the PSE.

The Group delines capital as capital skock, addmmnal paid-in capital, measuny sieck
dividend deivibadobla and rglaingd gamings. Other components of equity are
axriuded from capital for porposas ol capral maropemont.

There ware np changas in the Compamy's approach b @pital managemant during
tha yaar. Az ot Dacamber 31, 2019 and 2014, the Commpany |5 compllant with te
minlimwm publkc flcat equirement by PSE.

The Goup's comant @ba, gcagolamd as ol curanl assafs aver total cument
liabdibes, and debl-ko-agiaty ratic, calculamwl as tolaf abiltles ower equity, a5 at
Dacambear 31, 20159 and 2018 ara as Iolkbws;

Current Halo

. 05 2015

CoLmont ascots PEE SRS I3 P1,158 067 501
Cuirent liabdlHas 3018424 289167455
Cuymant raleo 2 -1 00 o O0-1 .00

E Rat

01t 218

Total [ bHikees FiaeA410 .00 P32 45 BN
Total equity o 1312419353 1 786197780
Dot -to- ety it 0.30:1.00 0.19:1.00

T acargss he prohibibon 0 rainiaining axcess rakaineal samings dver Bma pald In
capilal under Sec_ 43 of e Corpovabon Coda, ha Goup ntends o cormruougly
dedam divdends and 139 conskdanng varous opBans In line with i Dusiness
oty and siralegias amd siabe of e gaming indwstry.



Ear Yalus of Bingncia| Inshumerss
Sal cut below |5 A comparizan by catagory of Carmang amounts and 13 values of all
e Group's inancial instturnants as al Decembear 37, 2019 and 20148

- Fai J 1| adig
Gty Carprg
o Armee H1l F*_"H'dlll . A Far Vislian
FIRAACh Mot
B Az oot
Cacth A caahy b B e PHE7ATI A PLOAFLAI9 P& 20T PETL28025T
T @l cewar e Bl v 212891, 55l 212 Bl Kaad JARD 232 34 550 207
Rehundetia dapoits 35 424 104 184 M0, eaT AT
'J-IF..\?I;H'IIH i &, Fa), [A] T 0,000 A2 000, 000 A LT LLF
14 L=
Rkt ble o e A0, pl Bh 10 A 5l 587 155 B 195, 7 BS2
ALFYGO:
Wre{cicl Tl IF| BRIzl JHT, R AT ] RRT 455, 75, Sk AR TS Bk
P DAG R 738 P DS B TR P S0d 152,088 PG, 150 LES
ot b 018
CHTYIH] Carnarg
Aot Fak Vaihse =i R
Flrpncipl Lingistig
A1 dumotized Sost
Tandda ared cter currert
Wb B 423065 2 MA230A058 2 FHZIELMS PR H0MmE
Loun payabe 1800 00, Dy 150, 300, 000
Lomcats ol Iy (Tt It cH
NanouTen. prta) &7, 00, Dark 87,902,006
Serrt undie’ LAlircs ileta
s A rrrta ) - - 3= 374,474 FIT4ATE
el DrTopi T nCied | kg of
earcarart gerfem) o—- Bapar  B0Mp

PR ST PIRLMELSE]  PEES, T BT PRRE RRLBM

* il o raor ey I e A Bdviea Rl Wimmmmﬁmw PR T malign
d sachsve of sdvancer amouraleg (o P 2 mikon s FRTE el i A Docsmbge 310 AT g 2018,

*Exducieny siaodory Eaiwhives of F 18 mdfiet el B2 6 talisced 1 1 aead X1 PE, dnckon i

The eamdng armaunts of eaeh and ash equivalsnis, ttade and oher recenabes
taxciding accried Roenoe fog [(neoma), doposlts, rade and ofer cieTent akilites
and imn payabes spproximate ther fair valees dve b The relaieoly ghart-tam
matueites of he Anancial instmmengs.

The camying amourt of accred Gcense fee income is Daged on preset valus using
2 clecount s thal aporoximates the pravailing markat rata.

Tha Rir velues of merketable securibes and ivestmerds in 9tocks ara bassd on
quoted markat pricas.

-B1 -



The campng amounts of gqua@nize bomds. depo£ils. hease [mbllies, obligahans
under linana gage, and inslafment payatle approximate fee Rir valoas Snce the:
Group doas not anticipate hat e atlact of discaunting usiry the prevailing marker
rate ks =ignificant.

Lavall Level2 Lawpl3d Total
Warkalahbs Securribes
g 140,486 581 P - P - P140,486 581
o018 155, 704 A5 - - | &5 A0 A2
Invaabtwnbs 0 Shais
2019 347 530 580 347 A0, B8
a8 455 0SB0 - . 455, M, B0

Thers were g ranse s bebween Lewveds in 2019 and M E.

25, Evenia After the Financial Reporting Pariod

On Febryary £ X020, he managamenl ol Parent Company and Lom Facil has
aponowed the plan ko sall LCC and Nine Enfites (LCC Growg) in fight of the neext far
e Compary 0 aous on il core twsiness and sutraguenty on Fabruary 13, 2020,
e sale of LOC Growp was compsatod with a third party, Tha ofal assets and okl
ligbildes of te LCC Growe as at Decamber 31, 2015 are P290.505850 and
P109,902, 2459 raspecitvely. The mtal revenua and net kms of LOC Grup Tor the year
andsd Cwcambar 31, 2018 are P2A2 915 888 and P121,137. 720 respectively. Tha
Company recgived a consdaration amounting o P137 413 458,
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2019 &nd 201 B aned bow wacch of Iba ihreo yoars in s pa nod anded Cacember 31, 2015 incuwdad In this
Frorm 17-4, and hawe Eausd our rape e reon dated Fabryary 26, 2020,

Cuir gty waara mada lor b purpose of larmirg an opkman on the baghe congoleks ed Tnangial
slatemanie of tha Group taken 82 & wioks Tha syupobeeabary (nfemmabon included in Use folowng
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PACIFIC OMLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
As at Dacamber 31, 2019
RECONCILIATION OF HRETAINED EARNINGS
AYAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

Tuotal Rewsirwed Eamnings, boginnbng avsilabis 100 divicend
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Liras : MNoa-actugl unrealized income
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Liss:
Cash dhvidord degdared
Sich divicerds dedared
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PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Conglomerate Map
December 31, 2019
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PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTENMS CORPORATION
Schedule A. Financial Assets
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Type of Financial Assets Amount Schedule
Financial Assets at FVPL Marketable Securities 140,456,581 A1
Financial assets at FVQC Investments in Stocks 347,630,880 A-2
Loans and Receivables Cash equivalents 38,261,781 A-3
Cash on hand and in banks 299,209,748
Trade and other raceivables 172,501,609
Refundable deposits 34,924,847
Guarantee deposits 12,000,000
044,985,446

A-1 Marketable Securities

w

Number of Amount Value Based
Shares or Shown in the on Market
Principal Statement of Quotations at
Name of Issuing Entity and Amount of Bonds Financial Position Balance Sheet
Description of each Issue and Notes Date
APC Group, Inc, 45,621,000 17,870,180 17,870,190
Leisure and Resorts World Corp 10,724,792 25,739,501 25,739,501
Vantage Equities, Inc. 43,376,750 46,846,890 46,846,890
LRAWC Preferred 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
Total 140,456,581} B 140,456,581




A-2 Investment in Shares of Stocks

Number of Amount Value Based
Shares or Shown in the on Market
Principal Statement of Quotations at
Name of Issuing Entity and Amount of Bonds Financial Position Balanca Sheet
Description of each Issue and Notes Date
Belle Corporation 66,663,000 132,659,370 132,659,370
Premium Leisure Corporation 377,143,000 214,971,510 214,971,510
Total 443,806,000 347,630,880 347,630,880
A-3 Cash Equivalents
Number of Amount Value Based
Shares or Shown in the on Market
Principal Statement of Quotations at
Name of Issuing Entity and Amount of Bonds Financial Position Balance Sheet
Description of each Issue and Notes Date
Asia United Bank 38,261,781 38,261,781
Total 38,261,781 38,261,781




PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Principal
Stockholders (Other than Associates)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

e —— . ———
Deductions
Beginning Amount Amount Ending
Name and Designation of Debtor Balance Additions Collected Written-off Balance
Advances to officers and smployees B 4938898 PR 1,683,928 R 2,048,567 & R 4,575,259

TOTAL i 4,939808 P 1,683,928 P 2,048,567 P - P 4,575,259




PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

Schedule C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Balance at Amount Amount : Balance at
Name and Designation of Debtor Beg. Of Period Additions Collected Written-off Current Not Cwrent End Of Perlod
Advances to Subsidlaries:

Total Gaming Technologies, Inc. 14 6,586,081 R B 3,928117.00 P - R B - B 2,657,914

Lota Pacific Leisure Corporation 841,489 150,987 5,601 986,855
Falcon Resourges, Inc. 10,000,000 10,000,000 *
LCC & Ning Entities 20,958,498 108,375,661 29,958,498 108,375,661
TOTAL [ 47,386,018 P 108526628 R 43,892,216 P - B - B - P 112,020,430




PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

Schedule D. Long Term Debt
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Amount Amount Amount
Name of Issuer and Authorized by Shown as Shown as
Type of Obligation Indenture Current Long-Term Remarks
R
[ NONE |




PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
Schedule E. Indebtedness to Related Parties
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Beginning Ending
Name of Affiliate Balance Balance

[ NONE |




PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION
Schedule F: Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Name of Issuing Entity Title of Issue Amount Owned by
of Securities Guaranteed of Each Class Total Amount the Company for
by the Company for which of Securities Guaranteed and which Statement Nature of
Statement is Filed Guaranteed Quitstanding is Filed Guarantee
R
| NONE




PACIFIC ONLINE SYSTEMS CORPORATION

Schedule G. Capital Stock
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Number of
Shares Reserved Number of Shares Held By
Number of for Options,
Number of Shares Issued Warrants, Directors,
Shares and Conversions and QOfficers and
Title of Issue Authorized QOutstanding Other Rights Affiliates Employees Qthers

Common Shares 2,288,000,000 895,330,946 - 73,843,750 821,487,196

2,288,000,000 895,330,946 - - 73,843,750 821,487,196
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PeciiTe Cnline Sywtemz Corporation

Sche-dule ahowirg Financlal Soundriess indlcators

Kay Parformance Formvin :
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